
  

 

Meeting of the  
 

OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

________________________________________________ 
 

Tuesday, 3 August 2010 at 7.00 p.m. 
______________________________________ 

 

A G E N D A 
__________________________________________ 

 

VENUE 
M71, 7th Floor, Town Hall, Mulberry Place, 5 Clove Crescent, London, 

E14 2BG 
 
Members: 
 

Deputies (if any): 
Chair: Councillor Ann Jackson  
Vice-Chair:Councillor Ahmed Adam 
Omer  

 
  
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Tim Archer 
Councillor Harun Miah 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed 
Councillor Rabina Khan 
Councillor Lesley Pavitt 
Councillor Zenith Rahman 
 

Councillor Alibor Choudhury, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Ann 
Jackson, Ahmed Omer, Rajib Ahmed, 
Rabina Khan,  Lesley Pavitt and Zenith 
Rahman) 
Councillor Lutfur Rahman, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Ann 
Jackson, Ahmed Omer, Rajib Ahmed, 
Rabina Khan, Lesley Pavitt and Zenith 
Rahman) 
Councillor Peter Golds, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Tim 
Archer) 
Councillor David Snowdon, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillor Tim 
Archer) 
Councillor Shelina Aktar, (Designated 
Deputy representing Councillors Ann 
Jackson, Ahmed Omer, Rajib Ahmed, 
Rabina Khan,  Lesley Pavitt and Zenith 
Rahman) 
 



 
 
 
 
[Note: The quorum for this body is 3 voting Members]. 
 
Co-opted Members:  
  
Vacancy – (Parent Governor Representative) 
Mr Mushfique Uddin – (Muslim Community Representative) 
Vacancy – Roman Catholic Diocese of Westminster 

Representative 
Canon Michael Ainsworth – (Church of England Representative) 
Mr Ahbab Miah – (Parent Governor Representative) 
 
If you require any further information relating to this meeting, would like to request a large 
print, Braille or audio version of this document, or would like to discuss access arrangements 
or any other special requirements, please contact: 
 
Amanda Thompson, Democratic Services, 
 
Tel: 020 7364 4651, E-mail: amanda.thompson@towerhamlets.gov.uk 



 
 
 
 
 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 

Tuesday, 3 August 2010 
 

7.00 p.m. 
 

 SECTION ONE 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 
 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 
 To note any declarations of interest made by Members, including those restricting 

Members from voting on the questions detailed in Section 106 of the Local Government 
Finance Act, 1992.  See attached note from the Chief Executive. 
 
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 

3 - 10  

 To confirm as a correct record of the proceedings the 
unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee held on 6 July 2010. 
 

  

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 

  

 To be notified at the meeting. 
 

  

5. REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATIONS  
 

  

 To be notified at the meeting. 
 

  

6. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

6 .1 Report Called In - Idea Store Strategy Action Plan 
Update -  Idea Store Watney Market and One Stop 
Shop   

 

11 - 42  

 (Time allocated – 30 minutes) 
 

  

7. SCRUTINY SPOTLIGHT  
 

  

 The Lead Member for Resources, Councillor David Edgar, 
will attend to report on his portfolio. 
 
(Time allocated – 30 minutes) 
 
 

  



 
 
 
 

8. BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK ISSUES  
 

  

8 .1 Budget 2011/12 - 2013/14 - Resource Allocation and 
Budget Review - Report to Follow   

 
  

9. PERFORMANCE MONITORING  
 

  

9 .1 Strategic Performance and Corporate Revenue Budget 
Monitoring 2009/2010 Year End Report   

 
43 - 214  

 (Time allocated – 15 minutes) 
 

  
9 .2 Corporate Complaints and Social Care Complaints 

Annual Report 2009/2010   
 

215 - 266  

 (Time allocated – 15 minutes) 
 

  

10. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE 
(UNRESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

  
To consider and agree pre-decision scrutiny 
questions/comments to be presented to Cabinet on 4 
August 2010. 
 
(Time allocated – 10 minutes). 
 
 

  

11. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO 
BE URGENT  

 

  

 To consider any other exempt/confidential business that 
the Chair considers to be urgent. 
 
 

  

12. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC   
 
 In view of the contents of the remaining items on the agenda the Committee is 

recommended to adopt the following motion: 
 

“That, under the provisions of Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the press and 
public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting for the consideration of the Section 
Two business on the grounds that it contains information defined as Exempt in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act, 1972.” 
 

EXEMPT/CONFIDENTIAL SECTION (Pink Papers) 
 

The exempt committee papers in the agenda will contain information, which is commercially, 
legally or personally sensitive and should not be divulged to third parties.  If you do not wish 
to retain these papers after the meeting, please hand them to the Committee Officer present. 
 

  
 



 
 
 
 

13. EXEMPT/ CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES  
 

  

 Nil items. 
 
 

  

14. SECTION TWO REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 

  

 There were no Section Two reports ‘called in’ from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on 7 July 2010. 
 
 

  

15. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION TWO 
(RESTRICTED) CABINET PAPERS  

 

  

 To consider and agree Section Two (Restricted) 
questions/comments to be presented to Cabinet. 
 
(Time allocated 5 minutes). 
 
 

  

16. ANY OTHER SECTION TWO (RESTRICTED) 
BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS 
URGENT  

 

  

 To consider any other exempt/confidential business that 
the Chair considers to be urgent. 
 
 

  

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\1\8\AI00025811\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS - NOTE FROM THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
FOR MEMBERS OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
This note is guidance only.  Members should consult the Council’s Code of Conduct for further 
details.  Note: Only Members can decide if they have an interest therefore they must make their 
own decision.  If in doubt as to the nature of an interest it is advisable to seek advice prior to 
attending at a meeting.   
 
Declaration of interests for Members 
 
Where Members have a personal interest in any business of the authority as described in 
paragraph 4 of the Council’s Code of Conduct (contained in part 5 of the Council’s Constitution) 
then s/he must disclose this personal interest as in accordance with paragraph 5 of the Code.  
Members must disclose the existence and nature of the interest at the start of the meeting and 
certainly no later than the commencement of the item or where the interest becomes apparent.   
 
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is likely to 
affect: 
 

(a) An interest that you must register 
 
(b) An interest that is not on the register, but where the well-being or financial position of you, 

members of your family, or people with whom you have a close association, is likely to be 
affected by the business of your authority more than it would affect the majority of 
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision. 

 
Where a personal interest is declared a Member may stay and take part in the debate and 
decision on that item.   
 
What constitutes a prejudicial interest? - Please refer to paragraph 6 of the adopted Code of 
Conduct. 
 
Your personal interest will also be a prejudicial interest in a matter if (a), (b) and either (c) 
or (d) below apply:- 
 

(a) A member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think that your 
personal interests are so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interests; AND 

(b) The matter does not fall within one of the exempt categories of decision listed in 
paragraph 6.2 of the Code; AND EITHER   

(c) The matter affects your financial position or the financial interest of a body with which 
you are associated; or 

(d) The matter relates to the determination of a licensing or regulatory application 
 

The key points to remember if you have a prejudicial interest in a matter being discussed at a 
meeting:- 
 

i. You must declare that you have a prejudicial interest, and the nature of that interest, as 
soon as that interest becomes apparent to you; and  
 

ii. You must leave the room for the duration of consideration and decision on the item and 
not seek to influence the debate or decision unless (iv) below applies; and  

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



2 
 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\1\8\AI00025811\Notefromchiefexecutiveredeclarationofinterestsosctte07010820.doc  
  

 
iii. You must not seek to improperly influence a decision in which you have a prejudicial 

interest.   
 

iv. If Members of the public are allowed to speak or make representations at the meeting, 
give evidence or answer questions about the matter, by statutory right or otherwise (e.g. 
planning or licensing committees), you can declare your prejudicial interest but make 
representations.  However, you must immediately leave the room once you have 
finished your representations and answered questions (if any).  You cannot remain in 
the meeting or in the public gallery during the debate or decision on the matter. 

 
There are particular rules relating to a prejudicial interest arising in relation to Overview 
and Scrutiny Committees 
 
• You will have a prejudicial interest in any business before an Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

or sub committee meeting where both of the following requirements are met:- 
 

(i) That business relates to a decision made (whether implemented or not) or action taken 
by the Council’s Executive (Cabinet) or another of the Council’s committees, sub 
committees, joint committees or joint sub committees 

 
(ii) You were a Member of that decision making body at the time and you were present at 

the time the decision was made or action taken. 
 
• If the Overview & Scrutiny Committee is conducting a review of the decision which you were 

involved in making or if there is a ‘call-in’ you may be invited by the Committee to attend that 
meeting to answer questions on the matter in which case you must attend the meeting to 
answer questions and then leave the room before the debate or decision.   

 
• If you are not called to attend you should not attend the meeting in relation to the matter in 

which you participated in the decision unless the authority’s constitution allows members of 
the public to attend the Overview & Scrutiny for the same purpose.  If you do attend then you 
must declare a prejudicial interest even if you are not called to speak on the matter and you 
must leave the debate before the decision. 

 

Page 2



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
06/07/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

1 

LONDON BOROUGH OF TOWER HAMLETS 
 

MINUTES OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

HELD AT 7.00 P.M. ON TUESDAY, 6 JULY 2010 
 

M71, 7TH FLOOR, TOWN HALL, MULBERRY PLACE, 5 CLOVE CRESCENT, 
LONDON, E14 2BG 

 
Members Present: 
 
Councillor Ann Jackson (Chair) 
  
 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton 
Councillor Tim Archer 
Councillor Harun Miah 
Councillor Ahmed Adam Omer 
Councillor Rabina Khan 
Councillor Lesley Pavitt 
Councillor Zenith Rahman 
 
  
 
Co-opted Members Present: 
 
Mr Mushfique Uddin – (Muslim Community Representative) 
Mr Ahbab Miah – (Parent Governor Representative) 

 
Other Councillors Present: 
 
Councillor Rachael Saunders 
 

 
Officers Present: 
 
Afazul Hoque – (Scrutiny Policy Manager, Scrutiny & Equalities, 

Chief Executive's) 
David Galpin – (Head of Legal Services (Community)) 
Hafsha Ali – (Acting Joint Service Head Scrutiny & Equalities, 

Chief Executive's) 
Keiko Okawa – Scrutiny Policy Officer 
Katie McDonald – Scrutiny Policy Officer 
Matthew Vaughan – (Political Advisor to the Conservative Group) 
Sarah Gullo – (Communications Officer, Corporate 

Communications) 
Chris Saunders – (Interim Political Advisor to the Labour Group) 
Amanda Thompson – (Team Leader - Democratic Services) 

 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 3



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
06/07/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

2 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rajib Ahmed. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest made. 
 
 

3. UNRESTRICTED MINUTES  
 
The Chair Moved  and it was:- 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That the unrestricted minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee held on 8 June 2010 be approved and signed by the Chair as a 
correct record of the proceedings. 
 
 

4. REQUESTS TO SUBMIT PETITIONS  
 
None. 
 
 

5. REQUESTS FOR DEPUTATIONS  
 
None. 
 
 

6. SECTION ONE REPORTS 'CALLED IN'  
 
There were no Section One reports ‘called in’ from the meeting of Cabinet 
held on 9 June 2010. 
 
 

7. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT  
 
 

7.1 Diversity and Equality Action Plan 2009/10 - End of Year Monitoring 
Report  
 
 
 
Councillor Rachel Saunders, Lead Member for Health and Wellbeing, 
introduced the end of year monitoring report informing the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee of the Council’s progress in implementing its Diversity 
and Equality Action Plan (DEAP) for 2009/10.  

Page 4



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
06/07/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

3 

 
The report also included an annual summary of progress against the Council’s 
Age, Disability, Gender, Race, Religion/Belief, and Sexual Orientation 
Equality Schemes in 2009/10.  
 
Councillor Saunders advised that the report gave a narrative of each 
Directorate’s achievements on schemes, and although there were afew 
actions identified as ‘red’, this was not unreasonable given the total number of 
actions. She further advised that Tower Hamlets was the second Council 
nationally to be externally validated as being at the highest level ‘Excellent’ of 
the Equality Framework for Local Government (EFLG), which had replaced 
the Equality Standard for Local Government (ESLG). 
 
Hafsha Ali, Acting Service Head, Scrutiny and Equalities, stated that the 
assessment was a significant achievement following the realisation that many 
authorities were becoming obsessed with the process itself instead of the 
outcome that the schemes produced, and this had led to the replacement of 
the ESLG by the EFLG. 
 
Members of the Committee raised a number of questions in relation to the 
actual format of the report and how this could be improved, the real cost of 
implementing the plan and whether or not value for money was being 
achieved, the use of resources for the ‘No Place for Hate’ campaign, how 
particular schemes were chosen by Directorates and how these could be 
accelerated by Overview and Scrutiny, issues around addressing health 
inequalities with local partners, and the need to closely monitor the ‘green’ 
lights in case these also required further scrutiny. 
 
Councillor Lesley Pavitt also raised a question concerning the consultation 
process for disabled residents in the development of the Disability Equality 
Scheme but agreed to follow this up outside of the meeting as Councillor 
Saunders had not been the portfolio holder when this had taken place. 
 
Councillor Saunders agreed that the document was very comprehensive, but 
she felt it was important that Members were kept fully informed. She noted the 
request to incorporate the short précis which was included in papers for the 
Cabinet, and stated that she was happy to discuss separately ways of making 
the document more user-friendly. 
 
Councillor Saunders stated that in the light of the urgent budget reductions it 
was inevitable that the level of service provided for the current schemes would 
be affected. 
 
Hafsha Ali advised that Equality Scheme actions were all mainstreamed into 
service plans and delivered through existing budgets. Services that developed 
and designed services that were tailored to effectively meet the needs of 
communities reduced waste and would lead to increased cost savings and 
efficiency. The Single Equality Framework was intended to support services to 
rethink the effectiveness of our interventions to tackle inequality. 
 

Page 5



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
06/07/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

4 

The Chair asked Councillor Tim Archer, Chair of the Health Scrutiny Panel, to 
comment on questions concerning the acceleration of schemes and how 
health inequalities could be addressed. 
 
Councillor Archer advised that the Health Scrutiny Panel could raise 
awareness of issues and target particular areas of the NHS. 
 
Councillor Saunders advised that her portfolio also included Health and 
Wellbeing and she would be able to feed in concerns to the PCT Board on 
which she sat. 
 
The Chair thanked Councillor Saunders for her participation in the meeting. 
 
The Chair moved and it was RESOLVED 
 
That the progress in implementing the Council’s Diversity and Equality Action 
Plan 2009/10 be noted. 
 
 

8. VERBAL UPDATES FROM SCRUTINY LEADS  
 
Councillor Rabina Khan - Scrutiny Lead – Prosperous Communities 
 
Councillor Khan advised that as the impact of the recession was such a large 
topic she would be reviewing how the Council supported local businesses and 
created enterprising town centres. 
 
She would also be leading a challenge session on Post 16 attainment, and 
had been following up the implementation of actions agreed for the previous 
year’s Scrutiny Reviews. 
 
Cllr Lesley Pavitt -  Scrutiny Lead – A Safe and Supportive Community 
 
Councillor Pavitt reported that she would be undertaking a Scrutiny Review on 
Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults and also a Challenge Session on the impact 
of the Tower Hamlets Enforcement Officers (THEOs). 
 
The Scrutiny Review on Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults would start in 
September 2010, and the Challenge Session on the THEOs would take place 
collectively with the Tower Hamlets Partnership on Tuesday 20 July from 
6:30pm.  
 
Councillor Zenith Rahman  - Scrutiny Lead - A Great Place to Live 
 
Councillor Rahman advised that she would be carrying out a Scrutiny Review into the 
Council’s Parking Service as this was a big concern for local residents, and her 
Challenge Session would be focusing on housing repairs. 
 
Cllr Ahmed Omar  - Scrutiny Lead – One Tower Hamlets 
 

Page 6



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
06/07/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

5 

Councillor Omar reported that he would be undertaking a Scrutiny Review on 
whether public services were catering for the needs of the Somali community 
and what more could be done to increase participation of this community. 
 
He planned to look at three key areas: 
 

• Community Empowerment and increasing the voice and representation 
of the Somali community 

• Access to services for the Somali community and in particular 
interpreting services 

• Provisions for young people and integration/cohesion work in this area 
 

 
Councillor Tim Archer - Scrutiny Lead – A Healthy Community 
 
Councillor Archer reported that the Health Scrutiny Panel had held their first 
meeting towards the end of June. 
 
As well as planning visits to all three NHS trusts and considering a number of 
items at its regular meetings, the Panel would be looking at two specific 
issues - Poly systems and the reconfiguration of local services and what this 
meant for local residents, and the development of preventative services and 
early diagnosis referral for Cancer. 
 
 
Councillor Rajib Ahmed - Scrutiny Lead – Excellent Public Services 
 
The Chair advised that Councillor Ahmed would be leading a review of the 
Citizen Engagement Strategy, and his challenge session would focus on 
Customer Services. 
 
 

9. PRE-DECISION SCRUTINY OF SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
CABINET PAPERS  
 
The Chair moved and it was RESOLVED 
 
That the following Section 1 pre-decision questions be submitted to Cabinet 
for consideration: 
 
Agenda Item 6.1 Idea Store Strategy Action Plan Update – Idea Store 
Metro Watney Market and One Stop Shop (CAB 010/101)  
 
1. What will the new brand offer be on learning in the Idea Stores and 

what is the provision for older people and adult learning? 
 

2. What will be the cost of closing Cheviot House and what is the plan for 
this site after its closure? 

 

Page 7



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
06/07/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

6 

Agenda Item 6.2 Council Housing Finance Reform Prospectus – 
Implications for Tower Hamlets and Proposed Response (CAB 011/101) 
 
1. Has the Council any indication on how many other councils may be 

wishing to stay with the current system on housing revenue? Would 
this be practicable for some time, as the new method proposed may be 
overly relying on forecasting that could end up being faulty due to the 
current volatile economic situation?  

 
Agenda Item 7.1 Contracts Forward Plan (CAB 012/101) 
 
1. How will the temporary accommodation contract (DR3232) consider 

the new housing rent caps and possible side effects? 
 

2. Medical assessment service (CLC3166) is an area that needs to be 
closely monitored after the changes in incapacity benefit guidance 
given to GPs and other health professionals. Do we need to specify a 
shorter contract term?  

 
3. How will the Cabinet publicise what we are expecting to gain from the 

High Street 2012 contract (DR3158)? 
 

4. In regards to the contract for Banking Services (R3167) will we be 
looking to ensure we have facility to pay housing benefit to landlords 
weekly via bank transfer?  

 
Agenda Item 10.1 Single Equality Framework 2010/11 (CAB 014/101) 
 
1.  This report identifies economic inactivity amongst Bangladeshi and 

Somali women as a key area of priority and given the reduction in 
public finance how will the Council bring in funding from other sources 
to address this area of inequality? 

 
2. Following on from last year’s Scrutiny Challenge Session on Anti-

bullying initiatives in schools, can you tell us what specific work 
Children, Schools & Families Directorate are doing to deal with 
Homophobic bullying? 

 
Agenda item 10.3 Petitions Scheme (CAB 016/101) 
 
1. In regards to paragraph 3.2 and the trigger for debate at full Council 

can we explore the possibility of having a trigger which considers the 
number of petitions received from different parts of the borough with a 
lower number of signatures required?  

 
 

10. ANY OTHER SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) BUSINESS WHICH THE 
CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT  
 

Page 8



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE, 
06/07/2010 

SECTION ONE (UNRESTRICTED) 
 

7 

The Chair reported that Councillor Rajib Ahmed, who was unable to attend 
the meeting, had decided to resign his position as Vice-Chair of the 
Committee, and she asked for further nominations. 
 
Councillor Eaton advised that there had been one other nomination when 
Councillor Ahmed had previously been appointed and asked that this still 
stand. 
 
Councillor Stephanie Eaton MOVED that Councillor Tim Archer be elected 
Vice-Chair. 
 
Councillor Lesley Pavitt MOVED that Councillor Ahmed Adam Omer be 
elected Vice-Chair. 
 
Following discussion and a VOTE 4 in favour and 2 against it was 
 
RESOLVED 
 
That Councillor Ahmed Adam Omer be elected Vice-Chair of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee for the Municipal Year 2010/2011. 
 
 
 

 
 

The meeting ended at 8.10 p.m.  
 
 

Chair, Councillor Ann Jackson 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Committee: 
 
OVERVIEW 
AND 
SCRUTINY 
 

Date: 
 
3 August 2010 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted 

Report No. Agenda Item 
No. 
 

6.1 

Report of: 
Assistant Chief Executive 
 

Originating Officer(s):  
Amanda Thompson  
Team Leader, Democratic Services 

Title: Cabinet Decision Called-in: 
 Idea Store Strategy Action Plan Update 
- Idea Store Watney Market and One 
Stop Shop 
 Wards: All 
 

 
 
 
1. SUMMARY 
1.1 The attached report of the Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and Culture, 

was considered by the Cabinet on 7 July 2010 and has been “Called In” by 
Councillors Tim Archer, Craig Aston, Peter Golds, Zara Davis, and David Snowden 
for further consideration.  This is in accordance with the provisions of Part Four of 
the Council’s Constitution. 

 
 
2. RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 That the Committee consider the contents of the attached report, review the 

Cabinet’s provisional decisions arising and decide whether to accept them or refer 
the matter back to Cabinet with proposals, together with reasons. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
 
Brief description of “background paper” Name and telephone number of holder 
 and address where open to inspection 
Cabinet report  - 7 July 2010 Amanda Thompson 
 02073644651

Agenda Item 6.1

Page 11



 

 

3. THE CABINET’S PROVISIONAL DECISION 
 

3.1 The Cabinet after considering the attached report provisionally agreed:- 
 

1. That the progress update on the Idea Store Strategy Action Plan be 
noted. 

 
2. That the Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and Culture be 

authorised to enter into a grant funding agreement with the Big Lottery 
Fund (BLF) to secure the £2m of funding provisionally allocated to the 
project [Idea Store Local and One Stop Shop at Watney Market];  

 
3 That the inclusion of the Idea Store Local and One Stop Shop at 

Watney Market within the Capital Programme be approved and a 
Capital Estimate for the sum of £4,101,000 be adopted for the delivery 
of the scheme;  

 
4 That the Corporate Director Development and Renewal be authorised 

to facilitate the allocation of S106 commuted sums as part-finance for 
the scheme [Idea Store Local and One Stop Shop at Watney Market], 
as set out in the capital profile attached to the report (CAB 010/101), as 
a matter of priority;  

 
5. That the Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and Culture be 

authorised to proceed with building procurement in accordance with 
Council’s financial and procurement protocols subject to planning 
permission;  

 
6 That the use of the Council owned plot of land listed in Appendix 1 for 

development of the new Idea Store Local and One Stop Shop be 
authorised; and  

 
7 That the appropriation with immediate effect of the site for planning 

purposes pursuant to Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972 
be approved; and  

 
8. That the terminology used in the report (CAB 010/101), 

recommendations contained therein, and going forward in respect of 
the next phase of Idea Stores, be revised to reflect the wishes of the 
Cabinet that the word “Local” replace that of “Metro”. 

  
 

4.  REASONS FOR THE ‘CALL IN’ 
 

4.1 The Call-in requisition signed by the five Councillors listed above gives the 
following reasons for the Call-in: 

 
 The Land identified to build the £4m Idea Store belongs to the Housing 

Revenue Account (HRA) and has been given no value. The HRA is 

Page 12



 

 

therefore not achieving fair value and the Borough’s Housing Stock is 
subsidising a new Idea Store. 

 
5. ALTERNATIVE COURSE OF ACTION PROPOSED: 

 
5.1 The Councillors submitting the Call-in requisition have proposed the 

following alternative course of action: 
 
 That the Cabinet reviews this again and considered options to use the site 

for much needed housing. 
 

 
6.       CONSIDERATION OF THE “CALL IN” 

 
6.1  The following procedure is to be followed for consideration of the “Call In”: 

 
(a) Presentation of the “Call In” by one of the “Call In” Members 

followed by questions. 
(b) Response from the Lead Member/officers followed by questions. 
(c) General debate followed by decision. 

 
N.B. – In accordance with the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Protocols and Guidance adopted by the Committee at its meeting on 
5 June, 2007, any Member(s) who presents the “Call In” is not eligible 
to participate in the general debate. 
 

6.2 It is open to the Committee to either resolve to take no action which would 
have the effect of endorsing the original Cabinet decisions, or the 
Committee could refer the matter back to the Cabinet for further 
consideration setting out the nature of its concerns and possibly 
recommending an alternative course of action. 

 
 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

Committee/Meeting: 
 
Cabinet 
 

Date: 
 
07 July 2010 

Classification: 
 
Unrestricted  
 
 

Report No: 
 

Report of:  
 
Corporate Director  
Communities, Localities and Culture 
 
Originating officer(s)  
Heather Bonfield – Service Head Culture 
Judith St. John, Head of Idea Store 
 

Title:  
Idea Store Strategy Action Plan Update -
Idea Store Watney Market and One Stop 
Shop 
 
Wards Affected: All 

 
 
Lead Member 
 Cllr Denise Jones, Lead Member for Culture and 

Creative Industries 
Community Plan Theme 
  A GREAT PLACE TO LIVE 

ONE TOWER HAMLETS 
Strategic Priority 
 Strengthen and connect communities 

Work efficiently and effectively as One Council  
 
1. SUMMARY 
 
1.1 The Idea Store Strategy, which was renewed last year, demonstrated the 

continuing need for a network of seven Idea Stores within the Borough as 
set out in the original strategy. It introduced a new, innovative, smaller Idea 
Store model that would facilitate the completion of this network within a 
much tougher financial climate whilst still delivering many of the benefits of 
the larger Idea Stores. One aim of the Strategy was to explore and pursue 
the potential for creating an Idea Store in the Watney Market area as the 
existing library was inadequate to meet local needs. This work has 
progressed substantially.  

 
1.2 This report provides an overall update on the Strategy Action Plan and 

presents detailed proposals for the creation of an Idea Store at Watney 
Market. It requests a number of urgent related decisions necessary to secure 
£2m of time limited Big Lottery funding including the appropriation of the site 
for planning purposes and progress the project to implementation.  

 
1.3 Following endorsement of the scheme by the Asset Management and 

Capital Strategy Board on 24 May 2010 the report seeks approval for the 
adoption of a Capital Estimate required to deliver the new Idea Store and a 
new One Stop Shop in Watney Market as part of a joint capital project 
between Communities Localities and Culture and the Resources 
Directorates. The Project will then proceed subject to planning approval, 
compliance with corporate procurement protocols and further community 
engagement specific to the development of detailed design.  

Page 15



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

 
 
 
2. DECISIONS REQUIRED 
 Cabinet is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 receive the update on progress on the Idea Store Strategy Action Plan and 

comment accordingly. 
2.2 authorise the Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and Culture to 

enter into a grant funding agreement with the BLF to secure the £2m of 
funding provisionally allocated to the project. 

2.3 approve the inclusion of the scheme within the capital programme and adopt 
a Capital Estimate for the sum of £4,101,000 for the delivery of the Idea 
Store Metro and One Stop Shop at Watney Market. 

2.4 authorise the Corporate Director Development and Renewal to facilitate the 
allocation of S106 commuted sums as part-finance for the scheme as set out 
in the capital profile attached to this report as a matter of priority.  

2.5 authorise the Corporate Director, Communities, Localities and Culture to 
proceed with building procurement in accordance with Council’s financial 
and procurement protocols subject to planning permission and 2.8 below. 

2.6 approve the use of the council owned plot of land listed in Appendix 1 for 
development of the new Idea Store Metro and One Stop Shop. 

2.7  Approve the appropriation with immediate effect of the site for planning 
purposes pursuant to Section 122 of the Local Government Act 1972. 

 
3. REASONS FOR THE DECISIONS 
 
3.1 The need for an Idea Store at Watney Market has been identified by the Idea 

Store Strategy and would replace a sub standard library housed in a small 
shop unit.  

3.2 The BLF award is time-limited and the project needs to be agreed by 
Members and put before the Planning Committee in order to meet the 
requirements of this award. 

3.3 The co-location of the Idea Store and One Stop Shop will enable the Council 
to deliver more efficient and localised services in keeping with both the 
Community Plan and the Strategic Plan Priorities. 

3.4 The emerging Town Centre Implementation Programme identifies Watney 
Market as one of three priority town centres for improvement, expansion and 
development.  Community facilities form a key element of town centres and 
an Idea Store and One Stop Shop in this location would enhance the offer to 
local residents and businesses.   

3.5 The site is vested with the HRA and needs to be transferred to the general 
account by way of appropriation, appropriation from the HRA for planning 
purposes will also override any encumbrances on the site that may hinder 
the proposed development of the Idea Store on the site..    

 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

 
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
 
4.1 The ‘do nothing’ option is not considered viable due to the inadequate nature 

of existing library facilities in the Watney Market area and the urgent need to 
find alternative and improved accommodation for the local one stop shop to 
improve one stop shop customer experience and free up Cheviot House as a 
capital asset which is currently a significant revenue liability.  

 
4.2 The award of £2,000,000 funding from BLF is time limited and dependent on 

the Council’s timely commitment to the development.  The funded facility 
must be open as a condition of the funding by April 2012. A swift decision to 
move forward with the scheme is required by the Council in order to 
safeguard the £2m BLF funding and ensure related conditions are met. If the 
BLF is not secured now any new proposals to relocate Watney Market 
Library and the One Stop Shop in the future would require alternative 
sources of funding to be identified as this funding stream will not be available 
in the future.  

 
4.3  There are no opportunities to expand the existing library by increasing its 

presence in the Watney Market shopping parade by taking up more shop 
units. Even if this were possible this would deprive the shopping centre of 
commercial space and make it harder to achieve a critical mass of traders to 
sustain the centre in the future. The proposed option retains the benefit of 
the Idea Store acting as an effective anchor store for the Watney Market 
traders by drawing repeat visits to the retail area whilst maximizing the ability 
of that retail area to develop.  

 
4.4 By linking the Idea Store project and the One Stop Shop Project capital and 

revenue efficiencies are gained that allow for an improved offer to be 
delivered for both services in the locality. The new One Stop Shop would 
cost less to run and the revenue can be transferred to provide the additional 
budget necessary to deliver extended services in the new Idea Store. It 
would not be financially viable to construct an idea Store without this project 
link as a capital short fall of £800,000 would result and the revenue available 
to operate the new Idea Store facility would be insufficient to enhance the 
service to meet local need. Additional funding would need to be found.     

 
5. BACKGROUND 
 
5.1 The revised Idea Store Strategy, approved in July 2009 included a Years 1- 

2 Action Plan.  The Strategy revisited the needs analysis that underpinned 
the successful introduction of the Idea Store Concept eight years earlier and 
established that the areas of need and opportunity remained the same. The 
original premise that a network of seven Idea Stores in specific locations 
close to shopping centres would be the most effective spatial distribution to 
meet local needs was reaffirmed. At the same time it introduced the concept 
of a smaller generation of Idea Stores (An outline of the new smaller Idea 

Page 17



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

Store concept is provided in Appendix 3) and the potential across the 
network to deliver a wider service offer by developing more effective links 
with relevant service providers. The action plan set out key initiatives in order 
to :- 
• Improve the quality and scope of core library and information services 

provided by Idea Stores and Libraries 
• Improve the quality and scope of core adult learning services 
• Expand the provision of high quality health information, advice and 

support in Idea Stores and Libraries 
 
5.2 It continued to identify both the need and potential for one of the new 

generation of Idea Stores in Watney Market 
 
6. UPDATE ON THE IDEA STORE STRATEGY ACTION PLAN  
 
6.1 Action Plan 
 An updated copy of the Idea Store Strategy Year 1-2 Action Plan is attached 

at Appendix 2. Of the 54 activities included in the action plan 31 have been 
completed and 12 are ongoing and of a medium-term nature and the 
remaining 11 are currently underway. Particular successes include: 

 
• The renewed focus on core reading services to improve the reader offer 

has been highly successful, resulting in a significant increase in lending. 
Issues rose by 10% between 08/09 and 09/10 and have now topped 1m. 

• Individual visits to Idea Stores and Libraries continue to rise and in 
2009/10 rose to 2,071,933 (or 9,396.52 visits per 1,000 residents). 

• The integration of future Idea Store infrastructure demands into the Local 
Development Core Strategy, which has identified areas of search for 
various types of social infrastructure. 

• Work to secure possible future infrastructure through the planning 
contributions process on key development sites is starting to establish 
clear and potentially viable options to inform future decision making.  

• The process of integrating lifelong learning, library and information 
services under a unified management structure within the Communities, 
Localities & Culture Directorate has started and will enable a more 
integrated and seamless customer offer in line with the Idea Store Sub 
Brand. 

 
7. IDEA STORE METRO WATNEY MARKET AND ONE STOP SHOP: WORK 

TO DATE AND KEY CONTEXT 
 
7.1 The Idea Store Strategy has identified the ongoing need for facilities in the 

Watney Market area. This was on the grounds that the current library facility 
in the market area is inadequate to meet local needs and could not be 
converted to meet the operational or presentational requirements of an Idea 
Store.   

 
7.2 To this end the opportunity site identified by this report (Appendix 1) was 

researched and an outline proposal submitted to the Big Lottery Fund.  A 

Page 18



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

BLF grant of £2m has been agreed in principle and awaits Council 
endorsement of the scheme in order to secure it.   

 
7.3 The BLF Community Library Funding Programme ends in March 2013.  

Conditions of the funding require the funded project to have been operational 
for one year before the programme ends. This requires the proposed 
building to be open by March/April 2012. Whilst this sounds like a long time it 
is tight for a capital project of this complexity to be delivered. It is essential 
that a decision to progress is made as quickly as possible to ensure that the 
build programme can be delivered within this tight time frame.  

 
7.4 The opportunity site is immediately adjacent to the northern access to the 

Market with a strong frontage to Commercial Road. From a location 
perspective it is considered compatible with the Idea Store Strategy analysis. 
It is also compatible with the objectives of the LDF to focus community 
facilities within town or district centres. The site is vested with the HRA and 
will need to be transferred out of HRA control before the scheme can 
progress. This is dealt with in section 8.6 below. 

 
7.5 As part of a move to multi-agency One Stop Shops, the replacement of the 

current Cheviot One Stop Shop (close to the opportunity site on the other 
side of Commercial Road) and potential co-location with the Idea Store 
Metro would enable economies of scale in procurement and construction. In 
addition the relocation of the One Stop Shop facility would enable the 
release of Cheviot House for alternative use and free up two shop units in 
Watney Market potentially extending the retail offer.   

 
7.6 In light of the above, the Asset Management and Capital Strategy Board at 

its meeting on 24 September 2009, approved the commissioning of a 
feasibility study to look at the proposed co-location of the Idea Store and 
One Stop Shop within Watney Town Centre (Idea Store Metro Watney 
Market feasibility study, attached at Appendix 3).  The project was 
considered and approved by the Asset Management and Capital Strategy 
Board on 24 May 2010. 

 
7.7 The work to date has established that there is: 

• A suitable and available development site already in Council ownership 
and attracting, therefore, no purchase cost.  

• A preferred procurement model using Design and Build  
• A design that fulfils LBTH requirements for an Idea Store and a new 

one stop shop and that is acceptable in principle to the Planning Dept. 
• A viable funding plan including £2m of Big Lottery Funding. 

 
 
8. THE SCHEME 
 
8.1 The scheme proposes that the Idea Store Metro will be located on 

Commercial Road, directly in front of the Western block of the Watney Market 
development (the site plan is attached at Appendix 1).  The proposal is for a 

Page 19



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

striking, highly visible three-storey building presenting its main façade to 
Commercial Road thus helping to re enforce the entrance to the market and 
shops.   

 
8.2 The planned provision for Idea Store Watney Market is for 1,389 m² to deliver: 

• Adult and children’s library with learning activities for all ages  
• Surfing space providing free public internet access 
• Flexible learning spaces. These will provide both formal and informal 

learning activities 
• Health advice and information services 
• Single Access Point.  This initiative would provide a wide range of 

joined-up services that help to address the multiple barriers to 
employment in order to support people into work 

• Meeting and activity space for community groups 
• Display areas for local artists and exhibitions 
• Storage 
• Public and staff toilets 
• Staff room  
 

8.3 The development of this new Idea Store ‘Metro’ style facility will enable the 
transfer into modern accessible facilities of the existing provision at Watney 
Market Library.  In addition, 122m² of the total space will be provided to 
replace the existing Cheviot One Stop Shop providing a pleasant and 
accessible customer environment that significantly improves upon the 
existing accommodation.  This service will be located on the ground floor 
and share “back room” support space such as staff room, wcs, etc.  It is 
envisaged that both Watney Market Library and Cheviot One Stop Shop will 
remain open throughout the construction period and will close once the new 
building is opened. The improved idea store space will attract higher visitor 
numbers than the existing library to the Watney Market area effectively 
enhancing the ‘anchor store’ effect of the facility for the shopping centre and 
boosting the local economy.    

 
8.4 Capital Costs 
8.4.1 This report recommends that the facility be developed on existing Council 

owned land.  The capital cost of the building construction is estimated at 
£4.101million assuming a Design and Build approach.   

 
8.4.2 In order for the scheme to proceed, the following capital receipts have been 

identified: 
 
Construction of Building:  
Funding Design & Build 
Big Lottery Fund £2,000,000
One Stop Shop contribution £1,000,000
Section106 contribution* £1,101,000
TOTAL    £ 4,101,000

 

Page 20



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

* S106 already triggered. Ref. PA/07/02193. Available to deliver cultural products.  
8.5 Revenue Costs 
8.5.1 The proposed service model of combining the Idea Store and OSS services 

will be further refined but show that the new building can deliver the 
enhanced Idea Store services of 60 operating hours and retain the OSS 
operating hours with no increase in the overall current revenue levels: 
 

 
Watney Market 

Library 
Cheviot One 
Stop Shop Total 

Idea Store 
Metro*/OSS+ 

Total 
Frontline salaries  £339,578   £434,206   £ 773,784  £ 704,000  
Premises and 
running costs  £  44,600   £145,560   £ 190,160  £ 200,000  
Total  £384,178   £579,766   £ 963,944  £ 904,000  
Total weekly 
operating hours  46 hours   44 hours   -   60 hours*  

    
+ OSS operating 
hours unchanged 

 
8.5.2 The model is considered efficient in that it offers increased hours of access 

and a significant increase in the range and quality of services, with increased 
hours of access and delivering a minimum £60k revenue saving.  

 
8.5.3 The business model vests all building management responsibilities with the 

Idea Stores. The premises related costs of operating the improved Idea Store 
facilities for 60 hours a week are £200,000. Current library revenue available 
is £44,600.  The current premises and running costs for the Cheviot One Stop 
Shop is £145,560.  The cessation of the OSS occupancy of Cheviot House 
will result in some immediate savings to the FM budget. Given that the OSS 
would not be picking up premises and running costs in the new building and in 
order to facilitate the improved OSS and Idea Store offer £50k of this budget 
will be vired from the FM budget to the Idea Store Service in the year the 
building becomes operational with the residual £105,400k being addressed 
within the existing CLC budget envelope.  

 
8.5.4 As an additional benefit the scheme frees up two retail units currently 

occupied by the Watney Market Library that can also start to contribute to the 
local economy.   

 
8.6 Implications for the HRA. 
 
8.6.1 The Opportunity Site identified in Appendix 1 has been confirmed as being 

vested with the HRA. The site would therefore need to be transferred to the 
General Fund for the scheme to progress and this report makes that 
recommendation. The site has been independently valued and has a nil value. 
There are no compensation requirements for the HRA as a result. For the 
same reason there are no implications for Housing Subsidy. This has been 
confirmed by Development and Renewal Finance.  

Page 21



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

 
     

8.7 Community Consultation 
8.7.1 A Community Engagement Plan has been submitted to the BLF.  The ongoing 

success of the Idea Store programme from its inception in Idea Store Bow has 
been a result of engaging with local communities, and ensuring that the Idea 
Stores answer specific local needs and encourage a high degree of public 
‘ownership’. The Idea Stores started with one of the largest ever public 
consultations about public libraries, from which came some of the core 
principles to do with design, location and offer.  Subsequent focus groups 
provided valuable feedback data for the ongoing programme. On going 
consultation will take place via LAPs and the Community Consultation 
Service. 
 

9. COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
9.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval to adopt a Capital Estimate of £4,101,000 

for the Idea Store Metro scheme, to be funded from the Big Lottery fund, the 
One Stop Shop Local Priorities Programme allocation and contributions from 
Section 106, as outlined in paragraph 8.4.2.  

 
9.2 The total revenue budget currently available, for both the Watney Market 

Library and Cheviot One Stop shop is £964k. The report identifies an on-going 
revenue funding gap of approximately £160,000 per annum to pay for the 
facilities management costs of the new building compared with the facilities 
management budget for the Watney Market Library.  To help fill this gap, 
officers recommend that 50k of the Cheviot House premises and running 
costs budget of £145,000 currently held within the facilities management 
Budget of the Resources Directorate be transferred to the Idea Stores Budget 
within CLC in the year that the building becomes operational, as they will be 
responsible for managing the building. The remainder of the budget 
adjustment would be met from within CLC.   

 
9.3 The transfer of freehold interests from the Housing Revenue Account to the 

General Fund could under normal circumstances have significant financial 
implications for the HRA arising from the mechanics of the Housing Subsidy 
system. However, as appropriation takes place at certified market value, 
which in this instance has been independently considered to be nil, the impact 
is neutral.  

 
 
10. CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

(LEGAL SERVICES) 
 
10.1. This report seeks authority for the appropriation for planning purposes of land 

owned by the Council being the site of the proposed Idea Store at Watney 
Market identified in Appendix 1 under Section 122 of the Local Government 
Act 1972 this will enable the powers in Section 237 of the Town and Country 

Page 22



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

Planning Act 1990 to be used to facilitate the comprehensive development of 
the proposed Idea Store as set out in this report. 

 
10.2. The Council holds property for various statutory purposes in order to provide 

its various functions for example housing purposes.  The site identified by this 
report is currently held in the HRA such land is used only for such purposes 
until it is disposed of or “appropriated“ for another purpose. Appropriation is 
the statutory method to change land from being held for one purpose to 
another and the procedure for doing this is laid down in Section 122 of the 
Local Government Act 1972. 

 
10.3. Land is held by the Council subject to any third party legal rights.  However if 

the land has been formally appropriated for planning purposes then Section 
237 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides a statutory power to 
override easements and other rights following the grant of planning 
permission for the development of land. The rights that are overridden convert 
these rights into compensation which is payable to any person suffering loss.  
It also removes the potential for such owners to frustrate development by way 
of injunction and delay. 

 
 
11. ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
11.1 The scheme addresses the Community Plan theme of A Great Place to Live 

and Strategic Plan Priority 2.2: Strengthen and connect communities by 
providing enhanced services that support parenting, child development, after 
school activities, cultural development, self help, information way finding and 
cohesion.  Idea Stores are also working with the Local Strategic Partnership 
to provide more efficient and localised services and in particular better local 
health information.  It delivers One Tower Hamlets Priority 1.2: Work 
efficiently and effectively as One Council in helping to deliver the Local 
Priorities Programme. Idea Stores play a major role in bringing communities 
from different backgrounds together and in promoting community cohesion. 
It also delivers targeted lifelong learning services that help disadvantaged 
communities overcome inequality in the jobs market and poverty.  

 
12. SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
12.1 Sustainability is integral to the proposed design of the Idea Store Metro.  The 

building has the potential to exceed current targets for energy usage and 
renewable energy provision (as per the Great London Authority 20% carbon 
reduction target). The design will also achieve BREEAM ‘Excellent’ rating. 

12.2 Social sustainability 
The Idea Store provides access to information and services that help 
promote lifelong learning and improve health and well being.  Through 
services such as free internet access, lifelong learning, cultural activities and 
local history and events, the Idea Store provides a practical way to support 
community cohesion, one of the key principles of the Borough’s vision. 

12.3 Sustainable technologies 

Page 23



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

The Idea Store will employ good practice in its design to make the best use 
of environmental resources, through management of water and waste 
resources and efficient design to minimise carbon emissions.   

12.4 Economic sustainability 
The Idea Store offers equality of opportunity by providing information and 
services to meet the needs of Tower Hamlets’ diverse population.  
Specifically, lifelong learning can help tackle employment skills and improve 
access to employment opportunities, benefiting both the unemployed and 
the employed. Connecting with young people, such as engaging them to 
develop learning programmes for their peers, is one of the practical ways 
that the Idea Store can complement education. Economic sustainability of 
the Watney Market locality, for existing and future businesses, will be 
improved by the proposed regeneration of the area. 

 
 
13. RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
13.1 The project risks relate to the delivery of the Idea Store rather than the 

ongoing operation of the Idea Store. Appropriate contingencies in both the 
Project Cost Plan and Programme have been included to take account of the 
perceived project delivery risks. Risks will be monitored through out the 
project and reported to the Project Board. Updates will be provided to the 
Asset Management and Capital Strategy Board. 

 
14. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1 The proposals do not contribute directly to the reduction of crime and 

disorder.  
  
15. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
15.1 The service model brings together two service areas within one building with 

shared back office space. The model offers increased hours of access and a 
significant increase in the range and quality of services, whilst incurring no 
additional revenue costs. 

  
15.2 The new building will be built on redundant land, utilising the latest 

construction techniques and will therefore deliver a more eco friendly building. 
A reduction in carbon emissions compared to the current buildings in use will 
translate into savings on CO2 penalties. 

 
15.3 The current buildings are a significant drain on revenue resources and 

therefore by vacating, a capital asset will become available, as will retail units 
which could produce a revenue stream. 

 
 
16. APPENDICES 
 

Appendix 1 – Site Plan 

Page 24



 
D:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\9\2\8\AI00025829\100602IdeaStoreMetroreportCabinetJuly
2010v9DG250610CAB0.doc 
Report authors should insert the file name and path in the draft stages to regulate version control.  This will be removed 
from the final version by Democratic Services prior to the report being published in the agenda. 

 

Appendix 2 – Updated Idea Store Strategy Year 1-2 Action Plan 
Appendix 3 -  Idea Store ‘Metro’ outline of services. 

 
 

Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 
List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 

  
Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  

and address where open to inspection. 
 

none N/A 
 

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Underground Railway

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

C
o

m
m

u
n
it
y
 H

o
u
s
in

g

P
ro

p
o
s
e
d
 B

u
ild

in
g

 A
re

a
4

6
3

 s
q
m

B
u
s
 S

h
e

lt
e
r

WATNEY MARKET

HAINTON CLOSE

CAVELL ST

V
e

n
t

S
h

a
ft

E
a

s
t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 U

n
d

e
rg

ro
u

n
d

 L
in

e

2
m

 E
a

s
e

m
e

n
t 
T

B
C

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
IA

L
 R

O
A

D

1
0

2
2

 S
t 
J
a

m
e

s
's

 W
a

lk
, 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 E

C
1

R
 0

A
P

T
 +

4
4

[0
]2

0
 7

2
5

0
 0

4
4
0

F
 +

4
4

[0
]2

0
 7

2
5

0
 3

3
8
2

in
fo

@
b

is
s
e

ta
d

a
m

s
.c

o
.u

k
w

w
w

.b
is

s
e

ta
d

a
m

s
.c

o
.u

k

A
R
C
H

IT
E
C
T
U

R
E
 A

N
D

C
O

M
M

U
N

IC
A

T
IO

N
S

b
is

s
e
t
 a

d
a
m

s

N
o

te
s

R
e

v
is

io
n

A
m

e
n

d
m

e
n

t
D

a
te

N
O

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
R

E
 T

O
 B

E
 S

C
A

L
E

D
 F

R
O

M
 T

H
IS

 D
R

A
W

IN
G

. 
T

H
E

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

O
R

 /
 M

A
N

U
F

A
C

T
U

R
E

R
 I

S
 R

E
S

P
O

N
S

IB
L

E
 F

O
R

 C
H

E
C

K
IN

G
 A

L
L

 D
IM

E
N

S
IO

N
S

 A
N

D
 Q

U
E

R
Y

IN
G

 A
N

Y
 D

IS
C

R
E

P
A

N
C

IE
S

. 

T
H

IS
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
 I
S

 T
H

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 O

F
 B

IS
S

E
T

 A
D

A
M

S
 L

T
D

. 
C

O
P

Y
R

IG
H

T
 I

S
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

D
 B

Y
 T

H
E

M
 A

N
D

 T
H

E
 D

R
A

W
IN

G
 I

S
 I
S

S
U

E
D

 O
N

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
 T

H
A

T
 I
T

 I
S

 N
O

T
 C

O
P

IE
D

, 
R

E
P

R
O

D
U

C
E

D
, 

R
E

T
A

IN
E

D
 O

R
 D

IS
C

L
O

S
E

D
 T

O
 A

N
Y

 U
N

A
U

T
H

O
R

IS
E

D
 P

E
R

S
O

N
, 

E
IT

H
E

R
 W

H
O

L
L
Y

 O
R

 I
N

 P
A

R
T
, 
W

IT
H

O
U

T
 W

R
IT

T
E

N
 C

O
N

S
E

N
T
. 

-
0

0
.0

0
.0

0
-

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
1

:2
0

0
 @

 A
1

P
R

ID
0

6

2
1

.1
0

.0
9

0
0

.0
0

0
-

L
O

N
D

O
N

 B
O

R
O

U
G

H
 O

F
 T

O
W

E
R

 H
A

M
L

E
T

S

ID
E

A
 S

T
O

R
E

 M
E

T
R

O
W

A
T

N
E

Y
 M

A
R

K
E

T 

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

S
IT

E
 P

L
A

N

C
lie

n
t

P
ro

je
c
t

D
ra

w
in

g

D
ra

w
n

 B
y

D
a

te

S
c
a

le
S

ta
tu

s

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
º

D
ra

w
in

g
 N

º
R

e
v
is

io
n

C
h

e
c
k
e

d
 B

y
L

E
T

S

T
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 S

it
e
 O

ffi
c
e

1
4
.8

x
4
.2

m
 -

 6
2
 s

q
m

W
e

s
t 
P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

2
7

1
 s

q
m

E
a
s
t 
P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a

lm
5

9
5
 s

q
m

Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

1 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
1. 
Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
co

re 
lib

rar
y a

nd
 in

for
ma

tio
n s

erv
ice

s p
ro
vid

ed
 by

 Id
ea
 St

or
es
 an

d L
ibr

ari
es
 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

1.1
 Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 co

re 
rea

din
g o

ffe
r  

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Im
ple

me
nt 
an
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
pro

gra
mm

e t
o s

tre
ng
the

n 
the

 re
ad
ing

 of
fer

 in
 Id
ea
 St

ore
s a

nd
 Li
bra

rie
s. 
 

Ke
y i
nit
iat
ive

s i
nc
lud

e: 
• 

Ca
rry

 ou
t m

ark
et 
res

ea
rch

 on
 cu

sto
me

r re
ad
ing

 
an
d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 ne

ed
s a

nd
 pr

efe
ren

ce
s, 
an
d 

int
rod

uc
e c

on
tin
uo
us
 m
on
ito
rin
g o

f 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
  

• 
Im
pro

ve
 st
oc
k s

ele
cti
on
 an

d p
roc

ure
me

nt 
(br

ea
dth

, d
ep
th 
an
d q

ua
nti
ty 
of 
sto

ck
; s
pa
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt;
 st
oc
k c

irc
ula

tio
n; 
va
lue

 fo
r 

mo
ne
y; 
sto

ck
 pr

om
oti
on
) 

• 
Im
pro

ve
 st
oc
k m

an
ag
em

en
t (p

roc
ed
ure

s, 
pro

cu
rem

en
t m

eth
od
s, 
sy
ste

ms
, c
on
tro

ls,
 

rep
ort

s, 
rou

tin
es
) 

• 
Im
pro

ve
 th
e v

alu
e f
or 
mo

ne
y o

f b
oo
k s

toc
k 

(su
pp
ly 
ch
ain

, m
ak
ing

 th
e L

on
do
n l
ibr
ary

 
co
ns
ort

ium
 m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
e, 
im
pro

vin
g c

os
t a
nd
 

sp
ee
d o

f d
eli
ve
ry,
 an

d i
nte

rna
l o
pe
rat

ion
s) 

• 
Im
pro

ve
 fa
cili
tie
s, 
sta

ff c
ap
ab
ility

 an
d s

tor
e 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
(sp

ac
e a

llo
ca
tio
n, 
flo
or 

an
d 

win
do
w 
dis

pla
ys
, s
ign

ag
e, 
sta

ff m
an
ag
em

en
t, 

tra
ini
ng
 an

d c
om

mu
nic

ati
on
)  

 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Ka
te 

Pit
ma

n 
De

tai
led

 pl
an
nin

g o
f in

itia
tiv
es
 

co
mp

let
ed
 by

 Ju
ly 
20
09
 

Sta
nd
ard

s o
n p

res
en
tat
ion

 of
 

sto
ck
 ad

op
ted

 by
 Ju

ly 
20
09
 

La
yo
ut 
of 
ISW

 re
vie

we
d b

y J
uly

 
20
09
 as

 pa
rt o

f th
e s

toc
k 

im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pil
ot 

Re
fre

sh
 of
 st
oc
k a

cro
ss
 th
e 

ne
tw
ork

 un
de
rta
ke
n b

y 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 

Im
pro

ve
d s

ign
ag
e a

t IS
W
 as

 
pa
rt o

f th
e s

toc
k i
mp

rov
em

en
t 

pil
ot 
by
 M
arc

h 2
01
0 

 

Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 

Page 29



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

2 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
1. 
Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
co

re 
lib

rar
y a

nd
 in

for
ma

tio
n s

erv
ice

s p
ro
vid

ed
 by

 Id
ea
 St

or
es
 an

d L
ibr

ari
es
 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

1.2
 Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
co

re 
inf

or
ma

tio
n s

erv
ice

s 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Re

vie
w 
an
d r

efr
es
h t
he
 qu

ali
ty 
of 
inf
orm

ati
on
 se

rvi
ce
s 

pro
vid

ed
 by

 Id
ea
 St

ore
s a

nd
 Li
bra

rie
s. 
 

Ke
y d

eli
ve
rab

les
 in
clu

de
: 

• 
Cle

arl
y a

rtic
ula

tin
g t
he
 sc

op
e o

f in
for

ma
tio
n 

an
d e

ve
nts

 of
fer

ed
 at
 Id
ea
 St

ore
s a

nd
 Li
bra

rie
s 

– p
art

icu
lar
ly 
the

ir r
ole

 in
 pr

ov
idi
ng
 a 
pla

tfo
rm

 
for

 co
mm

un
ity
 in
for

ma
tio
n  

• 
Im
ple

me
nti
ng
 a 
se
rvi
ce
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
pla

n t
o 

im
pro

ve
 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 Lo

ca
l H

ist
ory

 Li
bra

ry 
an
d 

Ar
ch
ive

s s
erv

ice
s 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

De
nis

e B
an

gs
 

Ta
ms

in 
Bo

ok
ey
 

Ag
ree

 sc
op
e f
or 
rev

iew
ing

 
inf
orm

ati
on
 an

d a
dv
ice

 se
rvi
ce
s 

by
 Au

gu
st 
20
09
 

Ini
tia
te 
rev

iew
 pr

oje
ct 
by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09
 

Ne
w 
se
rvi
ce
 m
od
el 
for

 
inf
orm

ati
on
 se

rvi
ce
s i
n I
de
a 

Sto
res

 de
vis

ed
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

He
rita

ge
 M
an
ag
er 

ap
po
int
ed
 by

 
Ma

y 2
00
9 

De
sig

n a
nd
 te
nd
er 

pro
ce
ss
 fo
r 

im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to
 Ba

nc
rof
t 

Lib
rar

y c
om

ple
ted

 by
 Ju

ly 
20
09
 

W
ork

s a
t B

an
cro

ft L
ibr
ary

 
co
mp

let
ed
 by

 D
ec
em

be
r 2
00
9 

He
rita

ge
 St

rat
eg
y f
or 
To

we
r 

Ha
ml
ets

 id
en
tify

ing
 fu
tur
e 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
Ba

nc
rof

t L
oc
al 

His
tor

y L
ibr
ary

 an
d A

rch
ive

s 
ad
op
ted

 by
 D
ec
em

be
r 2
00
9 

Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 Co
mp

let
e 

 Re
vis

ed
 co

mp
let
ion

 da
te 
for

 
ini
tia
l w

ork
s p

ac
ka
ge
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
10
 

Bu
ild
ing

 M
as
ter

 Pl
an
 un

de
r 

de
ve
lop

me
nt.
 

Th
e L

oc
al 
His

tor
y L

ibr
ary

 & 
Ar
ch
ive

 St
rat

eg
y f
oc
us
ing

 on
 

se
rvi
ce
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
an
d 

op
era

tio
ns
 is
 be

ing
 de

ve
lop

ed
 

se
pa
rat

ely
. 

Page 30



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

3 

 Ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
1. 
Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 

of 
co

re 
lib

rar
y a

nd
 in

for
ma

tio
n s

erv
ice

s p
ro
vid

ed
 by

 Id
ea
 St

or
es
 an

d L
ibr

ari
es
 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

1.3
 Im

pr
ov
e k

ey
 bu

sin
es
s m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ro
ce
ss
es
 

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Im
ple

me
nt 
the

 C
ult
ure

 an
d S

po
rt I

mp
rov

em
en
t T
oo
lkit

 
(C
SIT

) Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

n f
or 

Lib
rar

ies
 an

d I
de
a 

Sto
res

.  
Ju

dit
h S

t J
oh

n 
He

ath
er 

Bo
nfi

eld
 

CS
IT 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
Pla

nn
ing

 
co
mp

let
ed
 an

d i
mp

rov
em

en
t 

pro
jec

ts 
ide

nti
fie
d b

y J
un
e 2

00
9 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pro

jec
ts 
ini
tia
ted

 
by
 Au

gu
st 
20
09
 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pro

jec
ts 
co
mp

let
ed
 

– t
bc
 fo
llo
win

g c
om

ple
tio
n o

f 
im
pro

ve
me

nt 
pla

nn
ing

 st
ag
e 

On
go
ing

 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
2. 
Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 
an

d s
co

pe
 of

 co
re 

ad
ult

 le
arn

ing
 se

rvi
ce
s 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

2.1
 Im

pr
ov
e a

nd
 ex

pa
nd

 th
e i
nfo

rm
ati

on
, a
dv
ice

 an
d s

ign
po

sti
ng

 se
rvi

ce
s t

ha
t s

up
po

rt 
lea

rn
ers

 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Re

vie
w 
an
d r

efr
es
h i
nfo

rm
ati
on
, a
dv
ice

 an
d 

sig
np
os
tin
g s

erv
ice

s t
ha
t s
up
po
rt l
ea
rne

rs 
in 
Ide

a 
Sto

res
 an

d L
ibr
ari
es
.  

Ke
y d

eli
ve
rab

les
 in
clu

de
: 

• 
Re

vie
win

g e
xis

tin
g s

ys
tem

s a
nd
 pr

oc
ed
ure

s  
• 

Ev
alu

ati
ng
 th
e q

ua
lity

 of
 cu

rre
nt 
se
rvi
ce
s –

 
inc

lud
ing

 co
mp

lia
nc
e w

ith
 th
e C

om
mo

n 
Ins

pe
cti
on
 Fr

am
ew

ork
  

• 
Ide

nti
fyi
ng
 an

y g
ap
s i
n p

rov
isio

n 
• 

Ide
nti
fyi
ng
 fu
rth

er 
sta

ff t
rai
nin

g n
ee
ds
 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Re
vie

w 
co
mp

let
ed
 by

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 

Tra
ns
fer

 of
 st
aff
 to
 Li
fel
on
g 

Le
arn

ing
 Se

rvi
ce
 an

d n
ew

 
Inf
orm

ati
on
 an

d a
dv
ice

 se
rvi
ce
 

in 
pla

ce
 as

 pa
rt o

f W
ide

r L
ea
rne

r 
Su

pp
ort

 Se
rvi
ce
  b
y D

ec
em

be
r 

20
09
 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f  o
the

r re
vie

w 
 

rec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s i
nit
iat
ed
 by

 
Ma

rch
 20

10
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 Re
vis

ed
 co

mp
let
ion

 da
te 
Ju
ly 

20
10
 

   On
go
ing

 
 

Page 31



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

4 

• 
Ma

kin
g r

ec
om

me
nd
ati
on
s o

n i
mp

rov
ing

 
inf
orm

ati
on
, a
dv
ice

 an
d s

ign
po
sti
ng
 se

rvi
ce
s  

 

Pr
og
ram

me
 of
 st
aff
 tra

ini
ng
 fo
r 

fro
nt-

lin
e s

taf
f d
es
ign

ed
 by

 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 an

d d
eli
ve
red

 
to 
all
 re

lev
an
t s
taf
f b
y J

un
e 2

01
0  
  On

go
ing

 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 st
rat

eg
ic 
ob

jec
tiv

e 
2. 
Im

pr
ov
e t

he
 qu

ali
ty 
an

d s
co

pe
 of

 co
re 

ad
ult

 le
arn

ing
 se

rvi
ce
s 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

2.2
 R
ev
iew

 th
e l
ife

lon
g l

ea
rn
ing

 cu
rri
cu
lum

 an
d d

eli
ve
ry 

str
uc

tur
e t

o f
oc

us
 pr

ov
isi
on

 th
at 

su
pp

or
ts 

 
em

plo
ya
bil

ity
 

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s  

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Re

vie
w 
the

 lif
elo

ng
 le
arn

ing
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
an
d d

eli
ve
ry 

str
uc
tur

e t
o f
oc
us
 pr

ov
isio

n t
ha
t s
up
po
rts
  

em
plo

ya
bil
ity
  

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n  

Bu
sin

es
s r
ev
iew

s u
nd
ert

ak
en
 in
 

ea
ch
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
are

a c
om

ple
ted

 
by
 M
ay
 20

09
 

Sk
ills
 fo
r L

ife
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
ex
ten

de
d b

y a
pp
oin

tm
en
t F

TE
  

lite
rac

y a
nd
 nu

me
rac

y t
ea
ch
ing

 
sta

ff b
y S

ep
tem

be
r 2

00
9  

Se
rvi
ce
 – 
wid

e c
ros

s –
 

cu
rric

ulu
m 
em

plo
ya
bil
ity
 

ini
tia
tiv
es
 ag

ree
d a

nd
 in
tro
du
ce
d 

int
o t
he
 20

09
/10

 ac
ad
em

ic 
ye
ar 

pro
gra

mm
e  

Em
plo

ya
bil
ity
 co

re-
cu
rric

ulu
m 

un
its
 de

ve
lop

ed
 fo
r e

nri
ch
me

nt 
an
d p

rog
res

sio
n b

y M
arc

h 2
01
0  

Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

  On
go
ing

 
   On

go
ing

 

Page 32



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

5 

 Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

2.3
 R
ev
iew

 of
 lif

elo
ng

 le
arn

ing
 cu

rri
cu

lum
 fo

r n
on

-ac
cre

dit
ed

 pr
ov
isi
on

 in
clu

din
g p

ers
on

al,
 co

mm
un

ity
 an

d 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

lea
rn
ing

 so
 th

at 
it b

ett
er 

ref
lec

ts 
co

mm
un

ity
 de

ma
nd

 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s /
 de

liv
era

ble
s  

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Re

vie
w 
of 
life

lon
g l
ea
rni
ng
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
for

 no
n-

ac
cre

dit
ed
 pr

ov
isio

n i
nc
lud

ing
 pe

rso
na
l, c

om
mu

nit
y 

an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en
t le

arn
ing

 so
 th
at 
it b

ett
er 

ref
lec

ts 
co
mm

un
ity
 de

ma
nd
  

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Bu
sin

es
s r
ev
iew

s u
nd
ert

ak
en
 in
 

ea
ch
 cu

rric
ulu

m 
are

a c
om

ple
ted

 
by
 M
ay
 20

09
 

AC
L c

urr
icu

lum
 or

ga
nis

ed
 to
 

giv
e p

rog
res

sio
n o

pp
ort

un
itie

s 
an
d c

ou
rse

 de
sc
rip
tio
ns
 re

-
wr
itte

n a
s n

ee
de
d b

y J
uly

 20
09
 

Sy
ste

m 
for

 ga
the

rin
g I
nfo

rm
ati
on
 

on
 le
arn

er 
an
d p

ote
nti
al 
lea

rne
r 

en
qu
irie

s a
re 

rou
tin
ely

 co
lle
cte

d, 
rec

ord
ed
 an

d  
mo

nit
ore

d b
y 

Ma
rch

 20
10
  

 Le
arn

er 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 ev

en
ts 
to 

be
 un

de
rta
ke
n b

y F
eb
rua

ry 
20
10
 

 

Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

  Un
de
rw
ay
.  R

ec
rui
tm
en
t o
f 

Le
arn

er 
Su

pp
ort

 an
d A

dv
ice

 
ma

na
ge
r to

 be
 co

mp
let
e b

y e
nd
 

of 
Ju
ne
 20

10
. 

 On
go
ing

 

       Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
3. 
Ex

pa
nd

 th
e p

ro
vis

ion
 of

 hi
gh

 qu
ali
ty 
he

alt
h i

nfo
rm

ati
on

, a
dv
ice

 an
d s

up
po

rt 
in 

Ide
a S

tor
es
 an

d L
ibr

ari
es
  

Page 33



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

6 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

3.1
 Ex

pa
nd

 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 

of 
NH

S c
ho

ice
s p

ro
gr
am

me
s 

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Ex
pa
nd
 th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
the

 H
ea
lth
 Tr

ain
ers

 pr
og
ram

me
 

in 
Ide

a S
tor

es
 an

d L
ibr
ari
es
.  

Th
e p

rog
ram

me
 w
ill f

oc
us
 on

: 
• 

Pr
ov
idi
ng
 in
for

ma
tio
n a

nd
 aw

are
ne
ss
 on

 
nu
trit
ion

, p
hy
sic

al 
ac
tiv
ity
 an

d s
mo

kin
g 

ce
ss
ati
on
  

• 
Sig

np
os
tin
g p

eo
ple

 in
to 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 se
rvi
ce
s, 

ac
tiv
itie

s, 
sp
ec
ial
ist
 or
ga
nis

ati
on
s r
ele

va
nt 
to 

su
pp
ort

 th
eir
 he

alt
h n

ee
ds
 

• 
De

live
rin
g h

ea
lth
y l
ife
sty

le 
ac
tiv
itie

s  
• 

Pr
ov
idi
ng
 1-

to-
1 m

oti
va
tio
na
l s
up
po
rt 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Ch
ris

 Lo
vit
t 

Ide
nti
fy 
op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 bu

ild
 on

 
the

 su
cc
es
sfu

l h
ea
lth
 tra

ine
r 

pro
gra

mm
e i
n I
de
a S

tor
es
 by

 
Ju
ne
 20

09
 

Im
ple

me
nt 
he
alt
h t
rai
ne
r 

se
rvi
ce
s o

ne
 da

y a
 w
ee
k i
n a

ll 
fou

r Id
ea
 St

ore
s b

y S
ep
tem

be
r 

20
09
 

En
ga
ge
 N
HS

 To
we

r H
am

let
s i
n 

dis
cu
ss
ion

 ab
ou
t fu

tur
e r
e-

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 of
 H
ea
lth
 

Tra
ine

rs 
an
d p

rov
isio

n f
rom

 Id
ea
 

Sto
res

 by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 

Co
mp

let
e 

  He
alt
h t
rai
ne
rs 
pro

vid
ing

 
se
rvi
ce
s a

t W
hit
ec
ha
pe
l, C

hri
sp
 

Str
ee
t a
nd
 Bo

w 
Ide

a S
tor

es
 

 On
go
ing

. N
HS

TH
 te
nd
eri
ng
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 no
t y
et 
av
ail
ab
le.
 

Ex
plo

re 
the

 op
po
rtu

nit
y t
o d

eli
ve
r fu

rth
er 

he
alt
h a

dv
ice

 
an
d i
nfo

rm
ati
on
 se

rvi
ce
s f
rom

 Id
ea
 St

ore
s a

nd
 bu

ild
 on

 
the

 Id
ea
 St

ore
s t
o s

up
po
rt h

ea
lth
y l
ivin

g a
nd
 pu

bli
c 

he
alt
h c

am
pa
ign

s. 
Ke

y d
eli
ve
rab

les
 (s
ub
jec

t to
 fu
rth

er 
de
tai
led

 w
ork

) 
inc

lud
e: 

Tim
e f
or 

He
alt
h, 
He

alt
h L

ite
rac

y, 
He

alt
h T

rai
ne
rs,
 Li
fe 

Ch
ec
k, 
Dig

ita
l M

en
tor

s, 
NH

S C
ho
ice

s 
 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Ch
ris

 Lo
vit
t 

Ide
nti
fy 
pro

jec
ts 
for

 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n b

y O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

Im
ple

me
nt 
the

 pr
og
ram

me
s i
n 

Ide
a S

tor
es
 by

 Ja
nu
ary

 20
10
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 On
go
ing

 

   

Page 34



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

7 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 (c

on
td)

 
3.2

 In
tro

du
ce
 ne

w 
he

alt
h a

nd
 em

plo
ym

en
t in

itia
tiv

es
 (c

on
td)

 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Im
ple

me
nt 
he
alt
h a

nd
 em

plo
ym

en
t in

itia
tiv
es
 in
 Id
ea
 

Sto
res

 
Ju

dit
h S

t J
oh

n 
Ch

ris
 Lo

vit
t 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Sc
op
e t
he
 pr

oje
ct 
to 
de
live

r th
e 

Sk
ille

d f
or 

He
alt
h p

rog
ram

me
s 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
. 

Im
ple

me
nt 
the

 pr
og
ram

me
s i
n 

Ide
a S

tor
es
 by

 Ja
nu
ary

 20
10
.  

 Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 in
vit
ed
 to
 

ten
de
r fo

r d
eli
ve
ry 
of 
he
alt
h 

pro
gra

mm
es
 by

 O
cto

be
r 2

00
9 

Co
mp

let
e 

  On
go
ing

 
 NH

ST
H 
ten

de
rin
g o

pp
ort
un
itie

s 
no
t y
et 
av
ail
ab
le 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
4. 
Ex

pa
nd

 th
e p

ro
vis

ion
 of

 hi
gh

 qu
ali
ty 
em

plo
ym

en
t in

for
ma

tio
n, 

ad
vic

e a
nd

 su
pp

or
t 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

4.1
 Ex

pa
nd

 th
e S

ing
le 
Po

int
 of

 A
cc
es
s s

erv
ice

 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Ex
plo

re 
the

 in
teg

rat
ion

 of
 Id
ea
 St

ore
s i
nto

 st
rat

eg
ic 

em
plo

ym
en
t in

itia
tiv
es
, in

clu
din

g t
he
 Si

ng
le 
Po

int
 of
 

Ac
ce
ss
  

Th
is 
ini
tia
tiv
e w

ou
ld 
pro

vid
e a

 w
ide

 ra
ng
e o

f jo
ine

d-u
p 

se
rvi
ce
s t
ha
t h
elp

 to
 ad

dre
ss
 th
e m

ult
ipl
e b

arr
ier
s t
o 

em
plo

ym
en
t in

 or
de
r to

 su
pp
ort

 pe
op
le 
int
o w

ork
.  

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Ide
a S

tor
es
/Li
fel
on
g 

Le
arn

ing
 ar

e 
rep

res
en
ted

 on
 an

d 
ac
tiv
ely

 co
ntr

ibu
te 
to 

Em
plo

ym
en
t S

tra
teg

y 
Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n G

rou
p 

by
 Ju

ly 
20
09
 

  

Co
mp

let
e. 
 Th

e E
SIG

 ha
s b

ee
n 

su
pe
rse

de
d b

y t
he
 Lo

ca
l 

Ec
on
om

ic 
As

se
ss
me

nt 
an
d 

Lif
elo

ng
 Le

arn
ing

 is
 en

ga
ge
d i
n 

thi
s. 

 
 

Page 35



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

8 

  Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
5. 
Ex

pa
nd

 an
d i

mp
ro
ve
 th

e p
ro
vis

ion
 of

 hi
gh

 qu
ali
ty,
 ac

ce
ss
ibl

e I
CT

 an
d I

LT
 in

fra
str

uc
tur

e, 
se
rvi

ce
s, 

tra
ini

ng
 an

d s
up

po
rt 
in 

Ide
a S

tor
es
 an

d L
ibr

ari
es
 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

5.1
 Im

ple
me

nt 
an
 IC

T a
nd

 In
for

ma
tio

n L
ea
rn
ing

 Te
ch

no
log

y (
ILT

) S
tra

teg
y f
or
 Id

ea
 St

or
es
 an

d t
he
 Li

fel
on

g 
Le

arn
ing

 Se
rvi

ce
. 

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s s

tat
us

 
Im
ple

me
nt 
the

 IC
T S

tra
teg

y f
or 
Ide

a S
tor

es
 an

d 
up
da
te 
the

 In
for

ma
tio
n L

ea
rni
ng
 Te

ch
no
log

y (
ILT

) fo
r 

the
 Li
fel
on
g L

ea
rni
ng
 Se

rvi
ce
. 

Ke
y a

rea
s o

f fo
cu
s s

ho
uld

 in
clu

de
: 

• 
sc
op
e o

f th
e o

n-l
ine

 se
rvi
ce
 of
fer

  
• 

sc
op
e o

f th
e i
n-s

tor
e I
CT

 an
d I
LT

 se
rvi
ce
 of
fer

 
(eg

 le
arn

ing
, a
dv
ice

 an
d s

up
po
rt) 

• 
IC
T a

nd
 IL
T i
nv
es
tm
en
t s
tra

teg
ies

 (e
g 

eq
uip

me
nt,
 ph

ys
ica

l e
nv
iro
nm

en
t)  

 
• 

wo
rki
ng
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 w
ith
 C
orp

ora
te 
IT 

(eg
 

sc
op
e o

f s
erv

ice
s p

rov
ide

d, 
se
rvi
ce
 st
an
da
rds

) 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Ro
ll o

ut 
of 
RF

ID
 an

d s
elf
 

se
rvi
ce
 to
 al
l s
ite
s b

y 
Ma

rch
 20

10
 

Im
ple

me
nt 
Ele

ctr
on
ic 

Do
cu
me

nt 
Int
erf

ac
e 

(E
DI
) m

od
ule

 of
 

Op
en
Ga

lax
y b

y M
arc

h 
20
10
 

Ag
ree

 up
gra

de
 pl
an
 an

d 
im
ple

me
nt 
ch
an
ge
-ov

er 
of 
all
 IS

 PC
s t
o L

BT
H 

Co
rpo

rat
e I
T s

tan
da
rd 

by
 

De
ce
mb

er 
20
09
 

Up
da
ted

 IL
T s

tra
teg

y 
rev

iew
ed
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
  

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f R
FID

 
sc
he
du
led

 fo
r S

ep
tem

be
r 2

01
0 

 Su
pe
rse

de
d b

y i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 
of 
R2

P p
roc

ure
me

nt 
sy
ste

m 
ac
ros

s L
BT

H 
  Co

mp
let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

   

Page 36



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

9 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
6. 
St
ren

gth
en
 in

clu
sio

n a
nd

 ac
ce
ss
ibi

lity
  

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

6.1
 Id

en
tify

 op
po

rtu
nit

y s
ite

s t
o i

mp
lem

en
t th

e I
de

a S
tor

e /
 Li

br
ary

 ne
tw
or
k r

ec
on

fig
ur
ati

on
 st

rat
eg

y 
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

 
Re

sp
on

sib
ilit

y  
Ke

y m
ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
W
ork

 w
ith
 th
e P

lan
nin

g a
nd
 Bu

ild
ing

 Sc
ho
ols

 fo
r th

e 
Fu

tur
es
 Te

am
s t
o i
de
nti
fy 
op
po
rtu

nit
y s

ite
s t
o i
mp

lem
en
t 

the
 Id
ea
 St

ore
 / L

ibr
ary

 ne
tw
ork

 re
co
nfi
gu
rat

ion
 st
rat

eg
y 

– w
he
re 

thi
s c

an
 be

 ju
sti
fie
d o

n c
os
t, p

erf
orm

an
ce
 an

d 
eff
icie

nc
y g

rou
nd
s. 
  

      

Ro
bin

 B
ea
ttie

 
Th

or
ste

n D
rey

er 
Ju

dit
h S

t J
oh

n 

Es
tab

lish
 BS

F/I
de
a 

Sto
re 

Se
rvi
ce
 

en
ga
ge
me

nt 
me

ch
an
ism

 
by
 Ju

ne
 20

09
 

En
ga
ge
 w
ith
 D
&R

 on
 th
e 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
the

 LD
F 

su
ite
 of
 do

cu
me

nts
 to
 

en
su
re 

ali
gn
me

nt 
by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09
 

En
ga
ge
 w
ith
 th
e T

ow
n 

Ce
ntr

e I
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 
Pr
og
ram

me
 to
 de

ve
lop

 
str
ate

gic
 lin

ks
 in
to 

ec
on
om

ic 
reg

en
era

tio
n 

ini
tia
tiv
es
 by

 Au
gu
st 

20
09
 

Ca
rry

 ou
t d
eta

ile
d 

fea
sib

ility
 an

d b
us
ine

ss
 

pla
nn
ing

 w
ork

 in
 re

lat
ion

 
to 
po
ten

tia
l s
ite
s b

y 
De

ce
mb

er 
20
09
  

 

Co
mp

let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

   Co
mp

let
e 

    Co
mp

let
e 

 

   

Page 37



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

10
 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
6. 
St
ren

gth
en
 in

clu
sio

n a
nd

 ac
ce
ss
ibi

lity
  

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

6.2
 In

cre
as
e e

ng
ag

em
en
t b

y u
nd

er 
16
s a

nd
 th

eir
 fa

mi
lie
s  

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
De

sig
n a

nd
 im

ple
me

nt 
a r
an
ge
 of
 ne

w 
fam

ily 
rea

din
g 

an
d l
ea
rni
ng
 ac

tiv
itie

s  
Ka

ren
 R
ob

ins
on

 
Ka

te 
Pit

ma
n 

Se
rg
io 

Do
gli

an
i 

Fio
na

 Pa
ter

so
n 

Re
-fit
 of
 IS

W
 ch

ild
ren

’s 
lib
rar

y b
y M

arc
h 2

01
0 

Co
mp

let
ion

 of
 Su

mm
er 

Re
ad
ing

 C
ha
lle
ng
e b

y 
Se

pte
mb

er 
20
09
 

Ro
ll–
ou
t o
f “E

ng
ag
ing

 
Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

” P
roj
ec
t 

by
 Ja

nu
ary

 20
10
 

De
live

ry 
of 
a p

rog
ram

me
 

of 
cu
ltu
ral
 ac

tiv
itie

s f
or 

yo
un
g p

eo
ple

 th
rou

gh
 

Fin
d Y

ou
r T

ale
nt 
by
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
09
 

Re
vie

w 
Bo

ok
Sta

rt 
de
live

ry 
me

ch
an
ism

, 
en
ga
ge
 w
ith
 pa

rtn
ers

 to
 

inc
rea

se
 aw

are
ne
ss
 of
 

IS 
se
rvi
ce
s f
or 

0-3
 ye

ar 
old

s b
y M

arc
h 2

01
0 

En
su
re 

pa
ren

ts 
an
d 

ch
ild
ren

 on
 fa
mi
ly 

lea
rni
ng
 pr

og
ram

me
s 

are
 ro

uti
ne
ly 
sig

np
os
ted

 
to 
the

ir n
ea
res

t Id
ea
 

Sto
re/

Lib
rar

y a
nd
 

On
go
ing

 
 Co

mp
let
e 

 Pr
oje

ct 
cu
rre

ntl
y u

nd
er 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
at 
Ide

a S
tor

e 
Bo

w 
 Co

mp
let
e 

   Co
mp

let
e 

   Co
mp

let
e 

Page 38



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

11
 

op
po
rtu

nit
ies

 to
 pr

om
ote

 
the

 se
rvi
ce
 ar

e c
rea

ted
 

fro
m 
Ju
ne
 20

09
  

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

6.3
 Im

ple
me

nt 
the

 Eq
ua
liti

es
 Im

pa
ct 

As
se
ss
me

nt 
Ac

tio
n P

lan
 ac

ro
ss
 th

e s
erv

ice
 

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Im
ple

me
nt 
the

 Eq
ua
litie

s I
mp

ac
t A

ss
es
sm

en
t A

cti
on
 

Pla
n a

cro
ss
 al
l L
ibr
ari
es
 an

d I
de
a S

tor
es
  

Gr
ah

am
 Po

lla
rd
 

Re
vie

w 
se
rvi
ce
 pr

ov
isio

n 
to 
ce
ntr

es
 fo
r e

lde
rly
 & 

dis
ab
led

 pe
op
le 
by
 M
ar 

20
10
 

Im
pro

ve
 se

rvi
ce
s t
o 

pe
op
le 
wit

h m
en
tal
 

he
alt
h p

rob
lem

s b
y J

uly
 

20
09
 

Im
pro

ve
 se

rvi
ce
s &

 
sto

ck
 fo
r p

eo
ple

 w
ith
 

lea
rni
ng
 di
sa
bil
itie

s b
y 

Ma
rch

 20
10
 

On
go
ing

 
   Co

mp
let
e 

  Co
mp

let
e 

           

Page 39



ID
EA

 S
TO

RE
 S
TR

AT
EG

IC
 O
BJ

EC
TI
VE

S 
AN

D 
YE

AR
 1
 –
 2
 A
CT

IO
N 
PL

AN
 U
PD

AT
E 
  

 
 

 
   
   
  A

PP
EN

DI
X 
2 

 

12
 

Ov
era

rch
ing

 St
rat

eg
ic 
Ob

jec
tiv

e 
7. 
Co

-lo
ca
te 

cu
ltu

ral
, le

isu
re 

an
d o

the
r c

ou
nc
il s

erv
ice

s w
he

re 
thi

s w
ill 
inc

rea
se
 ef

fic
ien

cy
, e
ffe

cti
ve
ne

ss
 

an
d v

alu
e f

or
 m

on
ey
 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

7.1
 Su

pp
or
t th

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 th

e T
ran

sfo
rm

ing
 So

cia
l C

are
 ag

en
da

  
Ke

y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Su

pp
ort

 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 th
e T

ran
sfo

rm
ing

 So
cia

l 
Ca

re 
ag
en
da
. 

 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Sa
rah

 Fo
rd
 

Sc
op
e  
ou
tlin

e o
f 

un
ive

rsa
l in

for
ma

tio
n o

n 
so
cia

l c
are

 ch
oic

es
 

On
go
ing

 

Ke
y p

rio
rit
y a

rea
 

7.2
 Su

pp
or
t th

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 th

e C
us

tom
er 

Ac
ce
ss
 Se

rvi
ce
  

Ke
y i
nit

iat
ive

s  
 

Re
sp

on
sib

ilit
y  

Ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s 

Pr
og

res
s S

tat
us

 
Su

pp
ort

 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 th
e C

ha
nn
el 
Ac

ce
ss
 

Str
ate

gy
 

Ju
dit

h S
t J

oh
n 

Cl
air

e S
ym

on
ds

 
To

 be
 de

ter
mi
ne
d b

y 
Ch

an
ne
l A

cc
es
s 

Str
ate

gy
 w
ork

ing
 gr

ou
p 

On
go
ing

 

  

Page 40



 
Appendix 3  
 
 Idea Store Metro Concept 
  

The Idea Store Strategy 2009 indicates that a smaller and more 
flexible generation of Idea Stores is required if the network is to be 
completed in a way that will allow the service to fully meet the needs 
of the community and remain within projected revenue budgets.  The 
Idea Store Metro concept builds on the convenience store model 
developed by major supermarket chains. An Idea Store Metro 
provision would be smaller in size and would focus on high quality 
core service offer and high quality service presentation. The proposed 
model for the new generation Idea Stores is based around a co-
location of library and information services (from both Council and 
local partners such as the PCT), and the concept of the corner shop 
Idea Store – akin to the ‘Metro’ or ‘Local’ supermarket.  Each Idea 
Store Metro would be tailored to meet the needs of its local area: 
• an innovative centre which engages with and belongs to the 

local  community, and sends out a message of inclusion and 
diversity 

• accessibility, inclusion and a sense of welcome  
• high profile and visibility 
• should contribute to the external public realm as a local     

 community hub 
• offer tangible benefits to the local community in the areas of 

health and employment 
• flexible provision for a range of service providers 
• centre of information services and the local community, a hub 

for local community spaces 
 The Idea Store Metro core offer would include: 

• Adult and children’s library with learning activities for all ages  
• Surfing space providing free public internet access 
• Flexible learning spaces. These will provide both formal and 

informal learning activities 
• Health advice and information services 
• Single Access Point or a similar initiative to provide a wide range 

of joined-up services that help to address the multiple barriers to 
employment in order to support people into work 

• Meeting and activity space for community groups 
• Display areas for local artists and exhibitions 
• Storage 
• Public and staff toilets 
• Staff room  

 

Page 41



Page 42

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

Committee: 
 
Overview and Scrutiny 
 

Date: 
 
3rd August 2010 

Classification: 
 

Unrestricted 
 

 

Report No: Agenda 
Item: 9.1 

Report of:  
Corporate Director Resources 
 
Originating officer(s) 
Louise Russell, Service Head Strategy & 
Performance 
Alan Finch, Service Head Corporate 
Finance 
 

 

Title:  
Strategic Performance and Corporate Revenue 
Budget Monitoring 2009/10 Year End Report  
 
Wards Affected: 
All 
 

 
 
1 SUMMARY 
1.1 This is the Council’s annual performance and financial monitoring report. This 

covers the authority’s progress against the actions in the Strategic Plan, Strategic 
and Priority performance indicators and its financial position for year end 
2009/10. 

 
1.2 This covering report provides an overview of performance and budget 

performance across the Council for 2009/10. The performance information is 
contained in the report appendices as follows: 

• Appendix 1 is entitled Annual Report 2009/10 and provides a narrative 
summary of 2009/10 performance. This summary will be published on the 
internet;   

• Appendix 2 provides a Progress Report on the Strategic Plan to 31st 
March 2010; 

• Appendix 3 provides an overview of performance, outturn commentary and 
direction of travel charts for all Strategic Indicators (Tower Hamlets Index);  

• Appendix 4 provides an overview of performance and outturn commentary 
for all Priority Indicators; 

• Appendix 5 details total General Fund net expenditure and Directorate 
outturns for the year compared to budget, together with reasons for 
significant variances; 

• Appendix 5a contains details of the HRA; 
• Appendix 6 details requested carry forwards/earmarked reserves 

proposals; and 
• Appendix 7 provides details of efficiency savings achieved. 

Agenda Item 9.1

Page 43



 

 
2 

   
 
2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is recommended to:- 
 
2.1 Review and note 2009/10 performance. 
 
3  BACKGROUND 
 

Strategic Plan 
3.1 The Council’s Strategic Plan sets out our 14 strategic priorities and targets for the 

period 2009/10. The Council’s performance framework requires Overview & 
Scrutiny and Cabinet to consider our progress against Strategic Plan activities 
every 6 months. This report is a monitoring update on the full financial year 
2009/10. This report consists of a summary of the number and proportion of 
activities achieving red/amber/green traffic lights and analysis of the activities, in 
particular the reasons for unsuccessful implementation.  

 
Performance Indicators 

3.2 This is the second full year of monitoring against the National Indicator set. This 
report monitors the Council’s Strategic and Priority Indicators, covering the period 
to April 2009 to March 2010. The Strategic and Priority indicators are the top two 
tiers of our performance framework. They are: 

• Strategic Indicators - consisting of a balanced scorecard of indicators 
reflecting those measured within our Local Area Agreement  together with 
some key measures of customer satisfaction and some measures of 
corporate efficiency (such as sickness absence). Where information is 
available, these are monitored corporately every two months as the Tower 
Hamlets Index and quarterly in the joint strategic and budget monitoring 
report. There are 84 indicators in the Strategic Set.  

• Priority Indicators – this set includes all other National Indicators. Where 
monitoring information is available, we provide corporate Priority Indicator 
monitoring every six months.  

 
3.3 Performance analysis included within the report is currently based on incomplete 

data as performance data for some indicators is not yet available. We will get 
more complete information within the next few weeks, although, where data 
sources used to calculate these indicators are external to the council this may 
take more time.  

Page 44



 

 
3 

 
3.4 The Council annually sets ambitious and challenging targets for all our Strategic 

Indicators. All targets are required to exceed the previous year’s outturn, exceed 
the previous year’s target and to achieve London top quartile performance within 
3 years. This stretching approach to target setting has underpinned our sustained 
improvement over recent years – but it does also mean that each year we do not 
hit all our targets. 

 
3.5 Further analysis of 2009/10 has been provided to the Council’s Performance 

Review Group. Many of the areas where we have failed to meet targets or where 
there is insufficient improvement are already subject to regular review at PRG. 
Based on the 2009/10 analysis PRG will identify other areas of performance 
which are not showing sufficiently rapid improvement, or where we are falling 
behind comparators, and review and support improvement planning and delivery. 

 

Annual Report Performance Summary 
3.6 Each year we produce a narrative performance overview, published as our 

Annual Report and made available through our website. The 2009/10 report is 
set out in Appendix 1, providing an overview of key achievements 
and improvement plans. As well as being published on the Council’s website, it 
will form the basis for shorter performance summary to be published in East End 
Life this summer. Partners and CMT will be asked to review this summary before 
submission for publication.   

 
Financial Outturn 

3.7 General Fund revenue expenditure for the year to 31st March 2010 was 
controlled within budget. Subject to Members’ agreement to the proposed 
movements to and from reserves, a small underspend of £31,000 is reported. 

 
3.8 This compares with a projected overspend as at 31st December 2009 of £1.7 

million.  The main reasons for the changes were lower than expected outturns in 
most Directorates due to management action taken in year to contain costs. 
Other major variances have been due to factors that had been identified during 
the year and are detailed in Appendix 5.  

 
3.9 The table below summarises the expected outturn position for the General Fund. 

Total net revenue expenditure on the General Fund amounted to £295.6 million 
compared to a budget of £297.9 million, however movements between reserves 
of £2.264million result in a net transfer to reserves of £30,000.   

Page 45



 

 
4 

 
 Adjusted 

Budget 
 

£m 

Actual 
 

£m 

Transfers 
To/From 
Reserves 

£m 

Variance 
 

£m 

Adults, Health and 
Wellbeing 

92.031 91.712 0.301 (0.018) 

Chief Executive 17.340 16.963 0.560 0.183 
Children, Schools and 
Families 

101.617 102.531 (0.684) 0.230 

Communities, 
Localities & Culture 

77.594 75.683 1.504 (0.407) 

Development and 
Renewal 

14.678 15.072 (0.254) 0.140 

Resources 14.839 15.691 (0.434) 0.418 
Corporate / Capital 19.136 17.277 1.271 (0.588) 
Sub-total 337.235 334.929 2.264 (0.042) 
Area Based Grant  (33.166) (33.166) 0.000 0.000 
Other central funds & 
trading accounts 

(6.142) (6.131) (0.000) 0.011 

Total 297.927 295.632 2.264 (0.031) 
 
3.10 Appendix 5a sets out the outturn for the Housing Revenue Account  which shows 

a decrease in the HRA balance of £10.3m leaving a balance to carry forward of 
£12.98m.  The level of HRA reserves is slightly in excess of the £12.2 million 
forecast when the 2010/10 budget was set. 

 
3.11 Appendix 6 sets out the recommended payments into and out of earmarked 

reserves into departmental resources.  Members are asked to approve these 
transfers.  A summary of adjustments requiring approval is set out below: 

 
 Requests for transfers 

to/from reserves 
£’000 

 
Adults, Health and Wellbeing  301 
Chief Executive’s 560 
Children, Schools and Families (684) 
Communities, Localities and Culture 1,504 

Page 46



 

 
5 

Development and Renewal (254) 
Resources (434) 
Capital Financing and Other 1,271 
Total 2,264 

 
3.12 Appendix 5 contains details of trading areas that provide Building Control and 

Street Trading services by the Council.  Areas that have been treated as trading 
in the past have now been incorporated into the relevant service area. 

 
3.13 Appendix 7 shows details of efficiency savings achieved in 2009/10. These total 

£5.1million, though are below the target of £5.67million. Details of the schemes 
are in the appendix. 

 
3.14 A Capital Programme Outturn report will be submitted for Members’ information 

in September.  
 
3.15 The table below shows debt collection performance for the major types of debt 

for the year ended 31st March 2010. The figures relate to debt raised since 1st 
April 2009 and collected in year. In addition, a proportion of debt is collected as 
arrears, so a greater proportion of debt is collected than these targets indicate. 
Thus the targets exclude, for example, debt that is collected in instalments over 
more than one year. It should be appreciated that some types of debt are subject 
to statutory appeals procedures which limit or delay the collection of debt.  

 
Income Stream 
 

Target Debt to be 
Collected in Year           
(%) 

Actual Debt 
Collected as at 
31/03/10 (%) 

Target Met? 

Business Rates 98.0 99.3 Yes 
Council Tax 96.6 94.4 No 
Sundry Debts 87.0 86.3 No 
Housing Rents 101.0 100.0 No 

 
3.16 Income Collection Performance Analysis  

Business Rates – Collection performance has exceeded the target set by 1.3%. 
2009/10 saw the introduction of the Business Rates Deferral Scheme, the new 
valuation list coming into force and the launch of the Business Rates Supplement 
to fund Crossrail.   
  

Page 47



 

 
6 

Council Tax – 2009-10 has been a difficult year with issues arising from the 
economic downturn, the move to 12 monthly instalments and the significant 
increase in the tax base. Collection has fallen 2.2% below target though it is 
anticipated that the rate will still eventually meet the 97% budgetary target. The 
move to 12 monthly instalments means that the recovery process for the final 
instalment will be completed after year end.  
 
Sundry Debts – Whilst the collection rate achieved fell slightly below target it was 
an improvement over 2008/09. Improved in-year collection and a focus on 
arrears have resulted in the overall value of debts over 12 months old reducing 
by 18% to £1.5m. 

 
3.17 Outturn debt collection figures for Housing Major Works, Service Charges and 

Parking will be reported later in the financial year. 
  
4 PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 
 

Strategic Plan Performance 
4.1 All activities within the Strategic Plan 2009/10 have been monitored and are 

included in Appendix 2. Currently there are 73 activities, and 260 milestones 
relating to these activities in the Strategic Plan. Where an activity has been 
completed it is marked as Completed (Green).  

 
4.2 If an activity has been identified as likely to not be completed this financial year, it 

is marked as Overdue (Red). In addition, managers have provided comments for 
all Overdue activities to explain why the deadline was missed; what is being done 
about it; and by when the activity will be completed.  

 
4.3 Of the 73 activities included within the plan:  

• 66% (48) have been completed,  
• 34% (25) are overdue.  

 
4.4 Of the overdue activities, 13 are 80% or more complete and have missed only 

one milestone – these have been assessed as Amber (near complete).  
 
4.5 Of the 25 activities which are not completed at year end, 8 are less than 75% 

complete. For 6 of these, the primary reason - as determined by commentary 
supplied - is delay in the development of partner plans & strategies, or delay in 
the responses of external partners. This highlights the risk inherent in partnership 

Page 48



 

 
7 

working and the need to maintain our focus on partner engagement and the 
Council’s community leadership role. 

 
 Strategic Indicator Performance 
4.6 Performance against Strategic Indicators for the period April 2009 until March 

2010 is set out in Appendix 3. The performance update includes 2009/10 targets, 
2009/10 actual, outturn commentary and direction of travel charts for each 
indicator. Direction of travel charts summarise performance against target and 
top quartile performance information where available.  

 
4.7 Within the Strategic set of indicators, there are 67 where both a target was set 

and outturn information is available. Of these 65 indicators: 
• 39 (58%) met or exceeded their target; 
• 14 (21%) were within range of meeting their target (-10% below); 
• 14 (21%) were more than 10% off target; and  
• 54 (80.5%) improved based on 2008/09 outturn.  

 
4.8 Of the indicators that have not achieved their target, most have previously been 

flagged as at risk of failing to achieve end year target - or end year outturn has 
previously been reported - and are subject to review by the Performance Review 
Group with improvement plans in place.  

 
 Priority Indicator Performance 
4.9 Performance against the Priority Indicators for the period April 2009 until March 

2010 is set out in Appendix 4. The performance update includes 2009/10 targets, 
2009/10 actual, outturn commentary. 

 
4.10 There are 175 indicators within the Priority set, and there are 101 where both a 

target was set and outturn information is available. Of these 98 indicators: 
• 52 (51.8%) met or exceeded target; 
• 29 (28.7%) were within range of their target (-10% below); 
• 23 (22.7%) were more than 10% off target; and 
• 67 (66.3%) improved based on 2008/09 outturn.  

 
‘You Decide!’ Participatory Budgeting Programme 

4.11 You Decide! is Tower Hamlets’ innovative participatory budgeting project. The 
programme of work involves passing decision making responsibility to local 
residents and allowing them to make decisions over a portion of mainstream 

Page 49



 

 
8 

council funding. 815 residents from around the Borough decided how almost £2.4 
million would be spent during 2009/10 on additional mainstream services. 
Subsequently, the relevant Council departments worked with the LAP Steering 
Groups to shape exactly how those services will be delivered in their local area. 
The Steering Groups also play a central role in monitoring those services over 
the year, thus ensuring resident involvement throughout the whole process. 

 
4.12 Overview of progress with projects 

There are 84 projects currently part of the participatory budgeting programme. At 
present 66 of these are complete or on target to complete, 14 of these are off 
target but anticipated to complete on time, and 4 are off target and at risk of not 
meeting project targets. The total budget for current PB projects is £2,378,538. 
Of this, £1,913,314 was committed spend by 31 March 2010. 

 
4.13 Overview of performance by LAP 
 

LAP Total no. of 
projects 

Complete 
GREEN 

Off Target 
AMBER 

At risk 
RED 

1 12 9 3  
2 11 8 2 1 
3 10 10   
4 9 7 1 1 
5 11 9 1 1 
6 10 7 3  
7 11 9 2  
8 10 7 2 1 

 
 
4.14 Overview of finance by LAP 
 

LAP Total no. of 
projects 

Total budget Total spend % spent 

1 12 £407,867 £357,814 88% 
2 11 £280,874 £228,012 81% 
3 10 £280,510 £223,345 80% 
4 9 £280,000 £214,239 77% 
5 11 £280,227 £214,239 76% 
6 10 £284,500 £220,735 78% 

Page 50



 

 
9 

7 11 £279,560 £223,210 80% 
8 10 £285,000 £231,720 81% 

 
4.15 Risk assessment of individual projects 

The following projects have been identified as at risk of not completing 
their targets (RED): 

 
Youth Improvement Programme 
The YIP aims to prevent 13-17 year olds from entering the criminal Justice 
system. Each LAP within this programme was set individual targets for the 
number of young people to be engaged. Although the project as a whole 
achieved 389 engagements, coming very close to meeting an aggregated 
borough target of 400, LAPs 2, 4, 5 & 8 each missed their engagement targets. 
In total, across these 4 areas, 200 young people should have been engaged, 
however only 133 young people were placed on the programme. The slippage 
was mainly due to a lack of suitable referrals from other agencies (which include 
the police, council, neighbourhood teams and other local agencies).  

 
5 BUDGET OVERVIEW 

 
5.1 Overall the Council’s outturn was almost in line with budget during 2009/10 taking 

account of proposed movements to and from reserves.  As a result the level of 
general fund balances is almost unchanged. 

 
5.2 The outturn shows an underspend of £2.295m, but Directorates have requested 

that a total of £2.264m be carried forward into 2010/11 to fund activities which 
are already underway. These requests have been scrutinised by Finance staff 
and are considered to be reasonable.  The details are set out at Appendix 6.  

 
5.3 The following significant variances from budget are reported: 
 
5.3.1 Children’s Schools & Families  
 

Social Care Fieldwork       £680,000 
 
 There has been an increased demand in this area which has necessitated 

employing additional staff.  A managed workflow has been established across 
agencies to divert a significant number of cases and reduce some of the 

Page 51



 

 
10 

pressure on the Fieldwork team. Nevertheless, an overspend has been incurred 
in 2009/10.  

 
5.3.2 Communities, Localities & Culture  
 
 Concessionary Fares         -£600,000 
 
 The projected increase in the levy to London authorities for the cost of 

concessionary fares will not now take place until 2010/11.   
  
5.3.3 Resources          £689,000 
 
 The HR and Procurement Services (Payments Team) are each undergoing 

reorganisation in the delivery of services which has involved initial project and 
set-up costs. These will be recouped from savings over the next 2-3 financial 
years.   

 
5.3.4 Corporate Costs                   -£1,196,000 
 
 A review undertaken in the last few months has identified a VAT refund and 

interest on overpayments going back to the 1970s. This has generated a one-off 
payment to the Council of £1.196m which the Corporate Director of Resources 
proposes to carry to a reserve to fund transformational projects to deliver 
cashable efficiencies towards the Council’s savings target.  

 
5.4 Further details on variances are in appendix 5.    
 
6 COMMENTS OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER 
 
6.1 This report sets out the performance of the authority against priority performance 

indicators for the year.  Financial results reflect the Council’s final accounts which 
are to be considered for approval by Full Council on 14th July 2010. 

 
6.2 The presentation of financial results alongside other performance outputs 

represents good practice as it enables performance in both areas to be 
considered alongside one another and thus actions can be taken on the basis of 
a balanced overall view.  

 
7  CONCURRENT REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (LEGAL) 

Page 52



 

 
11 

 
7.1 The report provides annual performance information, including by reference to 

the strategic plan, key performance indicators and the budget. 
 
7.2 It is consistent with good administration for the Council to consider monitoring 

information in relation to plans and budgets that it has adopted and agreements 
entered into such as the local area agreement.   

 
7.3 Section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 requires the Council as a best value 

authority to “make arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in 
which its functions are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, 
efficiency and effectiveness”.  Monitoring of performance information is an 
important way in which that obligation can be fulfilled. 

 
7.4 The Council is required by section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 to 

make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs.  The 
Council’s chief finance officer has established financial procedures to ensure the 
Council’s proper financial administration.  These include procedures for 
budgetary control.  It is consistent with these arrangements for Members to 
receive information about the revenue budget as set out in the report. 

 
8 ONE TOWER HAMLETS CONSIDERATIONS 
 
8.1 The Council’s Strategic Plan, and Strategic & Priority Indicators, are focused 

upon meeting the needs of the diverse communities living in Tower Hamlets and 
supporting delivery of One Tower Hamlets. In particular, Strategic Plan priorities 
include the reduction of inequalities and the fostering of strong community 
cohesion and are supported by a variety of strategic activities. 

 
 
9 SUSTAINABLE ACTION FOR A GREENER ENVIRONMENT 
 
9.1 An element of the monitoring report deals with environmental milestones within 

the Safe and Supportive agenda. 
 
10 RISK MANAGEMENT IMPLICATIONS 

 
10.1 In line with the Council’s risk management strategy, the information contained 

within the Strategic Indicator Monitoring will assist the Cabinet, Corporate 
Directors and relevant service managers in delivering the ambitious targets set 

Page 53



 

 
12 

out in the Strategic Plan. Regular monitoring reports will enable Members and 
Corporate Directors to keep progress under regular review. 
 

10.2 There is a risk to the integrity of the authority’s finances if an imbalance occurs 
between resources and needs. This is mitigated by regular monitoring and, 
where appropriate, corrective action. This report provides a corporate overview to 
supplement more frequent monitoring that takes place at detailed level. 
 

10.3 The explanations provided by the Directorates for the budget variances also 
contain analyses of risk factors. 

 
11 CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 The Strategic Indicator set contains a number of crime and disorder indicators 

under the Safe & Supportive theme, however there are no specific crime and 
disorder reduction implications. 

 
12 EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 
12.1 The Efficiency Statement is covered in Appendix 7 of this report.   
 
 

 
 
_______________________________________________________ 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
  

Brief description of “background papers” Name and telephone number of holder  
and address where open to inspection. 
 

To be completed by author To be completed by author ext. xxx 
 
Report authors should refer to the section of the report writing guide which relates to 
Background Papers when completing this section.  Please note that any documents 
listed in this section may be disclosed for public inspection.  Report authors must check 
with Legal Services before listing any document as ‘background papers’. 
 
 
13 APPENDICES 

Appendix 1 – Annual Report Performance Summary 2009/10;   
Appendix 2 - Strategic Plan Monitoring 2009/10; 

Page 54



 

 
13 

Appendix 3 - Strategic Indicator Monitoring 2009/10; 
Appendix 4 - Priority Indicator Monitoring 2009/10; 
Appendix 5 - Total General Fund net expenditure and Directorate outturns for the 
year compared to budget, together with reasons for significant variances; 
Appendix 6 - Trading accounts performance and carry forwards/earmarked 
reserves proposals; and 
Appendix 7 - Efficiency Savings. 
 
 
 

Page 55



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 A
n

n
u

a
l 

R
e

p
o

rt
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 S
u

m
m

a
ry

In
tr

o
d

u
c

ti
o

n

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 v

is
io

n
 i
s
 t
o
 ‘
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 f

o
r 

e
v
e

ry
o

n
e

 l
iv

in
g

 o
r 

w
o

rk
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’.

T
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t 

o
u

tl
in

e
s
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 A
p

ri
l 
2

0
0

9
 a

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

 u
n

d
e

r 
th

e
 t
h

e
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

: 

O
n

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 

A
 G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

 
A

 P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

A
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

T
h

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 P

la
n

 e
x
p

la
in

s
 h

o
w

 w
e

 w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
lif

e
 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

d
e

c
a

d
e

. 
W

h
e

n
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

la
n

 w
a

s
 

c
re

a
te

d
 w

e
 a

s
k
e

d
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
a

t 
th

e
 m

a
in

 f
o

c
u

s
 f

o
r 

s
p

e
n

d
in

g
 s

h
o

u
ld

 b
e

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 v
ie

w
s
 a

re
 r

e
fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 t

h
a

t 
m

a
k
e

 u
p

 

th
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 w
a

s
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
 o

f 
c
o

n
s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 d

is
c
u

s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

 a
n

d
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t.

F
o

r 
re

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

is
 d

o
c
u

m
e

n
t,

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 u
s
e

d
 t

h
e

s
e

 L
A

A
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
, 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 a

 b
ro

a
d

e
r 

ra
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 w

h
ic

h
 w

e
 

u
s
e

 t
o

 t
ra

c
k
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 h

e
lp

 u
s
 t

o
 s

ta
y
 f

o
c
u

s
s
e

d
 o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 w
h

a
t’
s
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

to
 y

o
u

. 
  

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 

a
 G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
w

a
tc

h
d

o
g

 c
h

a
rg

e
d

 w
it
h

 e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 g

e
ts

 v
a

lu
e

 

fo
r 

m
o

n
e

y
. 

In
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
9

 C
o

m
p

re
h

e
n

s
iv

e
 A

re
a

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
a

s
 s

c
o

re
d

 3
 o

u
t 

o
f 

4
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 o

f 
it
s
 u

s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 a

n
d

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t,

 a
n

d
 w

a
s
 a

w
a

rd
e

d
 a

 G
re

e
n

 F
la

g
 f

o
r 

e
x
c
e

p
ti
o

n
a

l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a

 o
f 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
  

T
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 b
ig

 c
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 i
n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
, 

b
u
t 

w
e

 a
re

 c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e
s
, 
a

n
d

 

d
e

te
rm

in
e

d
 t

o
 s

tr
ik

e
 a

 b
a
la

n
c
e

 b
e

tw
e
e

n
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 m

e
e

t 
lo

c
a

l 
n

e
e
d

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

tt
in

g
 a

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 t

h
a

t 
is

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
. 
W

e
’r

e
 p

ro
u

d
 o

f 
o

u
r 

re
c
o

rd
 b

u
t 

n
e

v
e

r 
fo

rg
e

t 
th

a
t 

w
e

 a
re

 f
u

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 p

u
b

lic
 m

o
n

e
y
. 

W
e

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

e
re

’s
 m

o
re

 t
o

 d
o

 t
o

 p
ro

v
id

e
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 d

e
s
e

rv
e

s
. 

W
e

 

a
ls

o
 k

n
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
o

n
’t
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
th

e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

o
u

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
, 

a
n

d
 w

e
 w

ill
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 

c
lo

s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 y
o

u
 t

o
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 a

h
e

a
d

. 
 

1

Page 57



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

K
e

y
 t

o
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
ta

b
le

s
 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s
t 

Y
e
a
r 

T
h

is
 Y

e
a
r 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e

c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

R
e

fe
re

n
c
e

 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

fo
r

in
d

ic
a

to
r

W
h

a
t 
th

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 s
u

p
p
o

s
e
d

 t
o

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 

B
o

ld
 T

y
p

e
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a
t 

th
e
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 
p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 L
A

A
 s

e
t

W
h

e
th

e
r 

b
e

tt
e

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
s
 

h
ig

h
e
r 

o
r 

lo
w

e
r 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
T

B
C

 =
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 

s
ti
ll 

b
e

in
g

 
v
e
ri
fi
e
d

N
/A

 =
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 

n
o

t 
c
o

lle
c
te

d
 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

W
h
a
t 
w

e
 

w
e

re
 

a
im

in
g

 f
o

r 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

A
rr

o
w

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 

w
h

e
th

e
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 i
s
 

b
e

tt
e

r
!

 o
r 

w
o

rs
e

 "

th
a

n
 2

0
0
6

/0
7

2

Page 58



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
O

n
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 i
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 a
n

d
 f

o
s

te
r 

s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

o
h

e
s

io
n

  

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
R

e
d

u
c

in
g

 i
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti

e
s

 

!
F

o
s

te
ri

n
g

 s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

o
h

e
s

io
n

 

!
P

ro
v

id
in

g
 s

tr
o

n
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l

e
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

In
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

0
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
a

s
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 n
e

w
 E

q
u

a
lit

y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 f
o

r 
L

o
c
a

l 
G

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 t
h

e
 ‘
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t’
 r

a
ti
n

g
, 

th
e

 

h
ig

h
e

s
t 

le
v
e

l.
 T

h
e

 n
e

w
 f

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
s
s
e

s
s
e

s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 
fi
v
e

 d
o

m
a

in
s
 -

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 k

n
o

w
in

g
 y

o
u

r 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

- 
a

n
d

 i
s
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
m

e
a

s
u

re
 o

f 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
n

 e
q

u
a

lit
y
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

re
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 f
o

r 
it
s
 e

ff
o

rt
s
 t
o

 p
ro

m
o

te
 e

q
u

a
lit

y
: 

o
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
a

s
 r

a
n

k
e

d
 7

th
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 i
n

 t
h

e
 S

to
n

e
w

a
ll 

W
o

rk
p

la
c
e

 E
q

u
a

lit
y
 I

n
d

e
x
 f

o
r 

th
e

 s
e

c
o

n
d

 c
o

n
s
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 y
e

a
r.

 T
h

e
 i
n

d
e

x
 

c
e

le
b

ra
te

s
 t
h

e
 t

o
p

 1
0

0
 e

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 f

o
r 

fa
ir

n
e

s
s
 o

n
 l
e

s
b

ia
n

, 
g
a

y
 a

n
d

 b
is

e
x
u

a
l 
is

s
u

e
s
. 
N

H
S

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 w
a

s
 a

ls
o

 

ra
n

k
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 t
o

p
 1

0
0

 a
t 
n

u
m

b
e

r 
4

5
; 

a
n

d
  

 

o
 

In
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
w

e
 w

e
re

 r
a

n
k
e

d
 j
o

in
t 
5

th
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

lly
 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

m
p

lo
y
e

rs
’ 
F

o
ru

m
 o

n
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
. 

O
u

r 
to

p
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
s
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
is

 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

e
re

 i
n

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 a
n

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 b

u
ilt

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t,

 a
c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
e

le
c
ti
o

n
.

!
 

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 N

H
S

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

W
o

rk
fo

rc
e

 t
o

 R
e

fl
e

c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 s

tr
a

te
g

ie
s
. 

F
o

r 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 t
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 c

re
a

ti
n

g
 a

 l
o

c
a

l 
g

ra
d

u
a

te
 c

a
re

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
-b

a
s
e

d
 a

p
p

re
n

ti
c
e
s
h

ip
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 g
iv

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 

o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 o

th
e

r 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 w

ill
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

 i
ts

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 l
a

te
r 

in
 2

0
1

0
 i
n

 c
o
n

ju
n

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 

h
e

a
lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 r
e

p
re

s
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

q
u

a
lit

ie
s
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

t 
d

if
fe

re
n

t 
le

v
e

ls
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 H

e
a

lt
h

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 t

h
re

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

o
m

p
o

s
it
io

n
 o

f 
it
s
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
 D

e
s
p

it
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

fe
m

a
le

 s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
9

/1
0

, 
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 t
o

 r
e
a

c
h

 o
u

r 
ta

rg
e

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 f
ro

m
 B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p

s
 

o
r 

th
o

s
e

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 a
 d

is
a

b
ili

ty
. 

In
 p

a
rt

, 
th

is
 i
s
 a

n
 i
s
s
u

e
 o

f 
tu

rn
o

v
e

r 
–

 o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 o

n
ly

 1
4

 s
e

n
io

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
r 

p
o

s
it
io

n
s
 b

e
c
o

m
e

 v
a

c
a

n
t 

e
a

c
h

 y
e

a
r.

  

T
o

 m
e

e
t 

o
u

r 
ta

rg
e

ts
 w

e
 a

re
 p

u
tt

in
g

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

 l
o

n
g
e

r 
te

rm
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g
 a

ll 
v
a

c
a

n
t 

s
e

n
io

r 
p

o
s
ts

  
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 c
o

n
s
id

e
r 

h
o

w
 b

e
s
t 

to
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 c
a

re
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 o

f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 2

0
1

0
/1

1
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t

o
 R

e
fl
e

c
t 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 A

c
ti
o

n

P
la

n
 w

ill
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

s
e

 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 b

o
th

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

th
e

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
e

m
p

lo
y
e

e
s
.

3

Page 59



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

!
 

T
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
’s

 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
v
e

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

to
ry

 b
u

d
g

e
ti
n

g
 (

P
B

) 
s
c
h

e
m

e
 ‘
Y

o
u

 D
e

c
id

e
!’
 w

a
s
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 r

e
fi
n

e
d

 d
u

ri
n
g

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 
F

a
ir

e
r 

lo
c
a

l 
v
o

ti
n

g
 r

u
le

s
 w

e
re

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 w

a
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

te
d

. 
Y

o
u

 D
e

c
id

e
! 

h
a

s
 n

o
w

 

a
llo

w
e

d
 l
o

c
a
l 
p

e
o

p
le

 t
o

 d
e

c
id

e
 d

ir
e

c
tl
y
 h

o
w

 £
4

.8
m

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

p
e

n
t 

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
1

,5
8

5
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

is
 

d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

O
u

r 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 P
B

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 a

s
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 b
y
 t

h
e

 G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 w
a

s
 a

ls
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 a

s
 a

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
e

x
e

m
p

la
r 

a
t 

th
e

 L
G

IU
 N

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
E

m
p

o
w

e
rm

e
n

t 
C

o
n

fe
re

n
c
e

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 
A

n
 e

v
a

lu
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 

s
h

o
w

s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 

a
g

a
in

s
t 

k
e

y
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
:

o
 

7
6

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

Y
o

u
 D

e
c
id

e
! 

s
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

s
 t

h
e

ir
 l
e
v
e

l 
o

f 
in

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 o
v
e

r 
lo

c
a

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
a

 1
4

%
 p

o
in

t 
in

c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 2

0
0

8
/9

;

o
 

7
5

%
 o

f 
p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
n

ts
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

Y
o

u
 D

e
c
id

e
! 

h
e

lp
e

d
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
ir

 a
re

a
, 

a
 1

4
%

 p
o

in
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

.

!
 

T
h

e
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h

a
t 

fe
e

lin
g

s
 o

n
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 a

re
 m

o
re

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 t

h
a

n
 l
a
s
t 

y
e

a
r 

–
 t

h
re

e
-q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 l
o
c
a

l 
a

re
a

 i
s
 a

 p
la

c
e

 w
h

e
re

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
p
e

o
p

le
 g

e
t 

o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g

e
th

e
r,

 a
 r

is
e

 o
f 
6

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
ts

 o
n

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

 O
th

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 s
u

rv
e

y
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
: 

  

o
 

7
2

%
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

k
e

e
p
s
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

fo
rm

e
d

, 
a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r;

 a
n

d
 

o
 

5
3

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 f

e
e

l 
in

v
o

lv
e

d
 i
n

 d
e

c
is

io
n

 m
a

k
in

g
, 

a
 4

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
. 

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 t

h
e

 n
e
w

 C
o

u
n

c
ill

o
r 

C
a

ll 
fo

r 
A

c
ti
o

n
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 i
n

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 
a

g
e

n
d

a
, 
w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 e
m

p
o

w
e

r 
lo

c
a

l 
c
o

u
n
c
ill

o
rs

 t
o

 r
e

s
p

o
n

d
 m

o
re

 e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 n
e

e
d

s
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

T
h
is

 w
o

rk
 h

a
s
 a

llo
w

e
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

to
 e

x
p

lo
re

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 h

o
w

 i
t 

c
o
u

ld
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 l
o

c
a
l 
d
e

m
o

c
ra

c
y
. 

A
 n

e
w

 p
e

ti
ti
o
n

s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 i
s
 

b
e

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 s
e

e
 t

h
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

-p
e

ti
ti
o

n
s
. 

  

4

Page 60



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 i
n

e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
o

s
te

r 
s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n
 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
1
0
2

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

p
 p

a
id

 5
%

 o
f 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 t
h

a
t 
a

re
 w

o
m

e
n

 
H

ig
h
e

r 
5

0
.4

7
5

1
.2

9
5

0
"

S
1

0
3

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
p
 p

a
id

 5
%

 o
f 

L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

ta
ff
 w

h
o
 a

re
 f
ro

m
 a

n
 

e
th

n
ic

 m
in

o
ri

ty
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
1

7
.1

1
6

.6
8

2
5

!

S
1

0
4

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
p
 p

a
id

 5
%

 o
f 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 s

ta
ff
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 
d
is

a
b
ili

ty
H

ig
h
e

r 
2

.1
1

.5
4

4
.7

"
S

2
0

4
L

A
A

N
I0

0
1

 
%

 o
f 

p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 b
e

li
e

v
e

 p
e

o
p

le
 f

ro
m

 d
if

fe
re

n
t 

b
a

c
k

g
ro

u
n

d
s

 g
e
t 

o
n

 w
e
ll

 
to

g
e
th

e
r 

in
 t

h
e
ir

 l
o

c
a
l 
a
re

a
 

H
ig

h
e

r
6

9
7

5
*

N
/A

!
S

2
0

5
L

A
A

N
I0

0
5

 
O

v
e
ra

ll
/g

e
n

e
ra

l 
s
a
ti

s
fa

c
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 l
o

c
a
l 
a
re

a
 

H
ig

h
e
r

7
6

8
4
*

N
/A

!
S

4
0

9
L

A
A

N
I3

5
B

u
il

d
in

g
 r

e
s

il
ie

n
c

e
 t

o
 v

io
le

n
t 

e
x
tr

e
m

is
m

 
H

ig
h

e
r

1
6

1
8

1
8

N
o

 d
a

ta
 

*T
h

is
 i

s
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

is
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 m
e

a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
la

c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
, 

c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 e

v
e

ry
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
A

s
 i

t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
d
u

c
te

d
 i

n
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
, 

d
a

ta
 i

n
 t

h
is

 t
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
. 

5

Page 61



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
O

n
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

W
o

rk
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
ly

 a
s

 O
n

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
  

 

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
E

n
s

u
ri

n
g

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
 a

c
ro

s
s

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 

!
R

e
c

ru
it

in
g

, 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
n

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

!
P

ro
v

id
in

g
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

 a
n

d
 j

o
in

e
d

 u
p

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 d
e

li
v

e
ry

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 a

llo
w

e
d

 i
t 

to
 r

e
s
p

o
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
c
o

n
te

x
t.

 T
h

e
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h
 i
s
 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 s
o

u
n

d
 u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
ri
s
k
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
fo

rm
e

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

le
d

 i
t 

to
 p

re
p
a

re
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 l
ik

e
ly

 r
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
s
 i
n
 p

u
b

lic
 s

e
c
to

r 
b
u

d
g

e
ts

, 
a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
a

lis
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 a

re
a

s
 a

n
d

 s
e

t 
a

 

0
%

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

T
a

x
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 f
o

r 
2

0
1

0
/1

1
. 

A
n

 a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
t 

o
u
t 

to
 m

e
e

t 
th

e
 f

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
c
h
a

lle
n

g
e

s
 e

x
p

e
c
te

d

o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

fe
w

 y
e

a
rs

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
 w

id
e
 r

a
n

g
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

d
e

liv
e

rs
 i
ts

 s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
it
 c

a
n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 i
ts

 

p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

a
n

d
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 w
a

y
s
. 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 a

 n
e
w

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 i
n

v
o

ic
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
a

y
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
 (

R
2

P
) 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 

im
p

ro
v
e

 s
p

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 o

f 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
tr

a
n

s
a
c
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

H
R

IP
) 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 r
e

fo
c
u

s
 H

R

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

to
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
a

v
in

g
s
. 

 

!
 

R
2

P
 a

lo
n

e
 w

ill
 s

a
v
e

 £
3

.2
 m

ill
io

n
 o

v
e

r 
5

 y
e

a
rs

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

m
o

u
n

te
d

 t
o

 a
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
£

1
.6

 m
ill

io
n

, 
d

ra
w

n
 f
ro

m
 a

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n

tr
a

c
t 

re
n

e
g

o
ti
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

b
u

ild
in

g
 c

le
a

n
in

g
, 
te

m
p

o
ra

ry
 h

o
m

e
c
a

re
 &

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
, 

a
n

d
 r

e
-t

e
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 f
o

r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 v

e
h

ic
le

 r
e

m
o

v
a

l,
 m

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 e

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t.
  

  

!
 

T
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
ts

 o
w

n
 T

o
ta

l 
P

la
c
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

T
o

ta
l 
P

la
c
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
rs

 h
o

w
 a

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

-b
a

s
e

d
 ‘
w

h
o

le
 a

re
a

’ 
a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 

d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 l
o
c
a

l 
p

ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
 c

a
n

 l
e

a
d

 t
o

 m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t 
u

s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 b
e

tt
e

r 
o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 

It
 s

e
e

k
s
 t

o
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 a
n

d
 a

v
o

id
 o

v
e

rl
a

p
 a

n
d

 

d
u

p
lic

a
ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 –

 d
e

liv
e

ri
n

g
 a

 s
te

p
 c

h
a

n
g
e

 i
n

 b
o

th
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

o
u

tc
o

m
e

s
 a

n
d

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 a

t 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l.
 D

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

, 

in
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 b
u

ild
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 o
n

 e
x
is

ti
n

g
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
, 

w
e

 b
e

g
a

n
 t

o
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

p
ilo

t 
p

ro
je

c
ts

 w
h

ic
h

 c
o

v
e

r 
a

re
a

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 c

h
ild

 

p
o

v
e

rt
y
, 

v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
, 

a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 c

it
iz

e
n
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t.
  

!
 

T
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 p

u
rs

u
e

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 i
ts

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
s
s
e

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
in

g

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 b

u
ild

in
g

s
 a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
n

c
o

m
e

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o

n
. 

 

!
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 e
n

s
u

re
d

 t
h

a
t 

9
0

%
 o

f 
c
u

s
to

m
e

rs
 w

h
o

 c
a

ll 
o

u
r 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

c
e

n
tr

e
 h

a
v
e

 t
h

e
ir

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 r

e
s
o

lv
e

d
 w

h
e

n
 t

h
e

y
 f

ir
s
t 

c
o

n
ta

c
t 

u
s
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e

r,

te
e

th
in

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 t

ra
n

s
it
io

n
 t

o
 a

 n
e

w
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 h

a
v
e

, 
h

o
w

e
v
e

r,
 m

e
a

n
t 

th
a

t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 f
a

ile
d

 t
o

 m
e

e
t 

th
is

 y
e

a
r’

s

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o

r 
re

s
p

o
n

d
in

g
 t
o

 a
ll 

c
a

lls
 t

o
 t
h

e
 c

o
n

ta
c
t 
c
e

n
tr

e
, 

b
u

t 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
re

n
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a

r 
is

 a
lr

e
a

d
y
 s

h
o

w
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

  

6

Page 62



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
g

e
n

c
y
 s

ta
ff

 i
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
s
. 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 w

e
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 a

 4
3

%
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 s
a
v
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

m
o

n
e

y
 a

n
d

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 m
o

s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
t 

u
s
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
s
ta

ff
 r

e
s
o
u

rc
e

s
. 

!
 

5
0

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 s

a
id

 i
n

 o
u

r 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 v
a

lu
e

 f
o

r 
m

o
n

e
y
, 

a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
7

 p
e

rc
e
n

ta
g

e
 

p
o

in
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 6

7
%

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
a

y
 t

h
e

y
 a

re
 s

a
ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

ru
n

s
 t

h
in

g
s
 –

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t 
8

 

p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
t 

in
c
re

a
s
e

 f
ro

m
 l
a

s
t 
y
e

a
r.

  W
o

rk
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c

ti
v
e

ly
 a

s
 O

n
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il

  

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
1

0
1

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
U

n
d

is
p

u
te

d
 I
n

v
o

ic
e
s
 P

a
id

 o
n

 T
im

e
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
8

8
.3

8
8

9
.0

2
9

8
"

S
1
0
5

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 
to

 s
ic

k
n

e
s
s
 a

b
s
e

n
c
e

 p
e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
. 

L
o

w
e

r
8

.9
5

8
.5

4
7

"

S
1

0
6

R
e
s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
im

e
 t
o

 m
e

m
b

e
rs

 e
n

q
u

ir
ie

s
 -

 %
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

in
 1

0
 w

o
rk

in
g

 d
a

y
s
 –

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
7

6
.3

1
8

6
.7

6
8

5
!

S
1

0
7

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 i
n

 t
im

e
  

H
ig

h
e

r 
8

2
9

2
8

5
!

S
1

0
8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g
re

e
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n

c
il 

"p
ro

v
id

e
s
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e

y
 

fo
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
/p

a
y
" 

H
ig

h
e

r 
4

3
5

0
5

0
!

S
1
0
9

P
e
rc

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
lls

 t
o
 H

o
t 
L
in

e
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
9

2
.9

9
0

.2
9

5
N

o
 d

a
ta

 

S
1

1
0

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 w

a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
 f
o

r 
c
a
lls

 t
o

 H
o

t 
L

in
e
s
 t
o

 b
e

 a
n
s
w

e
re

d
 

L
o

w
e

r
3

3
4

3
3

0
N

o
 d

a
ta

S
1

1
1

F
ir
s
t 
c
o

n
ta

c
t 
re

s
o

lu
ti
o

n
 o

f 
c
a

lls
 t
o

 H
o

t 
L

in
e

s
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
9

0
9

0
9

0
N

o
 d

a
ta

S
1

1
2

R
e
d
u

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff
 

L
o

w
e

r
7

9
6

4
5

4
4

7
8

N
o
 d

a
ta

7

Page 63



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

tr
o

n
g

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

  

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
In

c
re

a
s

in
g

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

ra
ll

 s
u

p
p

ly
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 f

o
r 

lo
c

a
l 

p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
, 

fa
m

il
y
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 

!
P

ro
v

id
in

g
 d

e
c

e
n

t 
h

o
m

e
s

 i
n

 w
e

ll
 d

e
s

ig
n

e
d

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 a

n
d

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 

!
P

la
n

n
in

g
 n

e
w

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 w
it

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 l

ik
e

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

h
e

a
lt

h
c

a
re

 f
a

c
il

it
ie

s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 

p
a

rk
s

!
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 q
u

a
li

ty
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 p

ro
v

id
e

d
 t

o
 t

e
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 l
e

a
s

e
h

o
ld

e
rs

 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

T
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
o
u

r 
L

o
c
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

F
ra

m
e

w
o

rk
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

s
te

p
. 

It
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

n
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
 s

p
a

ti
a

l 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 u
n

d
e

rp
in

 f
u

tu
re

 e
ff

o
rt

s
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
tr

o
n
g

 n
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s
. 

 

!
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
ls

o
 s

a
w

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 l
a

u
n

c
h

 o
f 
th

e
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
, 

w
h

ic
h

 s
e

ts
 o

u
t 

o
u

r 
lo

n
g

-t
e

rm
 a

im
s
 a

n
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
e

s
 f
o

r 
h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 

H
a

m
le

ts
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
m

a
in

s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 H

o
m

e
s
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 a
 2

-s
ta

r 
ra

ti
n

g
 w

h
e

n
 i
n

s
p

e
c
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
u

d
it

C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
 t

o
 u

n
lo

c
k
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

d
e

c
e

n
t 
h

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

!
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
is

s
e

d
 o

u
r 

D
e

c
e

n
t 

H
o

m
e

s
 t

a
rg

e
t.

 H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
th

is
 f

ig
u

re
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 a
s
 t

h
e

 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 

n
o

t 
c
a

lc
u
la

te
d

 u
n

ti
l 
la

te
r 

th
is

 y
e

a
r,

 a
ft

e
r 

fu
ll 

v
e

ri
fi
c
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d

 t
o

 t
a

k
e

 a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 
 

!
 

W
e

 a
ls

o
 p

u
b
lis

h
e

d
 o

u
r 

O
v
e

rc
ro

w
d

in
g

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
r 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
im

s
 a

n
d

 m
e

a
s
u

re
s
 f

o
r 

ta
c
k
lin

g
 o

v
e

rc
ro

w
d

in
g

. 
A

 n
e

w
 a

llo
c
a

ti
o

n
s
 p

o
lic

y
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 m
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 l
e

tt
in

g
s
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 m

o
re

 t
ra

n
s
p

a
re

n
t 
a

n
d

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 o

v
e

rc
ro

w
d

in
g

. 
T

h
e

 

a
c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 o

f 
o

v
e

r 
7

0
 f

la
ts

 w
ill

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u

te
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 t

h
is

 a
im

. 
 

!
 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
h

o
m

e
le

s
s
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 w

o
rk

 h
a

s
 s

e
e

n
 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 i
n

 t
e

m
p

o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti
o

n
 d

ro
p
 b

y
 o

v
e

r 
1

,0
0

0
 t

o
 l
e

s
s
 t

h
a

n

2
,0

0
0

.

!
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
 t

h
a

t 
d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 1

,9
0

0
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s
 w

e
re

 d
e

liv
e

re
d

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
, 

e
x
c
e

e
d

in
g

 o
u

r 
ta

rg
e

t 

d
e

s
p

it
e

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 d
o

w
n

tu
rn

. 

!
 

P
ro

v
is

io
n

a
l 
fi
g

u
re

s
 f

o
r 

2
0
0

9
/1

0
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
h

o
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 f
e

ll 
s
h

o
rt

 o
f 
o

u
r 

a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 t

a
rg

e
t,

 h
o
w

e
v
e

r 
w

e
 e

x
p

e
c
t 

th
a

t,
 g

iv
e

n
 t

h
e

 l
a

rg
e

 n
u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
c
h

e
m

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 p

ro
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
n

g
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
fi
n

a
l 
c
h

e
c
k
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
s
e

 f
ig

u
re

s
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o

 i
n

d
ic

a
te

 

th
a

t 
th

e
 t

a
rg

e
t 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 i
n

 a
 c

o
n

te
x
t 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

tl
y
 o

n
e

 o
f 

th
e

 h
ig

h
e

s
t 
n

e
t 

d
e

liv
e

re
rs

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

n
d

 w
e

 k
n

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

o
v
e

r 
4

0
0

0
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 a

re
 u

n
d

e
r 

c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 a
re

 d
u

e
 f

o
r 

c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

v
e

r 

th
e

 c
o

m
in

g
 y

e
a

r.
 

8

Page 64



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

!
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 N

H
S

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 h
a

s
 i
n

v
e

s
te

d
 £

1
2

 m
ill

io
n

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
r 

in
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 n
e

w
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll 

b
e

in
g

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 (

s
u
c
h

 a
s
 

th
e

 B
a

rk
a

n
ti
n

e
 o

n
 t

h
e

 I
s
le

 o
f 

D
o

g
s
 w

h
ic

h
 o

p
e

n
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

) 
to

 d
e

liv
e

r 
in

te
g

ra
te

d
 a

n
d

 l
o
c
a

lis
e

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 S

t 
A

n
d

re
w

s
 C

e
n

tr
e

 i
s
 o

n
 

s
c
h

e
d

u
le

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 o

p
e

n
in

g
 t

h
is

 y
e

a
r.

 

!
 

M
a

jo
r 

e
s
ta

te
 r

e
n

e
w

a
l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
: 

 

o
 

O
c
e

a
n

 E
s
ta

te
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n

 a
n

d
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n

t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 a

n
d

 1
0
0

+
 h

o
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

 d
e

c
e

n
t.

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

c
o

n
s
o

rt
ia

 w
e

re
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0
9

/1
0

 a
n

d
 H

C
A

 g
a

p
 f

u
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
£

4
0

m
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 a

g
re

e
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t;

 

o
 

B
la

c
k
w

a
ll 

R
e

a
c
h

 i
s
 a

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

a
lly

 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

m
a

jo
r 

re
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t,

 c
ru

c
ia

l 
to

 t
h

e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
, 

a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
. 

D
u

e
 t

o
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 c
o

n
d

it
io

n
s
, 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

p
a

rt
n

e
r 

w
h

o
 o

w
n

e
d

 h
a

lf
 t

h
e

 B
la

c
k
w

a
ll 

R
e

a
c
h

 s
it
e

 r
e

q
u

e
s
te

d
 

a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 g
u

a
ra

n
te

e
s
 f

ro
m

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 i
n

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 p

ro
je

c
t.

 £
1

3
 m

ill
io

n
 o

f 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
c
a

p
it
a
l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s

w
e

re
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

o
v
e

r 
a

 t
h

re
e

 y
e

a
r 

p
e

ri
o

d
 t

o
 f

u
n

d
 t

h
e

 n
e

c
e
s
s
a

ry
 w

o
rk

. 
A

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 i
n

 m
o

s
t 

c
ir

c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
, 

fo
r 

lo
c
a

l 

a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s
, 

th
is

 w
o

u
ld

 h
a
v
e

 m
e

a
n

t 
th

e
 a

b
a

n
d

o
n

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 p
ro

je
c
t,

 o
u

r 
fi
rm

 g
ra

s
p

 o
f 

ri
s
k
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 o
u

r 
fi
n

a
n

c
ia

l 
p
o

s
it
io

n

e
n

a
b

le
d

 u
s
 t
o

 s
a

v
e

 t
h

is
 m

a
jo

r 
re

g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
t.

  

!
 

B
y
 D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

, 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

d
 s

ig
n

e
d

 2
0

 l
e

g
a

l 
a

g
re

e
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 s
e
c
u

ri
n

g
 £

1
7

9
 m

ill
io

n
 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
fo

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n

d
 l
o

c
a

l 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

, 
e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
, 

h
e
a

lt
h

, 
le

is
u

re
, 
e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
a

n
d

 a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 i
n

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 

9

Page 65



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

P
ro

v
id

e
 A

ff
o

rd
a

b
le

 H
o

u
s

in
g

 a
n

d
 S

tr
o

n
g

 N
e

ig
h

b
o

u
rh

o
o

d
s

 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
2

0
1

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
s
 w

h
o

 c
o
n

s
id

e
re

d
 t
h

e
m

s
e

lv
e

s
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
, 
w

h
o

 
a

p
p

ro
a
c
h

e
d

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
(s

),
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

w
h
o
m

 
h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
. 

H
ig

h
e

r 
8

.8
7

9
8

!

S
2

0
3

L
A

A
L

o
c
a

l
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 r

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

te
n

a
n

te
d

 n
o

n
-d

e
c
e

n
t 

h
o

m
e

s
 i
n

 h
o

m
e

s
 

tr
a

n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 t

o
 R

S
L

s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 C

h
o

ic
e

 
H

ig
h

e
r

1
0

.6
2

7
.3

2
5

!
S

2
0

9
L

A
A

N
I1

5
8

 
%

 n
o

n
-d

e
c

e
n

t 
c

o
u

n
c

il
 h

o
m

e
s

 (
o

ri
g

in
a

l)
 

L
o

w
e
r 

5
7

.6
1

5
5

.9
5

4
9

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
2

0
7

L
A

A
N

I1
5
4

 
N

e
t 

a
d

d
it

io
n

a
l 
h

o
m

e
s

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 
H

ig
h

e
r

2
8

3
9

2
3

9
8

2
9

9
9

N
o

 d
a

ta
 

S
2

0
8

L
A

A
N

I1
5
5

 
N

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
 h

o
m

e
s

 d
e

li
v
e

re
d

 (
g

ro
s
s

) 
H

ig
h

e
r

1
0

6
4

1
9

3
1

1
2

8
7

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
2

2
3

N
u

m
b
e

r 
o

f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
 f
o

r 
fa

m
ily

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 (

g
ro

s
s
 

fi
g
u
re

s
 o

n
ly

) 
H

ig
h
e

r 
3

9
3

6
1

9
4

6
7

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
2
2
4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 t
o
 A

S
B

 
H

ig
h
e
r

4
7
.6

6
7

6
0

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
2

2
5

A
v
e

ra
g

e
 t
im

e
 t
o

 r
e

-l
e

t 
c
o
u

n
c
il 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 (

d
a

y
s
) 

L
o

w
e

r
3

1
.5

4
2

7
.2

3
2

8
!

S
2

2
6

T
o

ta
l 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 H

o
m

e
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 c
h
a

rg
e

 d
e

b
t 
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

t 
y
e

a
r 

e
n
d

 
(£

m
ill

io
n
)

L
o

w
e

r
1

5
.3

1
2

.6
1

5
N

o
 d

a
ta

S
2

2
7

R
e
n
t 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

s
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

n
t 
d
u
e
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
9

9
.6

6
9

9
.9

7
1

0
0

!

1
0

Page 66



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

n
e

c
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

u
b

li
c

 t
ra

n
s

p
o

rt
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

li
n

g
 m

o
re

 r
e

s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 w

a
lk

 a
n

d
 c

y
c

le
 s

a
fe

ly
 

!
B

ri
n

g
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 f

o
s

te
r 

m
u

tu
a

l 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
, 

a
 c

o
ll

e
c

ti
v

e
 s

e
n

s
e

 o
f 

w
e

ll
b

e
in

g
 &

 a
v

o
id

 p
e

o
p

le
 

b
e

in
g

 i
s

o
la

te
d

 

!
E

n
s

u
ri

n
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 h

a
v

e
 g

o
o

d
 a

c
c

e
s

s
 t

o
 a

 f
u

ll
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

fa
c

il
it

ie
s

 -
 i

n
c

lu
d

in
g

 h
e

a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 

s
c

h
o

o
ls

 a
n

d
 

le
is

u
re

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
S

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 a
s
 m

e
a
s
u

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
 (

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 a
g

re
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 d

o
in

g
 a

 g
o

o
d
 j
o

b
) 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 i
n
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 a

n
d

 i
s
 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
. 

V
ie

w
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 i
m

a
g

e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 s
h

o
w

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

!
 

7
2

%
 a

g
re

e
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 m

a
k
in

g
 t

h
e

 a
re

a
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
p

la
c
e
 t

o
 l
iv

e
, 

a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

fr
o

m
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r 

a
n

d
 f

e
w

e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
 f

e
e

l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

is
 n

o
t 

d
o

in
g

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 f
o

r 
th

e
m

. 

!
 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
ri

s
e

 i
n

 r
a

ti
n

g
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s
: 

 

o
 

p
a

rk
s
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 (

+
8

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
ts

);
  

o
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

fa
m

ili
e

s
 a

n
d

 c
h

ild
re

n
 (

+
7

);
  

o
 

p
o

lic
in

g
 (

+
6

);
  

o
 

s
o

c
ia

l 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt
s
 (

+
4

);
  

o
 

a
d

u
lt
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 (

+
4

);
 a

n
d

  

o
 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e

fi
t 

(+
4

).
  

!
 

U
s
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 I
d
e

a
 S

to
re

s
 a

ls
o

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
o

 8
1

%
 (

a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
) 

a
n

d
 b

o
o

k
 l
o

a
n

s
 w

e
n

t 
u

p
, 

b
u

c
k
in

g
 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
tr

e
n

d
. 

!
 

A
 h

ig
h

ly
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
B

a
is

h
a

k
h

i 
M

e
la

 w
e

n
t 

a
h

e
a

d
 i
n

 B
ri

c
k
 L

a
n
e

 w
it
h

 a
n

 a
tt

e
n

d
a

n
c
e

 o
f 
9

5
,0

0
0

. 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

a
d

e
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 w
it
h

 

th
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
-o

w
n

e
d

 b
o

a
rd

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r 
fu

tu
re

 e
v
e

n
ts

. 
  

!
 

S
in

c
e

 i
ts

 c
o
n

c
e

p
ti
o

n
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

, 
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t 
2

0
1

2
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 i
n

to
 a

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n

 w
h

ic
h

 £
9

.4
 m

ill
io

n
 o

f 
fu

n
d

in
g

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
o

m
m

it
te

d
 b

y
 L

D
A

, 
C

L
G

, 
E

n
g

lis
h

 H
e
ri

ta
g

e
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
rs

. 
T

h
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f

o
c
u

s
e

s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 A
1

1
 a

rt
e

ri
a

l 
c
o

rr
id

o
r 

(W
h

it
e

c
h

a
p

e
l 
H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t,
 

W
h

it
e

c
h

a
p

e
l 
R

o
a

d
, 

M
ile

 E
n

d
 R

o
a

d
 a

n
d

 B
o

w
 R

o
a

d
) 

- 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 r

o
u

te
 o

f 
th

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 a
n

d
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 m
a

ra
th

o
n

 e
v
e

n
ts

. 
 

!
 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

b
e

g
a

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
it
s
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

le
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 

w
h

ic
h

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

s
u

s
ta

in
a

b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 a
m

o
n

g
s
t 

s
c
h
o

o
ls

, 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
. 

1
1

Page 67



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

!
 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 t

o
 h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
: 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 i
s
 n

o
w

 t
h
e

 m
o

s
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
t 

in
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 f
o

r 
a

c
c
e

s
s
, 

w
it
h

a
lm

o
s
t 

a
 t

h
ir
d

 o
f 

G
P

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 n

o
w

 o
ff

e
ri

n
g

 a
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
. 

M
o

re
 t

h
a

n
 7

 o
u

t 
o

f 
1

0
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e

 i
t 

e
a

s
ie

r 
fo

r 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 t
o

 s
e

e
 a

 d
o

c
to

r,
 a

c
c
o

rd
in

g
 t

o
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 g

o
v
e

rn
m

e
n

t’
s
 I

P
S

O
S

-M
o

ri
 p

o
ll.

 A
 t

h
ir

d
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 t

h
e

ir
 4

8
-h

o
u

r 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 f

ig
u

re
s
 b

y
 m

o
re

 t
h

a
n

 1
0

%
. 

 

!
 

O
u

r 
tr

a
c
k
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

n
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
s
 a

ls
o

 r
e

c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 b

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

. 
P

a
ti
e

n
t 

s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 4
8

 h
o

u
r 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

 

in
c
re

a
s
e

, 
s
h
o

w
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
ig

g
e

s
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 p
a

s
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

 t
o

 r
e

a
c
h

 8
2

%
. 

R
e

s
u

lt
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

s
h

o
w

 t
h

a
t 

o
n

ly
 1

5
%

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 s
a

id
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 3

5
%

 i
n

 1
9

9
9

. 
6

5
%

 o
f 

lo
c
a

l 
p
e

o
p

le
 

s
a

y
 t

h
a

t 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 g

o
o

d
 t

o
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

t,
 u

p
 f

ro
m

 5
9

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

/0
8

. 
N

H
S

 L
o

n
d

o
n

’s
 r

e
c
e

n
t 
s
u

rv
e

y
 (

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

) 
a

b
o

u
t 

p
u

b
lic

p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

H
S

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 f

e
lt
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
N

H
S

 w
a

s
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 w

a
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 

a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 (

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 6
5

%
, 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 5

8
%

).
 

!
 

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 f
ig

u
re

s
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 f
e

w
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
e

re
 k

ill
e

d
 o

r 
s
e

ri
o

u
s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 i
n

 r
o
a

d
 t

ra
ff

ic
 a

c
c
id

e
n

ts
. 

A
n

 i
n

-d
e

p
th

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

f 
ro

a
d

 a
c
c
id

e
n

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 l
e

d
 t
o

 t
h

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 p

ro
a

c
ti
v
e

 R
o

a
d

 S
a

fe
ty

 A
c
ti
o

n
 P

la
n

, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 t
a

rg
e

t 
fu

rt
h

e
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 s
a

fe
ty

 f
o

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

5
 

y
e

a
rs

.

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
 U

n
it
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 C

u
s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
x
c
e

lle
n

c
e

 A
w

a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

fo
u

r 
o

f 
th

e
ir

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 p
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
r 

tr
a

n
s
p

o
rt

, 

v
e

h
ic

le
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

, 
fl
e

e
t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 r

e
fu

s
e

 c
o

lle
c
ti
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
. 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

n
e
c
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
2
0
2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 p

u
b
lic

 l
ib

ra
ry

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 p
o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
9

2
8

4
.7

6
 

9
3

9
6

.5
2

 
9

3
6

1
.8

!

S
2
1
9

%
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th

e
y
 c

a
n
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n

s
 i
n
 t
h

e
ir
 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
4

6
5

3
*

N
/A

!

S
2

2
1

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
o

 a
g

re
e

 t
h

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

is
 d

o
in

g
 a

 g
o

o
d

 j
o

b
: 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

 a
v
e
ra

g
e

 
H

ig
h
e

r 
6

9
7

2
7

2
!

S
2

0
6

L
A

A
N

I4
7

P
e
o

p
le

 k
il
le

d
 o

r 
s
e
ri

o
u

s
ly

 i
n

ju
re

d
 i
n

 r
o

a
d

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
c
c
id

e
n

ts
 (

%
 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 p
re

v
io

u
s

 y
e

a
r)

  
H

ig
h

e
r

-9
.1

4
.5

3
.3

!
*T

h
is

 i
s
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

is
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 m
e

a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
la

c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
, 

c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 e

v
e

ry
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
A

s
 i

t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
d
u

c
te

d
 i

n
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
, 

d
a

ta
 i

n
 t

h
is

 t
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
. 

1
2

Page 68



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s

 a
n

d
 a

 c
le

a
n

e
r,

 s
a

fe
r 

p
u

b
li

c
 r

e
a

lm
  

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
P

ro
v

id
in

g
 f

ir
s

t-
c

la
s

s
 a

n
d

 w
e

ll
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 c
e

n
tr

e
s

 w
h

e
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 c

o
m

e
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

fo
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s

s
, 

s
h

o
p

p
in

g
, 

le
is

u
re

 

a
n

d
 r

e
c

re
a

ti
o

n
 

!
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

p
e

n
 s

p
a

c
e

s
 

!
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

tr
e

e
t 

li
g

h
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c

in
g

 g
ra

ff
it

i 
a

n
d

 l
it

te
r 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
n

 a
c
c
e

le
ra

te
d

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
-r

a
is

in
g

, 
lo

c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 h
e

lp
e

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
c
h
ie

v
e

 a

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
ri

s
e

 i
n

 r
e

c
y
c
lin

g
 f

ro
m

 1
2

.8
9

%
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

0
7

/0
8

 t
o

 2
6

.5
1
%

 a
t 

th
e

 e
n
d

 o
f 

M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

. 
W

e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 p

ro
je

c
ti
n

g
 a

 m
o

n
th

ly
 

re
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

 o
f 

a
ro

u
n

d
 3

0
%

. 
 

!
 

In
 o

u
r 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
, 

p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 h

a
s
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d

 i
ts

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 r

a
ti
n

g
s
, 

w
it
h

 6
5

%
 o

f 
re

s
p
o

n
d

e
n

ts
 r

a
ti
n

g
 i
t 

a
s
 g

o
o
d

 o
r 

e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
in

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 (
u

p
 f

ro
m

 4
0

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
3

/0
4

).
  

!
 

T
o

 h
e

lp
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e

 f
u

rt
h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
 r

e
a

lm
 i
n

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 t
h

e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 a

n
d

 

th
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 o

f 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

in
g

 a
 P

u
b

lic
 R

e
a

lm
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
is

 m
o

v
in

g
 k

e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
 r

a
p

id
ly

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 t

h
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
h

a
re

d
 t

a
rg

e
ts

 

b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 T

id
y
 B

ri
ta

in
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
. 

 

!
 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 a
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 p
la

y
 a

re
a

s
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 s
e

c
u

re
d

 £
4

.5
 m

ill
io

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 H

e
ri

ta
g

e
 L

o
tt

e
ry

 

F
u

n
d

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 m

a
jo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 V
ic

to
ri

a
 P

a
rk

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

th
re

e
 y

e
a

rs
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

d
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 e

x
te

rn
a

l 
re

c
o

g
n
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

it
s
 e

ff
o

rt
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ix
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 p

a
rk

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 G

re
e

n
 F

la
g

 s
ta

tu
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 r

e
ta

in
in

g
 i
ts

 S
ilv

e
r 

G
ilt

 a
w

a
rd

 i
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

9
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 i
n

 

B
lo

o
m

 c
o

m
p

e
ti
ti
o

n
. 

 

!
 

A
s
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

a
re

a
s
, 

p
u

b
lic

 p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 
T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
ru

b
b

is
h

 a
n

d
 l
it
te

r 
ly

in
g

 a
ro

u
n

d
 i
s
 a

 v
e

ry
 b

ig
 p

ro
b

le
m

 h
a

s
 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
o

 4
3

%
 (

fr
o

m
 5

1
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

).
 T

h
e

 p
e

rc
e

p
ti
o

n
 t

h
a

t 
v
a

n
d

a
lis

m
, 

g
ra

ff
it
i 
a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

d
a

m
a

g
e

 i
s
 a

 v
e

ry
 b

ig
 p

ro
b

le
m

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

d
 t
o

 4
2

%
 (

fr
o

m
 4

5
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

, 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 f

ro
m

 5
8

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
6

/0
7

).
 T

h
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
tr

e
e

t 
c
le

a
n

in
g

 h
a
s
 

in
c
re

a
s
e

d
 t

o
 6

2
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 (
fr

o
m

 5
9

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

),
 m

a
in

ta
in

in
g

 o
u

r 
p

o
s
it
io

n
 a

b
o

v
e

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
. 

 S
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 o
u

r 
p

a
rk

s
,

p
la

y
g

ro
u

n
d

s
 a

n
d

 o
p

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 s
h

o
w

n
 a

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t,

 s
c
o

ri
n

g
 6

1
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
9
/1

0
 (

u
p

 8
%

 f
ro

m
 5

3
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

).
 

!
D

e
s
p

it
e

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 p

u
b

lic
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
s
, 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

o
u
r 

4
 k

e
y
 s

tr
e

e
t 

c
le

a
n

lin
e
s
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 m

ix
e

d
: 

 

o
 

O
u

r 
c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 t
a

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 l
it
te

r 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
re

a
c
h

e
d

 t
h

is
 y

e
a

r.
 A

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
lit

te
r 

p
ic

k
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 d
e

p
lo

y
e

d
 a

n
d

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

w
o

rk
in

g
 o

n
 b

o
th

 h
ig

h
w

a
y
s
 a

n
d

 n
o

n
 h

ig
h

w
a

y
 s

it
e

s
; 

 

1
3

Page 69



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

o
 

W
e

 e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 o
u

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
fo

r 
re

d
u

c
in

g
 d

e
tr

it
u

s
 (

g
e

n
e

ra
l 
w

a
s
te

).
 B

e
n

c
h

m
a

rk
in

g
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 t

h
a

t 
in

 2
0

0
9
/1

0
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 w

a
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 t

o
p

q
u

a
rt

ile
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
p

it
a

l 
s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 g

ro
u
p

 o
f 

1
9

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
. 

T
h

e
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 r

e
s
u

lt
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
ts

 a
 s

e
c
o

n
d

 s
u
c
c
e

s
s
iv

e
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t

in
 c

le
a

n
s
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
v
e

r 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

; 

o
 

In
 r

e
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 t

h
a

t 
g

ra
ff

it
i 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
n
 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

w
o

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
g

ra
ff

it
i/
fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n

g
 t

e
a
m

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e
d

 a
n

d
 a

 

d
e

d
ic

a
te

d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

p
p

o
in

te
d

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 M

e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n

 P
o

lic
e

 a
n
d

 B
ri

ti
s
h

 T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 P
o

lic
e

 g
ra

ff
it
i 
u

n
it
s
, 

th
e

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 R
S

L
s
. 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 P

a
y
b

a
c
k
 p

e
rs

o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e

d
 t
o

 s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t 
re

m
o

v
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 i
n

 

p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

ia
l/
w

a
re

h
o

u
s
e

 l
a

n
d

-u
s
e

 c
la

s
s
e

s
; 

a
n

d
 

o
 

D
e

s
p

it
e

 r
e

n
e

w
e

d
 e

ff
o

rt
s
 t

o
 t

a
c
k
le

 t
h
e

 g
ro

w
in

g
 p

ro
b

le
m

 o
f 

fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n

g
, 

th
e

 l
e

v
e

ls
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
d

u
c
in

g
. 
A

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
“b

lit
z
” 

o
n

 f
ly

-

p
o

s
ti
n

g
 w

a
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

d
 l
a

te
 i
n

 2
0

0
9
/1

0
. 

!
 

A
 L

o
c
a

lis
a

ti
o

n
 B

o
a

rd
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

h
e

 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 P
a

rt
n
e

rs
h

ip
. 

T
h

e
 B

o
a

rd
 

w
ill

 d
ri

v
e

 c
h
a

n
g

e
s
 t

o
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 d
e

liv
e

ry
 t

h
a

t 
re

s
u

lt
 i
n

 m
o

re
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

t,
 l
o

c
a

lly
 r

e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

lly
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
. 

T
h

e
 P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 h

a
s
 

re
c
e

n
tl
y
 b

e
e

n
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 a

s
 a

 N
e

ig
h

b
o
u

rh
o

o
d

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

p
a

th
fi
n

d
e

r,
 t

h
e

 o
n

ly
 o

n
e

 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

, 
to

 e
x
p

lo
re

 n
e

w
 w

a
y
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 i
n

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

w
it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o
m

m
u

n
it
ie

s
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 j
o

in
t 

re
s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o

r 
im

p
ro

v
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a
s
. 

 

1
4

Page 70



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s

 a
n

d
 a

 c
le

a
n

e
r,

 s
a
fe

r 
p

u
b

li
c

 r
e

a
lm

 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
2

1
1

L
A

A
N

I1
9
2

 
P

e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
h

o
u

s
e

h
o

ld
 w

a
s

te
 s

e
n

t 
fo

r 
re

u
s
e

, 
re

c
y
c

li
n

g
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
p

o
s
ti

n
g

 
H

ig
h

e
r

1
9

.2
6

2
6

.5
1

2
6

!
S

2
1

2
L

A
A

N
I1

9
5

a

Im
p

ro
v
e
d

 s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
c
le

a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 -

 l
it

te
r 

L
o

w
e
r 

1
1

1
1

1
0

!

S
2

1
3

L
A

A
N

I1
9
5

b

Im
p

ro
v
e
d

 s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
c
le

a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 -

 d
e
tr

it
u

s
 

L
o

w
e
r 

1
2

1
0

1
1

!

S
2

1
4

L
A

A
N

I1
9
5

c

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 s

tr
e

e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
ta

l 
c

le
a

n
li

n
e

s
s

 -
 g

ra
ff

it
i 

L
o

w
e
r 

1
6

2
0

7
"

S
2

1
5

L
A

A
N

I1
9
5

d

Im
p

ro
v
e
d

 s
tr

e
e
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
c
le

a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 -

 f
ly

-p
o

s
ti

n
g

 
L

o
w

e
r 

5
8

2
"

S
2

1
6

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 w
h

o
 t
h

in
k
 t
h

a
t 
s
tr

e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 i
s
 g

o
o
d
, 
v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
5

9
6

2
6

1
!

S
2
1
7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 a
s
k
e
d
 w

h
o
 t
h

in
k
 t
h

a
t 
p

a
rk

s
, 
p

la
y
g

ro
u

n
d

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e

n
 

s
p
a
c
e
s
 a

re
 g

o
o
d
, 
v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

H
ig

h
e

r 
5

3
6

1
5

8
!

S
2

1
8

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o
n

s
 o

f 
a
n

ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r:

 r
e
d
u

c
e
d
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
 w

h
o

 v
ie

w
 r

u
b

b
is

h
 a

n
d

 l
it
te

r 
ly

in
g

 a
ro

u
n

d
 a

s
 "

a
 v

e
ry

 b
ig

 p
ro

b
le

m
" 

L
o

w
e

r
1

6
1

6
1

5
!

S
2

2
0

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
p

e
o

p
le

 a
s
k
e
d

 w
h

o
 t
h

in
k
 t
h

a
t 
le

is
u
re

 a
n
d

 s
p

o
rt

s
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e

s
 a

re
 

g
o
o
d
, 
v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

H
ig

h
e

r 
4

5
4

7
4

6
!

1
5

Page 71



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
G

re
a

t 
P

la
c

e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

Im
p

ro
v

e
 t

h
e

 e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

a
c

k
le

 c
li

m
a

te
 c

h
a

n
g

e

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
R

e
d

u
c

in
g

 e
n

e
rg

y
 u

s
e

 a
n

d
 u

s
in

g
 m

o
re

 r
e

n
e

w
a
b

le
 e

n
e

rg
y
 s

o
u

rc
e

s
 

!
F

o
c

u
s

in
g

 o
n

 r
e

u
s

in
g

 w
h

e
re

v
e

r 
p

o
s

s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
y
c

li
n

g
 m

o
re

 

!
A

d
a

p
ti

n
g

 o
u

r 
b

u
il

t 
e

n
v

ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
to

 c
o

p
e

 w
it

h
 t

h
e

 c
h

a
n

g
in

g
 c

li
m

a
te

 a
n

d
 w

e
a

th
e

r 
p

a
tt

e
rn

s
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 C

a
rb

o
n

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n
 w

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 b

y
 C

a
b

in
e

t 
in

 A
p
ri

l 
2

0
0

9
, 

c
o
m

m
it
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

to
 6

0
%

 C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n

b
y
 2

0
2

0
. 

A
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 b
o
ro

u
g

h
-w

id
e

 c
a

rb
o

n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 w

a
s
 f

o
rm

u
la

te
d

 a
n

d
 a

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

-w
id

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a

b
ili

ty
 G

ro
u

p
 w

a
s
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 o
th

e
r 

p
u

b
lic

 a
n

d
 p

ri
v
a

te
 s

e
c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 o
u

r 
d

ri
v
e

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 b
o

ro
u
g

h
-w

id
e

 c
a

rb
o

n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
. 

 

!
 

D
a

ta
 r

e
le

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

2
0

0
7

 p
e

r 
c
a
p

it
a

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 (

to
ta

l 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 d

iv
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 p
o

p
u

la
ti
o

n
) 

fo
r 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a

r.
 T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n

t 
c
h

a
n
g

e
 i
n

 d
o

m
e

s
ti
c
 o

r 
ro

a
d

 t
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

 e
m

is
s
io

n
s
, 
b

u
t 
a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t

d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

d
u

s
tr

y
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
s
e
c
to

rs
, 
w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p

re
s
e

n
t 

a
p

p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 7

0
%

 o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u
g

h
’s

 t
o

ta
l 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 

 

!
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 d
e
v
e

lo
p

e
rs

 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

o
 l
im

it
 n

o
is

e
 l
e

v
e

ls
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 m
a

jo
r 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 b
e

in
g

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

in
 t

h
e

 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

, 
s
u

c
h

 a
s
 C

ro
s
s
ra

il 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 L
in

e
 e

x
te

n
s
io

n
. 

T
h

is
 h

a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 l
im

it
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
c
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 t
o

 a
 v

e
ry

 l
o

w
 l
e

v
e

l,
 a

n
d

, 
in

 t
h

e
 

m
o

s
t 

e
x
tr

e
m

e
 c

a
s
e

s
, 

w
e

 h
a

v
e

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 r
e

-h
o

u
s
in

g
 o

r 
n

o
is

e
 i
n
s
u

la
ti
o

n
 r

e
lie

f.
  

Im
p

ro
v
e

 t
h

e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 t

a
c
k

le
 c

li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
2

1
0

L
A

A
N

I1
8
6

 
P

e
r 

c
a

p
it

a
 r

e
d

u
c

ti
o

n
 i
n

 C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s

 i
n

 t
h

e
 L

A
 a

re
a

 
L

o
w

e
r 

1
5

.3
7

1
2

.9
N

/A
N

o
 d

a
ta

 

1
6

Page 72



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
x

c
e

ll
e

n
t 

le
a

rn
in

g
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
In

v
e

s
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

5
s

 w
h

o
s

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
v

id
e

s
 t

h
e

 b
e

s
t 

p
o

s
s

ib
le

 f
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

lo
n

g
 t

e
rm

 s
u

c
c

e
s

s
 

!
P

ro
v

id
in

g
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
li

ty
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
, 

s
o

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
c

q
u

ir
e

 t
h

e
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
k

il
ls

 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e

d
 t

o
 f

u
lf

il
 t

h
e

ir
 

fu
ll

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 

!
P

ro
v

id
in

g
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
o

u
s

 l
e

a
rn

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s

, 
s

o
 e

v
e

ry
o

n
e

 c
a

n
 l

e
a

rn
 b

a
s

ic
 a

n
d

 n
e

w
 s

k
il

ls
 a

t 
a

n
y
 a

g
e

 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 o

n
e

 o
f 
th

e
 m

o
s
t 

im
p

ro
v
e

d
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

u
th

o
ri

ti
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
 a

n
d

 i
s
 r

a
p

id
ly

 c
lo

s
in

g
 t

h
e

 g
a

p
 w

it
h

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
s
 a

t 
a

 

n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

k
e

y
 s

ta
g

e
s
. 

4
 o

f 
o

u
r 

s
e

c
o
n

d
a

ry
 a

n
d

 1
7

 o
f 

o
u

r 
p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

re
 r

a
te

d
 a

s
 ‘
o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
’ 
a

n
d

 n
o

n
e

 o
f 

o
u

r 
s
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
re

 i
n

 s
p

e
c
ia

l 

m
e

a
s
u

re
s
.

!
 

G
C

S
E

 r
e

s
u

lt
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 f
a

s
te

r 
th

a
n
 t
h

e
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
a

v
e

ra
g

e
. 

N
e

a
rl

y
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 p

u
p

ils
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

d
 5

 A
*-

C
 

G
C

S
E

s
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 M

a
th

s
. 

T
h

e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 w

a
s
 a

lm
o

s
t 

tw
ic

e
 t

h
e

 n
a

ti
o
n

a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
c
h

a
n

g
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
 a

re
 

m
a

k
in

g
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
 t

o
w

a
rd

s
 2

0
1

0
 t

a
rg

e
ts

. 
W

e
 a

re
 a

im
in

g
 f

o
r 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
in

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 w

it
h

 t
w

o
 k

e
y
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
s
 –

 f
ir

s
tl
y
 b

y
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 a
n

d
 

ta
rg

e
ti
n

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 t

o
 u

n
d
e

ra
c
h

ie
v
in

g
 a

n
d

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 g

ro
u

p
s
, 
s
e

c
o

n
d

ly
, 

w
e

 a
re

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 s
c
h

o
o
ls

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
te

a
c
h

in
g

 a
n

d
 

le
a

rn
in

g
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
re

 s
u

b
je

c
ts

. 
 

!
 

O
u

r 
1

1
 y

e
a

r 
o

ld
s
 a

re
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 h

ig
h

e
r 

re
s
u

lt
s
 t

h
a
n

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 c
o

m
b

in
e

d
 m

e
a

s
u

re
 (

L
e

v
e

l 
4

+
 i
n

 E
n

g
lis

h
 a

n
d

 m
a

th
s
) 

–
 7

4
%

c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 7

2
%

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
. 

 

!
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 h
o

w
e

v
e

r 
s
e

e
n

 a
 s

m
a

ll 
b

u
t 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
in

g
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 o
f 

s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 a
t 

‘A
’ 
L

e
v
e

l.
 A

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

p
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

a
g

re
e

d
 w

it
h

 k
e

y
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 C

o
lle

g
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 t

a
k
e

s
 a

 l
a

rg
e

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
lo

c
a

l 
s
tu

d
e

n
ts

 s
tu

d
y
in

g
 f

o
r 

‘A
’ 
le

v
e

ls
.

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 t

h
e

 t
o

p
 r

a
ti
n

g
 f
o

r 
o

u
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
’s

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 -

 ‘
p

e
rf

o
rm

s
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

tl
y
’ 
- 

fr
o

m
 O

fs
te

d
, 

o
n

e
 o

f 
o

n
ly

 1
0

 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ti
e

s

n
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 t

o
 d

o
 s

o
. 

T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
s
 t

h
a

t 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

re
 j
u

d
g

e
d

 a
s
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 e

x
c
e

e
d

in
g

 m
in

im
u

m
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 

m
a

in
ta

in
s
 o

u
r 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 a
t 

th
e

 t
o
p

 e
n

d
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
a

le
. 

In
 c

o
m

in
g

 t
o

 t
h

e
 j
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t 
O

fs
te

d
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

s
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

s
e

 c
ir
c
u

m
s
ta

n
c
e

s
 m

a
k
e

 t
h

e
m

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 i
s
 a

lm
o

s
t 

a
ll 

g
o

o
d

 o
r 

o
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

, 
n

e
a
rl

y
 h

a
lf
 o

f 
th

e
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 

in
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u
g

h
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

re
 o

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a
u

th
o

ri
ty

’s
 a

d
o

p
ti
o

n
 a

g
e

n
c
y
 a

n
d

 t
w

o
 c

h
ild

re
n

’s
 h

o
m

e
s
 

a
re

 g
o

o
d

.

!
 

T
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
’s

 B
u

ild
in

g
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 F
u

tu
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 e

x
p

a
n

d
, 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

£
4

0
m

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
in

to
 2

 n
e

w

B
S

F
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 
O

v
e

r 
th

e
 n

e
x
t 

te
n

 y
e

a
rs

 w
e

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

b
u

ild
in

g
 o

r 
re

fu
rb

is
h

in
g

 a
ll 

o
f 
o

u
r 

s
e

c
o

n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 B

S
F

 

1
7

Page 73



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
y
 o

f 
o

u
r 

p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

C
h

a
n

g
e

. 
T

h
e

s
e

 a
re

 t
h

e
 b

ig
g

e
s
t 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

h
a

s
 s

e
e

n
 f

o
r 

o
v
e

r 
2

0
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 p
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
ly

 o
n

 t
h

e
 w

h
o

le
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
. 

 

!
 

M
o

re
 o

f 
o

u
r 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 t
h

a
n

 e
v
e

r 
a

re
 a

p
p

ly
in

g
 f

o
r 

a
n

d
 g

o
in

g
 o

n
 i
n

to
 h

ig
h

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a

ti
o
n

. 
In

 2
0

0
9

, 
9
3

6
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 (

a
g
e

d
 

u
n

d
e

r 
2

0
) 

w
e

re
 a

c
c
e

p
te

d
 b

y
 H

ig
h

e
r 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o

n
s
 -

 t
h

is
 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 o
f 

1
.8

%
 f

ro
m

 2
0

0
8

. 

!
 

S
u

rv
e

y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 d

is
a

p
p

o
in

ti
n
g

, 
w

it
h

 6
4

%
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 s
a

y
in

g
 t
h

e
y
 e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 i
n

 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 7
0

%
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r,

 a
n

d
 a

 t
a

rg
e

t 
o

f 
7

5
%

. 
T

h
e

re
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 o
u

r 
o

u
t 
o

f 
s
c
h

o
o

l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 e

x
p

a
n

s
io

n
 o

f 
o

u
r 

P
o

s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 (
P

A
Y

P
) 

s
c
h

e
m

e
, 

a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
a

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 Y
o

u
th

 S
e

rv
ic

e
, 

a
n

d
 a

 

s
te

a
d

y
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h

e
 y

e
a

r 
in

 e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 s
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 o
u

td
o

o
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
W

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

e
x
p

lo
ri

n
g

 w
h

y
 t

h
is

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 

d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

a
p
p

e
a

r 
to

 b
e

 r
e

fl
e

c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

u
rv

e
y
. 

 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 e
x

c
e

ll
e
n

t 
le

a
rn

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll
 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
3

0
1

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 A

 L
e
v
e
l 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
- 

A
 L

e
v
e
l 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 P

o
in

ts
 S

c
o
re

 p
e
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 
in

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
. 

H
ig

h
e

r 
6

3
9

.5
6

3
1

7
2

2
!

S
3

0
3

L
A

A
N

I7
9

A
c

h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 L

e
v
e

l 
2

 q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
1

9
 

H
ig

h
e

r
6

5
7

0
.5

6
9

.5
!

S
3

0
4

L
A

A
N

I8
0

A
c

h
ie

v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 L

e
v
e

l 
3

 q
u

a
li

fi
c

a
ti

o
n

 b
y
 t

h
e

 a
g

e
 o

f 
1

9
 

H
ig

h
e

r
3

8
4

0
.9

4
3

!
S

3
0

5
L

A
A

N
I1

0
6

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 f
ro

m
 l
o

w
 i
n

c
o

m
e
 b

a
c
k
g

ro
u

n
d

s
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 t

o
 h

ig
h

e
r 

e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 
H

ig
h

e
r

7
6

2
N

o
 d

a
ta

 

S
3

0
6

L
A

A
N

I1
1
0

 
Y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
’s

 p
a

rt
ic

ip
a
ti

o
n

 i
n

 p
o

s
it

iv
e

 a
c

ti
v
it

ie
s

 
H

ig
h

e
r

7
0

.3
6

4
.1

7
5

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
3

1
5

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
7
8
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 

w
it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
6
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
a
le

s
 i
n
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a

l 
D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a

ti
o
n

, 
L

a
n
g

u
a

g
e

 a
n

d
 L

it
e

ra
c
y
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
4

0
4

2
.9

4
5

.3
!

S
3

1
6

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 f
e

w
e
r 

th
a

n
 5

5
%

 o
f 
p

u
p

ils
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 l
e

v
e

l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
2
 

L
o

w
e

r
3

6
1

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
3

1
8

R
e

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 i
n

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 w

h
e

re
 f
e

w
e
r 

th
a

n
 3

0
%

 o
f 
p

u
p

ils
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d

e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 a

n
d

 e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n

 E
n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 

M
a

th
s

L
o

w
e

r
3

1
0

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
3
1
9

S
e
c
o
n
d

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n

c
e
 r

a
te

 
L
o
w

e
r

4
.8

4
.4

4
.6

!

1
8

Page 74



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

S
3

2
0

L
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 (

o
r 

e
q

u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 4

 
(i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
n

d
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
) 

H
ig

h
e

r 
6

.7
1

3
.8

9
2

3
"

S
3

2
1

N
a

rr
o
w

in
g

 t
h

e
 g

a
p

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

w
e
s
t 
a

c
h

ie
v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n

 t
h

e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a

rs
 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 S

ta
g

e
 P

ro
fi
le

 a
n

d
 t
h

e
 r

e
s
t 

L
o

w
e

r
3

7
.3

3
5

3
1

.5
!

S
3
2
2

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 
H

ig
h
e
r 

8
6
.5

8
9
.1

9
2

!

S
3

2
3

P
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e

v
e

ls
 i
n

 M
a

th
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 1

 a
n

d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 
H

ig
h
e

r 
8

4
8

7
.2

8
5

!
S

3
2

5
(N

I9
9
) 

L
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
a
c
h

in
g

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 i
n
 E

n
g

lis
h

 a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 
H

ig
h
e

r 
3

6
.4

5
0

5
3

!
S

3
2

5
(N

I7
5
) 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 

E
n

g
lis

h
 &

 M
a
th

s
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
4

1
.2

4
5

.8
5

0
!

S
3

2
6

L
o

o
k
e

d
 a

ft
e

r 
c
h

ild
re

n
 r

e
a
c
h

in
g

 l
e

v
e

l 
4

 i
n
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 2

 
H

ig
h
e
r 

3
6
.4

3
5
.7

1
5
3

"

S
3
2
7

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
le

v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n

g
lis

h
 &

 M
a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g

e
 2

 
H

ig
h
e

r 
7

4
7

4
7

9
!

S
3

2
4

E
S

O
L

 E
n

tr
y
 L

e
v
e

l 
O

n
e

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
s
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
4

0
0

3
8

7
3

5
2

N
o
 d

a
ta

1
9

Page 75



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 w
o

rk
le

s
s

n
e

s
s

  

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
H

e
lp

in
g

 f
a

m
il

ie
s

 e
s

c
a
p

e
 p

o
v

e
rt

y
, 

b
y
 p

ro
v

id
in

g
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
d

v
ic

e
 o

n
 d

e
b

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 

!
Id

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
m

o
v

in
g

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t

o
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
ta

rg
e

t 
g

ro
u

p
s

 

!
H

e
lp

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 t

o
 g

e
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 e

n
s

u
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
re

 i
s

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 t

ra
in

in
g

 b
e

fo
re

 a
n

d
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
y
 g

e
t 

a
 j

o
b

 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

D
e

s
p

it
e

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 r
e

c
e

s
s
io

n
, 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
in

d
ic

a
to

rs
 h

a
v
e

 p
e

rf
o

rm
e

d
 w

e
ll 

d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
. 
T

h
e

 o
v
e

ra
ll 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 (

w
o

rk
in

g
-

a
g

e
) 

in
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 h

a
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d

 s
tr

o
n

g
, 

m
e

e
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 2
0
0

9
/1

0
 t

a
rg

e
t.
  

H
o

w
e

v
e

r 
e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
is

 n
o

w
 f

a
lli

n
g

, 
a

n
d

 d
u

e
 t
o

 t
h

e
 t

im
e

 l
a

g
 i
n

 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 d

a
ta

 i
t 

is
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
h

a
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 w
ill

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

d
e

c
lin

e
 a

s
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
e

 e
c
o
n

o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 f

e
lt
. 

!
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 n
o

t 
in

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 (
N

E
E

T
) 

a
n

d
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
h

ie
v
e

d
 o

u
r 

e
n

d
 o

f 

y
e

a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 

w
it
h

 a
 f

in
a

l 
o
u

tt
u

rn
 f

ig
u

re
 o

f 
6

%
. 

T
h

e
 t
re

n
d

 d
e

m
o

n
s
tr

a
te

s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e

d
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

- 
d

o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 1
1

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
6
-0

7
, 

8
.2

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
7

-0
8

 a
n

d
 6

.7
%

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

: 
a

 4
0

%
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 2
 y

e
a

rs
. 

!
 

A
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 w
e

 w
o

u
ld

 e
x
p

e
c
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 t
o

 d
e

te
ri

o
ra

te
 a

s
 t

h
e

 e
c
o

n
o

m
ic

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

fi
lt
e

rs
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
, 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

w
ill

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e
 t
o

 p
u

rs
u

e
 p

o
lic

ie
s
 

a
n

d
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
s
a

w
 i
t 

h
e

lp
 m

a
n

y
 l
o

c
a

l 
p

e
o

p
le

 f
in

d
 w

o
rk

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
. 

O
v
e

r 
2

4
0

0
 p

e
o

p
le

h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 h
e

lp
e

d
 i
n

to
 w

o
rk

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 o
u

r 

W
o

rk
in

g
 N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 F

u
n

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

!
 

T
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

p
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

 d
a

ta
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 i
s
 f

o
r 

2
0

0
8

 a
n

d
 s

h
o

w
s
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 h

a
s
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

o
 4

8
%

, 
a

 3
.4

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 b

a
s
e

lin
e

 a
n

d
 1

.9
%

 b
e

tt
e

r 
th

a
n

 t
h

e
 2

0
0

8
 t
a

rg
e

t.
 T

h
is

 e
q

u
a

te
s
 t

o
 1

,3
0

0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 l
if
te

d
 o

u
t 

o
f 
p

o
v
e

rt
y
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

. 
T

h
is

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 

re
s
u

lt
 r

e
fl
e

c
ts

 o
u

r 
s
tr

o
n

g
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o

v
e

rt
y
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

c
e

n
tl
y
 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 a
 C

h
ild

 P
o

v
e

rt
y
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 a

n
d

 a
re

 

u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
in

g
 a

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 N

e
e

d
s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

re
s
e

a
rc

h
 t

o
 f

u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
 o

u
r 

w
o

rk
 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

. 

2
0

Page 76



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 w
o

rk
le

s
s

n
e
s

s
 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
3

0
7

L
A

A
N

I1
1
6

 
P

ro
p

o
rt

io
n

 o
f 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 p
o

v
e
rt

y
 

L
o

w
e
r 

5
1
.4

4
8

4
9
.9

N
o

 d
a

ta
 

S
3

0
8

L
A

A
N

I1
1
7

 
1
6
 t

o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o

 a
re

 n
o

t 
in

 e
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
o

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
(N

E
E

T
) 

L
o

w
e
r 

6
.7

6
6

.2
5

!
S

3
0

9
L

A
A

N
I1

4
6

 
A

d
u

lt
s
 w

it
h

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
H

ig
h

e
r

3
.3

3
.4

3
.1

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
3

1
0

L
A

A
N

I1
5
0

 
A

d
u

lt
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g

 s
e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
H

ig
h

e
r

2
.4

6
.2

3
.5

"
S

3
1

1
L

A
A

N
I1

5
1

 
O

v
e

ra
ll

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
ra

te
 (

w
o

rk
in

g
-a

g
e

) 
H

ig
h

e
r

6
0

.8
6

0
.4

5
4

.9
!

S
3

1
2

L
A

A
N

I1
5
2

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
n

 o
u

t 
o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
e

n
e

fi
ts

  
L

o
w

e
r 

1
7

.1
1

7
.6

-
!

S
3

1
3

L
A

A
N

I1
5
3

 
W

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 p

e
o

p
le

 c
la

im
in

g
 o

u
t 

o
f 

w
o

rk
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 i
n

 t
h

e
 w

o
rs

t 
p

e
rf

o
rm

in
g

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 

L
o

w
e
r 

2
5

.4
2

6
.8

-
!

2
1

Page 77



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
P

ro
s

p
e

ro
u

s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

F
o

s
te

r 
e

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
P

ro
v

id
in

g
 i

n
c

e
n

ti
v

e
s

 t
h

a
t 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e

 b
o

th
 b

u
s

in
e

s
s

 a
n

d
 s

o
c

ia
l 

e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

h
ip

 

!
M

a
x

im
is

in
g

 t
h

e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c

a
l 

b
u

s
in

e
s

s
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 k
e

y
 g

ro
w

th
 s

e
c

to
rs

, 
a

n
d

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 /
 

P
a

ra
ly

m
p

ic
 G

a
m

e
s

 

!
P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 l
o

c
a

l 
b

u
s

in
e

s
s

e
s

 a
n

d
 e

n
c

o
u

ra
g

in
g

 g
ro

w
th

 a
n

d
 t

o
u

ri
s

m
, 

w
it

h
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

e
m

p
h

a
s

is
 o

n
 t

h
e

 O
ly

m
p

ic
s

 

a
n

d
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

s
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
e

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

p
o

s
it
iv

e
 f

u
tu

re
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
, 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 h

a
s
 s

o
u

g
h

t 
to

 m
a

x
im

is
e

 i
ts

 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 a

n
d

 a
s
s
o
c
ia

te
d

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 c
o

n
s
tr

u
c
ti
v
e

 s
u

b
-r

e
g

io
n

a
l

p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

. 
T

h
is

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 h
a

s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 t

h
e

 c
re

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a
 M

u
lt
ip

le
 A

re
a

 A
g

re
e

m
e

n
t 

a
n

d
 S

tr
a

te
g

ic
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 b
e

tw
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 

fi
v
e

 O
ly

m
p

ic
 H

o
s
t 

b
o

ro
u

g
h

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 h
e

lp
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

lo
n

g
 t
e

rm
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t,
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it
ie

s

w
it
h

in
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
.

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 i
ts

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 d

u
ri

n
g

 2
0

0
9

/1
0
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 s

e
t 

o
u

t 
o

u
r 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 t
o

 f
o

s
te

ri
n

g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

e
n

tr
e

p
re

n
e

u
rs

h
ip

. 
B

a
s
e

lin
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

th
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 L
o

c
a

l 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 i
n

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
, 

a
n

d
 t
h

is
 

is
 s

c
h

e
d
u

le
d
 t

o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 b
y
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
1

0
. 

 

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

n
 E

n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 T
e

a
m

 t
o

 b
u

ild
 o

n
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

w
o

rk
 t
o

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
s
 a

n
d

 u
n

d
e

rt
a

k
e

 r
e

la
ti
o

n
s
h

ip

b
u

ild
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 t

h
e

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

c
lim

a
te

.

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 l
o
c
a

l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
, 

a
n

d
 i
t 

s
u
p

p
o

rt
e

d
 1

1
2

 s
m

a
ll-

to
-m

e
d

iu
m

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 i
n

 o
b

ta
in

in
g

 £
4

.9
5

 m
ill

io
n
 i
n

 

c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
c
e

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
o

m
p

e
te

F
o

r 
p

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
s
y
s
te

m
. 

 

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 t

a
k
e

n
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 i
n

 r
e

s
p

o
n

s
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 s
it
u

a
ti
o

n
. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

in
 A

p
ri

l 
2

0
0
9

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

tw
o

 h
o

u
rs

 f
re

e
 p

a
rk

in
g

 o
n

 w
e

e
k
e

n
d

s
 i
n

 a
ll 

p
re

v
io

u
s
ly

 c
o

n
tr

o
lle

d
 p

a
y
 a

n
d

 p
a

rk
 f

a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
, 

c
re

a
ti
n
g

 2
,2

0
0

 p
o

te
n

ti
a
l 
p

a
rk

in
g
 

s
p

a
c
e

s
 i
n

 c
o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l 
a

re
a

s
, 

i.
e

. 
to

w
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

rk
e

ts
. 

 

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 T

h
ir

d
 S

e
c
to

r 
S

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 n
e

w
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

fo
r 

V
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
V

S
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

w
ill

 

h
e

lp
 c

re
a

te
 t
h

e
 i
n

fr
a

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a

l 
s
o

c
ia

l 
in

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
n
te

rp
ri

s
e

 t
o

 p
ro

s
p

e
r,

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 t

h
ir

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
to

 r
e

s
p

o
n
d

 t
o

 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

la
te

d
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
. 

In
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f
o

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

, 
w

it
h

 t
h

e
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
a

 

2
2

Page 78



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 b

a
s
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

 t
o

 t
h
e

 a
llo

c
a

ti
o
n

 o
f 

fu
n

d
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 m
a

jo
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 t

ra
d

it
io

n
a

l 
‘g

ra
n

t’
 f

u
n
d

in
g

 s
tr

e
a

m
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 C

h
e

s
t 

fu
n

d
in

g
 f

o
r 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 o
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

e
c
to

r 
o

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
, 

w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 g

ra
n

ts
 f
o

r 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y

b
u

ild
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
. 

 

F
o

s
te

r 
e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e
 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
3

0
2

L
A

A
N

I7
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e

n
t 

fo
r 

a
 t

h
ri

v
in

g
 t

h
ir

d
 s

e
c
to

r 
H

ig
h

e
r

2
1

.1
N

/A
N

/A
N

o
 d

a
ta

 

S
3

2
8

V
a

lu
e

 o
f 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
o

n
 b

y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 o

rg
a
n

is
a

ti
o
n

s
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
N

/A
T

B
C

5
m

N
o

 d
a

ta
 

2
3

Page 79



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

E
m

p
o

w
e

r 
o

ld
e

r 
a

n
d

 v
u

ln
e

ra
b

le
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
  

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
P

ro
v

id
in

g
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

iv
e

 a
n

d
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt

s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
m

o
te

 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

c
e

, 
c

h
o

ic
e

, 
s

e
c

u
ri

ty
 a

n
d

 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 

!
P

ro
te

c
ti

n
g

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

 a
n

d
 n

e
g

le
c

t 

!
P

re
v

e
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e

d
u

c
in

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s

n
e

s
s

, 
a

n
d

 h
e

lp
in

g
 m

o
re

 p
e

o
p

le
 i

n
to

 s
e

tt
le

d
 h

o
m

e
s

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 

!
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

it
h

 d
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

ir
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

In
 a

n
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 b

y
 t

h
e

 C
a

re
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

, 
u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 n
e

w
 m

o
re

 d
e

m
a

n
d

in
g

 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 r

e
g

im
e

, 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts

w
a

s
 j
u

d
g

e
d

 t
o

 b
e

 e
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
o

n
 c

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

tr
o
l 
fo

r 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

, 
a

n
d

 o
n
 l
e

a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 –
 t

h
e

 o
n

ly
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

u
th

o
ri

ty
 i
n

 

th
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
 t

o
 a

c
h

ie
v
e

 t
h

is
 t

o
 d

a
te

. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 j
u

d
g

e
d

 a
s
 e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 p

a
s
t 

6
 y

e
a

rs
 i
n

 o
u

r 
A

n
n

u
a

l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 A
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t.
 W

e
 

w
e

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

d
e

q
u

a
te

 a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d

u
lt
s
 a

n
d

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 t
o

m
a

k
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 w
h

ic
h

 w
ill

 b
e

 r
e

a
s
s
e

s
s
e

d
 l
a

te
r 

th
is

 y
e

a
r.

 

!
In

 o
u

r 
re

c
e

n
t 

u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e

d
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

c
h

ild
re

n
s
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
b

y
 O

fs
te

d
 i
n

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
0

, 
th

e
 i
n

s
p
e

c
to

rs
 f

o
u

n
d
 ‘
n

o
 s

e
ri

o
u
s
 

c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
’ 
a
n

d
 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 n

o
 p

ri
o

ri
ty

 a
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

a
c
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 i
n

s
p
e

c
to

rs
 a

ls
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 e

ig
h

t 
a

re
a

s
 o

f 
s
tr

e
n

g
th

 a
n

d
 o

n
ly

 f
iv

e
 a

re
a

s
 f

o
r 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 W
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t
h

e
s
e

 a
re

a
s
 a

re
 a

d
d

re
s
s
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 u

p
o

n
. 

 

!
 

T
h

e
 I

n
te

g
ra

te
d

 C
a

re
 P

ilo
t 

w
h

ic
h

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 l
e

d
 b

y
 N

H
S

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
 n

a
ti
o

n
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g

 a
n

d
 i
s
 t

h
e

 o
n

ly
 s

u
c
h

 p
ilo

t 
in

 L
o

n
d

o
n
. 

T
h

e
 p

ilo
t 

is
 a

n
 a

m
b

it
io

u
s
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 o
f 

w
o

rk
 t

o
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 t

h
e

 w
a

y
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a

re
 i
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 f
o

rm
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
e

ig
h

t 

n
e

tw
o

rk
s
 s

tr
e

n
g

th
e

n
in

g
 l
o

c
a

l 
lin

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

. 
W

e
ll-

d
e
fi
n

e
d

 c
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 b
y
 N

H
S

 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 f
o

r 
p

ri
o

ri
ty

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

o
ro

u
g

h
. 

C
a

re
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

s
 a

re
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 o

f 
c
lin

ic
a

l 
p

ra
c
ti
c
e

 s
e

tt
in

g
 o

u
t 

th
e

 c
a

re
 t

h
a

t 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 e
x
p

e
c
t 

fo
r 

th
e

ir
 c

o
n

d
it
io

n
. 

 

!
T

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il’

s
 T

e
le

c
a

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 n

o
w

 f
re

e
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
is

 h
a

s
 h

e
lp

e
d

 t
o

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 u

p
ta

k
e

 (
7
6

%
),

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

B
M

E
 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
.

!
 

D
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
re

rs
 S

tr
a

te
g

y
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 g

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
u

rr
e

n
t 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n

g
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
o

r 
c
a

re
r 

re
s
p

it
e

 b
re

a
k
s
. 

 

2
4

Page 80



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

!
 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
is

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 v

ie
w

s
 o

f 
o

ld
e
r 

p
e

o
p

le
. 

F
o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

a
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

s
u

rv
e

y
 a

b
o

u
t 

c
a

re
rs

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t

h
e
y
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d
 t

h
a

t 
o
f 

th
o

s
e

 o
v
e

r 
6

5
, 

9
0

%
 f

e
lt
 t
h

a
t 

th
e

y
 w

e
re

 ‘
e

x
tr

e
m

e
ly

, 
v
e

ry
 o

r 
fa

ir
ly

 s
a

ti
s
fi
e

d
 w

it
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e

d
’ 
c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 a

ll 

re
s
p

o
n

d
e

n
ts

. 
A

d
d

it
io

n
a

lly
, 

8
 o

u
t 

o
f 

1
0

 o
f 

th
o

s
e

 o
v
e

r 
6

5
 a

ls
o

 f
e

lt
 t

h
e

y
 w

e
re

 ‘
a

lw
a

y
s
 t

re
a

te
d

 w
it
h

 d
ig

n
it
y
 a

n
d

 r
e

s
p

e
c
t’
.

!
 

T
h

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
 h

a
s
 s

h
o

w
n

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o
p

le
’s

 v
ie

w
s
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

a
n

d
 

P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

’s
 r

e
c
o

rd
 o

n
 r

e
s
id

e
n

t 
e

n
g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t.

 W
e

ll 
o

v
e

r 
h

a
lf
 o

f 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o
p

le
 s

u
rv

e
y
e

d
 a

g
re

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 

‘M
y
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

in
v
o

lv
e
s

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 w

h
e

n
 m

a
k
in

g
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
’ 
–

 a
 r

is
e

 o
f 

2
0

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
ts

 s
in

c
e

 2
0

0
3

/0
4

. 
6

2
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t 

a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
‘t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
c
il 

lis
te

n
s
 t

o
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 o

f 

lo
c
a

l 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
’ 
–

 u
p

 b
y
 1

8
 p

o
in

ts
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
3

-0
4
 a

n
d

 a
lm

o
s
t 

tw
o

 t
h

ir
d

s
 (

6
4

 p
e

r 
c
e

n
t)

 a
g

re
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 ‘
c
o

u
n

c
il 

re
s
p

o
n

d
s
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 w
h

e
n

 a
s
k
e

d
 

fo
r 

h
e

lp
’ 
–

 u
p

 b
y
 2

2
 p

o
in

ts
 s

in
c
e
 t

h
e

 2
0

0
3

/0
4

 s
u

rv
e

y
. 

!
 

D
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

h
e

ld
 B

e
a

c
o

n
 S

ta
tu

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 P

o
s
it
iv

e
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

. 
T

h
e

 B
e

a
c
o

n
 a

w
a

rd
 w

a
s
 g

iv
e

n
 f

o
r 

th
e

 

B
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 p

io
n

e
e

ri
n

g
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h

e
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

’s
 R

e
fe

re
n

c
e

 G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 L

in
k
A

g
e

 P
lu

s
 P

ilo
t.

  

!
 

W
e

 a
re

 n
o

w
 m

id
-w

a
y
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 a

 t
h

re
e

 y
e

a
r 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d

 m
a

k
in

g
 g

o
o

d
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
. 

A
t 

th
e

 h
e
a

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 i
s
 a

c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

t 
to

 p
u

tt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

 c
o

n
tr

o
l 
o

f 
th

e
ir

 o
w

n
 c

a
re

, 
th

ro
u

g
h

 m
e

c
h

a
n

is
m

s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 P

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e

ts
 a

n
d

 g
re

a
te

r 
e

m
p

h
a

s
is

 o
n

 

p
e

rs
o

n
-c

e
n

tr
e

d
 a

p
p

ro
a

c
h

e
s
. 

W
e

 a
re

 s
h

if
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 b
a

la
n

c
e

 f
ro

m
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 w

h
e

re
 ‘
p

a
s
s
iv

e
 c

lie
n

ts
’ 
re

c
e

iv
e

 ‘
c
a

re
’ 
to

 a
c
ti
v
e

 c
it
iz

e
n

s
 s

h
a

p
in

g
 t

h
e

ir
 

o
w

n
 p

a
c
k
a

g
e

 o
f 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

, 
e

n
a

b
lin

g
 t

h
e

m
 t

o
 l
iv

e
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 f

u
lf
ill

in
g

 l
iv

e
s
. 

A
 v

is
io

n
 o

f 
w

h
a

t 
th

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 l
o

o
k
 l
ik

e
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

 i
s
 s

h
a

re
d

 

b
y
 t

h
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 N
H

S
 a

n
d

 a
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e

rs
. 
 

!
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

h
a

s
 r

e
c
e

iv
e
d

 f
u

rt
h

e
r 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
re

c
o

g
n
it
io

n
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 H
o

m
e

le
s
s
 a

n
d

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

d
v
ic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 b
e

in
g

a
w

a
rd

e
d

 C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 E
x
c
e

lle
n
c
e

 a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o

n
, 

a
n

d
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 b

e
in

g
 s

h
o

rt
-l

is
te

d
 f
o

r 
a

 L
o

c
a

l 
In

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 A

w
a

rd
 f

o
r 

T
a

k
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
o

f 

C
a

re
. 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 w
a

s
 a

ls
o

 a
 D

is
a

b
ili

ty
 G

ra
n

ts
 a

w
a

rd
 w

in
n

e
r,

 a
n

d
 w

a
s
 c

h
o

s
e

n
 t

o
 h

o
s
t 

th
e

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
la

u
n

c
h

 o
f 

th
e

 H
a

n
d

y
 P

e
rs

o
n

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

E
m

p
o

w
e
r 

o
ld

e
r 

a
n

d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

a
m

il
ie

s
 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
4

1
2

L
A

A
N

I3
5

C
a

re
rs

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 n

e
e

d
s

 a
s

s
e

s
s

m
e

n
t 

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 a
 s

p
e

c
if

ic
 c

a
re

r’
s

 
s
e
rv

ic
e
, 
o

r 
a

d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 
H

ig
h

e
r

3
0

.1
3

3
.9

2
5

.9
!

S
4

1
3

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 b

e
c
o

m
in

g
 t
h

e
 s

u
b

je
c
t 
o

f 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n

 P
la

n
 f
o

r 
a

 
s
e
c
o

n
d

 o
f 
s
u
b

s
e
q

u
e
n

t 
ti
m

e
 

L
o

w
e

r
6

.8
T

B
C

7
N

o
 d

a
ta

 

2
5

Page 81



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

T
a

c
k

le
 a

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

c
ri

m
e

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
R

e
d

u
c

in
g

 c
ri

m
e

 a
n

d
 p

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 s
u

c
c

e
s

s
e

s
 e

ff
e

c
ti

v
e

ly
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c

e
 f

e
a

r 
o

f 
c

ri
m

e
 

!
R

e
d

u
c

in
g

 r
e

-o
ff

e
n

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 h

o
li

s
ti

c
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

 w
it

h
 a

ll
 w

h
o

 b
e

c
o

m
e

 i
n

v
o

lv
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

ri
m

in
a

l 
ju

s
ti

c
e

 

s
y
s

te
m

 

!
M

a
k

in
g

 c
ri

m
e

 p
re

v
e

n
ti

o
n

 a
 k

e
y
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 -
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 t

ru
s

t 
a

n
d

 

e
n

g
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 s

tr
a

te
g

ic
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 d

e
v

e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 h
a

s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 c
ri

m
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

is
 t

re
n

d
 a

c
c
e

le
ra

ti
n

g
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 

c
u

rr
e

n
tl
y
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

s
 a

 r
e

a
l 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
5

%
 f

o
r 

th
is

 f
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
y
e

a
r,

 w
it
h

 9
5

2
 f

e
w

e
r 

c
ri

m
e

s
 a

s
 a

t 
1

s
t  N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 t
h

is
 a

re
a

 

w
a

s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

d
 w

h
e

n
 w

e
 w

e
re

 s
h

o
rt

lis
te

d
 f

o
r 

a
 L

o
c
a

l 
In

n
o

v
a

ti
o

n
 A

w
a

rd
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
. 

 

!
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

ri
o

u
s
 v

io
le

n
t 

c
ri

m
e
s
 i
s
 d

o
w

n
 a

s
 c

o
m

p
a

re
d

 t
o

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 a
n

d
 o

n
 t

a
rg

e
t.
 I

n
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r,

 k
n

if
e

 c
ri

m
e

 h
a

s
 f

a
lle

n
 b

y
 1

6
.8

%
 f

ro
m

 4
8

1
 

to
 3

7
2

 o
ff

e
n
c
e

s
. 

!
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
s
e

ri
o

u
s
 a

c
q

u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 f

a
lle

n
 b

y
 a

 v
e

ry
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t 
fi
g

u
re

: 
2

0
.6

%
. 

T
h

is
 f

a
ll 

h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
c
a

te
g

o
ri

e
s
 

in
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n
 t
h

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

e
rs

o
n

a
l 
ro

b
b
e

ry
, 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
b

u
rg

la
ry

, 
th

e
ft

/t
a

k
in

g
 o

f 
m

o
to

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ft
 f

ro
m

 a
 m

o
to

r 
v
e

h
ic

le
.

!
 

T
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
d

e
lib

e
ra

te
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 &
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 f
ir

e
s
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 f

a
lle

n
 b

y
 2

6
.5

%
 a

n
d

 4
5

.5
%

 r
e

s
p

e
c
ti
v
e

ly
. 

 

!
 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 w

e
 b

u
ilt

 o
n

 o
u

r 
s
tr

o
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 b

y
 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
in

g
 t

h
e

 f
ir
s
t 
o

f 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 E

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

O
ff

ic
e

rs
. 

T
H

E
O

S
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

p
lo

y
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 t
o

 c
re

a
te

 a
 h

ig
h

ly
 v

is
ib

le
 e

n
fo

rc
e

m
e

n
t 

p
re

s
e

n
c
e

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 o
f 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
. 

T
h

e
y
 a

re
 n

o
w

 w
o

rk
in

g
 t

o
 

s
u

p
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

e
 S

a
fe

r 
N

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 T

e
a

m
s
 t

o
 t

a
c
k
le

 t
h

e
 t

y
p

e
s
 o

f 
p

ro
b

le
m

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

re
 n

o
t 
a

b
le

 t
o

 p
ri

o
ri

ti
s
e

, 
s
u
c
h

 a
s
 f

ly
 

ti
p

p
in

g
, 

g
ra

ff
it
i,
 f

ly
 p

o
s
ti
n
g

, 
a

b
a

n
d

o
n

e
d

 v
e

h
ic

le
s
 a

n
d

 i
lle

g
a

l 
s
tr

e
e

t 
tr

a
d

in
g

. 
 

!
 

W
e

 a
ls

o
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 J
o

in
t 
T

a
s
k
in

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
m

e
n

ts
 a

t 
a

 l
o

c
a

l 
le

v
e

l 
b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

r 
a

g
e

n
c
ie

s
. 

T
h

e
 a

im
 i
s
 t

o
 c

re
a
te

 f
o

u
r 

lo
c
a

lly
 b

a
s
e

d
 ‘
O

n
e

 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 T
e

a
m

s
’ 
o

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 f

ro
m

 a
 ‘
L

o
c
a

lit
y
 H

u
b

’,
 a

n
d

 r
e

c
e

iv
in

g
 d

a
ily

 i
n

s
tr

u
c
ti
o

n
s
 b

a
s
e

d
 o

n
 j
o

in
t 

in
te

lli
g

e
n

c
e

 a
n

d
 j
o

in
t 

ta
s
k
in

g
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

th
e

 C
o

u
n

c
il,

 p
o

lic
e

 a
n

d
 o

th
e

r 
p

a
rt

n
e

rs
. 

 

!
 

D
e

s
p

it
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

, 
c
ri

m
e

 r
e

m
a

in
s
 t

h
e

 t
o

p
 i
s
s
u

e
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
, 

b
u

t 
p

e
rc

e
p

ti
o

n
s
 a

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
. 

T
h

e
re

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 a

 d
e

c
re

a
s
e

 i
n

 t
h

e
 n

u
m

b
e

r 

o
f 

re
s
p

o
n

d
e
n

ts
 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 i
t 

in
 t

h
e

ir
 t

o
p

 3
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

tw
o

 y
e

a
rs

 (
4

5
%

, 
d

o
w

n
 f

ro
m

 5
5

%
 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

).
 I

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
, 

5
8

%
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 n

o
w

 s
a

y
 

th
a

t 
th

e
 p

o
lic

e
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 a

re
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 d

e
a

lin
g

 w
it
h

 a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 c

ri
m

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 l
o

c
a

l 
a

re
a

 u
p
 f

ro
m

 3
9

%
 i
n

 

2
6

Page 82



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

. 
A

n
d

, 
w

h
ile

 o
v
e

r 
h

a
lf
 o

f 
a

ll 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 (

5
6
 p

e
r 

c
e

n
t)

 f
e
e

l 
th

a
t 

‘t
e

e
n
a

g
e

rs
 h

a
n

g
in

g
 a

ro
u

n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
t’
 i
s
 a

 b
ig

 p
ro

b
le

m
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 l
o

c
a

l 

a
re

a
s
, 

th
is

 a
ls

o
 h

a
s
 s

h
o
w

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

b
y
 5

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
ts

 c
o

m
p

a
re

d
 t

o
 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r.

  

!
 

C
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

b
o

u
t 

d
ru

g
 u

s
e
/d

e
a

lin
g

 a
s
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
, 

a
s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 A
n

n
u

a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
, 

h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 f
a

lle
n

 b
y
 3

 p
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 p
o

in
ts

 t
o

 

5
3

%
 s

in
c
e

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

. 
 

T
a

c
k

le
 a

n
d

 p
re

v
e

n
t 

c
ri

m
e

 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
4

0
1

P
e

rc
e

n
ta

g
e

 o
f 
re

s
id

e
n

ts
 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

in
g

 c
ri
m

e
 w

it
h

in
 t
h

e
ir
 t
o

p
 t
h

re
e

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
s
 

(A
R

S
)

L
o

w
e

r
4

7
4

6
4

6
!

S
4

0
2

L
A

A
N

I1
5

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

m
o

s
t 

s
e

ri
o

u
s

 v
io

le
n

t 
c

ri
m

e
s

 p
e

r 
1

,0
0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
L

o
w

e
r 

2
.3

5
2

.1
4

2
.2

8
N

o
 d

a
ta

 

S
4

0
3

L
A

A
N

I1
6

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

s
e

ri
o

u
s
 a

c
q

u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
L

o
w

e
r 

2
5

.5
1

2
0

.2
9

2
5

.0
5

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
4

0
4

L
A

A
N

I1
8

R
a

te
 o

f 
p

ro
v
e

n
 r

e
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 b
y
 a

d
u

lt
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

P
ro

b
a

ti
o

n
 s

u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 

H
ig

h
e

r
3

.7
8

T
B

C
-4

.9
8

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
4

0
7

L
A

A
N

I3
3
a

 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

d
e

li
b

e
ra

te
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 f
ir

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p

u
la

ti
o

n
 

L
o

w
e
r 

9
.9

9
7
.3

0
1
1
.9

N
o
 d

a
ta

S
4

0
8

L
A

A
N

I3
3
b

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
e

li
b

e
ra

te
 s

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 f
ir

e
s

 p
e

r 
1

0
,0

0
0

 p
o

p
u

la
ti

o
n

 
L

o
w

e
r 

2
0

.9
9

1
1

.4
3

3
5

.8
N

o
 d

a
ta

S
4

1
1

L
A

A
N

I4
2

P
e

rc
e

p
ti

o
n

s
 o

f 
d

ru
g

 u
s
e

 o
r 

d
ru

g
 d

e
a

li
n

g
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 

L
o

w
e
r 

5
4

5
1

*
N

/A
!

*T
h

is
 i

s
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

is
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 m
e

a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
la

c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
, 

c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 e

v
e

ry
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
A

s
 i

t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
d
u

c
te

d
 i

n
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
, 

d
a

ta
 i

n
 t

h
is

 t
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
. 

2
7

Page 83



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 e

a
rl

y
 i

n
te

rv
e

n
ti

o
n

  

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a

n
d

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 

!
U

s
in

g
 j

o
in

e
d

-u
p

 a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
e

s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s

s
 l

in
k

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 h
e
a

lt
h

, 
d

ru
g

s
, 

a
lc

o
h

o
l,

 e
d

u
c

a
ti

o
n

, 
s

k
il

ls
, 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 

a
c

c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

, 
m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
, 

d
e

b
t 

a
n

d
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s

 a
ll

 a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
s

 

!
T

a
c

k
li

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

a
u

s
e

s
 o

f 
c

ri
m

e
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 ‘

a
t-

ri
s

k
’ 

g
ro

u
p

s
, 

to
 n

ip
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 i

n
 t

h
e

 b
u

d
 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 h

a
s
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
e

d
 r

e
-a

b
le

m
e

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e

s
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 i
n

te
n

s
iv

e
ly

 w
it
h

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 u
s
e

rs
 t

o
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
ir

 

s
k
ill

s
, 

c
o

n
fi
d
e

n
c
e

, 
a

n
d

 a
b

ili
ty

 t
o

 l
iv

e
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

tl
y
. 

T
h

is
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 w

ill
 h

e
lp

 t
o

 k
e

e
p

 p
e

o
p

le
 o

u
t 
o

f 
re

s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 h
a

s
 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

c
o

g
n
is

e
d

 a
s
 a

m
o
n

g
 t

h
e

 v
e

ry
 b

e
s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
. 

  

!
 

W
e

 n
o

w
 h

a
v
e

 2
3

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 C
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 w
h

ic
h

 m
e

a
n

s
 t

h
a

t 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 c

a
n

 e
a

s
ily

 a
c
c
e

s
s
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 f
ro

m
 o

n
e

 p
la

c
e

 i
n

 

th
e

ir
 l
o

c
a

l 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
. 

T
h

e
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
 s

h
o

w
s
 h

ig
h

 u
s
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 r

a
ti
n

g
s
 f

o
r 

o
u

r 
e

a
rl

y
 y

e
a

rs
 a

n
d

 e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
, 

8
2

%
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n

’s
 C

e
n

tr
e

 u
s
e

rs
 r

a
te

 t
h

e
m

 a
s
 g

o
o

d
 o

r 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
w

h
ile

 7
9

%
 r

a
te

 n
u

rs
e

ry
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

s
 g

o
o

d
 o

r 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t 
a

n
d

 7
7
%

 

ra
te

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 e

d
u

c
a

ti
o

n
 a

s
 g

o
o

d
 o

r 
e

x
c
e

lle
n

t.
 O

u
r 

ra
ti
n

g
s
 f

o
r 

b
o

th
 n

u
rs

e
ry

 a
n

d
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 a
re

 a
b

o
v
e

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 a

v
e

ra
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
h

o
w

 a
 

c
le

a
r 

u
p

w
a

rd
 t

re
n

d
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 l
a

s
t 

1
2

 y
e

a
rs

. 

!
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 t

h
e

 I
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 P

a
th

w
a

y
s
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 T

e
a

m
 t

o
 s

e
c
u

re
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

re
fe

rr
a

l 
to

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

t 
ri

s
k
. 

T
h

e
 

IP
S

T
 i
s
 a

 m
u

lt
i-

d
is

c
ip

lin
a

ry
 t

e
a

m
 a

c
ti
n

g
 a

s
 a

 t
ri

a
g

e
 s

y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

im
 o

f 
a

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
’ 
n

e
e

d
s
, 

b
o

th
 h

o
lis

ti
c
a

lly
 a

n
d

 

q
u

ic
k
ly

, 
a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

v
e

r 
p

o
s
s
ib

le
 a

v
o

id
in

g
 f

u
ll 

s
ta

tu
to

ry
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
. 

It
s
 c

re
a

ti
o

n
 h

a
s
 l
e

d
 t
o

 r
e

d
u

c
e

d
 l
e
v
e

ls
 o

f 
re

fe
rr

a
ls

 i
n

to
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 

s
o

c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 a

n
d

 i
t 

w
a

s
 h

ig
h

ly
 c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 b
y
 O

F
S

T
E

D
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

e
c
e

n
t 

u
n

a
n
n

o
u

n
c
e

d
 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
. 

 

!
 

T
h

e
 Y

o
u

th
 S

e
rv

ic
e

 i
s
 e

n
g

a
g

in
g

 w
e

ll 
o

v
e

r 
5

0
%

 o
f 

te
e

n
a

g
e

rs
, 

fo
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 4

0
0

 t
e

e
n

a
g

e
rs

 a
re

 n
o

w
 s

ig
n

e
d

 u
p

 f
o

r 
th

e
 D

u
k
e

 o
f 

E
d

in
b

u
rg

h

A
w

a
rd

, 
d

o
u

b
le

 l
a

s
t 

y
e

a
r’
s
 n

u
m

b
e

r.
 

!
 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t
h

e
re

 w
a

s
 a

 d
ra

m
a

ti
c
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 n
u
m

b
e

rs
 o

f 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 e
n

te
ri

n
g

 t
h

e
 c

ri
m

in
a

l 
ju

s
ti
c
e

 s
y
s
te

m
 –

 h
a

lf
 w

h
a

t 
it
 w

a
s
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

2
0

0
8

/0
9

.

!
 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
e

s
te

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e

s
 t

h
a

t 
e

n
g

a
g

e
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 i
n

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 

o
p

ti
o

n
s
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 p

la
c
e
m

e
n

ts
, 

la
n

g
u

a
g

e
 c

la
s
s
e
s
, 

c
a

re
e

rs
 i
n
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
-b

a
s
e

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

s
. 

A
 p

ilo
t 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 

e
a

rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

a
c
k
le

 w
o

rk
-r

e
la

te
d

 s
ic

k
n
e

s
s
 w

a
s
 t

e
s
te

d
 i
n

 f
o

u
r 

G
P

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
. 

T
h

is
 o

ff
e

r 
w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 i
n

 2
0

1
0

/1
1

 b
y
 a

n
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 

“W
o

rk
in

g
 f

o
r 

H
e

a
lt
h

” 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 
 

2
8

Page 84



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
4

1
0

L
A

A
N

I4
0

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

d
ru

g
 u

s
e

rs
 r

e
c

o
rd

e
d

 a
s

 b
e

in
g

 i
n

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
H

ig
h

e
r

8
1

1
7

4
1

2
3

N
o

 d
a

ta
 

S
4

0
5

L
A

A
N

I1
9

R
a

te
 o

f 
p

ro
v
e

n
 r

e
-o

ff
e

n
d

in
g

 b
y
 y

o
u

n
g

 o
ff

e
n

d
e

rs
 a

g
e

d
 1

0
-1

7
 

L
o

w
e
r 

1
.1

0
1

.1
5

1
.1

3
N

o
 d

a
ta

S
4

0
6

L
A

A
N

I2
1

D
e
a
li
n

g
 w

it
h

 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o

n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o

u
t 

a
n

ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 c

ri
m

e
 

is
s
u

e
s
 b

y
 t

h
e
 l
o

c
a
l 
c
o

u
n

c
il
 a

n
d

 p
o

li
c
e
 

H
ig

h
e

r
3

9
4

8
*

N
/A

N
o
 d

a
ta

*T
h

is
 i

s
 i

n
d

ic
a

to
r 

is
 o

ff
ic

ia
lly

 m
e

a
s
u
re

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 P
la

c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
, 

c
o

n
d

u
c
te

d
 e

v
e

ry
 t

w
o

 y
e

a
rs

. 
A

s
 i

t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
d
u

c
te

d
 i

n
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
, 

d
a

ta
 i

n
 t

h
is

 t
a
b
le

 a
n
d
 t

h
e
 

d
ir
e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
tr

a
v
e
l 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 e

q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
q

u
e
s
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 A

n
n

u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
. 

2
9

Page 85



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
c

e
s

 i
n

 p
e

o
p

le
’s

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 l

if
e

s
ty

le
s

  

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
R

e
d

u
c

e
 t

h
e

 u
s

e
 o

f 
to

b
a

c
c

o
 

!
R

e
d

u
c

in
g

 r
a

te
s

 o
f 

d
ia

b
e

te
s

, 
h

ig
h

 b
lo

o
d

 p
re

s
s

u
re

 a
n

d
 c

h
o

le
s

te
ro

l 

!
S

lo
w

 d
o

w
n

 t
h

e
 i

n
c

re
a

s
e

 i
n

 o
b

e
s

it
y
 

!
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

e
x

u
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

T
h

e
 l
a

te
s
t 

a
v
a

ila
b

le
 d

a
ta

 s
h

o
w

e
d

 t
h

a
t 

1
4

8
9

 p
e

o
p

le
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n

 h
e

lp
e

d
 t

o
 q

u
it
 s

m
o

k
in

g
, 

w
e

ll 
in

 e
x
c
e

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fi
g

u
re

. 
T

h
e

 

C
o

u
n

c
il,

 i
n

 c
o

n
ju

n
c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
, 

h
a

s
 i
s
s
u

e
d
 9

8
 S

m
o

k
e

 F
re

e
 A

w
a

rd
s
 t

o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e

s
 w

h
ic

h
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 c

e
s
s
a

ti
o
n

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f

o
r 

s
ta

ff
. 

T
h

e
 S

m
o

k
e

 F
re

e
 T

e
a

m
 w

a
s
 h

ig
h

ly
 c

o
m

m
e

n
d

e
d

 o
n

 i
ts

 w
o

rk
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 p
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
o

rk
in

g
 s

tr
a

n
d

 o
f 

th
e

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

 L
o

c
a

l

In
n

o
v
a

ti
o

n
 A

w
a

rd
s
.

!
 

W
e

’v
e

 s
e

e
n

 t
h

e
 b

ig
g

e
s
t 

re
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
e

e
n

a
g

e
 p

re
g

n
a

n
c
y
 i
n

 L
o

n
d

o
n

 a
n

d
 t
h

ir
d

 b
ig

g
e

s
t 
re

d
u

c
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 u
n

d
e

r-
1
8

c
o

n
c
e

p
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

 w
a

s
 3

3
.5

 (
p

e
r 

1
0

0
0

 f
e

m
a

le
 1

5
-1

7
) 

w
h

ic
h

 c
o

m
p

a
re

s
 w

e
ll 

to
 b

o
th

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o
n

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
4

4
.6

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 E
n

g
la

n
d

a
v
e

ra
g

e
 o

f 
4

0
.4

.

!
 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o

 e
x
c
e

e
d

e
d

 i
ts

 a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 t

a
rg

e
t 

fo
r 

C
h

la
m

y
d

ia
 s

c
re

e
n

in
g

. 

!
 

N
a

ti
o

n
a

lly
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 i
s
 s

ti
ll 

o
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

 a
n

d
 m

o
s
t 

p
o

lic
ie

s
 r

e
c
o

g
n

is
e

 t
h

a
t 
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

 g
re

a
t 

a
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
t 

to
 s

lo
w

 t
h

e
 r

is
e

 i
n
 o

b
e

s
it
y
 l
e

t 
a

lo
n

e
 a

 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
d
e

c
re

a
s
e

. 
In

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

, 
th

e
 c

h
a

lle
n

g
e

 i
s
 t

o
 d

o
 m

o
re

 t
o

 e
n

g
a

g
e

 p
a

re
n

ts
, 

c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 g
ro

u
p

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

n
y
 

o
th

e
rs

 t
o

 f
o

c
u

s
 o

u
r 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 t

o
 h

e
lp

 r
e

d
u

c
e

 o
b

e
s
it
y
 a

m
o

n
g

s
t 

a
ll 

c
h

ild
re

n
 b

u
t 

w
it
h

 a
 p

a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

fo
c
u

s
 o

n
 y

e
a

r 
6

/p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

ls
. 

O
n
e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 

w
ill

 d
o

 t
h

is
 i
s
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 l
o
c
a

l 
w

o
rk

s
h

o
p

s
 w

it
h

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 p
a

re
n

ts
 t

o
 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 h
o

w
 w

e
 c

a
n

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

 t
o

 w
o

rk
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

o
n

 t
a

c
k
lin

g
 c

h
ild

h
o

o
d

 

o
b

e
s
it
y
. 

O
th

e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

ro
u

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 e

a
ti
n

g
, 

a
c
ti
v
e

 l
iv

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
e

 t
ra

v
e

l,
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 b

e
lo

w
, 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 u

s
 t

a
c
k
le

 t
h

is
 i
s
s
u

e
.

!
 

F
u

n
d

in
g

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 s
ti
m

u
la

te
d

 ‘
b

o
tt

o
m

 u
p

’ 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 s

o
lu

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 o

v
e

rc
o

m
in

g
 t

h
e

 b
a

rr
ie

rs
 t
o

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 e

a
ti
n

g
,

a
c
ti
v
e

 l
iv

e
s
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
e

 t
ra

v
e

l.
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it
y
 g

ra
n

ts
 w

e
re

 a
w

a
rd

e
d

 a
s
 f

o
llo

w
s
: 

8
0

 ‘
c
a

n
 d

o
’ 
g

ra
n

ts
 o

f 
u

p
 t

o
 £

5
0

0
, 
2

4
 ‘
s
m

a
ll 

g
ra

n
ts

’ 
o

f 
u

p
 t
o

 £
5

,0
0

0
 

a
n

d
 1

6
 ‘
p

ro
je

c
t 

g
ra

n
ts

’ 
o
f 

u
p

 t
o

 £
1

5
,0

0
0

. 
  

 

!
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 h

o
w

 w
e

 c
a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 f

o
o

d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

 n
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

in
te

rv
e

n
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h

is
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

d
 t
h

e
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o

n
 o

f 

3
8

 f
o

o
d

 o
u

tl
e

ts
 u

n
d

e
r 

th
e

 F
o

o
d

 f
o

r 
H

e
a

lt
h

 A
w

a
rd

s
, 

1
6

8
 f

a
m

ili
e

s
 a

tt
e

n
d

in
g
 2

4
 C

o
o

k
4

L
if
e

 c
o

u
rs

e
s
, 
a

n
d

 l
o

c
a

l 
fa

s
t 

fo
o

d
 o

u
tl
e
ts

 a
tt

e
n

d
in

g

h
e

a
lt
h

y
 f

ry
in

g
 w

o
rk

s
h

o
p
s
. 

3
0

Page 86



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

!
 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 a

p
p

ro
v
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

lly
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e

 r
e

s
to

ra
ti
o

n
 o

f 

P
o

p
la

r 
B

a
th

s
. 

T
h

e
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 A

n
n

u
a

l 
R

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 S

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 s

h
o

w
e

d
 u

s
e

r 
s
a

ti
s
fa

c
ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 l
e

is
u

re
 f
a

c
ili

ti
e

s
 u

p
 6

%
 f

ro
m

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 t
o

 7
1

%
. 

 

!
 

A
n

 e
x
te

n
s
iv

e
 S

p
o

rt
s
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 

ta
rg

e
te

d
 a

t 
a

 w
id

e
 r

a
n

g
e

 o
f 

u
n

d
e

r 
re

p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 a

n
d

 M
ile

E
n

d
 S

ta
d

iu
m

 c
o

n
ti
n

u
e

s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
e

x
e

m
p

la
r 

fo
r 

s
u

c
h

 w
o

rk
. 

T
h

e
 F

re
e

 S
w

im
 F

ri
d

a
y
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 m
e

a
n

s
 a

ll 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 r

e
s
id

e
n

ts
 c

a
n

 

a
c
c
e

s
s
 t
o

 f
re

e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
. 

T
h

e
 i
n

tr
o
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n

 o
n

ly
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
lt
h

y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 r
e

s
u

lt
e

d
 i
n

 a
 s

ig
n

if
ic

a
n

t

in
c
re

a
s
e

 i
n
 w

o
m

e
n

 t
a

k
in

g
 u

p
 s

w
im

m
in

g
. 

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 b

u
d

g
e

ti
n

g
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il,

 G
L

L
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 M

u
s
lim

 W
o

m
e

n
’s

 

C
o

lle
c
ti
v
e

 h
a

v
e

 c
re

a
te

d
 a

 b
re

a
k
th

ro
u

g
h

 r
e

c
ru

it
m

e
n

t,
 t

ra
in

in
g

 a
n

d
 e

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e

 f
o

r 
w

o
m

e
n

 l
if
e

g
u

a
rd

s
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 h
e
lp

 a
d

d
re

s
s
 t

h
e

 

s
h

o
rt

a
g

e
 o

f 
w

o
m

e
n

 l
if
e

g
u

a
rd

s
, 

w
h

ic
h

 p
re

s
e

n
ts

 a
 b

a
rr

ie
r 

to
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
w

im
m

in
g

 f
o

r 
M

u
s
lim

 w
o

m
e

n
 a

n
d

 g
ir

ls
. 

!
 

T
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
 a

 f
a

r 
re

a
c
h

in
g

 a
c
ti
v
e

 t
ra

v
e

l 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
h

ic
h

 i
s
 p

ro
m

o
ti
n

g
 c

y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d

 w
a

lk
in

g
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o
ls

, 

G
P

 s
u

rg
e

ri
e

s
, 

w
o

rk
p

la
c
e
s
, 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
s
 f

o
r 

p
e
o

p
le

 o
f 

a
ll 

a
b

ili
ti
e
s
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e

n
 e

n
c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
: 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 2
0

0
7

 a
n
d

 2
0

0
9

 t
h

e
 

p
ro

p
o

rt
io

n
 o

f 
C

o
u

n
c
il 

e
m

p
lo

y
e

e
s
 c

y
c
lin

g
 t

o
 w

o
rk

 r
o

s
e

 f
ro

m
 3

%
 t

o
 8

%
. 

!
 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 w

a
s
 t

h
e

 f
ir

s
t 

P
ri

m
a

ry
 C

a
re

 T
ru

s
t 

in
 t

h
e

 c
o

u
n

tr
y
 t

o
 f

u
lly

 f
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 S

u
s
tr

a
n

s
 B

ik
e
 I

t 
p

ro
je

c
t,

 w
h

ic
h

 d
e

liv
e

rs
 a

 r
a

n
g

e
 o

f 

p
ro

m
o

ti
o

n
a

l 
a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t

o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 

1
2

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r.

 I
n

 2
0

1
0

 t
h

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

o
n

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

d
o

n
 T

ra
n

s
p
o

rt
 a

w
a

rd
 f

o
r 

c
y
c
lin

g
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

.

!
 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 h

a
s
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 a

 r
a
n

g
e

 o
f 

o
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h

a
t 

lie
 o

u
ts

id
e

 t
h

e
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
fo

r 
e

x
a

m
p

le
 t

h
e

 

O
s
m

a
n

i 
Y

o
u

th
 T

ru
s
t 

a
re

 c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e

d
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

A
c
ti
v
e

 P
la

y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 t

o
 o

v
e

r 
3

5
0

 d
if
fe

re
n

t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 p

e
r 

y
e

a
r,

 1
6

 p
ri

m
a

ry
 s

c
h

o
o

l 
b

a
s
e

d
 

b
re

a
k
fa

s
t 

c
lu

b
s
 a

re
 f

u
n

d
e

d
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
c
h

ild
re

n
 h

a
v
e

 a
 n

u
tr

it
io

u
s
 m

e
a

l 
to

 s
ta

rt
 t

h
e

 d
a

y
 a

n
d

 a
 P

u
b

lic
 H

e
a

lt
h

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 d

ie
ti
c
ia

n
 i
s
 i
n

 p
o
s
t 

fo
r 

3
 d

a
y
s
 p

e
r 

w
e

e
k
. 

!
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 o
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
s
 s

u
c
h

 a
s
 c

h
ild

re
n

 c
e

n
tr

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 e

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 

F
o

r 
in

s
ta

n
c
e
, 

3
0

 

v
e

n
u

e
s
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g

 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a

ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

re
a

s
tf

e
e

d
in

g
 W

e
lc

o
m

e
 S

c
h

e
m

e
, 

a
n

d
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o

n
 s

c
h

e
m

e
s
 o

n
 h

e
a

lt
h

y
 e

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 

p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 w

e
re

 l
a

u
n

c
h

e
d

 i
n

 c
h
ild

re
n

’s
 c

e
n

tr
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

e
a

rl
y
 y

e
a

rs
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
o

rk
 p

la
c
e

s
. 

!
 

3
0

 s
m

a
ll 

g
ra

n
ts

 w
e

re
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 p
u

p
ils

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 P
u

p
il 

L
e

d
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 s
c
h

e
m

e
 t

o
 e

m
p

o
w

e
r 

C
Y

P
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
 t

o
 s

e
t 

u
p

 a
n

d
 r

u
n

 t
h

e
ir

 o
w

n
 

s
m

a
ll 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
im

e
d

 a
t 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 e

a
ti
n

g
 o

p
ti
o

n
s
 i
n

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
. 

 

!
 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 m
a

d
e

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n

t 
p

ro
g

re
s
s
 b

u
ild

in
g

 h
e

a
lt
h

 i
n

to
 o

u
r 

u
rb

a
n

 p
la

n
n

in
g

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a

m
p

le
 w

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 a
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l 
fo

r 
a

 G
re

e
n

 G
ri

d
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 c
re

a
te

 a
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 

g
re

e
n

 s
p

a
c
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
a

lk
in

g
 a

n
d

 c
y
c
lin

g
 r

o
u

te
s
 a

n
d

 w
e

 h
a

v
e

 w
o

rk
e

d
 w

it
h

 t
e
n

a
n

ts
 o

n
 3

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 e

s
ta

te
s
 t

o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 h

o
w

 

p
la

n
n

e
rs

 c
a
n

 b
e

tt
e

r 
b

u
ild

 i
n

 h
e

a
lt
h

y
 e

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 p
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n

 t
o

 h
o

u
s
in

g
 r

e
d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 

!
 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 h

a
s
 c

o
n

ti
n

u
e

d
 t
o

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 t
h

e
 C

a
re

 C
lo

s
e

r 
to

 H
o

m
e

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

C
a

re
 C

lo
s
e

r 
to

 H
o

m
e

 w
ill

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 

e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

,

p
a

ti
e

n
t 

a
c
c
e
s
s
, 

q
u

a
lit

y
 a

n
d

 c
o

s
t 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
ie

s
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 m
a

jo
r 

a
n

d
 l
o

n
g

 t
e

rm
 c

h
a

n
g

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 e
n

h
a

n
c
e

 t
h

e
 c

a
p

a
c
it
y
 a

n
d

 c
a

p
a

b
ili

ty
 

o
f 

th
e

 l
o

c
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a

re
 e

c
o

n
o

m
y
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

b
e

tt
e

r 
h

e
a

lt
h

 o
u

tc
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

W
e

 h
a

v
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 o
u

r 
p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 b
y
 

p
ro

d
u

c
in

g
 d

e
ta

ile
d

 l
o

c
a

lit
y
 h

e
a

lt
h

 n
e

e
d

s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

re
 c

o
-l

o
c
a

te
d

 b
a

s
e

d
 o

n
 n

e
e

d
. 

3
1

Page 87



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

!
 

O
f 

o
u

r 
e

ig
h

t 
W

o
rl

d
 C

la
s
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 g

o
a

ls
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 m
e

t 
s
ix

 o
f 

th
e

m
: 

C
h

ild
h

o
o

d
 I
m

m
u

n
is

a
ti
o

n
, 

S
m

o
k
in

g
 C

e
s
s
a

ti
o

n
, 
C

a
rd

io
-V

a
s
c
u

la
r

D
is

e
a

s
e

 M
o

rt
a

lit
y
, 

D
ia

b
e

te
s
, 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 B

re
a

s
t 

S
c
re

e
n

in
g

. 
L

a
s
t 
y
e

a
r 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 w

a
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e

d
 a

s
 o

n
e
 o

f 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 

c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 C
a

re
 T

ru
s
ts

 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y
. 

W
e

 w
e

re
 a

s
s
e

s
s
e
d

 a
g

a
in

 i
n

 M
a

rc
h

 2
0

1
0

 a
n

d
 a

lt
h

o
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 f

o
rm

a
l 
re

s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 u

n
ti
l 
J
u

n
e

 2
0
1

0
 o

u
r 

in
it
ia

l 
fe

e
d

b
a

c
k
 w

a
s
 v

e
ry

 p
o

s
it
iv

e
, 

h
ig

h
lig

h
ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

a
m

b
it
io

u
s
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d

 s
tr

a
te

g
ie

s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 w

a
y
 w

e
 w

o
rk

e
d

 i
n

 a
 

v
e

ry
 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 w

a
y
 w

it
h

 a
ll 

s
ta

k
e

h
o

ld
e
rs

. 

!
 

A
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

o
u

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t

o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

g
re

a
te

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t 

in
 h

e
a

lt
h

 c
a

re
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 s
e

t 
u

p
 t

h
e

 D
e

liv
e

ry
 B

o
a

rd
 G

ro
u

p
 w

h
ic

h
 m

e
e

ts
 e

a
c
h

 m
o

n
th

 t
o

 

re
v
ie

w
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

 i
n

 f
iv

e
 k

e
y
 a

re
a

s
: 

S
ta

y
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

y
, 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

, 
P

o
ly

s
y
s
te

m
s
, 

A
c
c
e

s
s
 &

 U
rg

e
n

t 
C

a
re

 a
n

d
 O

rg
a

n
is

a
ti
o

n
a

l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t.

 E
a

rl
y
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o

n
 i
s
 t

h
e
s
e

 f
o

c
u

s
e

d
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 s

u
c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
in

 d
ri

v
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.

 

3
2

Page 88



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

R
e

d
u

c
e

 d
if

fe
re

n
c

e
s

 i
n

 p
e

o
p

le
’s

 h
e

a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a
lt

h
y
 l
if

e
s

ty
le

s
 

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

r 
R

e
f

In
d

ic
a
to

r 
d

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

im
L

a
s

t
Y

e
a
r

T
h

is
Y

e
a
r

2
0

0
9

/1
0

 
T

a
rg

e
t 

3
 y

e
a

r 
d

ir
e
c
ti

o
n

o
f 

tr
a

v
e

l 

S
5
0
1

A
d

u
lt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o

n
 i
n

 s
p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
c
ti
v
e

 r
e
c
re

a
ti
o

n
 

H
ig

h
e

r 
1

7
.7

1
7

1
8

.7
"

S
5
0
4

L
A

A
N

I5
6

P
e
rc

e
n

ta
g

e
 o

f 
c
h

il
d

re
n

 i
n

 Y
e
a
r 

6
 w

it
h

 h
e
ig

h
t 

a
n

d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

re
c
o

rd
e
d

 w
h

o
 

a
re

 o
b

e
s
e

. 
L

o
w

e
r 

2
4

.4
9

2
5

.7
2

3
.6

N
o

 d
a

ta
 

S
5
0
6

L
A

A
N

I1
1
2

 
U

n
d

e
r 

1
8

 c
o

n
c

e
p

ti
o

n
 r

a
te

 
L

o
w

e
r 

-2
0

.8
-4

2
.1

-4
4

!
S

5
0
7

L
A

A
N

I1
2
0

a
A

ll
-a

g
e

 a
ll

 c
a
u

s
e

 m
o

rt
a

li
ty

 r
a

te
 -

 M
a

le
 

L
o

w
e
r 

8
5

6
.1

4
T

B
C

8
0

4
N

o
 d

a
ta

S
5
0
8

L
A

A
N

I1
2
0

b
A

ll
-a

g
e

 a
ll

 c
a
u

s
e

 m
o

rt
a

li
ty

 r
a

te
 -

 F
e

m
a

le
 

L
o

w
e
r 

5
7

7
T

B
C

5
5

5
N

o
 d

a
ta

S
5
0
9

L
A

A
N

I1
2
3

 
S

to
p

p
in

g
 s

m
o

k
in

g
 

H
ig

h
e

r
1

2
5

3
1

4
8

9
1

0
4

3
!

3
3

Page 89



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

T
h

e
m

e
H

e
a

lt
h

y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
  

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

O
b

je
c

ti
v

e
s

!
P

ro
v

id
in

g
 h

ig
h

-q
u

a
li

ty
 a

c
c

e
s

s
ib

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
  

!
C

o
m

b
a

ti
n

g
 d

is
c

ri
m

in
a

ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
s

t 
in

d
iv

id
u

a
ls

 a
n

d
 g

ro
u

p
s

 w
it

h
 m

e
n

ta
l 

h
e

a
lt

h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s
 

!
E

n
s

u
ri

n
g

 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
it

h
 m

u
lt

ip
le

 h
e

a
lt

h
 n

e
e

d
s

 

A
c
h

ie
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 p

la
n

n
e

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

!
 

A
 m

u
lt
i-

a
g

e
n

c
y
 s

tr
a

te
g

y
 g

ro
u

p
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e

d
, 

a
n

d
 a

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 O
ld

e
r 

P
e

o
p

le
’s

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 N
e

e
d

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
w

a
s
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

0
9

. 
A

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n

 f
o

r 
th

e
 d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

. 
 

!
 

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
in

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
fr

o
m

 N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il 

w
ill

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a

n
 e

x
p

a
n

d
e

d
 m

e
m

o
ry

 s
e

rv
ic

e
, 

d
e

m
e

n
ti
a

a
d

v
is

o
rs

 p
o
s
ts

 a
n

d
 a

 d
e
m

e
n

ti
a

 l
ia

is
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

t 
th

e
 R

o
y
a

l 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 H

o
s
p

it
a

l.
 T

h
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 a
g

re
e

d
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 w

it
h

 E
a

s
t 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 

a
n

d
 t

h
e

 C
it
y
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 T
ru

s
t 

fo
r 

re
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n

g
 o

f 
c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

!
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 N
e

w
 H

o
ri

z
o

n
s
 I

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 B

o
a

rd
, 

c
h

a
ir

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 D
e

p
u

ty
 C

E
O

 o
f 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a

m
le

ts
, 

h
a

s
 m

e
t 

fo
r 

th
e

 f
ir

s
t 

ti
m

e
. 
S

e
n

io
r

re
p

re
s
e

n
ta

ti
v
e

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 i
n

v
it
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il’

s
 A

d
u

lt
 a

n
d

 C
h

ild
re

n
’s

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s
; 

th
e

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

; 
E

a
s
t 

L
o

n
d

o
n

 

F
o

u
n

d
a

ti
o

n
 T

ru
s
t 

a
n

d
 N

H
S

 T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

, 
to

g
e

th
e

r 
w

it
h

 l
o

c
a

l 
e

x
p

e
rt

s
 i
n
 c

ri
m

in
a

l 
ju

s
ti
c
e

 a
n

d
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

, 
e
q

u
a

lit
ie

s
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 t

h
e

 

v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 s
e

c
to

r 
a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
rs

. 
T

h
is

 B
o

a
rd

 w
ill

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 n

e
w

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

a
t 

a
d

d
re

s
s
e

s
 l
o
c
a

l 

n
e

e
d

 a
n

d
 d

e
liv

e
rs

 n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
p

o
lic

y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
a
g

e
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 

 

!
 

U
s
in

g
 t

h
e

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 b
a

s
e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h

e
 p

a
n

-L
o

n
d

o
n

 C
a

s
e

 f
o

r 
C

h
a

n
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
e

c
to

r-
w

id
e

 r
e

v
ie

w
, 

th
e

 P
a

rt
n

e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 e
x
a

m
in

e
 o

p
ti
o

n
s

fo
r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 r

e
-d

e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d

 c
a

re
 p

a
th

w
a

y
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

th
a

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

 t
h

e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 w

h
ils

t 
d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 p
ro

d
u

c
ti
v
it
y
 g

a
in

s
 a

n
d

 

e
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
. 

!
 

W
e

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

 J
o

in
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 N
e

e
d

s
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
(J

S
N

A
) 

in
to

 c
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

’s
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
, 

th
e

 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 g

iv
e

 u
s
 a

 b
e

tt
e

r 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 o

f 
n

e
e

d
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

le
 u

s
 t

o
 b

e
tt

e
r 

s
h

a
p

e
 a

n
d

 t
a
rg

e
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
. 

W
e

 a
re

 p
a

rt
ic

u
la

rl
y

in
te

re
s
te

d
 i
n
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
re

 a
re

 g
o

o
d

 r
e

fe
rr

a
l 
ro

u
te

s
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 u

n
iv

e
rs

a
l 
a

n
d

 m
o

re
 t

a
rg

e
te

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
; 

a
n

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

a
tt
e

rn
 o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

m
a

tc
h

e
s
 t

h
e

 p
a

tt
e

rn
 o

f 
n
e

e
d

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 r
a

ti
o

n
a

le
 f

o
r 

th
e

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

th
e

 b
o

ro
u

g
h

’s
 F

a
m

ily
 W

e
ll 

B
e

in
g

 M
o

d
e

l,
 w

h
ic

h
 a

im
s
 t

o
 

s
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 t

h
e

 w
e

lf
a

re
 o

f 
c
h

ild
re

n
 b

y
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e

 c
o

-o
rd

in
a

ti
o

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s
 a

n
d

 f
o

c
u

s
in

g
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
 a

t 

th
e

 w
h

o
le

 f
a

m
ily

.

!
 

T
o

w
e

r 
H

a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 d

e
liv

e
ri

n
g

 a
n

d
 m

a
in

s
tr

e
a

m
in

g
 a

 s
u

c
c
e

s
s
fu

l 
T

a
rg

e
te

d
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 i
n

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

. 

3
4

Page 90



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 1

 

!
 

O
u

r 
s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 s
h

if
t 

to
 p

re
v
e

n
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 e
a

rl
y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 c

o
n

ti
n
u

e
d

 d
u

ri
n

g
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 i
m

p
a

c
t 

o
f 

th
is

 w
o

rk
 c

a
n

 b
e

 s
e

e
n

 i
n
 t

h
e

 r
e

d
u

c
ti
o
n

 o
f 

re
s
id

e
n

ti
a

l 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
la

c
e

m
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 1

4
2

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

/0
9

 t
o
 1

3
1

 f
o

r 
2

0
0
9

/1
0

. 
T

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
 a

g
e

 o
f 
o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

 h
a

s
 a

ls
o

 r
is

e
n

 

fr
o

m
 8

0
 y

e
a

rs
 i
n

 2
0

0
4

/0
5

 t
o

 8
3

.5
 y

e
a

rs
 i
n

 2
0

0
9

/1
0

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n

d
ic

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

 w
h

ic
h

 p
ro

v
id

e
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d

re
h

a
b

ili
ta

ti
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 w

e
llb

e
in

g
 a

n
d
 h

e
lp

in
g

 p
e

o
p

le
 s

ta
y
 i
n

d
e

p
e

n
d

e
n

t 
fo

r 
lo

n
g

e
r.

  

!
 

In
 o

rd
e

r 
to

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 c

a
re

 f
o

r 
y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 w
it
h

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n

t 
in

 t
h

e
 C

Y
P

P
 2

0
0

9
-

2
0

1
2

 t
o

 r
e

v
ie

w
 o

u
r 

e
m

o
ti
o

n
a

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 w

e
ll 

b
e

in
g

 p
ro

v
is

io
n

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

w
e

 c
a

n
 r

e
-s

h
a

p
e

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 i
n

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 r
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

n
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
C

A
M

H
S

 r
e

v
ie

w
 p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 i
n

 2
0

0
8

. 
In

 a
d

d
it
io

n
, 

th
e

 C
h

ild
re

n
 a

n
d

 Y
o

u
n

g
 P

e
o

p
le

’s
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 a
n
d

 W
e

ll 
B

e
in

g
 D

e
v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

P
la

n

is
 c

u
rr

e
n

tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
fr

e
s
h

e
d

. 
 

3
5

Page 91



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
. 
P

ro
d
u
c
e
 n

e
w

 E
q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

g
e
, 

ra
c
e
, 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 r

e
lig

io
n
/b

e
lie

f 
to

 

c
o
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
e
x
is

ti
n
g
 g

e
n
d
e
r 

a
n
d
 d

is
a
b
ili

ty
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
s

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

6
5
%

R
a
c
e
, 
A

g
e
, 
S

e
x
u
a
l 
O

ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 R

e
lig

io
n
/ 
B

e
lie

f 
S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 

a
n
d
 w

e
re

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 J
u
ly

 2
0
0
9
. 
D

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
re

a
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 s

ta
ff
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

re
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

re
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
la

u
n
c
h
 W

o
m

e
n
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 I
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 n

e
tw

o
rk

 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 S
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

b
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

W
o
rk

s
h
o
p
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
W

o
m

e
n
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 I
n
c
lu

s
iv

e
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 

(W
IT

H
IN

) 
to

 e
x
p
lo

re
 h

o
w

 b
e
s
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 w

o
m

e
n
's

 v
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 s

e
c
to

r.
  
A

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 N

e
tw

o
rk

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
 i
n
to

 r
e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 G

e
n
d
e
r 

E
q
u
a
lit

y
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 

2
0
1
0
-1

3
.

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 S

to
n
e
w

a
ll 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

c
a
lly

 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 W

o
rk

p
la

c
e
 I
n
d
e
x
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
e
x
u
a
l 
o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 c

o
n
fe

re
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

fo
r 

lo
c
a
l 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 g
o
o
d
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
. 
 T

h
e
 s

e
m

in
a
r 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 t
h
e

W
o
rk

p
la

c
e
 E

q
u
a
lit

y
 I
n
d
e
x
 t
o
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

c
o
u
n
c
ils

 t
o
 

jo
in

. 
 A

 f
o
llo

w
 u

p
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 w
h
o
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 w

a
s
 h

e
ld

 i
n
 

J
a
n
u
a
ry

 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
w

e
 c

a
n
 w

o
rk

 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 s
e
x
u
a
l 
o
ri
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 C

o
u
n
c
il/

P
C

T
 j
o
in

t 
P

a
n
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 P

a
n
e
l 
to

 

im
p
ro

v
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 

2
0
0
9

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
n
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
ro

lm
e
n
t 
d
a
y
 t
o
 r

e
c
ru

it
 f
o
r 

th
e
 P

a
n
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 P

a
n
e
l 
w

a
s
 a

tt
e
n
d
e
d
 

b
y
 1

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

. 
 O

n
e
 s

u
b
 g

ro
u
p
 h

a
s
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
u
p
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
rs

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 

re
c
ru

it
e
d
 t
o
. 
 T

h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
h
a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 u

s
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
a
u
d
ie

n
c
e
.

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
.

Im
p
ro

v
e
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 f
o
r 

e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 

s
m

a
lle

r 
B

M
E

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 
R

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 b

e
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 E

q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 S

te
e
ri
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 b

y
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

P
ra

x
is

, 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
th

ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
w

a
s
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 

in
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
: 

1
) 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
, 

in
v
o
lv

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

t 
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

a
n
d
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
le

v
e
l.
 

2
) 

S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 a

n
d
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
d
e
c
is

io
n
 

m
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

la
y
 a

n
 a

c
ti
v
e
 p

a
rt

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 

T
h
re

e
 s

e
m

in
a
rs

 b
ri
n
g
in

g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 n

e
w

 m
ig

ra
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
ld

 o
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
. 
 A

 m
a
p
p
in

g
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
  
in

fo
rm

a
l 
ro

u
te

s
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 w

h
ic

h
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
e
d
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
 A

 p
a
p
e
r 

o
n
 t
h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
a
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 C

E
S

G
 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
. 
T

h
is

 

p
ro

je
c
t 
w

ill
 r

u
n
 t
ill

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 i
s
 o

n
ly

 5
0
%

 c
o
m

p
le

te
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.1
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 i
n

e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s
 a

n
d

 f
o

s
te

r 
s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n

1
.1

.1
 T

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 i
n

e
q

u
a
li
ti

e
s

1
.1

.2
 F

o
s
te

r 
s
tr

o
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 c

o
h

e
s
io

n

1
.1

.3
 P

ro
v
id

e
 s

tr
o

n
g

 c
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 l
e
a
d

e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 i
n

c
lu

s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
a
g
e
 1

Page 92



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
E

n
d

 Y
e
a
r 

S
ta

tu
s

%
 C

o
m

p
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

2
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 r
o
le

 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
a
g
e
n
d
a
, 
e
n
s
u
re

 a
 

v
ib

ra
n
t 
lo

c
a
l 
d
e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
 a

n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 c

iv
ic

 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

9
5
%

T
h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 i
n
to

 S
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 L

e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 d

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 

p
a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

, 
a
lo

n
g
 w

it
h
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
, 
w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
e
a
rl

y

in
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 m
u
n
ic

ip
a
l 
y
e
a
r.

 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
C

o
u
n
c
ill

o
r 

C
a
ll 

fo
r 

A
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
C

C
fA

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 

b
y
 C

M
T

 a
n
d
 O

S
C

 a
n
d
 t
e
s
te

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

n
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

. 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 D
e
liv

e
ry

 G
ro

u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 a

n
d
 

w
e
lc

o
m

e
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

. 
C

C
fA

 w
ill

 b
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 f
ro

m
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0
 w

it
h
 f
ir
s
t 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 D

ig
e
s
t 
re

p
o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 i
n
 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 E
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 M

o
d
e
l 
o
f 
G

o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e

J
o
h
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 
2
1
0
3
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 

S
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
, 
a
 p

e
ti
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
o
r 

a
 M

a
y
o
ra

l 
R

e
fe

re
n
d
u
m

. 
 N

e
w

 e
x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
a
d
o
p
te

d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
, 
re

fe
re

n
d
u
m

 t
o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 6
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0
.

D
ra

ft
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 ‘
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 C

o
n
tr

o
l’ 

W
h
it
e
 P

a
p
e
r

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
G

ro
u
p
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 r
e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

M
T

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 
T

h
is

 

in
c
lu

d
e
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 C

C
fA

 a
n
d
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

o
le

 o
f 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 i
n
 

th
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

. 
C

M
T

 h
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 

p
e
ti
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
e
-p

e
ti
ti
o
n
s
.

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

e
m

b
e
d
 O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 b
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
o
h
e
s
io

n
 i
s
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 

e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
 i
n
to

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

9
0
%

P
ro

je
c
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 u

s
in

g
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
A

m
b
it
io

n
 f
u
n
d
in

g
. 
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 r

e
a
d
y
 f
o
r 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
.

P
a
g
e
 2

Page 93



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
E

n
d

 Y
e
a
r 

S
ta

tu
s

%
 C

o
m

p
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

3
. 
A

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 r

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

ill
 

b
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
in

g
 a

 m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 t
o
 C

M
T

 f
o
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g
 f
u
tu

re
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
D

e
m

a
n
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 w
o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t
o
 o

v
e
rs

e
e
 i
ts

 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

H
e
a
d
s
 o

f 
H

R
 t
o
 r

e
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 w
a
y
s
 i
n
 w

h
ic

h
 t
h
e
ir
 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 c
a
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

p
e
n
d
. 
P

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 b
y
 

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r
3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 s
e
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

R
e
v
ie

w
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 i
n
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
 t
o
 

in
fo

rm
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 f
u
tu

re
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 u

s
a
g
e
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 

2
0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s
)

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 e

v
e
ry

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 H

e
a
d
 b

y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 
T

h
e
 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 w

e
re

 s
h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 D

M
T

s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
a
 V

a
c
a
n
c
y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 f
o
c
u
s
 a

tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 o

n
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 c

a
re

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
ta

ff
 a

t 
s
e
n
io

r 
le

v
e
ls

 a
n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 u

s
e
 

in
te

ri
m

s
. 
G

u
id

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 a

ls
o
 i
s
s
u
e
d
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
 o

n
 h

o
w

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff
. 
A

n
 H

R
 a

n
d
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 C
a
p
a
c
it
y
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 w

o
rk

 s
tr

e
a
m

 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 

w
o
rk

.

C
o
n
s
id

e
r 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

im
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 D

a
ta

 b
y
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 

(S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s
)

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 
 S

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 

b
y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
w

it
h
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
a
rg

e
ts

 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
9
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 l
o
c
a
l 
ta

le
n
t 
p
o
o
l 
b
y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
M

T
 a

n
d
 E

le
c
te

d
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 t
h
is

 p
ro

p
o
s
a
l 
w

it
h
 a

 V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 

A
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

a
 m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
is

 

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 i
s
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

M
T

.

1
.2

.2
 R

e
c
ru

it
in

g
, 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 a

n
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e

1
.2

.3
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
 a

n
d

 j
o

in
e
d

 u
p

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 t

h
e
 d

e
li
v
e
ry

 o
f 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 p

ri
o

ri
ti

e
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 1

.2
: 

W
o

rk
 e

ff
ic

ie
n

tl
y
 a

n
d

 e
ff

e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 a
s
 O

n
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

1
.2

.1
 E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 v

a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

m
o

n
e
y
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t

h
e
 C

o
u

n
c
il

P
a
g
e
 3

Page 94



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 P

la
n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 Y

e
a
r 

1
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 C

M
T

 a
n
d
 L

A
B

. 
E

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

re
p
o
rt

 t
o
 b

e
 

s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 J
u
ly

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
s
 a

n
d
 o

v
e
rv

ie
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 

b
y
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t.

D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

/C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t.
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
, 
N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
. 
B

e
in

g
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 a

s
 C

a
p
a
c
it
y
 a

n
d
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 w

o
rk

 

s
tr

e
a
m

 o
f 
n
e
w

 H
R

 a
n
d
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
 B

a
s
e
lin

e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 m

e
tr

ic
s
 

c
ir
c
u
la

te
d
 t
o
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
.

L
o
c
a
l 
g
ra

d
u
a
te

 c
a
re

e
r 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
0
9

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

rt
e
d
 -

 e
x
p
e
c
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
rs

 

o
f 
g
ra

d
u
a
te

 p
la

c
e
s
 d

o
u
b
le

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
.

9
0
 A

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
 w

o
rk

-b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
o
lli

n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
re

c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

rt
e
d
 -

 e
x
p
e
c
t 
to

 m
e
e
t 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 
 N

u
m

b
e
rs

 

o
f 
a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

 p
la

c
e
s
 d

o
u
b
le

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 a

n
d
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
A

la
n
 F

in
c
h

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 
 A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
 t
o
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 w
a
y
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 a

llo
w

 t
h
e
 

a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

ir
c
u
m

s
ta

n
c
e
s
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 b

y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
.

C
o
n
fi
rm

 t
h
e
 E

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
 b

y
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
.

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 a

n
 i
n
it
ia

l 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 l
a
rg

e
-

s
c
a
le

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
2
/1

3
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
9

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
. 
 W

o
rk

 

is
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 o

n
 t
h
e
 M

e
d
iu

m
 T

e
rm

 F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
P

la
n
 c

o
v
e
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 2

0
1
1
/1

2
 -

2
0
1
3
/1

4
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
1

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
1
/1

2
-1

2
/1

3
 

b
y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 t
o
o
k
 p

la
c
e
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
.

P
a
g
e
 4

Page 95



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

s
s
e
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

to
 e

n
a
b
le

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 a

s
s
e
ts

 t
o
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 

e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

a
y

A
n
d
y
 A

lg
a
r

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

F
o
r 

th
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
fo

u
r 

o
f 
th

e
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 a

re
 f
u
lly

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
w

h
ile

 t
w

o
 a

re
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 (

in
 J

u
n
e
) 

o
f 
th

e
 L

A
P

S
3
/4

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

 a
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u
ll 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 

(M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
) 

a
re

 r
e
a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
's

 d
e
la

y
, 
c
o
u
p
le

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
o
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

fr
o
m

 o
c
c
u
p
ie

rs
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 W

o
rk

in
g
 

G
ro

u
p
 f
u
lly

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d

A
n
d
y
 A

lg
a
r

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

F
in

a
lis

e
 d

iv
is

io
n
a
l 
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

A
n
d
y
 A

lg
a
r

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

A
s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff

A
n
d
y
 A

lg
a
r

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
0
%

P
ilo

t 
o
n
 L

A
P

S
 3

/4
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
, 
fu

ll 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 

2
0
1
1
. 
O

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
re

v
is

e
d
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e

O
n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 D

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 

w
o
rk

s
 t
o
 b

e
 f
u
lly

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

C
la

ir
e

S
y
m

o
n
d
s

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

1
0
 B

u
ild

in
g
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

o
th

 s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

lt
e
re

d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

s
p
e
n
d
in

g
 £

1
,3

0
0
,0

0
0
.

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 A

s
s
e
t 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
B

o
a
rd

 o
f 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
r 

ro
lli

n
g
 d

is
p
o
s
a
ls

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

A
n
d
y
 A

lg
a
r

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 r

e
g
u
la

ri
s
e
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 

o
c
c
u
p
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
b
u
ild

in
g
s

A
n
d
y
 A

lg
a
r

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

6
7
%

W
o
rk

 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

o
n
e
 t
o
 c

h
a
s
e
 u

p
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 -
 s

o
m

e
 o

c
c
u
p
ie

rs
 a

re
 r

e
fu

s
in

g
 

to
 c

o
o
p
e
ra

te
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 d

e
la

y
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

A
s
s
e
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

A
n
d
y
 A

lg
a
r

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

2
0
%

S
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e
, 
re

v
is

e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

7
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
C

h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 f
o
rm

a
t 
re

p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 d
e
la

y
e
d
 b

y
 o

n
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

d
u
e
 t
o
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 

fo
rm

a
t 
c
a
m

e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 i
n
to

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 f
u
lly

 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
fo

r 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

R
e
fr

e
s
h
 t
h
e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
a
n
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
P

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

re
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 p

re
s
e
n
t 
to

 C
a
b
in

e
t 
o
n
 a

 q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y
 b

a
s
is

, 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 n

e
w

 f
o
rm

a
t 
re

p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 d
e
la

y
e
d
 b

y
 o

n
e
 q

u
a
rt

e
r 

d
u
e
 t
o
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
ie

s
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

in
g
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
. 
T

h
e
 n

e
w

 

fo
rm

a
t 
c
a
m

e
 p

a
rt

ia
lly

 i
n
to

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 f
u
lly

 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
fo

r 
D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
.

P
a
g
e
 5

Page 96



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

8
. 
C

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 C

h
a
n
n
e
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 a

t 
th

e
ir
 

fi
rs

t 
p
o
in

t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 c

h
a
n
n
e
l 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 c

h
o
ic

e

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 f
o
r 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 O

u
tl
in

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e
 f
o
r 

a
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

C
h
a
n
n
e
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

s
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 b

y
, 
th

e
 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

C
la

ir
e

S
y
m

o
n
d
s

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

O
u
tl
in

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 p

re
s
e
n
te

d
 t
o
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r.

 A
c
ti
o
n
s
 n

o
w

 

b
e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
.

A
g
re

e
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 M

a
rc

h
 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 E

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 2

0
0
9
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
la

n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 J

u
n
e
 0

9
. 
A

ll 
a
re

a
s
 o

f 
C

u
s
to

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
s
s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
R

e
-a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 A

p
ri
l 
 2

0
1
0
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 e

x
c
e
lle

n
c
e
 A

w
a
rd

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 w

h
o
le

 

o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

b
y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 w

it
h
 t
w

o
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 a

c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 a

n
d
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
in

a
l 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

a
c
c
re

d
it
a
ti
o
n
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
. 
D

e
la

y
e
d
 A

s
s
e
s
s
o
rs

 f
ro

m
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

9
. 
C

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 f
u
ll 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 I
T

 

in
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 i
s
 l
e
v
e
ra

g
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
e
ff
ic

ie
n
c
ie

s

J
im

 R
o
b
e
rt

s
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

4
5
%

T
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

M
T

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 
T

h
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 d

e
ta

ile
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 w

ill
 f
o
llo

w
 d

u
ri
n
g
 1

0
/1

1
. 
T

h
e
 o

th
e
r 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 

fo
r 

th
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
 l
in

k
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

m
b
e
d
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 a

s
 c

o
n
v
e
y
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
m

ile
s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

R
e
p
la

c
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

P
C

 d
e
s
k
to

p
 w

it
h
 a

 t
h
in

 c
lie

n
t 
v
ir
tu

a
l 

d
e
s
k
to

p
 i
n
fr

a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 –

 p
ro

o
f 
o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
p
t 
p
ilo

t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
9

J
im

 R
o
b
e
rt

s
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
0
%

T
h
e
 p

ro
o
f 
o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
p
t 
is

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
b
u
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
lie

r 
te

c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

in
te

rv
e
n
in

g
 p

e
ri
o
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
, 
th

is
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

ill
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
is

it
e
d
 i
n
 i
ts

 e
n
ti
re

ty
.

C
o
n
s
o
lid

a
te

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 I
C

T
 i
n
to

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 I
C

T
 –

 s
ta

ff
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

r 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

J
im

 R
o
b
e
rt

s
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
T

h
e
 n

e
x
t 
s
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 

IM
S

 i
n
v
o
lv

e
s
 e

x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

IC
T

 a
n
d
 f
in

a
lis

in
g
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 

fo
r 

it
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
.

O
u
tl
in

e
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e
 f
o
r 

In
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
, 

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

 b
y
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

J
im

 R
o
b
e
rt

s
3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

M
T

, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
.

U
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 U

n
if
ie

d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 P

ro
je

c
t 
p
ilo

t 
fo

r 
IC

T
 

a
n
d
 k

e
y
 u

s
e
rs

 b
y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

J
im

 R
o
b
e
rt

s
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

T
h
is

 r
e
m

a
in

s
 o

n
 h

o
ld

 p
e
n
d
in

g
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
d
e
c
is

io
n
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 p

ro
je

c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
.

P
a
g
e
 6

Page 97



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
0
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 s

ta
g
e
 1

 r
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
F

in
a
n
c
ia

l 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
A

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

e
 

e
x
c
e
e
d
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
im

e
ly

 p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
s
u
p
p
lie

rs

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

F
in

a
n
c
e
 A

c
a
d
e
m

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 b

y
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

R
e
q
u
is

it
io

n
 t
o
 P

a
y
 (

R
2
P

) 
fi
n
a
l 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 c

a
s
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 

to
, 
a
n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
, 
T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
1
. 
C

o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

je
c
t 
a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
it
s
 r

e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

t 
a
 l
o
w

e
r 

c
o
s
t

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
e
o
p
le

 R
e
s
o
u
rc

in
g
 a

n
d
 i
-G

ra
s
p
 w

e
n
t 
liv

e
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

Y
e
a
r 

e
n

d
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

H
R

IP
 t
o
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 B

o
a
rd

 f
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 b

y
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
9
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 t
h
e
n
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 w

it
h
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
.

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r
3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

B
o
a
rd

 a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 t
o
 a

 s
in

g
le

 p
h
a
s
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

H
R

IP
 t
o
 C

M
T

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r 
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
p
o
rt

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 C

M
T

 o
n
 t
im

e
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
.

H
R

IP
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
if
 n

e
c
e
s
s
a
ry

 J
u
ly

 2
0
0
9

C
h
ri
s
 N

a
y
lo

r
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
p
o
rt

 d
id

 n
o
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
2
. 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

o
b
u
s
tl
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il,

 e
s
p
e
c
ia

lly
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

re
a
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
d
 p

re
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

C
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 A

re
a
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll 

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 G
re

e
n
 F

la
g
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 A

re
a
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 a

n
d
 s

c
o
re

d
 3

 o
u
t 
o
f 
4
 f
o
r 

b
o
th

 t
h
e
 U

s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 

a
n
d
 M

a
n
a
g
in

g
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

p
le

te
 L

o
c
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 U

s
e
 o

f 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 S

e
lf
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 b
y
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
9

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll 

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 P
R

G
 t
o
 s

c
ru

ti
n
is

e
 6

-m
o
n
th

ly
 L

A
A

 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 b

y
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll 

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

R
e
n
e
w

 L
A

A
 2

n
d
 r

o
u
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
s
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
9

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll 

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

P
a
g
e
 7

Page 98



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
3
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
a
c
q
u
is

it
io

n
 a

n
d
 n

e
w

 b
u
ild

 t
o
 

re
d
u
c
e
 o

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

  
n
o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 R

T
B

 B
u
y
 B

a
c
k
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 M
e
c
h
a
n
is

m
J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
g
re

e
 L

o
c
a
l 
H

o
m

e
s
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 S

c
h
e
m

e
 D

e
ta

ils
J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

C
o
m

p
le

te
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

C
a
b
in

e
t 
A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
to

 H
o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
g
re

e
 O

v
e
rc

ro
w

d
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

L
H

I 
R

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

0
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
g
re

e
 R

e
v
is

e
d
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
s
 P

o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 L

e
tt
in

g
s
 P

la
n

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
g
re

e
d
.

C
o
m

p
le

te
 F

ir
s
t 
tr

a
n
c
h
e
 R

T
B

 B
u
y
 b

a
c
k
s

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

7
0
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

w
it
h
 3

8
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
le

ts
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 6

 p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 n

e
x
t 
y
e
a
r,

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

a
s
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 f
o
r 

2
 y

e
a
rs

.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
fi
rs

t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 
H

o
m

e
s
 I
n
it
ia

ti
v
e

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

p
la

n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 a

n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

u
t 
fo

r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
. 
If
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 p

e
rm

is
s
io

n
 i
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 i
t 
is

 e
n
v
is

a
g
e
d
 s

ta
rt

 o
n
 s

it
e
 w

ill
 b

e
 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

2
.1

.1
 I
n

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll
 s

u
p

p
ly

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 a

 r
a
n

g
e
 o

f 
a
ff

o
rd

a
b

le
, 
fa

m
il
y
 h

o
u

s
in

g

A
 G

re
a
t 

P
la

c
e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.1
: 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

ff
o

rd
a
b

le
 h

o
u

s
in

g
 a

n
d

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

tr
o

n
g

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s

2
.1

.2
 P

ro
v
id

e
 d

e
c
e
n

t 
h

o
m

e
s
 i
n

 w
e
ll
 d

e
s
ig

n
e
d

 s
tr

e
e
ts

 a
n

d
 n

e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s

2
.1

.3
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 n

e
w

 n
e
ig

h
b

o
u

rh
o

o
d

s
 w

it
h

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

iv
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 l
ik

e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
h

e
a
lt

h
c
a
re

 f
a
c
il
it

ie
s
 a

n
d

 l
o

c
a
l 
p

a
rk

s

2
.1

.4
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a
li
ty

 o
f 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 r

e
la

te
d

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

 t
o

 t
e
n

a
n

ts
 a

n
d

 l
e
a
s
e
h

o
ld

e
rs

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
a
g
e
 8

Page 99



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
4
. 
S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 R

S
L
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
 i
) 

S
e
c
u
re

 

p
ri
v
a
te

 a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
n
e
w

 

a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
i)
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

8
0
%

G
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 m

a
jo

ri
ty

 o
f 
m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
 R

e
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 H

C
A

 g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 h

a
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 d

a
te

 f
o
r 

th
is

 p
ie

c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 b
a
c
k
 t
o
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
, 
o
n
 w

h
ic

h
 g

o
o
d
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 I
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
P

ro
s
p
e
c
tu

s
 o

f 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

H
C

A
 f
u
n
d
in

g

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
in

c
e
 t
h
is

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 w

a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 t
h
e
 H

C
A

 h
a
v
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
h
e
 

d
e
a
d
lin

e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 p
ie

c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

IP
 i
n
 

S
e
p
t 
2
0
1
0
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 B

IA
 t
o
 b

e
 s

ig
n
e
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
1
. 
 T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 g

o
o

d

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 o

n
 t
h
is

 p
ie

c
e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 d
e
s
p
it
e
 t
h
e
 d

e
a
d
lin

e
 f
o
r 

th
is

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 b

e
in

g
 o

u
ts

id
e
 

th
e
 0

9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

 

H
o
ld

 f
o
u
r 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

w
it
h
 e

a
c
h
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 R

S
L
 

to
 a

g
re

e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r,

 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
im

in
g
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 p
o
rt

fo
lio

 a
n
d
 t
o
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

H
C

A
 g

ra
n
t 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

; 
c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

o
u
tp

u
t 
d
a
ta

 

o
n
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 q

u
a
n
ti
ty

 a
n
d
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 

n
e
w

 u
n
it
s
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
g
re

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 

J
u
n
e
, 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
n
d
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
 R

S
L
 P

re
fe

rr
e
d
 P

a
rt

n
e
r 

S
c
h
e
m

e
J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
2
1
 R

S
L
s
 w

e
re

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

rv
ie

w
e
d
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
fu

l 
a
p
p
lic

a
n
ts

 b
e
in

g
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 i
n
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0
.

M
o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
R

S
L
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

T
S

A
 a

n
d
 L

B
T

H
’s

 p
re

fe
rr

e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

s
c
h
e
m

e

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

4
0
%

T
S

A
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
, 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 

b
y
 t
h
e
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
ri
n
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 T

H
H

F
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 a

 

s
te

e
ri
n
g
 g

ro
u
p
 w

it
h
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is

 f
o
rw

a
rd

.

R
e
p
o
rt

 “
C

h
o
ic

e
” 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 R

S
L
’s

 “
O

ff
e
r 

P
ro

m
is

e
” 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 L

A
B

, 
tw

ic
e
 y

e
a
rl
y
, 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 

M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 

m
e
m

b
e
r 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 L

A
B

.

P
a
g
e
 9

Page 100



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
5
. 
A

c
h
ie

v
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
th

ro
u
g
h
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 H
o
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 

u
n
lo

c
k
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 D

e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
5
%

T
h
e
 S

IP
 i
s
 a

g
re

e
d
, 
a
s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
. 
T

h
e
 D

e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 

n
o
t 
fi
n
a
lis

e
d
, 
a
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

it
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 5

 y
e
a
r 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 

s
to

c
k
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 n

o
w

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
g
re

e
 T

H
H

 H
o
m

e
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 2

 S
ta

rs

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 S

IP
 A

g
re

e
d

L
e
tt
in

g
s
 P

o
lic

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
R

e
p
o
rt

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 M
a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 a

n
d
 i
s
 n

o
w

 a
g
re

e
d

T
H

H
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
 I
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 I
n
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 A

u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
H

H
 t
o
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
 n

e
w

 s
to

c
k
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
0
%

T
H

H
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
h
e
ir
 s

a
m

p
le

 s
to

c
k
 s

u
rv

e
y
 o

f 
1
0
%

 o
f 
s
to

c
k
. 
T

h
e
y
 a

re
 n

o
w

 

re
v
ie

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 a

 v
ie

w
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

 f
in

a
l 
s
a
m

p
le

 s
u
rv

e
y
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 i
n
 1

s
t 
Q

 2
0
1
0
/1

1

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 D
e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

T
H

H
J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
0
%

S
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
e
n
t 
o
n
 s

to
c
k
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
 s

u
rv

e
y
. 
T

H
H

 a
re

 n
o
w

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

it
h
 

th
e
ir
 D

H
 p

ilo
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
6
. 
R

e
s
h
a
p
e
 m

a
jo

r 
e
s
ta

te
 r

e
n
e
w

a
l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 w
it
h
 k

e
y
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 n
o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
o
b
in

 H
o
o
d
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
, 
s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 G
o
v
. 
R

e
v
ie

w
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 N

e
e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

B
la

c
k
w

a
ll 

R
e
a
c
h
 O

u
tl
in

e
 A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 S

u
b
m

it
te

d
O

w
e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

C
o
tt
a
ll 

S
tr

e
e
t 
s
e
c
o
n
d
 s

ta
g
e
 d

e
s
ig

n
/b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 

fe
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 r
e
v
ie

w

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

O
c
e
a
n
 E

s
ta

te
 B

A
F

O
 (

B
e
s
t 
a
n
d
 F

in
a
l 
O

ff
e
r)

 b
y
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 s
u
b
m

it
te

d

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

S
e
c
u
re

 V
a
c
a
n
t 
P

o
s
s
e
s
s
io

n
 o

b
ta

in
e
d

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

S
ta

rt
 r

e
fu

rb
is

h
m

e
n
t 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 a

 s
in

g
le

 b
lo

c
k
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

p
ilo

t 
p
ro

je
c
t 
(s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 l
e
g
a
l 
a
n
d
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
is

s
u
e
s
 b

e
in

g
 

re
s
o
lv

e
d
)

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
a
g
e
 1

0

Page 101



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
7
. 
E

n
g
a
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 L
e
g
a
c
y
 M

a
s
te

rp
la

n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 

to
 s

e
c
u
re

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 f
o
r 

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
M

F
 p

re
fe

rr
e
d
 o

p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 J

u
ly

 2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

S
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
L
e
g
a
c
y
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 L

D
A

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

E
n
s
u
re

 L
M

F
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 a
re

 e
m

b
e
d
d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 L
o
c
a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 a
s
 p

e
r 

c
o
re

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
im

e
ta

b
le

 

J
u
ly

, 
O

c
to

b
e
r,

 D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
8
. 
F

in
a
lis

e
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 t
o
 d

ri
v
e
 t
h
e
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 F

ra
m

e
w

o
rk

 i
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll.

 H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
w

ill
 

n
o
t 
b
e
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
S

u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
 a

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

S
c
h
e
m

e
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
a
b
in

e
t 
S

ig
n
 o

ff
O

w
e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r,

 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

d
a
te

s
.

C
o
u
n
c
il 

S
ig

n
 o

ff
O

w
e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
0
9
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

In
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
E

x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

E
x
a
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 S

p
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
0
, 
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

c
h
e
m

e
.

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 b

y
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
d
o
p
ti
o
n
 l
ik

e
ly

 f
o
r 

S
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
, 
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 L

o
c
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
S

c
h
e
m

e
.

P
a
g
e
 1

1

Page 102



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
9
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 

im
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
n
e
c
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
n
s
u
re

 i
n
c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 p
o
lic

ie
s
 w

it
h
in

 

th
e
 L

D
A

 C
o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
0
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

C
y
c
lin

g
 P

la
n
 P

u
b
lis

h
e
d

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
0
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

C
o
o
rd

in
a
te

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r 

o
f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
’s

 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 S
tr

a
te

g
y

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
0
. 
U

s
e
 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 a
n
d
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 c

u
lt
u
ra

l,
 s

p
o
rt

in
g
 a

n
d
 c

e
le

b
ra

to
ry

 e
v
e
n
ts

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

, 
C

L
C

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
liv

e
ry

 A
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 S

L
A

’s
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
g
e
n
c
ie

s

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
B

e
s
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

v
o
lu

n
te

e
rs

 b
y
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
g
in

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
a
ra

d
is

e
 G

a
rd

e
n
s
 M

a
jo

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 E

v
e
n
t

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

F
ie

ld
 D

a
y
 /
 U

n
d
e
ra

g
e
 E

v
e
n
t

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 “
L
e
t’
s
 M

a
k
e
 i
t 
H

a
p
p
e
n
” 

b
ra

n
d
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s

to
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
te

 a
n
d
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 b
e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

 b
y
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
rv

e
y

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

R
e
v
ie

w
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
u
rv

e
y
 R

e
s
u
lt
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

2
.2

.3
 E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 g

o
o

d
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t

o
 a

 f
u

ll
 r

a
n

g
e
 o

f 
fa

c
il
it

ie
s
 -

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
s
c
h

o
o

ls
 a

n
d

 l
e
is

u
re

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.2
: 

S
tr

e
n

g
th

e
n

 a
n

d
 c

o
n

n
e
c
t 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s

2
.2

.1
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

u
b

li
c
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

 n
e
tw

o
rk

s
 a

n
d

 e
n

a
b

li
n

g
 m

o
re

 r
e
s
id

e
n

ts
 t

o
 w

a
lk

 a
n

d
 c

y
c
le

 s
a
fe

ly

2
.2

.2
 B

ri
n

g
in

g
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

c
o

m
m

u
n

it
ie

s
 t

o
 f

o
s
te

r 
m

u
tu

a
l 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
, 
a
 c

o
ll
e
c
ti

v
e
 s

e
n

s
e
 o

f 
w

e
ll
b

e
in

g
 a

n
d

 a
v
o

id
 p

e
o

p
le

 b
e
in

g
 i
s
o

la
te

d

P
a
g
e
 1

2

Page 103



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
1
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 P

a
rk

 M
a
s
te

r 

P
la

n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
, 
s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 u

s
a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e
 

P
a
rk

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
to

re
 t
h
e
 h

e
ri
ta

g
e
 l
a
n
d
s
c
a
p
e

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
T

h
e
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 P

a
rk

 M
a
s
te

r 
P

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 

s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
£
4
,5

5
5
,0

0
0
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

je
c
t 
T

e
a
m

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

S
e
c
u
re

 D
e
c
is

io
n
 o

f 
S

ta
g
e
 2

 H
e
ri
ta

g
e
 L

o
tt
e
ry

 F
u
n
d
in

g
 

D
e
c
is

io
n

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
a
s
te

r 
P

la
n
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
2
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 L

iv
e
 S

it
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
it
io

n
 

fo
r 

V
ic

to
ri
a
 P

a
rk

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
lo

c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 a

 f
re

e
 t
o
 

a
c
c
e
s
s
 G

a
m

e
s
 t
im

e
 v

e
n
u
e

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

1
0
%

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 

V
ic

to
ri
a
 P

a
rk

 a
s
 a

n
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 V
e
n
u
e
 (

fo
r 

th
e
 w

a
lk

 e
v
e
n
ts

) 
w

h
ic

h
 p

la
c
e
s
 r

e
s
tr

ic
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
. 
T

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

L
O

C
O

G
 w

e
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 s

p
e
c
if
y
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 P

a
rk

 u
n
ti
l 
in

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 w

h
e
n
 L

O
C

O
G

 a
d
v
is

e
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

th
a
t 
th

e
 w

a
lk

 r
a
c
e
s
 

v
e
n
u
e
 w

a
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t
h
a
t 
it
 w

a
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 P

a
rk

. 
S

u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 s

o
u
g
h
t 
le

g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 r

e
g
u
la

ti
o
n
s
 a

p
p
ly

in
g
 t
o
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 P

a
rk

 d
u
ri
n
g
 G

a
m

e
s
 t
im

e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 w

a
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 

O
ly

m
p
ic

 P
ro

je
c
t 
B

o
a
rd

 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 
C

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 (

A
p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
) 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 G

L
A

 o
n
 a

n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 t
h
e
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 P

a
rk

 L
iv

e
 S

it
e
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 L

O
C

O
G

 o
n
 p

a
rk

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 

in
 G

a
m

e
s
 t
im

e

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
0
1
/0

2
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

2
0
%

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

G
a
m

e
s
 t
im

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

A
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
3
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 

g
o
v
e
rn

in
g
 e

v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

a
rk

s

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

9
5
%

T
h
e
 r

e
g
u
la

to
ry

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

 t
o
 

th
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

u
s
ic

 e
v
e
n
ts

 t
h
a
t 
c
a
n
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
, 
n
o
is

e
 l
e
v
e
ls

, 
a
n
d
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 e

v
e
n
ts

 o
n
 t
h
e
 d

a
y
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

M
a
jo

r 
E

v
e
n
ts

 P
o
lic

y
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

S
u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

 d
e
la

y
e
d
 p

e
n
d
in

g
 f
in

a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
0
1
2
 L

iv
e
 S

it
e
. 
 T

h
e
 p

o
lic

y
 

re
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 
to

 t
e
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y
 t
o
 b

e
 s

o
le

 p
ro

v
id

e
r 

fo
r 

m
a
jo

r 
m

u
s
ic

 

e
v
e
n
ts

 i
n
 V

ic
to

ri
a
 P

a
rk

.

P
a
g
e
 1

3

Page 104



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
4
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 P
la

y
in

g
 P

it
c
h
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

9
0
%

W
o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

a
s
 s

u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 w

h
ile

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
ts

 t
h
in

k
in

g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

th
e
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
d
ra

ft
 i
s
 

n
o
w

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
m

a
n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

F
ir
s
t 
D

ra
ft
 C

o
m

p
le

te
d

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

A
p
p
ro

v
e
d

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

9
0
%

W
o
rk

 o
n
 t
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
w

a
s
 s

u
s
p
e
n
d
e
d
 w

h
ile

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 i
ts

 t
h
in

k
in

g
 a

ro
u
n
d
 

th
e
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
d
ra

ft
 i
s
 

n
o
w

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
5
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 B

a
is

h
a
k
h
i 
M

e
la

 i
n
 B

a
n
g
la

to
w

n
 B

ri
c
k
 L

a
n
e
 

a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 t
o
 

ta
k
e
 i
t 
fo

rw
a
rd

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
0
%

M
e
la

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
. 
W

h
e
n
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
a
g
re

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
 n

e
w

 C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

T
ru

s
t 
b
e
 s

e
t 
u
p
, 
th

e
 a

im
 w

a
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 T

ru
s
t 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 M

e
la

 f
ro

m
 2

0
1
0
 o

r 
2
0
1
1
 

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 p
ro

v
e
n
 c

a
p
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
. 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
 b

e
g
a
n
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
, 
b
u
t 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
b
o
a
rd

 

m
e
m

b
e
rs

 w
ill

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
b
e
fo

re
 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 a

n
 e

v
e
n
t 
o
f 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
le

x
it
y
 o

f 
th

e
 M

e
la

, 
e
v
e
n
 w

it
h
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

s
ta

ff
. 
It
 i
s
 v

it
a
l 
th

a
t 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
ili

ty
 i
s
 a

s
s
u
re

d
 b

e
fo

re
 h

a
n
d
o
v
e
r 

ta
k
e
s
 p

la
c
e
. 
T

h
u
s
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 

re
v
ie

w
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 p

la
n
 p

re
p
a
re

d
. 
In

 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
 t
im

e
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
 M

e
la

 i
s
 o

n
c
e
 

a
g
a
in

 f
u
lly

 p
la

n
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 t
a
k
e
 p

la
c
e
 o

n
 2

3
 M

a
y
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

M
e
la

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d

B
o
a
rd

 a
p
p
o
in

te
d

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

s
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e

B
o
a
rd

 I
n
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

s
e
e
 a

b
o
v
e

P
a
g
e
 1

4

Page 105



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
6
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
u
lt
u
ra

l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 

B
is

h
o
p
s
 S

q
u
a
re

 C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
T

ra
il

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
u
b
lic

 c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
D

e
s
ig

n
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

‘K
e
y
 f
e
a
tu

re
’ 
P

la
n
n
in

g
 A

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 S

u
b
m

it
te

d
H

e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

W
o
rk

s
 o

n
 s

it
e

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
7
. 
U

ti
lis

e
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 

m
o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

S
h
a
z
ia

H
u
s
s
a
in

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
P

ilo
t 
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 B

u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 P

ro
c
e
s
s
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

S
h
a
z
ia

H
u
s
s
a
in

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 b

e
g
in

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

lo
c
a
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
k
e
y
 f
ro

n
t 
lin

e
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

S
h
a
z
ia

H
u
s
s
a
in

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 w
o
rk

 p
la

n
 t
o
 i
m

b
e
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 i
n
 

c
o
n
tr

o
l 
a
c
t 
–
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 a

ro
u
n
d
: 
d
u
ty

 t
o
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

d
e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
, 
m

a
k
in

g
 d

e
m

o
c
ra

c
y
 v

is
ib

le
, 
c
iv

ic
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

, 
a
n
d
 i
n
v
o
lv

in
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g

S
h
a
z
ia

H
u
s
s
a
in

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

 o
f 

L
A

P
s
 i
n
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y

S
h
a
z
ia

H
u
s
s
a
in

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
a
g
e
 1

5

Page 106



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
8
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 

h
is

to
ry

 a
n
d
 a

rc
h
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

(t
w

o
 y

e
a
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t)

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

B
e
g
in

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

a
n
c
ro

ft
 L

ib
ra

ry
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
d
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
a
g
e
 1

6

Page 107



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
9
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 W

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 P
u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

a
 m

e
a
s
u
ra

b
ly

 c
le

a
n
e
r,

 s
a
fe

r 
a
n
d
 m

o
re

 

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
0
%

T
h
e
 P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
a
 c

le
a
n
e
r,

 s
a
fe

r 
a
n
d
 m

o
re

 s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.
 T

h
is

 y
e
a
r 

th
e
re

 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

's
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
rk

s
, 
p
la

y
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 a

n
d

o
p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
; 
a
 1

5
%

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 

y
e
a
r 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

's
 s

a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 s

tr
e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
in

g
; 
6
2
%

 w
h
o
 t
h
in

k
 t
h
a
t 

s
tr

e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 i
s
 g

o
o
d
, 
v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t.
 T

h
is

 s
c
o
re

 i
s
 n

o
w

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 

a
v
e
ra

g
e
 s

c
o
re

 f
o
r 

In
n
e
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 
T

h
e
 W

a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
im

e
 

ta
b
le

 w
a
s
 r

e
v
is

it
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 b

y
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

O
ff
ic

ia
l 
J
o
u
rn

a
l 
o
f 
th

e
 E

U
 f
o
r 

W
a
s
te

 D
is

p
o
s
a
l 
C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 

p
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

4
0
%

T
h
e
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
P

ro
je

c
t 
h
a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
s
c
h
e
d
u
le

d
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 
T

h
e
 d

e
la

y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 t
o
 b

e
 l
in

k
e
d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 

re
n
e
w

a
b
le

 e
n
e
rg

y
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 E
n
e
rg

y
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 

L
e
g
a
c
y
 C

o
m

p
a
n
y
. 

P
ilo

t 
C

le
a
n
s
in

g
 c

o
o
rd

in
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
w

it
h
 T

H
H

 s
ta

rt
s

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
ra

ft
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 D

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
5
%

M
e
m

b
e
rs

 r
e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 b
e
 m

a
d
e
 m

o
re

 a
s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 w

a
n
te

d
 

to
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 a

 4
0
%

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 2

0
1
4
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 d
e
la

y
 t
o
 t
h
e
 W

a
s
te

 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

h
ils

t 
o
p
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
is

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
w

it
h
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

te
d
 c

o
s
ts

, 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

D
ra

ft
 P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 b

y
 C

P
D

G
J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
0
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
-w

id
e
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
e
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 R

o
m

a
n
 R

o
a
d
 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

d
v
ic

e
, 
tr

a
in

in
g
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

L
e
t 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 

a
n
d
 m

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 c

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 f
o
r 

R
o
m

a
n
 R

o
a
d
 T

o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
h
o
p
 L

o
c
a
l 
C

a
m

p
a
ig

n
 w

a
s
 l
e
t 
to

 A
n
g
e
l 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

, 
in

 J
u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 1
 y

e
a
r 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
t 
u
n
ti
l 
J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll.

 

T
o
w

n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 S

p
a
ti
a
l 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d

O
w

e
n
 W

h
a
lle

y
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

it
 n

o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 g

o
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
fo

r 

a
p
p
ro

v
a
l.
 .
 

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 k
e
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 c

le
a
n

li
n

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 q
u

a
li
ty

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b

li
c
 r

e
a
lm

2
.3

.3
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

tr
e
e
t 

li
g

h
ti

n
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
d

u
c
in

g
 g

ra
ff

it
i 
a
n

d
 l
it

te
r

2
.3

.2
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 a

n
d

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 o

p
e
n

 s
p

a
c
e
s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.3
: 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 v
ib

ra
n

t 
to

w
n

 c
e
n

tr
e
s
 a

n
d

 a
 c

le
a
n

e
r,

 s
a
fe

r 
p

u
b

li
c
 r

e
a
lm

2
.3

.1
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 f
ir

s
t-

c
la

s
s
 a

n
d

 w
e
ll
 m

a
n

a
g

e
d

 c
e
n

tr
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 p
e
o

p
le

 c
o

m
e
 t

o
g

e
th

e
r 

fo
r 

b
u

s
in

e
s
s
, 
s
h

o
p

p
in

g
, 
le

is
u

re
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
re

a
ti

o
n

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
a
g
e
 1

7

Page 108



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
1
. 
In

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
th

e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
2
0
1
2
 V

is
io

n
 S

tu
d
y
 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
s
 a

 k
e
y
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

it
h
in

 L
D

F

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
ta

tu
s
 o

f 
H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
2
0
1
2
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 w

it
h
 P

re
fe

rr
e
d
 

O
p
ti
o
n
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 a

t 
C

a
b
in

e
t

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
s
e
d
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 v

e
rs

io
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
s
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
2
0
1
2
 o

f 

o
n
e
 o

f 
fi
v
e
 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
2
0
1
2
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 a

s
 a

 k
e
y
 

a
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
in

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 O
b
je

c
t 
2
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
2
. 
D

e
s
ig

n
, 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 H

ig
h
 S

tr
e
e
t 
2
0
1
2
 H

is
to

ri
c
 B

u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 

S
c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

e
c
u
ri
n
g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
.

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
0
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
n
g
lis

h
 H

e
ri
ta

g
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

w
a
rd

e
d

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
p
ro

fe
s
s
io

n
a
l 
te

a
m

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

J
u
lia

n
 H

a
rr

a
p
 A

rc
h
it
e
c
ts

 a
n
d
 R

e
g
e
n
fi
rs

t 
a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
0
9
.

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
to

r 
c
o
m

p
le

te
N

ic
k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
ro

c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
c
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
w

o
rk

s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
0
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

W
o
rk

s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
3
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 

ro
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

L
IP

 r
o
a
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
o
a
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

R
o
a
d
 S

a
fe

ty
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 G
ro

u
p
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 P

o
lic

e
, 
T

fL
 

a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 f
o
rm

e
d

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
a
g
e
 1

8

Page 109



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
4
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 C

a
rb

o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 

c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o
m

m
e
n
ts

C
a
rb

o
n
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
 (

C
M

P
) 

w
h
ic

h
 c

o
n
ta

in
s
 t
h
e
 

c
o
u
n
c
il’

s
 c

a
rb

o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
o
 2

0
2
0
, 
a
d
o
p
te

d
 b

y
 

C
a
b
in

e
t

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 t
h
a
t 
w

ill
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
2
5
%

 c
a
rb

o
n
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 b

y
 2

0
1
2

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

S
u
b
m

it
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to

 L
o
n
d
o
n
 C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 

A
g
e
n
c
y
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 c

a
rb

o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 (
L
C

C
A

)

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
n
t 
to

 L
C

C
A

 (
S

a
lix

) 
a
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o
n
 

o
f 
a
 V

o
lt
a
g
e
 O

p
ti
m

is
e
r 

a
t 
A

lb
e
rt

 J
a
c
o
b
 H

o
u
s
e
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
5
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 r

a
te

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 b

e
tt
e
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 S

o
c
ia

l 

L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 L

A
A

 R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
2
6
%

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
a
 

v
a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

y
 P

u
b
lic

 R
e
a
lm

. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
fo

o
d
 

w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 T

H
H

 h
o
m

e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 3
5
0
0
 h

o
m

e
s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

2
0
0
9
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 M

a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
h
re

e
 R

S
L
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 r
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

1
s
t 
S

ta
g
e
 F

u
n
d
in

g
 S

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
o
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 W

a
s
te

 

R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 B

o
a
rd

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

T
H

H
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
fo

o
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 7

0
0
0
 

h
o
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

3
0
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

C
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

o
lle

d
 o

u
t 
to

 3
5
0
0
 h

o
m

e
s
; 
th

is
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 l
im

it
 T

H
H

 c
o
u
ld

 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 F
u
rt

h
e
r 

ro
ll-

o
u
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

W
a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
. 

2
.2

.3
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 e

n
e
rg

y
 u

s
e
 a

n
d

 u
s
in

g
 m

o
re

 r
e
n

e
w

a
b

le
 e

n
e
rg

y
 s

o
u

rc
e
s

2
.2

.5
 A

d
a
p

ti
n

g
 o

u
r 

b
u

il
t 

e
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
to

 c
o

p
e
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 c

h
a
n

g
in

g
 c

li
m

a
te

 a
n

d
 w

e
a
th

e
r 

p
a
tt

e
rn

s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

2
.2

.4
 F

o
c
u

s
in

g
 o

n
 r

e
u

s
in

g
 w

h
e
re

v
e
r 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 a

n
d

 r
e
c
y
c
li
n

g
 m

o
re

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 2

.4
: 

Im
p

ro
v
e
 t

h
e
 e

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
a
n

d
 t

a
c
k
le

 c
li
m

a
te

 c
h

a
n

g
e

P
a
g
e
 1

9

Page 110



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
6
. 
In

 c
o
lla

b
o
ra

ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
 t
h
e
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
ta

g
e
s
 o

f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
's

 T
h
a
m

e
s
 C

a
tc

h
m

e
n
t 
F

lo
o
d
 

M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
P

la
n
.

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

8
5
%

T
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

u
lt
i-
A

g
e
n
c
y
 F

lo
o
d
 P

la
n
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
lo

o
d
 R

is
k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

s
u
p
p
lie

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
. 
It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
L
B

T
H

 p
la

n
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
A

u
g
u
s
t 

2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

fl
o
o
d
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
ta

rt
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 o

n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
g
re

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 E

A
 f
o
r 

Y
e
a
rs

 2
 (

2
0
0
9
/1

0
) 

a
n
d
 3

 (
2
0
1
0
/1

1
)

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s

3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

C
o
m

p
le

te
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

' M
u
lt
i 
A

g
e
n
c
y
 F

lo
o
d
 P

la
n

B
ry

a
n
 J

o
n
e
s

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

6
0
%

T
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

u
lt
i-
A

g
e
n
c
y
 F

lo
o
d
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
p
e
n
d
a
n
t 
o
n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 F
lo

o
d
 R

is
k
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
s
u
p
p
lie

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 

A
g
e
n
c
y
. 
It
 i
s
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 f
in

a
l 
L
B

T
H

 p
la

n
 w

ill
 n

o
w

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
A

u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 

th
e
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 f
o
r 

in
c
lu

s
io

n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 f
lo

o
d
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

L
o
n
d
o
n
.

P
a
g
e
 2

0

Page 111



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
7
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y
 

b
y
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 

a
n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 e

m
p
h
a
s
is

 o
n
 

e
v
id

e
n
c
e
-b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
ll 

p
u
p
ils

 t
o
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 t
h
e
ir
 p

o
te

n
ti
a
l 

M
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 C

Y
P

P
 E

n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 A

c
h
ie

v
e

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

' a
v
e
ra

g
e
 f
o
r 

5
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
) 

is
 n

o
w

 4
5
.8

%
. 
T

h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
8
 

o
f 
4
.6

%
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 o

u
r 

s
tr

o
n
g
 u

p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 a

lm
o
s
t 
tw

ic
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 

c
lo

s
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 2

0
1
0
 

ta
rg

e
ts

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
u
d
it
s
 o

f 
A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
L
e
a
rn

in
g
 (

A
fL

) 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 i
n
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 t
o
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

.

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
a
p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

n
d
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
n
o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

D
a
ta

 g
ro

u
p
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
 b

y
 g

ro
u
p
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
2
0
%

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
a
ta

 o
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
2
0
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
K

S
1
, 
2
 a

n
d
 3

 i
n
 r

e
a
d
in

g
, 
w

ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 

m
a
th

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
ile

d
 a

n
d
 i
s
 f
e
e
d
in

g
 i
n
to

 e
v
id

e
n
c
e
-b

a
s
e
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
lis

e
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
. 

D
a
ta

 g
ro

u
p
’s

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
S

IP
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 

v
is

it
s
 w

it
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 b

y
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 i
s
 n

o
w

 u
n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
S

IP
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 v

is
it
s
. 

A
s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 P

u
p
ils

’ 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 (

A
P

P
) 

to
 b

e
 e

m
b
e
d
d
e
d
 

a
c
ro

s
s
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 y

e
a
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
 

a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 3

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
8
. 
R

e
b
u
ild

 o
r 

re
fu

rb
is

h
 a

ll 
o
f 
o
u
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

, 

th
ro

u
g
h
 B

u
ild

in
g
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

th
e
 F

u
tu

re
, 
a
n
d
 u

p
g
ra

d
e
 

o
u
r 

p
ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
e
s
ta

te
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 M

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 B

S
F

, 
P

ri
m

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 C

Y
P

P
 E

C
S

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

 /
 

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

is
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
 n

o
w

 c
o
m

p
le

te
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
Q

4
 %

 

C
o

m
p

Q
4
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

O
p
e
n
in

g
 o

f 
fi
rs

t 
B

S
F

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
(W

e
s
s
e
x
 C

e
n
tr

e
) 

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 W

e
s
s
e
x
 C

e
n
tr

e
 w

a
s
 o

p
e
n
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

a
n
d
 s

ix
th

 f
o
rm

 s
tu

d
e
n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
w

 

e
n
ro

lle
d
 i
n
 c

o
u
rs

e
s
 

C
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 s

it
e
 o

f 
n
e
x
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

A
n
n
 S

u
tc

lif
fe

 
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

F
in

a
l 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

a
s
e
s
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 P

h
a
s
e
 1

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 (
4
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

) 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 

s
ig

n
e
d
 b

y
 1

s
t 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
.

F
e
a
s
ib

ili
ty

 s
tu

d
ie

s
 f
o
r 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

C
h
a
n
g
e
 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 

K
a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

 
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

S
ta

rt
 o

n
 s

it
e
 o

f 
fi
rs

t 
p
h
a
s
e
 P

S
fC

 (
6
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

)
K

a
te

 B
in

g
h
a
m

 
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

3
.1

.2
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 h
ig

h
 q

u
a
li
ty

 s
c
h

o
o

ls
, 
s
o

 t
h

a
t 

y
o

u
n

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 a
c
q

u
ir

e
 t

h
e
 k

n
o

w
le

d
g

e
 a

n
d

 s
k
il
ls

 t
h

e
y
 n

e
e
d

 t
o

 f
u

lf
il
 t

h
e
ir

 f
u

ll
 p

o
te

n
ti

a
l

3
.1

.3
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 c
o

n
ti

n
u

o
u

s
 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
, 
s
o

 e
v
e
ry

o
n

e
 c

a
n

 l
e
a
rn

 b
a
s
ic

 a
n

d
 n

e
w

 s
k
il
ls

 a
t 

a
n

y
 a

g
e

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 k
e
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 t

o
 r

a
is

e
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 t

o
 b

e
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
u

n
tr

y

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

.1
: 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 l
if

e
lo

n
g

 l
e
a
rn

in
g

 o
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s
 f

o
r 

a
ll

3
.1

.1
 I
n

v
e
s
ti

n
g

 i
n

 t
h

e
 u

n
d

e
r 

5
s
 w

h
o

s
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
p

ro
v
id

e
s
 t

h
e
 b

e
s
t 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 f

o
u

n
d

a
ti

o
n

 f
o

r 
lo

n
g

 t
e
rm

 s
u

c
c
e
s
s

A
 P

ro
s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

P
a
g
e
 2

1

Page 112



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

3
9
. 
E

x
p
a
n
d
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 i
n
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 

c
a
re

rs
 g

e
t 
in

v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
e
ir
 c

h
ild

re
n
’s

 

le
a
rn

in
g
, 
a
n
d
 l
e
a
rn

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
m

M
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 C

Y
P

P
 E

n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 A

c
h
ie

v
e

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
5
%

E
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 s

o
m

e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
s
 p

ro
v
e
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 d

u
e
 i
n
 p

a
rt

 t
o
 

c
o
m

p
le

x
 s

ta
ff
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ta

l 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t,
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 a

n
d
 

e
x
te

n
d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 i
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
u
t 
m

o
v
in

g
 

fo
rw

a
rd

 w
it
h
 d

e
s
ir
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
s
 s

lo
w

. 
A

 k
e
y
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
 W

o
rk

in
g
 

N
e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 F

u
n
d
 c

o
m

e
s
 t
o
 a

n
 e

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

o
s
s
ib

ili
ty

 o
f 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 c

a
p
a
c
it
y
 w

ill
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

u
p
o
n
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 a

 y
e
a
r 

7
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
it
io

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 L

A
P

 b
a
s
e
d
 P

a
re

n
t 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 

C
o
o
rd

in
a
to

rs

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 f
o
c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
 f
o
r 

p
a
re

n
ts

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

7
 t
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 R

e
v
ie

w
 

a
n
d
 F

in
d
 Y

o
u
r 

T
a
le

n
t 
F

a
m

ily
 S

tr
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
0
%

N
o
t 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 -

 l
o
o
k
in

g
 t
o
 e

n
g
a
g
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 2

0
%

 b
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 

fi
rs

t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 
2
0
1
0
-1

1
. 

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
t 
le

a
s
t 
o
n
e
 f
a
m

ily
 w

o
rk

s
h
o
p
 o

r 
e
v
e
n
t 
lin

k
e
d
 t
o
 

e
v
e
ry

 s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

9
0
%

N
o
t 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 -

 c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
m

a
in

in
g
 1

0
%

 s
o
 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 e
n
g
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 f
ir
s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
0
. 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
8
6
0
 e

n
tr

y
 l
e
v
e
l 
E

n
g
lis

h
 a

s

a
 S

e
c
o
n
d
 L

a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 p

la
c
e
s

(M
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 L

A
A

 E
S

O
L
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 P
la

n
)

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

6
5
0
 E

S
O

L
 p

la
c
e
s
 c

o
m

m
is

io
n
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 W

N
F

. 
 T

h
e
 p

la
c
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 b

y
 2

5
%

 

b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 a

ll 
W

N
F

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
ta

rt
e
d
 l
a
te

r.
 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
v
is

e
d
 W

o
rk

in
g
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 F

u
n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 t
o
 

b
e
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
v
is

e
d
 S

L
A

s
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
p
ro

je
c
t 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
la

te
r 

s
ta

rt
 a

n
d
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 p

la
c
e
s
 

P
ro

je
c
t 
C

o
o
rd

in
a
to

r 
a
n
d
 t
e
a
c
h
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 t
o
 b

e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
e
a
c
h
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 i
n
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
c
o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
in

 

O
c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

F
ir
s
t 
in

ta
k
e
 o

f 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 r
e
c
ru

it
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

P
a
g
e
 2

2

Page 113



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
1
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
e
d
 I
d
e
a
 S

to
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 

g
re

a
te

r 
lib

ra
ry

 u
s
a
g
e
, 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 l
it
e
ra

c
y
 a

n
d
 

n
u
m

e
ra

c
y

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Id
e
a
s
 S

to
re

s
 R

e
fr

e
s
h
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 r

e
p
o
rt

 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

Id
e
a
 S

to
re

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 s

ta
rt

e
d

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 s
c
o
p
e
d
 a

n
d
 

u
n
d
e
rw

a
y

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
2
. 
E

x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
c
o
rd

e
d
 

a
n
d
 a

c
c
re

d
it
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 o
u
ts

id
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 

h
o
u
rs

, 
e
n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

ll 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 h
a
v
e
 

a
c
c
e
s
s

M
o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 C

Y
P

P
 M

a
k
e
 a

 P
o
s
it
iv

e
 C

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 P

o
s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

P
A

Y
P

) 
is

 r
u
n
n
in

g
 o

n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

, 

w
it
h
 n

o
 m

a
jo

r 
is

s
u
e
s
. 
P

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

in
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

h
o
lid

a
y
s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 
p
u
b
lic

is
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

u
p
 t
o
 2

5
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 (
P

A
Y

P
) 

p
ro

je
c
ts

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

n
d
 p

u
b
lic

is
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
n
e
, 
b
u
t 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 

s
ti
ll 

b
e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
, 
in

to
 2

0
1
0
, 
o
n
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

.

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
, 
p
u
b
lic

is
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

u
p
 t
o
 5

 t
a
rg

e
te

d
/ 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 P
A

Y
P

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 -

 a
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

o
h
e
s
io

n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
is

 r
u
n
n
in

g
 i
n
 L

A
P

 4
 

a
n
d
 5

 S
E

N
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 1

0
 g

ir
ls

 o
n
ly

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 u

p
 a

n
d
 r

u
n
n
in

g
.

A
g
re

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
M

a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

o
n
e
 a

n
d
 s

o
m

e
 e

v
e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
.

P
a
g
e
 2

3

Page 114



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
3
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 r
e
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
c
c
e
s
s

n
e
w

 a
n
d
 e

x
is

ti
n
g
 j
o
b
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

b
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 o
n
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

8
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

s
 t
h
e
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 
T

h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

 h
a
s
 p

u
s
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 W

o
o
d
 W

h
a
rf

 s
it
e
 b

a
c
k
, 
w

h
ic

h
 d

o
e
s
 n

o
t 
a
ff
e
c
t 
th

e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
th

e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
A

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
ri
o
ri
ty

 i
s
s
u
e
s
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 L

o
c
a
l 
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 W

o
rk

 a
n
d
 S

k
ill

s
 p

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
in

 J
u
ly

 2
0
1
0
. 
N

e
w

 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 

s
tr

a
te

g
y
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d
 O

ff
ic

e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
0
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

.

S
L
A

’s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 k

e
y
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
g
e
n
ts

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

W
N

F
 S

L
A

s
 f
o
r 

w
h
ic

h
 D

&
R

 r
e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

te
d
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

fa
c
ili

ty
 o

n
 W

o
o
d
 W

h
a
rf

 s
it
e
 (

s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 w
o
rk

 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 o

n
 s

it
e
) 

a
n
d
 n

e
g
o
ti
a
te

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

 o
f 
5
 

a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
 p

e
r 

y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 1

 i
n
te

rn
s
h
ip

 p
e
r 

y
e
a
r 

o
n
 

W
o
o
d
 W

h
a
rf

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
u
s
h
e
d
 b

a
c
k
. 
S

ta
rt

 d
a
te

 i
s
 y

e
t 
to

 b
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 t
a
s
k
s
 a

re
 r

e
lia

n
t 

o
n
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
b
e
g
in

n
in

g
, 
a
n
d
 a

re
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 s

ta
rt

.

In
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
u
b
lic

 s
e
c
to

r 
a
p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
h
ip

s
 b

y

5
0
, 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 (

M
a
rk

 G
ri
m

le
y
)

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 8
9
 a

p
p
re

n
ti
c
e
s
 o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
o
 a

re
 a

b
o
u
t 
to

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 o

r 
a
re

 o
n
 

c
o
u
rs

e
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

te
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
4
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

o
u
r 

C
h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 

A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 t
o
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
o
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 M
a
y
 2

0
0
9
.

L
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 f
ro

m
 M

a
y
 2

0
0
9
, 
to

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
' T

ru
s
t 

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
' T

ru
s
t 
m

o
n
it
o
rs

 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 

b
a
s
is

 a
n
d
 h

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

 n
e
w

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
.

3
.2

.3
 H

e
lp

in
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 t
o

 g
e
t 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
b

y
 e

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
e
re

 i
s
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 t
ra

in
in

g
 b

e
fo

re
 a

n
d

 a
ft

e
r 

th
e
y
 g

e
t 

a
 j
o

b

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

.2
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 w

o
rk

le
s
s
n

e
s
s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

3
.2

.1
 H

e
lp

in
g

 f
a
m

il
ie

s
 e

s
c
a
p

e
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
, 
b

y
 p

ro
v
id

in
g

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
s
u

p
p

o
rt

 a
n

d
 a

d
v
ic

e
 o

n
 d

e
b

t 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t

3
.2

.2
 I
d

e
n

ti
fy

in
g

 a
n

d
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 b

a
rr

ie
rs

 t
o

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
ta

rg
e
t 

g
ro

u
p

s

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 k
e
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 t

o
 r

e
d

u
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 

y
o

u
th

 u
n

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t P
a
g
e
 2

4

Page 115



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
5
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 

p
e
o
p
le

, 
in

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

K
a
th

e
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

8
0
%

W
it
h
 m

o
n
e
y
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 W

o
rk

in
g
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 F

u
n
d
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o
p
le

. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
d
v
ic

e
 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 

S
e
rv

ic
e

K
a
th

e
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

W
N

F
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

e
c
u
re

d
, 
T

e
a
m

 o
f 
3
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
d
v
is

e
rs

 s
ta

rt
e
d
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
.

F
u
ll 

o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l

K
a
th

e
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
3
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

 m
e
n
ti
o
n
e
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 d
e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 o

u
tr

e
a
c
h
 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
.

N
e
w

 c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 j
o
b
 

b
ro

k
e
ra

g
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 

m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

ro
b
le

m
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

K
a
th

e
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

L
a
u
n
c
h
 t
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 v
a
le

ti
n
g
 s

o
c
ia

l 
e
n
te

rp
ri
s
e

K
a
th

e
ri
n
e
 

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

O
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
o
 1

2
0
 

h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
/f
a
m

ili
e
s

K
a
th

e
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
0
%

W
N

F
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 o

n
ly

 s
e
c
u
re

d
 f
o
r 

1
8
 m

o
n
th

s
 i
n
s
te

a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
2
 y

e
a
rs

. 

T
h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

 t
o
 9

4
. 
A

ls
o
, 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 

re
fl
e
c
ts

 t
h
e
 1

8
 m

o
n
th

 s
p
a
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
ra

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 1

 y
e
a
r 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

 o
f 
th

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

P
la

n
. 
A

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
a
d
 6

3
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
/f
a
m

ili
e
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
. 

T
o
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 4

5
0
 a

tt
e
m

p
te

d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
A

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 

o
u
tp

u
t 
re

m
a
in

s
 l
o
w

 t
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t 
h
a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t 
tr

a
in

in
g
 o

u
tp

u
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 

q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 T
h
e
 p

ro
je

c
t's

 's
lo

w
' e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

rt
 i
s
 t
o
 s

o
m

e
 e

x
te

n
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 

ti
m

e
 s

p
e
n
t 
in

 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
w

o
rk

, 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 n
e
tw

o
rk

 o
f 
re

fe
rr

a
l 
re

la
ti
o
n
s
h
ip

s
, 

a
n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 c

lie
n
ts

, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
s
u
it
a
b
le

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
 

(e
.g

. 
th

e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 p
ri
o
r 

to
 f
u
ll 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t)

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 n
o
w

 t
h
e
 

p
ro

je
c
t 
is

 i
n
 c

o
n
ta

c
t 
w

it
h
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 o

v
e
ra

ll,
 w

e
 a

re
 e

x
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 

th
e
 f
u
ll 

b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 t
o
 b

e
c
o
m

e
 a

p
p
a
re

n
t 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
6
 m

o
n
th

s
.

P
a
g
e
 2

5

Page 116



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
6
. 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
y
o
u
th

 u
n
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 a

g
re

e
in

g
 

a
 1

4
-1

9
 s

e
c
to

r 
p
a
th

w
a
y
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
rs

, 
lin

k
e
d
 t
o
 a

ll 
1
4
 D

ip
lo

m
a
 l
in

e
s
 o

f 
le

a
rn

in
g
, 

a
n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
ro

u
p
 o

f 
1
4
-1

8
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 

N
E

E
T

 (
M

o
n
it
o
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 C

Y
P

P
 A

E
W

)

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
n
g
 t
o
 t
h
is

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 

ti
m

e
s
c
a
le

s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

A
g
re

e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
r 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
tr

a
te

g
y
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 H

u
b
 

B
o
a
rd

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
d
. 

P
u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 c

a
re

e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u
te

s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 

w
o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
lin

k
in

g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

-b
a
s
e
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 p

ro
v
id

e
rs

 (
to

 b
e
 

u
s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 m
o
d
e
l 
fo

r 
4
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
e
c
to

rs
)

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
a
re

e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u
te

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 

L
a
u
n
c
h
 t
h
e
 T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 P

a
re

n
ts

 P
ro

je
c
t 
a
t 
th

e
 B

ro
m

le
y
 b

y
 

B
o
w

 C
e
n
tr

e

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

P
ro

d
u
c
e
 K

S
4
 a

t 
ri
s
k
 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 r

e
p
o
rt

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

L
a
u
n
c
h
 a

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

 l
e
a
v
in

g
 c

a
re

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

P
a
g
e
 2

6

Page 117



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
7
. 
R

e
fr

e
s
h
 t
h
e
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 C

o
m

p
a
c
t 
to

 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 f
u
lly

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
s
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 g

o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
. 
O

n
e
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
, 
m

a
rk

in
g
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
p
it
a
l 
w

o
rk

s
, 
w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 w

o
rk

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
W

o
rk

s
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 s

u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r,
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 

o
f 
th

e
 Q

u
ir
k
 R

e
v
ie

w

A
n
d
y
 A

lg
a
r

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

W
o
rk

s
 c

o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
, 
s
c
h
e
m

e
 t
o
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
1
0

C
o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
fr

e
s
h
 o

f 
th

e
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 b

y
 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

t 
C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

A
g
re

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 

a
n
d
 m

o
re

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 u

s
e
 o

f 
p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 b

y
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
le

a
r 

p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 r
e
: 
in

fr
a
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
. 

S
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 t
h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 a

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

A
g
re

e
 e

th
ic

a
l 
g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 

T
h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
b
y
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0
 

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 
is

 c
le

a
rl
y
 s

e
t 
o
u
t 
in

 t
h
e
 T

h
ir
d
 S

e
c
to

r 

S
tr

a
te

g
y
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
8
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 s

e
ts

 o
u
t 
o
u
r 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
o
 f
o
s
te

ri
n
g
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
tr

e
p
re

n
e
u
rs

h
ip

.

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 o

n
g
o
in

g
. 
N

e
w

 r
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
is

 u
n
d
e
r 

w
a
y
 (

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 f
o
r 

J
u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
) 

a
n
d
 w

ill
 

p
ro

v
id

e
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

o
u
n
c
il

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

T
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u
ty

 c
a
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l.
  
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 n

o
w

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 L

E
A

, 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
in

g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 g

e
o
g
ra

p
h
y
 a

n
d
 W

o
rk

 a
n
d
 

S
k
ill

s
 P

la
n
s
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 O

N
S

 a
n
d
 D

W
P

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 r
e
le

a
s
e
d
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 d

a
ta

 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 L

E
A

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 L

E
A

 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
. 
 T

h
e
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 b

a
s
e
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 L

E
A

 w
ill

 

in
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 E

n
te

rp
ri
s
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 
o
n
 h

o
ld

 u
n
ti
ll 

th
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 

L
E

A
.

A
g
re

e
 t
h
e
 s

c
o
p
e
 o

f 
n
e
w

 d
u
ty

 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
n
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 a

re
a

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

0
%

T
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 d
u
ty

 c
a
m

e
 i
n
to

 e
ff
e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 1
 A

p
ri
l.
  
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 n

o
w

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 L

E
A

, 
fu

n
c
ti
o
n
in

g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 g

e
o
g
ra

p
h
y
 a

n
d
 W

o
rk

 a
n
d
 

S
k
ill

s
 P

la
n
s
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 O

N
S

 a
n
d
 D

W
P

 h
a
v
e
 n

o
w

 r
e
le

a
s
e
d
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

p
re

h
e
n
s
iv

e
 d

a
ta

 

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 L

E
A

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
. 
C

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 L

E
A

 

w
ill

 b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
1
0
.

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 3

.3
: 

F
o

s
te

r 
e
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

3
.3

.1
  
  
  
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 i
n

c
e
n

ti
v
e
s
 t

h
a
t 

e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
e
 b

o
th

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
 a

n
d

 s
o

c
ia

l 
e
n

tr
e
p

re
n

e
u

rs
h

ip

3
.3

.2
  
  
  
 M

a
x
im

is
in

g
 t

h
e
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
 f

o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 t

o
 b

e
n

e
fi

t 
fr

o
m

 k
e
y
 g

ro
w

th
 s

e
c
to

rs
, 
a
n

d
 t

h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 /
 P

a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s

3
.3

.3
  
  
  
 P

ro
m

o
ti

n
g

 l
o

c
a
l 
b

u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d

 e
n

c
o

u
ra

g
in

g
 g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 t
o

u
ri

s
m

, 
w

it
h

 p
a
rt

ic
u

la
r 

e
m

p
h

a
s
is

 o
n

 t
h

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

s
 a

n
d

 P
a
ra

ly
m

p
ic

s

P
a
g
e
 2

7

Page 118



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

£
5
m

 w
o
rt

h
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 s
e
c
u
re

d
 b

y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

b
a
s
e
d
 S

M
E

s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 E

a
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 P

la
c
e

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

B
y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
q
u
a
rt

e
r 

4
, 
£
4
.9

4
8
m

 h
a
d
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
c
u
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 E

L
B

P
. 
In

 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

 t
h
is

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 s

tr
o
n
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
 

in
it
ia

l 
ta

rg
e
t 
s
e
t 
in

 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 i
s
 o

v
e
rl
y
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

4
9
. 
M

a
rk

e
t 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
s
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 v

is
it
o
r 

d
e
s
ti
n
a
ti
o
n
 

fo
r 

th
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 G
a
m

e
s
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
u
p
p
lie

rs
 t
o
 c

a
p
it
a
lis

e
 o

n
 t
h
is

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

M
a
jo

r 
e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

is
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

re
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

h
ile

 w
o
rk

 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

v
e
r 

to
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

w
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
m

ile
s
to

n
e
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

m
o
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 l
a
u
n
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 Q
u
ir
k
y
 S

h
o
p
p
in

g
 

G
u
id

e
 (

2
0
1
2
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
)

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
o
n
 o

f 
B

u
s
in

e
s
s
 T

o
u
ri
s
m

 

M
a
rk

e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

g
re

e
d
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
  
o
f 
e
x
h
ib

it
s
 a

t 
tr

a
d
e
 s

h
o
w

s
; 
IM

E
X

 0
9
 M

a
y
 

2
0
0
9
; 
E

IB
T

M
 0

9

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 s
m

a
ll 

v
e
n
u
e
s
 c

o
n
s
o
rt

iu
m

 f
o
r 

w
e
b
 b

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
m

o
ti
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 E

a
s
t 
s
id

e

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

2
0
%

T
h
is

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
a
s
k
e
d
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

h
a
v
in

g
 a

n
 a

c
c
id

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 b

e
in

g

u
n
a
b
le

 t
o
 p

h
y
s
ic

a
lly

 a
tt
e
n
d
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
. 
T

h
is

 s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 a

 s
lo

w
e
r 

p
a
c
e
 

th
ro

u
h
o
u
t 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
is

 a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 u

n
a
v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
o
ff
ic

e
rs

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is

 

p
ie

c
e
 i
f 
w

o
rk

 f
o
rw

a
rd

. 
T

h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 r

e
p
ro

fi
le

d
 i
n
to

 2
0
1
0
/2

0
1
1
. 

P
a
g
e
 2

8

Page 119



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
0
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
h
o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 

a
n
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
ls

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 

e
x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

9
0
%

R
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 Y

e
a
r 

3
 o

f 
o
u
r 

5
-y

e
a
r 

H
o
m

e
le

s
s
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 a

s
 c

o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 a

t 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 

B
o
a
rd

, 
m

u
c
h
 o

f 
th

is
 y

e
a
r'
s
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
. 
 T

h
e
 

in
te

rr
u
p
ti
o
n
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 1

0
0
%

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 d

e
la

y
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 o

rg
a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
a
l 

re
v
ie

w
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
n
 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 o

n
 h

a
v
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 C

A
F

 t
ra

in
in

g
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
Q

4
 %

 

C
o

m
p

Q
4
 C

o
m

m
e
n

ts

F
u
lly

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 n

e
w

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 o
u
tr

e
a
c
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 

ro
u
g
h
 s

le
e
p
e
rs

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

P
ro

v
id

e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
o
n
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 (
C

A
F

) 
to

 H
o
m

e
le

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 s

ta
ff

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
g
re

e
 a

 c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

e
d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 

fo
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 j
o
in

t 
te

a
m

 w
ill

 b
e
 f
u
lly

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
b
e
fo

re
 e

n
d
 o

f 
A

p
ri
l 
2
0
1
0
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 T

e
a
m

 

M
a
n
a
g
e
r 

is
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 i
n
 p

o
s
t.
  
In

 a
d
v
a
n
c
e
, 
th

e
 T

e
a
m

 h
a
s
 s

c
o
p
e
d
 t
h
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

re
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 d
u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
.

F
u
lly

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
C

A
F

 i
n
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
, 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
5
%

F
u
rt

h
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 c

a
n
 o

n
ly

 c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
 o

n
c
e
 p

o
s
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
ru

it
e
d
 t
o
. 
 T

h
a
t 
is

 l
ik

e
ly

 

to
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 m

id
-M

a
y
 2

0
1
0
 a

n
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 r

o
ll 

o
u
t 
a
d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 f
ir
s
t 
2
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rs

 o
f 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
1
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

th
e
 w

h
o
le

 o
f 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 c

a
re

rs
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

h
ic

h
 r

u
n
s
 u

n
ti
l 
2
0
1
1
. 
T

h
e
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 b

e
lo

w
 

a
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
 b

u
t 
th

is
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 o

n
g
o
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

o
rk

in
g
 i
n
 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

a
re

rs
 C

e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 J

o
b
 C

e
n
tr

e
 P

lu
s
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
a
 n

e
w

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

to
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
a
re

rs
 i
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
o
s
e
 l
o
o
k
in

g
 f
o
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

E
s
ta

b
lis

h
 C

a
re

rs
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 I
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 G

ro
u
p

D
e
b
o
ra

h
 

C
o
h
e
n

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
.

R
e
a
c
h
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 P

C
T

 o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

in
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
re

rs
 r

e
g
is

te
rs

 i
n
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 c
a
re

D
e
b
o
ra

h
 C

o
h
e

n
3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
s
 a

 C
a
re

rs
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 D

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
to

r 
S

it
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
. 
A

 p
ro

je
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
t 
u
p
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

c
a
re

rs
 r

e
g
is

te
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

P
C

T
 a

re
 a

 k
e
y
 p

a
rt

n
e
r 

in
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

.

C
o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

c
a
re

rs
 r

e
s
p
it
e
 a

n
d
 b

re
a
k
s

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

4
.1

.4
  
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

o
r 

c
h

il
d

re
n

 a
n

d
 y

o
u

n
g

 p
e
o

p
le

 w
it

h
 d

is
a
b

il
it

ie
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
ir

 f
a
m

il
ie

s

4
.1

.2
  
 P

ro
te

c
ti

n
g

 c
h

il
d

re
n

 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

 a
n

d
 n

e
g

le
c
t

4
.1

.3
  
 P

re
v
e
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 r
e
d

u
c
in

g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
, 
a
n

d
 h

e
lp

in
g

 m
o

re
 p

e
o

p
le

 i
n

to
 s

e
tt

le
d

 h
o

m
e
s
 a

n
d

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

.1
: 

E
m

p
o

w
e
r 

o
ld

e
r 

a
n

d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
e
o

p
le

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 f

a
m

il
ie

s

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

4
.1

.1
  
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 r
e
s
p

o
n

s
iv

e
 a

n
d

 a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

a
d

u
lt

s
 w

h
ic

h
 p

ro
m

o
te

 i
n

d
e
p

e
n

d
e
n

c
e
, 
c
h

o
ic

e
, 
s
e
c
u

ri
ty

 a
n

d
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

A
 S

a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

P
a
g
e
 2

9

Page 120



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
2
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

p
u
tt
in

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
o
f 
th

e
ir
 o

w
n
 

c
a
re

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Y
e
a
r 

2
 (

2
0
0
9
-1

0
) 

o
f 
tr

a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 a

 f
u
ll 

re
v
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
, 

g
o
v
e
rn

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 w

o
rk

s
tr

e
a
m

s
 h

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

it
h
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 

in
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
. 
Y

e
a
r 

3
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
o
c
u
s
s
e
d
 o

n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 T

ra
n
s
fo

rm
in

g
 S

o
c
ia

l

C
a
re

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

R
e
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 p

ri
c
e
 p

o
in

t 
to

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 B

o
a
rd

 

fo
llo

w
in

g
 d

e
s
k
to

p
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
 A

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 S

y
s
te

m
 (

R
A

S
) 

e
x
e
rc

is
e

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r
3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

D
e
s
k
to

p
 R

A
S

 e
x
e
rc

is
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 
R

A
S

 b
e
in

g
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 t
ri
a
l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 

ro
lle

d
 o

u
t.

A
ll 

tr
ia

l 
g
ro

u
p
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 a

u
d
it
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 s

k
ill

s
 m

ix
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

g
e
n
d
a

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

C
o
n
s
u
lt
 o

n
 n

e
w

 w
o
rk

e
r 

ro
le

s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
e
te

n
c
ie

s
 

fr
a
m

e
w

o
rk

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 o

f 
tr

ia
lli

n
g
 o

f 
R

A
S

 a
n
d
 s

e
lf
-a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
3
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

fu
lly

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

2
5
%

In
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
s
 a

 k
e
y
 s

tr
a
n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

a
re

 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 l
e
d
 b

y
 N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

. 
T

h
e
 c

o
n
te

x
t 
fo

r 
N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 

a
n
d
 f
o
r 

A
d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

im
 

fo
r 

s
tr

u
c
tu

ra
l 
in

te
g
ra

ti
o
n
 t
h
a
t 
w

a
s
 t
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 b

y
 a

 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fa

c
to

rs
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
  
a
 l
a
c
k
 o

f 
c
e
rt

a
in

ty
 a

ro
u
n
d
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
-s

ta
te

 o
f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 r

e
c
o
n
fi
g
u
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

c
c
ro

s
s
 N

o
rt

h
 

E
a
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
fu

lly
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

c
c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 

c
a
re

 n
o
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

a
c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 d
e
s
c
ri
b
e
s
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 t
a
k
e
n
 b

y
 b

o
th

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
. 
B

o
th

 

th
e
 N

H
S

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
  
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 h
a
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 

tr
a
n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

g
e
n
d
a
s
 b

u
t 
th

o
s
e
 a

g
e
n
d
a
s
 h

a
v
e
 m

u
c
h
 i
n
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 

re
m

a
in

s
 a

 c
o
re

 e
le

m
e
n
t 
fo

r 
b
o
th

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 a
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 j
o
in

t 

w
o
rk

in
g
; 
a
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

a
re

 p
a
th

w
a
y
s
; 
o
n
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 

a
n
d
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 n

e
tw

o
rk

s
; 
o
n
 I
C

T
; 
a
n
d
 o

n
 p

ro
to

c
o
ls

 f
o
r 

d
a
ta

 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 a
ll 

n
e
e
d
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
a
t 
jo

in
t 
w

o
rk

. 
S

tr
u
c
tu

ra
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 a

n
 o

p
ti
o
n
 b

u
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
rs

w
h
e
re

 i
t 
is

 c
le

a
r 

th
a
t 
it
 w

ill
 a

d
d
 v

a
lu

e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 j
o
in

t 
w

o
rk

in
g
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 f
o
r

 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lic

. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

S
e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 f
o
r 

a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

b
y
 L

A
 a

n
d
 P

C
T

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

N
/A

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
r 

c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g

3
0
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

N
/A

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

S
ta

ff
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

N
/A

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

te
g
ra

te
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

N
/A

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

P
a
g
e
 3

0

Page 121



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
4
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

fu
lly

 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 

a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
c
a
re

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

2
5
%

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 a
n
d
 p

e
rs

o
n
n
e
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 m

e
a
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

C
T

 r
e
v
ie

w
e
d
 

a
n
d
 t
o
o
k
 s

to
c
k
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 i
n
te

g
ra

ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 l
e
d
 t
o
 t
h
is

 a
re

 a
s
 

fo
llo

w
s
:

-T
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
A

d
u
lt
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

-I
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 C

a
re

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

-A
 m

o
v
e
 t
o
 s

e
c
to

r 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
o
r 

a
c
u
te

 a
n
d
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
.

T
h
e
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 e

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
-e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 f
o
rm

e
d
 a

 

fu
ll 

w
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 f
o
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

n
 a

ll 
m

a
jo

r 
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 

p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
/p

a
th

w
a
y
s
 a

s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 "

e
n
a
b
le

rs
" 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 f
o
r 

e
a
c
h
 o

f 
le

a
d
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
lig

n
e
d
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

y
c
le

s

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

1
0
%

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

P
a
p
e
r 

s
e
e
k
in

g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
to

 e
s
ta

b
lis

h
 f
o
rm

a
l 
le

a
d
 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
g
re

e
d
 b

y
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
a
n
d
 

P
C

T
 b

o
a
rd

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

1
0
%

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

S
e
c
ti
o
n
 7

5
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

D
e
b
o
ra

h
 

C
o
h
e
n

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

1
0
%

P
le

a
s
e
 s

e
e
 c

o
m

m
e
n
ts

 a
b
o
v
e
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
5
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

s
tr

e
n
g
th

e
n
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 t
o
 p

ro
te

c
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 

a
b
u
s
e
, 
h
a
rm

 a
n
d
 n

e
g
le

c
t 

K
a
th

e
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

d
u
lt
s
 q

u
a
lit

y
 a

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

p
ro

c
e
d
u
re

K
a
th

e
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

Im
p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
2
0
0
9
. 
C

le
a
r 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 a

re
 s

e
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 a

u
d
it
e
d
.

F
ir
s
t 
re

v
ie

w
 o

f 
D

e
p
ri
v
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
ib

e
rt

y
 S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

s
K

a
th

e
ri
n
e
 

M
a
rk

s

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 r

e
le

v
a
n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
lla

te
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
tu

rn
 s

e
n
t 
to

 t
h
e
 D

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 

H
e
a
lt
h
.

P
u
b
lis

h
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 s

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 a

d
u
lt
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u
re

s
K

a
th

e
ri
n
e
 

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
. 
C

la
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
c
y
 o

f 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 l
e
a
d
in

g
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 

s
a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
.

P
a
g
e
 3

1

Page 122



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
6
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

p
ri
o
ri
ty

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

Y
P

P
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
re

 p
ro

te
c
te

d
 f
ro

m
 h

a
rm

 a
n
d
 

fe
e
l 
s
a
fe

 a
n
d
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
ir
 a

re
a
 (

C
Y

P
P

 S
ta

y
 S

a
fe

)

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 t
o
 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

p
le

te
 e

-s
a
fe

ty
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
, 
s
ig

n
e
d
 o

ff
 b

y
 L

S
C

B
H

e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

E
-s

a
fe

ty
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

g
re

e
d
 a

n
d
 s

ig
n
e
d
 o

ff
 b

y
 t
h
e
 L

S
C

B
. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
C

o
n
ta

c
t 
P

o
in

t,
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 d

a
ta

b
a
s
e
 

s
ig

n
p
o
s
ti
n
g
 a

g
e
n
c
ie

s
 w

h
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 a

 g
iv

e
n
 c

h
ild

S
u
s
a
n
 A

c
la

n
d
-

H
o
o
d

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
n
ta

c
t 
P

o
in

t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

P
u
b
lis

h
 g

u
id

e
lin

e
s
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 o
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
h
a
rm

in
g
 

th
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

G
u
id

e
lin

e
s
 f
o
r 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
d
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
7
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
ta

rg
e
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 o

f 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

to
c
k
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 t
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
tl
y
, 

s
a
fe

ly
, 
s
e
c
u
re

ly
 a

n
d
 f
re

e
 f
ro

m
 f
u
e
l 
p
o
v
e
rt

y

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

8
0
%

E
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t,
 a

n
d
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 h

a
n
d
y
p
e
rs

o
n
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 i
n
 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
. 
F

u
ll 

d
a
ta

 f
ro

m
 s

u
b
-r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
g
e
n
ts

 n
o
t 
y
e
t 
a
v
a
ila

b
le

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p
ro

v
e
 S

A
P

 o
f 
3
4
4
 h

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 t
o
 a

 

m
in

im
u
m

 S
A

P
 o

f 
7
0

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

O
v
e
rd

u
e

7
0
%

D
a
ta

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
-1

0
 f
ro

m
 s

u
b
-r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 a
g
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 u

n
ti
l 
la

te
r 

in
 

th
e
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
s
e
 c

o
re

 d
a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
m

p
e
d
e
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 8

7
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 

e
n
e
rg

y
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t.
 

P
u
b
lic

is
e
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

J
a
c
k
ie

 

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h

J
a
c
k
ie

O
d
u
n
o
y
e

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
8
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 o

u
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 Y

o
u
n
g
 

P
e
o
p
le

’s
 P

la
n
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 c

a
re

 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 

w
it
h
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 c
o
o
rd

in
a
te

d
, 
m

u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 

a
p
p
ro

a
c
h
 (

C
Y

P
P

 B
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
)

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

9
8
%

A
lm

o
s
t 
a
ll 

o
f 
th

e
s
e
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
th

o
u
g
h
 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
lig

h
t 

d
e
la

y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

u
b
lis

h
in

g
 o

f 
g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 s

h
o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s
. 
A

 t
ra

n
s
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 r

e
v
ie

w
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 

b
e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 A

im
in

g
 H

ig
h
 f
o
r 

D
is

a
b
le

d
 C

h
ild

re
n
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 G
ro

u
p
 

e
s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 t
h
is

 f
o
rw

a
rd

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 m
u
lt
i-
a
g
e
n
c
y
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 c

a
re

 p
a
th

w
a
y
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
q
u
ir
in

g
 a

d
u
lt
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 
3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

S
u
b
m

it
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 D

C
S

F
 f
o
r 

p
ilo

ti
n
g
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 

b
u
d
g
e
ts

 f
o
r 

d
is

a
b
le

d
 c

h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
ir
 f
a
m

ili
e
s

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 £
1
0
K

 g
ra

n
t 

to
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
ra

n
s
it
io

n
 w

o
rk

. 
T

h
e
 m

o
n
e
y
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 a

n
 i
n
d
e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t.

P
u
b
lis

h
 e

lig
ib

ili
ty

 c
ri
te

ri
a
 f
o
r 

s
h
o
rt

 b
re

a
k
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

9
0
%

T
h
e
 c

a
re

 p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 a

n
d
 s

h
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
T

h
e
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 d

e
la

y
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
a
d
y
 b

y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
0
. 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

d
ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

 
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 d

ir
e
c
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

d
d
e
d
 t
o
 a

ll 

c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

.

P
a
g
e
 3

2

Page 123



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

5
9
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 m

o
re

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
-o

ri
e
n
te

d
 a

n
d
 

lo
c
a
lis

e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

g
ra

te
 n

e
w

 m
o
d
e
ls

 o
f 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

u
b
lic

 c
o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 P

o
lic

e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 a

n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

2
8
/0

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

1
6
 T

H
E

O
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 f
u
lly

 t
ra

in
in

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

e
p
lo

y
e
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
ll 

n
e
w

 m
o
b
ile

 S
N

T
 t
e
a
m

s
A

n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

D
e
liv

e
r 

o
n
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
a
m

 o
f 
T

H
E

O
’s

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 2
0
1
0

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

2
8
/0

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
ri
m

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 b

y
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 s

e
v
e
n
 t
h
e
m

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 
p
la

n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 Y

o
u
th

 C
ri
m

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 b

y
 d

e
liv

e
ri
n
g
 

th
e
 s

e
v
e
n
 t
h
e
m

e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 -

 p
ro

je
c
t 
p
la

n
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

S
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 S

L
A

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

R
e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
R

e
 o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

 2
0
1
0

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

3
1
/0

1
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

4
.2

.1
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

ti
n

g
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
e
s
 e

ff
e
c
ti

v
e
ly

 t
o

 r
e
d

u
c
e
 f

e
a
r 

o
f 

c
ri

m
e

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

.2
: 

T
a
c
k
le

 a
n

d
 p

re
v
e
n

t 
c
ri

m
e

T
h

e
 C

o
u

n
c
il
’s

 k
e
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 p
ri

o
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

is
 t

a
c
k
li
n

g
 a

n
ti

-s
o

c
ia

l 
b

e
h

a
v
io

u
r 

a
n

d
 c

ri
m

e

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

4
.2

.2
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 h

o
li
s
ti

c
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
 w

it
h

 a
ll
 w

h
o

 b
e
c
o

m
e
 i
n

v
o

lv
e
d

 w
it

h
 t

h
e
 c

ri
m

in
a
l 
ju

s
ti

c
e
 s

y
s
te

m

4
.2

.3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 M

a
k
in

g
 c

ri
m

e
 p

re
v
e
n

ti
o

n
 a

 k
e
y
 e

le
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
a
ll
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 -

 a
n

d
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 c

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 t

ru
s
t 

a
n

d
 e

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
in

 s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 p
la

n
n

in
g

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t

P
a
g
e
 3

3

Page 124



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
1
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
it
iv

e
 d

iv
e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
re

s
to

ra
ti
v
e
 j
u
s
ti
c
e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 y

o
u
th

 o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 (

C
Y

P
P

 M
P

C
)

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
2
8
/0

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 d

iv
e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 P

A
Y

P
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

u
s
in

g
 P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
to

ry
 B

u
d
g
e
ti
n
g
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
ro

m
 7

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
s
. 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n
, 
a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

g
u
id

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 

L
o
n
d
o
n
 Y

o
u
th

 R
e
s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
t 
P

le
d
g
e
 -

 a
ll 

'c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 n

e
e
d
' l

e
a
v
in

g
 c

u
s
to

d
y
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 b

y
 

Y
O

T
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
o
s
e
 e

n
ti
tl
e
d
 t
o
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

ill
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
s
s
is

ta
n
c
e
 a

s
 o

th
e
r 

c
a
re

 l
e
a
v
e
rs

. 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 h

a
v
e
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 

p
e
rs

o
n
's

 a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
le

a
s
e
. 
R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
N

E
E

T

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 m
e
e
t 
w

it
h
 C

o
n
n
e
x
io

n
s
 w

it
h
in

 5
 d

a
y
s
 o

f 
re

le
a
s
e
 a

n
d
 t
o
 o

ff
e
r 

p
a
re

n
ti
n
g
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 w
h
e
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
2
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 -

 F
a
m

ily
 I
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 P

ro
je

c
t 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 o

f 
o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 

fu
lly

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
.

R
e
fe

rr
a
l 
a
rr

a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

D
e
liv

e
r 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 R

e
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 S

c
h
e
m

e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 y

o
u
n
g
 

p
e
o
p
le

’s
 l
e
is

u
re

 t
im

e
 i
.e

. 
F

ri
d
a
y
 a

n
d
 S

a
tu

rd
a
y
 e

v
e
n
in

g
s
 

fr
o
m

 A
p
ri
l 
0
9

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 r

e
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 Y

o
u
th

 C
ri
m

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 

fu
n
d
in

g
.

C
o
m

p
le

te
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

fo
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
2
8
/0

2
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 i
n
fo

rm
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
.

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
2
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 d
ru

g
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

s
tr

a
te

g
y

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

9
0
%

T
h
e
 d

ra
ft
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

a
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

A
A

T
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 B
o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 

w
a
s
 a

g
re

e
d
 i
n
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
. 
T

h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 w

ill
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
 m

in
o
r 

re
v
is

io
n
 i
n
 M

a
y
 1

0
 b

e
fo

re
 

fi
n
a
l 
s
ig

n
 o

ff
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
ra

ft
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 J

u
n
e
 2

0
0
9
 

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

C
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 f
in

a
l 
d
ra

ft
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

C
a
b
in

e
t 
A

p
p
ro

v
a
l,
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

9
0
%

C
a
b
in

e
t 
re

p
o
rt

 d
e
la

y
e
d
 t
o
 a

llo
w

 r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 t
o
 l
a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

.

P
a
g
e
 3

4

Page 125



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
3
. 
Im

p
ro

v
e
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
ta

ti
v
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 a
d
u
lt
s
, 
re

d
u
c
in

g
 u

s
e
 o

f 
in

s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 

re
lia

n
c
e
 o

n
 c

a
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

p
le

te
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
re

a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 w

it
h
 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l 
d
is

c
h
a
rg

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 s

ta
rt

 a
t 
R

o
y
a
l 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

H
o
s
p
it
a
l

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

In
it
ia

l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

J
o
h
n
 R

o
o
g

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

C
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
n
e
s
s
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
rt

is
e
 w

it
h
 7

0
0
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 p

re
v
e
n
te

d
 f
ro

m
 

b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
4
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 a
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 i
n
 o

u
r 

C
Y

P
P

 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
a
re

n
ts

 a
n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 s
a
fe

 

e
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
w

h
e
re

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
h
ri
v
e
 

a
n
d
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
ir
 f
u
ll 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l,
 w

it
h
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 

o
n
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 b

y
 p

u
tt
in

g
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 a

t 
ri
s
k

 a
t 
th

e
 

c
e
n
tr

e
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 (
C

Y
P

P
 S

ta
y
 

S
a
fe

)

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

9
0
%

A
ll 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 b

u
t 
o
n
e
 w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

p
le

te
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

n
 M

e
llo

w
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
A

n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 w

a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
th

e
 A

p
ri
l 
d
e
a
d
lin

e
. 

C
o
m

p
le

te
 f
ir
s
t 
 M

e
llo

w
 P

a
re

n
ti
n
g
 G

ro
u
p
 a

t 
O

v
e
rl
a
n
d
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
0
/1

1
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
re

n
ti
n
g
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 a

h
e
a
d
 o

f 
d
e
a
d
lin

e
. 

R
o
ll 

o
u
t 
p
ilo

t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
 o

f 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

o
ff
e
n
d
e
r’
s
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 

in
to

 P
A

C
T

 v
is

it
in

g
 c

e
n
tr

e
s
 i
n
 t
h
re

e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 p

ri
s
o
n
s

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r.

 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 F

a
m

ili
e
s
 S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
in

g
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
to

 o
n
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 p

ri
s
o
n

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

5
0
%

T
h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 g

e
tt
in

g
 i
n
to

 p
ri
s
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 s

o
 f
a
r 

w
e
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
ly

 b
e
e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

ta
s
te

r 
s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 a

im
 o

f 
p
ro

m
o
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 
W

e
 a

re
 a

im
in

g
 t
o
 

d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 4

.3
: 

F
o

c
u

s
 o

n
 e

a
rl

y
 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

4
.3

.1
  
  
  
  
  
  
 I
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 p

a
re

n
ta

l 
e
n

g
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt

4
.3

.2
  
  
  
  
  
  
 U

s
in

g
 j
o

in
e
d

-u
p

 a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

e
s
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
s
s
 l
in

k
s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n

 h
e
a
lt

h
, 
d

ru
g

s
, 
a
lc

o
h

o
l,
 e

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

, 
s
k
il
ls

, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t,
 a

c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

, 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
, 
d

e
b

t 
a
n

d
 b

e
n

e
fi

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll
 a

g
e

4
.3

.3
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
T

a
c
k
li
n

g
 t

h
e
 c

a
u

s
e
s
 o

f 
c
ri

m
e
 b

y
 w

o
rk

in
g

 w
it

h
 ‘
a
t-

ri
s
k
’ 
g

ro
u

p
s
, 
to

 n
ip

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 b

u
d

P
a
g
e
 3

5

Page 126



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
5
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 C

h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 w

it
h
 c

h
ild

re
n
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 

th
re

e
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
m

o
re

 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 a

re
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
ir
 c

h
ild

’s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
(C

Y
P

P
 E

n
jo

y
 a

n
d
 

A
c
h
ie

v
e
)

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

m
ile

s
to

n
e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
p
ilo

t 
to

 b
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 i
n
 5

 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

8
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

C
h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
p
ilo

t 
to

 b
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 i
n
 1

0
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/1

2
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

C
h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
p
ilo

t 
to

 b
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 i
n
 1

5
 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 C
e
n
tr

e
s

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

M
ile

s
to

n
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 t
im

e
s
c
a
le

s
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
6
. 
S

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 r
o
le

 o
f 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 l
o
c
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
y
e
a
r 

o
f 
th

e
 f
o
u
r 

y
e
a
r 

H
e
a
lt
h
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
l 
W

o
rk

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 w

h
ic

h
 f
o
c
u
s
e
d
 o

n
 t
a
c
k
lin

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

n
d
 d

e
liv

e
r 

a
 h

e
a
lt
h
 f
a
ir
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
c
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
, 
O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 (

A
fa

z
u
l 
H

o
q
u
e
)

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
l 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 i
ts

 f
o
c
u
s
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 d

u
e
 t
o

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
th

e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
 l
o
c
a
lly

 a
n
d
 r

e
g
io

n
a
lly

 w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 H

e
a
lt
h
 f
o
r 

N
o
rt

h
 E

a
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 J
o
in

t 
O

v
e
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 h

e
ld

 

a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
u
b
-r

e
g
io

n
a
l 
e
v
e
n
ts

 t
o
 g

a
th

e
r 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 v
ie

w
s
 o

n
 

th
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 e

c
o
n
o
m

y
. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
fo

c
u
s
 g

ro
u
p
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 c

o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 e

v
id

e
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 O

b
e
s
it
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
. 
T

h
e
 P

a
n
e
l 
h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 

u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ie

c
e
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 I
n
v
o
lv

e
m

e
n
t 
N

e
tw

o
rk

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 h

a
v
e
 h

e
lp

e
d
 g

a
th

e
r 

g
re

a
te

r 

in
te

lli
g
e
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
 h

e
a
lt
h
 s

e
c
to

r.
 

E
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

4
 o

f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 P

a
n
e
l 
W

o
rk

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 h
o
w

 h
e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

la
n

H
a
fs

h
a
 A

li 
&

 

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
n
 e

x
te

rn
a
l 
e
v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 J

a
n
-F

e
b
 2

0
1
0
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 

h
o
w

 t
h
e
 P

a
n
e
l's

 w
o
rk

 h
a
s
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 h

e
a
lt
h
 i
n
e
q
u
a
lit

ie
s
. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

re
c
o
m

m
e
n
d
a
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

a
d
e
 o

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 S

c
ru

ti
n
y
 

P
a
n
e
l's

 w
o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 a

n
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
 t
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 

th
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
 i
n
 n

e
x
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

.1
: 

R
e
d

u
c
e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e
s
 i
n

 p
e
o

p
le

’s
 h

e
a
lt

h
 a

n
d

 p
ro

m
o

te
 h

e
a
lt

h
y
 l
if

e
s
ty

le
s

5
.1

.4
  
  
  
  
Im

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

e
x
u

a
l 
h

e
a
lt

h

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

5
.1

.1
  
  
  
 R

e
d

u
c
e
 t

h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
to

b
a
c
c
o

5
.1

.2
  
  
  
 R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
d

ia
b

e
te

s
, 
h

ig
h

 b
lo

o
d

 p
re

s
s
u

re
 a

n
d

 c
h

o
le

s
te

ro
l

A
 H

e
a
lt

h
y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y

5
.1

.3
  
  
  
 S

lo
w

 d
o

w
n

 t
h

e
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 i
n

 o
b

e
s
it

y

P
a
g
e
 3

6

Page 127



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
7
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 

le
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
 u

s
e
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

Im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
8
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
a
k
in

g
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 n

e
w

 G
e
t 
A

c
ti
v
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

t 
W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 

L
e
is

u
re

 C
e
n
tr

e

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

3
2
6
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
a
k
in

g
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
e
x
e
rc

is
e
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 “

G
e
t 
A

c
ti
v
e
” 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

In
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
n
 e

n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
s
w

im
m

in
g
 

s
e
s
s
io

n
s
 f
o
r 

w
o
m

e
n
 a

n
d
 g

ir
ls

H
e
a
th

e
r

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

D
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
fr

e
e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 f
o
r 

u
n
d
e
r 

1
6
’s

 a
n
d
 O

v
e
r 

6
0
’s

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

6
9
. 
A

g
re

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 s
p
o
rt

s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
W

h
ile

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 t
h
re

e
 w

a
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 

ta
k
e
 u

p
 w

a
s
 l
o
w

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 s

p
o
rt

s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

b
e
tt
e
r 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
 t
h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

g
re

e
d
 w

it
h
 C

L
C

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

H
o
ld

 t
h
e
 Y

o
u
n
g
 a

t 
H

e
a
rt

 O
ly

m
p
ic

s
 e

v
e
n
t 
in

v
o
lv

in
g
 o

v
e
r 

1
0
0
 l
o
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
5
0

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

H
o
ld

 S
c
h
o
o
ls

 O
ly

m
p
ic

 S
p
o
rt

s
 d

a
y
 t
o
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 o

v
e
r 

4
0
0
 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
n
 6

 s
p
o
rt

s

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s
3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 m
ile

s
to

n
e
 w

a
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 t
o
 l
o
c
a
l 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
ta

k
e
u
p
 (

a
s
 a

d
v
is

e
d
 b

y
 

C
S

F
) 

w
a
s
 l
o
w

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

iv
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 

lo
c
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
t 
e
n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 s
p
o
rt

s
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s

P
a
g
e
 3

7

Page 128



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

7
0
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
 i
n
n
o
v
a
ti
v
e
 n

e
w

 p
ro

je
c
t,
 A

S
P

IR
E

, 

w
h
ic

h
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 t
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 y
o
u
n
g
 w

o
m

e
n
, 
a
t 
ri
s
k
 

o
f 
b
e
c
o
m

in
g
 p

re
g
n
a
n
t,
 w

it
h
 i
n
d
iv

id
u
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 (
C

Y
P

P
 

B
e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
)

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
 

(w
it
h
 N

H
S

 

T
o
w

e
r

H
a
m

le
ts

)

3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
ll 

th
e
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
b
u
t 
th

e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s
 t
h
e
re

 w
a
s
 

lo
w

 u
p
ta

k
e
 a

n
d
 l
o
w

 r
e
fe

rr
a
ls

 f
ro

m
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
G

o
o
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 w

e
re

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 

fo
r 

th
o
s
e
 w

o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 d

id
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

o
l 
a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

s
c
h
o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
0
/0

4
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 d

o
n
e
, 
b
u
t 
is

 u
n
d
e
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

s
 t
a
k
e
-u

p
 w

a
s
 l
o
w

 i
n
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
.

Id
e
n
ti
fy

 y
o
u
n
g
 w

o
m

e
n
 n

e
e
d
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
1
/0

7
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

D
e
liv

e
r 

a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
te

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 t
o
 f
ir
s
t 
g
ro

u
p
 o

f 

y
o
u
n
g
 w

o
m

e
n

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in
3
1
/0

3
/2

0
1
0

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
. 

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

7
1
. 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

e
ig

h
t 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 w

e
ig

h
t 
(C

Y
P

P
 B

e
 

H
e
a
lt
h
y
)

S
u
s
a
n
 A

c
la

n
d
-

H
o
o
d
 (

w
it
h
 

N
H

S
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

)

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

N
e
a
r

C
o

m
p

le
te

9
5
%

T
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
 m

ile
s
to

n
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
, 
th

e
 o

n
ly

 o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 c
a
re

/r
e
fe

rr
a
l 
p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 o

b
e
s
it
y
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 d

o
n
e
 

la
te

r 
in

 2
0
1
0
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

In
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 e

a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

re
v
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 

o
b
e
s
it
y
 i
n
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 a

t 
ri
s
k
, 
ta

rg
e
ti
n
g
 w

o
m

e
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 

id
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 o

b
e
s
e
 i
n
 p

re
g
n
a
n
c
y

S
u
s
a
n
 A

c
la

n
d
- 

H
o
o
d

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
v
8
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 a

 n
e
w

 e
a
rl
y
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 f
o
r 

p
re

g
n
a
n
t 
w

o
m

e
n
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
.

B
e
g
in

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
lin

ic
a
l 
p
s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
y
 i
n
p
u
t 
in

to
 

c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 c

h
ild

 o
b
e
s
it
y
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 a

t 
h
ig

h
e
s
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
o
b
e
s
it
y
 

S
u
s
a
n
 A

c
la

n
d
- 

H
o
o
d

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
p
s
y
c
h
o
lo

g
is

t 
(0

.5
 F

T
E

) 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 A

c
ti
v
8
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a
te

 c
a
re

/r
e
fe

rr
a
l 
p
a
th

w
a
y
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

h
o
o
d
 o

b
e
s
it
y

S
u
s
a
n
 A

c
la

n
d
- 

H
o
o
d

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

O
v
e
rd

u
e

8
5
%

T
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d
, 
b
u
t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 
b
e
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 u

n
ti
l 
la

te
r 

in
 2

0
1
0
, 
p
e
n
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 

s
tr

e
a
m

lin
in

g
 o

f 
w

e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
. 
It
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
in

g
 l
in

k
s
 w

it
h
 a

d
u
lt
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 c

a
re

 p
a
th

w
a
y
s
 f
o
r 

a
 f
a
m

ily
 c

e
n
tr

e
d
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
.

P
a
g
e
 3

8

Page 129



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

7
2
. 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
 s

a
fe

 a
n
d
 s

e
a
m

le
s
s
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

th
a
t 
e
m

p
o
w

e
r 

u
s
e
rs

 a
n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 r
e
c
o
v
e
ry

 a
n
d
 

c
it
iz

e
n
s
h
ip

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

W
o
rk

 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 s

e
a
m

le
s
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 

p
ro

b
le

m
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

1
0
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 

re
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

 i
n
to

 m
o
re

 a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 o

p
ti
o
n
s

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
a
rg

e
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 b
u
t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

c
lip

s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

fu
rt

h
e
r 

n
e
w

 p
la

c
e
m

e
n
ts

 m
a
d
e
 i
n
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ti
a
l 
c
a
re

. 
A

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 

b
o
a
rd

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
  
a
ll 

k
e
y
 s

ta
k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 t
o
 t
a
c
k
le

 

th
is

 i
s
s
u
e
.

A
g
re

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
ls

 w
it
h
 E

a
s
t 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

it
y
 M

e
n
ta

l 

H
e
a
lt
h
 T

ru
s
t 
fo

r 
re

s
tr

u
c
tu

ri
n
g
 o

f 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 m

e
n
ta

l 

h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e

M
a
rk

s

3
0
/0

6
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

C
o
m

p
le

te
d
.

Im
p
le

m
e
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

K
a
th

a
ri
n
e
 

M
a
rk

s

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 R

e
v
ie

w
 c

o
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 

F
o
llo

w
in

g
 f
e
e
d
b
a
c
k
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
m

e
n
d
m

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 

in
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
d
.

T
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
h
a
s
e
 o

f 
im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 h

a
s
 n

o
w

 b
e
g
u
n
 w

it
h
 a

ll 
b
u
t 
o
n
e
 C

M
H

T
 n

o
w

 

o
p
e
ra

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 m
o
d
e
l.
 

T
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 A
s
s
is

ta
n
t 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 p

o
s
ts

 w
a
s
 d

e
la

y
e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

 n
e
e
d
 

to
 r

e
d
e
s
ig

n
 t
h
e
 p

o
s
t 
o
f 
P

ro
fe

s
s
io

n
a
l 
le

a
d
 f
o
r 

s
o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 n

o
w

 h
a
p
p
e
n
e
d
 a

n
d
 

im
p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 p
o
s
ts

 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 h

a
p
p
e
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 o

f 
M

a
y
.

T
h
e
 r

e
s
e
tt
le

m
e
n
t 
te

a
m

 i
s
 u

p
 a

n
d
 r

u
n
n
in

g
.

5
.2

.2
  
  
  
 C

o
m

b
a
ti

n
g

 d
is

c
ri

m
in

a
ti

o
n

 a
g

a
in

s
t 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
ls

 a
n

d
 g

ro
u

p
s
 w

it
h

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 p

ro
b

le
m

s

5
.2

.3
  
  
  
 E

n
s
u

ri
n

g
 i
n

te
g

ra
te

d
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 t
re

a
tm

e
n

t 
w

it
h

 p
a
ti

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 m
u

lt
ip

le
 h

e
a
lt

h
 n

e
e
d

s

P
ri

o
ri

ty
 5

.2
: 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 m
e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 t

o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a
lt

h
 

O
b

je
c
ti

v
e
s
:

5
.2

.1
  
  
  
 P

ro
v
id

in
g

 h
ig

h
-q

u
a
li
ty

 a
c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

P
a
g
e
 3

9

Page 130



A
p
p
e
n
d
ix

 2
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 P

ro
g
re

s
s
 R

e
p
o
rt

 2
0
0
9
/1

0

A
c
ti

v
it

y
L

e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

7
3
. 
In

c
re

a
s
e
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

b
y
 u

n
d
e
r 

re
p
re

s
e
n
te

d
 g

ro
u
p
s

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 a
c
ti
v
it
y
 i
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 J

S
N

A
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 i
s
 n

e
a
ri
n
g
 t
o
 a

 c
lo

s
e
. 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rw

a
y
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 a

g
re

e
d
.

M
il
e
s
to

n
e

L
e
a
d

 O
ff

ic
e
r

D
e
a
d

li
n

e
S

ta
tu

s
%

 C
o

m
p

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

C
o
m

p
le

te
 J

o
in

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 N
e
e
d
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
is

 r
e
fr

e
s
h

D
e
b
o
ra

h
 

C
o
h
e
n

3
0
/0

9
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
e
 J

S
N

A
 i
s
 a

n
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 n

o
t 
a
 s

in
g
le

 d
o
c
u
m

e
n
t.

T
o
 d

a
te

 t
h
e
 P

C
T

 h
a
v
e
 p

ro
d
u
c
e
d
 t
h
e
 J

S
N

A
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 "

S
u
m

m
a
ry

 o
f 
k
e
y
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 0

9
/1

0
" 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
.

T
h
e
 s

ta
tu

s
 o

f 
s
p
e
c
if
ic

 e
le

m
e
n
ts

 o
f 
th

e
 J

S
N

A
 a

re
 a

s
 f
o
llo

w
s
:

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o
p
le

's
 a

n
d
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 -

 C
o
m

p
le

te

L
e
a
rn

in
g
 D

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 -

 C
o
m

p
le

te

C
a
re

rs
 -

 1
s
t 
d
ra

ft
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

n
d
 o

u
t 
fo

r 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n

In
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
it
h
 P

C
T

 a
n
d
 M

e
n
ta

l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 T

ru
s
t,
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
 a

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
th

e
 

N
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 S

tr
a
te

g
y

D
e
b
o
ra

h

C
o
h
e
n

3
1
/1

0
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

A
 J

S
N

A
 o

n
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 h

a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 a

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
b
a
s
is

 f
o
r 

th
e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 l
o
c
a
l 

a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
d
e
m

e
n
ti
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 i
n
 A

p
ri
l 
a
n
d
 

m
o
v
in

g
 i
n
to

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 s

ta
g
e
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

. 
 T

h
e
 d

e
m

e
n
ti
a
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 h

a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 

s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 b
o
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 u

s
e
r 

g
ro

u
p
s
, 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
.

W
o
rk

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 t
h
ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r 
fo

ru
m

 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 o
p
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

e
n
g
a
g
in

g
 w

it
h
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 r

e
a
c
h
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

S
u
s
a
n
 A

c
la

n
d
-

H
o
o
d

3
1
/0

5
/2

0
0
9

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
1
0
0
%

T
h
is

 w
a
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 n

o
w

 e
x
p
lo

ri
n
g
 m

o
re

 d
e
liv

e
ry

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
n
e
tw

o
rk

s
. 

P
a
g
e
 4

0

Page 131



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

T
h

e
m

e
 1

: 
O

n
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

2

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
to

p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 o
f 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 w
o
m

e
n
.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
g
ro

s
s
 p

a
y
 o

f 
to

p
 5

 %
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 e

x
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

ll 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

5
0
.4

7
5
0

5
1
.2

9
5
0

2
.6

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

3

T
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
L
o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 a

re
 f
ro

m
 a

n
 e

th
n
ic

 m
in

o
ri
ty

.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
‘t
o
p
-p

a
id

 5
%

’ 
a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 r

a
n
k
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 g

ro
s
s
 p

a
y
.)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

1
7
.1

2
5

1
6
.6

8
2
7

-3
3
.3

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
C

M
T

 a
n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
w

ill
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 t
o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 f
ro

m
 B

M
E

 g
ro

u
p
s
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

s
h
o
rt

 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o

f 

ti
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 
O

n
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

q
u
a
l 
to

 

0
.4

5
%

.

A
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
2
5
%

 w
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
h
e
 a

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
1
8
 m

o
re

 s
e
n
io

r 
B

M
E

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
tu

rn
o
v
e

r 
a
t 
s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
r 

le
v
e
l 
is

 a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 6

%
 

p
e
r 

a
n
n
u
m

. 
T

h
is

 g
e
n
e
ra

te
s
 1

4
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 a

 y
e
a
r 

s
o
 i
t 
is

 u
n
lik

e
ly

. 
 A

 n
e
w

 V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
o
s
ts

 a
t 
P

O
5
 

a
n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 b
e
s
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 c

a
re

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
.

A
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
  
2
0
1
0
/1

1
  
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
3
0
%

 w
o
u
ld

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a

n
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
3
0
 B

M
E

 s
e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
. 
C

M
T

 a
n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
w

ill
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

W
o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
th

ro
u
g
h
 b

o
th

 r
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 o

f 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
.

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1

Page 132



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 t
o
p
 p

a
id

 5
%

 o
f 
s
ta

ff
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 d
is

a
b
ili

ty
 (

e
x
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
‘t
o
p
-p

a
id

 5
%

’ 
a
re

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 r

a
n
k
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
 t
h
e
ir
 g

ro
s
s
 p

a
y
. 
 S

ta
ff
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

 

d
is

a
b
ili

ty
’ 
a
re

 t
h
o
s
e
 t
h
a
t 
id

e
n
ti
fy

 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

s
 s

u
c
h
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff
 s

u
rv

e
y
, 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 d

e
fi
n
it
io

n
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

D
is

a
b
ili

ty
 D

is
c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t 
1
9
9
5
).

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

2
.1

4
.7

1
.5

4
5
.4

-6
7
.2

0
%

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

1

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
U

n
d
is

p
u
te

d
 I
n
v
o
ic

e
s
 P

a
id

 o
n
 T

im
e

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
o
n
 t
im

e
 i
s
 u

s
u
a
lly

 w
it
h
in

 3
0
 d

a
y
s
 o

r 
lo

n
g
e
r 

b
y
 m

u
tu

a
l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

R
ic

h
a
rd

 P
a
rs

o
n
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

8
8
.3

8
9
8

8
9
.0

2
9
8

-9
.2

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 o
f 
8
9
.0

2
%

 i
s
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
, 
b
u
t 
s
ti
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
9
8
%

. 
T

h
is

 m
a
tt
e
r 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
, 
a
n
d
 w

a
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 

P
R

G
 i
n
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
. 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
R

2
P

 w
ill

 u
lt
im

a
te

ly
 s

e
e
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 p
a
y
m

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
b
u
t 
th

is
 i
s
 d

e
p
e
n
d
e
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 r

a
p
id

ly
 e

m
b
e
d
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 s
y
s
te

m
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 t
o
p
 5

%
 o

f 
e
a
rn

e
rs

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 D
is

a
b
le

d
 c

a
n
 b

e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
m

o
v
e
m

e
n
ts

 o
v
e
r 

s
h
o
rt

 p
e
ri
o
d
s
 o

f 
ti
m

e
. 

T
h
is

 i
s
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 s
m

a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
ta

ff
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 
O

n
e
 e

m
p
lo

y
e
e
 i
n
 t
h
is

 g
ro

u
p
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 e

q
u
a
l 
to

 0
.7

5
%

.

A
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
.7

%
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
4
 s

e
n
io

r 
m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 i
n
 t
h
is

 g
ro

u
p
.

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 e
ff
e
c
te

d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 2

7
%

 o
f 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 w

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
c
o
n
fi
rm

e
d
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o
t 

th
e
y
 a

re
 d

is
a
b
le

d
 (

a
s
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

is
a
b
ili

ty
 

D
is

c
ri
m

in
a
ti
o
n
 A

c
t)

. 
T

h
is

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
q
u
e
s
te

d
 o

n
 j
o
b
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
e
n
 n

e
w

 e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
 s

ta
rt

 w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il.

 T
o
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 t
h
is

, 
a
 s

ta
ff
 e

q
u
a
lit

y
 a

u
d
it
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
e
d
 

in
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
h
a
lf
 o

f 
2
0
1
0
.

D
is

a
b
le

d
 s

ta
ff
 a

re
 a

b
le

 t
o
 a

c
c
e
s
s
 t
h
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

p
ro

v
id

e
s
 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 c

a
re

e
r 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 o

p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
ie

s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 d

is
c
u
s
s
e
d
 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 D

is
a
b
le

d
 S

ta
ff
 F

o
ru

m
 w

h
o
s
e
 v

ie
w

s
 w

e
re

 t
a
k
e
n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
w

h
e
n
 p

ro
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r'
s
 a

c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
.

A
 n

e
w

 V
a
c
a
n
c
y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 a

n
d
 i
s
 a

c
ti
v
e
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n
t 
to

 p
o
s
ts

 a
t 
P

O
5
 a

n
d
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 m
a
n
a
g
e
rs

 c
o
n
s
id

e
r 

h
o
w

 b
e
s
t 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 

c
a
re

e
r 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
s
.C

M
T

 a
n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
w

ill
 s

h
o
rt

ly
 b

e
 a

s
k
e
d
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 t
o
 R

e
fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 

in
c
lu

d
e
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
0123456789

1
0

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2

Page 133



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

5

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
/s

h
if
ts

 l
o
s
t 
to

 s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 p

e
r 

e
m

p
lo

y
e
e
.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
th

e
 a

g
g
re

g
a
te

 o
f 
w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 l
o
s
t 
d
u
e
 t
o
 s

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 a

b
s
e
n
c
e
 i
rr

e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

f 
w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
is

 i
s
 

s
e
lf
 c

e
rt

if
ie

d
, 
c
e
rt

if
ie

d
 b

y
 a

 G
P

 o
r 

lo
n
g
 t
e
rm

 d
iv

id
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
F

T
E

 s
ta

ff
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

8
.9

5
7

8
.5

4
6
.5

-2
2
.0

0
%

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

6

R
e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 -

 %
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
 -

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 w

it
h
in

 1
0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
/t
o
ta

l 
v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 

e
n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 c

lo
s
e
d
 x

 1
0
0
%

.)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
o
h
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

7
6
.3

1
8
5

8
6
.7

6
8
7

2
.1

G
R

E
E

N

F
in

a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 c
o
m

m
e
n
ts

: 
S

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 d

e
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

m
a
rg

in
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 (
8
.7

4
 d

a
y
s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 8

.7
8
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 )
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

s
 w

e
ll 

a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

C
M

T
 h

a
v
e
 a

p
p
ro

v
e
d
 a

 s
e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
a
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
in

g
 a

 C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 S

ic
k
n
e
s
s
 P

a
n
e
l.
 T

h
is

 r
e
p
lic

a
te

s
 a

 m
o
d
e
l 
th

a
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
in

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 

s
ic

k
n
e
s
s
 i
n
 C

L
C

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 F

o
r 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

(2
0
0
9
/1

0
),

 a
 t
o
ta

l 
o
f 
8
,6

5
5
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 w

e
re

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
2
,4

2
7
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 (

3
9
%

) 
o
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

(2
0
0
8
/0

9
).

 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
lly

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 v

o
lu

m
e
, 
it
 i
s
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 8

6
.7

6
%

 (
c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 7

6
.3

1
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
) 

o
f 
th

e
 e

n
q
u
ir
ie

s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
d
e
d
 t
o
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 1

0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
, 
th

u
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
in

g
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
e
 e

ff
o
rt

s
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

re
 n

o
te

d
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
ir
 s

tr
o
n
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 (

9
1
.5

6
%

) 
h
a
s
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
ta

rg
e
t 
to

 b
e
 

a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

T
h
e
 e

ff
o
rt

s
 o

f 
a
ll 

th
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 a

re
 n

o
te

d
, 
a
s
 t
h
e
ir
 s

tr
o
n
g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

9
1
.5

6
%

) 
h
a
s
 e

n
a
b
le

d
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
ta

rg
e
t 
to

 b
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

F
e

b
ru

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

0123456789

1
0

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

3

Page 134



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

7

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
o
m

p
la

in
ts

 c
o
m

p
le

te
d
 i
n
 t
im

e
 -

 C
o
u
n
c
il 

a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 -
 S

ta
g
e
 1

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
w

it
h
in

 2
0
 w

o
rk

in
g
 d

a
y
s
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

C
la

ir
e
 S

y
m

o
n
d
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

8
2

8
5

9
2

8
6

8
.2

G
R

E
E

N

R
E

S
0
1
2
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

8

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g
re

e
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

"p
ro

v
id

e
s
 v

a
lu

e
 f
o
r 

m
o
n
e
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

ta
x
/p

a
y
" 

(A
R

S
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
la

n
 F

in
c
h

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

4
3

5
0

5
0

5
4

M
e
t

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0
0

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

2
0

0
5

/0
6

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

4

Page 135



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
0

9

P
e
rc

e
n
t 
o
f 
c
a
lls

 t
o
 H

o
t 
L
in

e
s
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
V

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
a
lls

 a
n
s
w

e
re

d
 a

s
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
a
lls

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 a

b
a
n
d
o
n
e
d
/l
o
s
t 

c
a
lls

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

C
la

ir
e
 S

y
m

o
n
d
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

9
2
.9

9
5

9
0
.2

9
5

-5
.1

0
%

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
1

0

A
v
e
ra

g
e
 w

a
it
in

g
 t
im

e
 f
o
r 

c
a
lls

 t
o
 H

o
t 
L
in

e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(s
e
c
o
n
d
s
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

C
la

ir
e
 S

y
m

o
n
d
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

3
3

3
0

4
3

3
0

-4
3
.3

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 h

a
d
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
th

ro
u
g
h
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
.

In
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
g
a
c
y
 V

IP
 p

h
o
n
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
w

o
 h

ig
h
-v

o
lu

m
e
 H

o
t 

L
in

e
s
. 
 W

h
ile

 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 B

T
 C

C
7
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n
 l
a
te

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 m
a
jo

r 
te

c
h
n
ic

a
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
d
ip

 i
n
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

. 
 W

h
ile

 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
, 
th

e
 e

n
d
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 b

o
th

 t
o
 m

is
s
 t
h
e
 9

5
%

 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t
o
 s

h
o
w

 a
 

d
ip

 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 9

2
.9

%
 t
o
 9

0
.2

%
. 
 A

 s
ta

b
ili

s
e
d
 B

T
 C

C
7
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 p

la
tf
o
rm

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 s

h
o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 m

o
re

 c
o

n
s
is

te
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
H

o
t 
L
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d
 u

n
if
ie

d
 a

n
d
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
, 
le

a
d
in

g
 t
o
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 m

a
jo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

M
o
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

, 
te

c
h
n
ic

a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 B

T
/A

v
a
y
a
 N

o
rt

e
l 
te

le
p
h
o
n
y
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
s
tl
y
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
s
y
s
te

m
 s

ta
b
ili

ty
 a

c
ro

s
s
 M

a
rc

h
.

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 (
9
0
.2

%
) 

w
a
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

s
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 v

a
lu

e
s
. 
F

o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
, 
th

e
 B

T
/A

v
a
y
a
 N

o
rt

e
l 
s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 p
ro

p
e
r 

fu
ll 

y
e
a
r 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 f
ig

u
re

. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 t
e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 h

a
d
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
th

ro
u
g
h
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
. 
 I
n
 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 

p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 l
e
g
a
c
y
 

V
IP

 p
h
o
n
e
 s

y
s
te

m
 u

s
e
d
 b

y
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
d
v
e
rs

e
ly

 i
m

p
a
c
te

d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
w

o
 h

ig
h
-v

o
lu

m
e
 H

o
t 
L
in

e
s
. 
 W

h
ile

 t
h
is

 i
s
s
u
e
 w

a
s
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 

th
e
 B

T
 C

C
7
 s

y
s
te

m
 i
n
 l
a
te

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r,

 m
a
jo

r 
te

c
h
n
ic

a
l 
p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 c

a
u
s
e
d
 a

 m
a
jo

r 
d
ip

 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

.

W
h
ile

 t
h
e
s
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
w

 b
e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 r
e
s
o
lv

e
d
, 
th

e
 e

n
d
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
a
c
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 b

o
th

 t
o
 m

is
s
 t
h
e
 3

0
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t
o
 s

h
o
w

 a
 d

ip
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 

fr
o
m

 3
3
 s

e
c
o
n
d
s
 t
o
 4

3
 s

e
c
o
n
d
s
. 
 A

 s
ta

b
ili

s
e
d
 B

T
 C

C
7
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
y
 p

la
tf
o
rm

 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 s

h
o
u
ld

 l
e
a
d
 t
o
 m

o
re

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
H

o
t 
L
in

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

n
d
 u

n
if
ie

d
 a

n
d
 

m
o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
, 
le

a
d
in

g
 t
o
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 m

a
jo

r 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

M
o
re

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
ly

, 
te

c
h
n
ic

a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 B

T
/A

v
a
y
a
 N

o
rt

e
l 
te

le
p
h
o
n
y
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

to
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 m

o
s
tl
y
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 w

it
h
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
s
y
s
te

m
 s

ta
b
ili

ty
 a

c
ro

s
s
 M

a
rc

h
.

T
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

 (
4
3
 s

e
c
o
n
d
s
) 

w
a
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 a

s
 a

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 v

a
lu

e
s
. 
F

o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
, 
th

e
 B

T
/A

v
a
y
a
 N

o
rt

e
l 
s
y
s
te

m
 w

ill
 a

llo
w

 p
ro

p
e
r 

fu
ll 

y
e
a
r 

c
a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

is
 f
ig

u
re

. 

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

A
p

ri
l

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

5

Page 136



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
1

1

F
ir
s
t 
c
o
n
ta

c
t 
re

s
o
lu

ti
o
n
 o

f 
c
a
lls

 t
o
 H

o
t 
L
in

e
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
%

 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 a

n
s
w

e
re

d
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
ly

 t
o
 “

H
o
w

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

e
re

 y
o
u
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
r 

c
a
ll 

to
d
a
y
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d

th
e
 i
s
s
u
e
 t
h
a
t 
y
o
u
 p

h
o
n
e
d
 u

s
 a

b
o
u
t?

”)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

C
la

ir
e
 S

y
m

o
n
d
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

9
0

9
0

9
0

9
1

M
e
t

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

1
1

2

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 s

ta
ff
 a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
ts

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(t
h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
g
e
n
c
y
 a

s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
th

e
 m

o
n
th

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

S
te

v
e
 J

a
m

e
s

R
e
s
o
u
rc

e
s

7
9
6

4
7
8

4
5
4

N
O

T
 S

E
T

5
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
T

h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
y
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
. 
P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 H

u
m

a
n
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
p
o
s
in

g
 a

 m
e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
 t
o
 C

M
T

 f
o
r 

d
e
te

rm
in

in
g
 f
u
tu

re
 t
a
rg

e
ts

. 

D
e
m

a
n
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
G

ro
u
p
 w

ill
 c

o
-o

rd
in

a
te

 w
o
rk

 a
c
ro

s
s
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s
 t
o
 o

v
e
rs

e
e
 i
ts

 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
.

A
 d

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 a

u
d
it
 o

f 
th

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 C

o
m

e
n
s
u
ra

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
a
s
s
ig

n
m

e
n
t 
e
n
d
 d

a
te

s
 i
n
 C

o
n
tr

a
c
t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 d

id
 n

o
t 
re

fl
e
c
t 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
p
e
ri
o
d
s
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 t
e
m

p
s
 w

o
rk

e
d
. 
T

h
is

 

w
a
s
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 a

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 m

o
re

 e
ff
ic

ie
n
t 
b
y
 e

n
a
b
lin

g
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 t
o
 r

e
c
a
ll 

a
 t
e
m

p
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 i
f 
th

e
y
 h

a
d
 n

o
t 
b
e
e
n
 o

ff
e
re

d
 w

o
rk

 o
n
 c

o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 d

a
y
s
/w

e
e
k
s
. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

 t
h
e
 

a
c
tu

a
l 
h
o
u
rs

 w
o
rk

e
d
 b

y
 a

g
e
n
c
y
 t
e
m

p
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

a
s
 a

n
a
ly

s
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
 t
h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

e
n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
. 
P

re
v
io

u
s
 m

o
n
th

 e
n
d
 f
ig

u
re

s
 w

o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 o

v
e
r 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

u
t 
w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e
 r

e
c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
- 

w
h
ic

h
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 T

H
 C

o
n
ta

c
t 
C

e
n
tr

e
 -

 h
a
s
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

lly
 m

e
t 
o
r 

e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
ts

 t
a
rg

e
t 
in

 e
a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 1

2
 

m
o
n
th

s
 o

f 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
, 
a
n
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 w
h
o
le

. 
  
It
 i
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 e

x
p
a
n
d
 t
h
is

 c
u
s
to

m
e
r 

s
u
rv

e
y
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 R

e
v
e
n
u
e
s
 a

n
d
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 H
o
t 
L
in

e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
.

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

1
0
0
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

8
0

8
2

8
4

8
6

8
8

9
0

9
2

9
4

9
6

9
8

1
0
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

6

Page 137



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

T
h

e
m

e
 2

: 
A

 G
re

a
t 

P
la

c
e
 t

o
 L

iv
e

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

1

L
A

A
L

o
c
a

l
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 t
h
e
m

s
e
lv

e
s
 a

s
 h

o
m

e
le

s
s
, 
w

h
o
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
e
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

’s
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
's

),
 a

n
d
 f
o
r 

w
h
o
m

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

d
v
ic

e
 c

a
s
e
w

o
rk

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 r

e
s
o
lv

e
d
 t
h
e
ir
 s

it
u
a
ti
o
n
.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
c
a
s
e
w

o
rk

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
 -

 p
e
r 

th
o
u
s
a
n
d
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

8
.8

7
8

9
9

1
2
.5

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
4

0
5

c
,

L
A

A
L

o
c
a

l4
0

5
c
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

3

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
te

n
a
n
te

d
 n

o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 
h
o
m

e
s
 i
n
 h

o
m

e
s
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
e
d
 t
o
 R

S
L
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

h
o
ic

e

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
0
.6

5
2
7
.3

2
4
9

4
4
6
.4

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
N

I1
5

8
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

8
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

9

%
 n

o
n
-d

e
c
e
n
t 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

h
o
m

e
s
 (

o
ri
g
in

a
l)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

5
7
.6

1
4
9

5
5
.9

5
4
7

-1
4
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 o

n
ly

 i
n
d
ic

a
ti
v
e
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 c

h
a
n
g
e
. 
T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
c
a
lc

u
la

te
d
 u

n
ti
l 
th

e
 m

id
d
le

 o
f 

M
a
y
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 f
u
ll 

v
e
ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
ll 

c
h
a
n
g
e
s
 i
n
 

d
e
c
e
n
t 
h
o
m

e
s
 s

c
o
re

s
 h

a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

e
d
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

re
 t
o
 b

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 b

o
ile

r 
re

n
e
w

a
ls

, 
e
le

c
tr

ic
a
l 
re

w
ir
e
s
 a

ls
o
 D

H
 v

o
id

 w
o
rk

s
 

(i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
o
s
e
 t
o
 b

u
y
b
a
c
k
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
) 

a
n
d
 D

H
 w

o
rk

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 N

D
C

 O
c
e
a
n
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 f
ig

u
re

s
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
if
fe

re
n
t 
p
a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
p
u
t 
in

to
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
b
u
t 
th

e
 m

a
in

 o
v
e
r-

a
c
h
ie

v
e
r 

is
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 r

e
n
t 
d
e
p
o
s
it
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 f
o
r 

h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 w

h
e
re

b
y
 i
n
s
te

a
d
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 h
o
m

e
le

s
s
 r

o
u
te

 a
n
d
 g

o
in

g
 i
n
to

 t
e
m

p
o
ra

ry
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 a

s
s
is

te
d
 i
n
to

 a
 h

o
m

e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r.
 

B
e
c
a
u
s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 i
n
 t
h
e
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 m

a
rk

e
t 
th

e
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 p
ri
v
a
te

 s
e
c
to

r 
p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 a

d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

is
 c

h
a
n
g
e
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 A

 2
7
.3

2
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f
o
r 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
e
iv

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 R

S
L
 d

e
c
e
n
t 
h
o
m

e
s
 w

o
rk

s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
a
c
ro

s
s
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
R

S
L
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

ie
s
. 
T

h
is

 f
ig

u
re

 i
s
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 5

%
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 i
s
 P

R
O

V
IS

IO
N

A
L
. 
D

a
ta

 q
u
a
lit

y
 c

h
e
c
k
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
in

g
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 t
o
 v

e
ri
fy

 t
h
i 
s
fi
g
u
re

 w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u
d
l 
b
e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 

o
f 
J
u
ly

. 

0123456789

1
0

J
u

ly
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
D

e
c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

2
0
.0

0

3
0
.0

0

4
0
.0

0

5
0
.0

0

6
0
.0

0

7
0
.0

0

8
0
.0

0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

7

Page 138



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

7
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

4
N

e
t 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
h
o
m

e
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(t
h
e
 s

u
m

 o
f 
n
e
w

 b
u
ild

 c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
, 
m

in
u
s
 d

e
m

o
lit

io
n
s
, 
p
lu

s
 a

n
y
 g

a
in

s
 o

r 
lo

s
s
e
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

c
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
v
e
rs

io
n
s
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

2
8
3
9

2
9
9
9

2
3
9
8

2
9
9
9

-2
0
.0

0
%

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

8
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

5
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
m

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 (

g
ro

s
s
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(t
h
e
 s

u
m

 o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
re

n
t 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 -

 l
o
w

 c
o
s
t 
h
o
m

e
 o

w
n
e
rs

h
ip

 

a
n
d
 i
n
te

rm
e
d
ia

te
 r

e
n
t)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
0
6
4

1
2
8
7

1
9
3
1
 [
P

]
1
2
8
7

5
0
%

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
P

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

S
S

A
.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
la

rg
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
p
la

n
n
e
d
 m

ix
e
d
 t
e
n
u
re

 

w
a
s
 v

a
ri
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

, 
a
s
 p

ri
v
a
te

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 s
o
u
g
h
t 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
u
n
it
s
 f
o
r 

s
a
le

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
rs

 m
ig

h
t 
h
a
v
e
 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
m

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 f
in

a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
1
6
8
8
 i
s
 s

im
p
ly

 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 3
 y

e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t,
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

u
n
it
s
 o

v
e
r 

a
 t
im

e
s
p
a
n
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

th
a
n
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 i
s
 n

o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
R

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
a
t 
th

e
 0

9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 0

8
/0

9
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
s
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 l
a
g
 i
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 d

a
ta

. 
C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
e
n
ti
re

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 

re
g
is

te
re

d
 i
m

m
e
d
ia

te
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 B

u
ild

in
g
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 f
in

a
l 
o
c
c
u
p
a
n
c
y
 c

e
rt

if
ic

a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
in

a
l 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 m
a
y
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 

b
e
 l
iv

in
g
 p

a
rt

s
 o

f 
th

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

lr
e
a
d
y
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
. 
T

h
is

 c
a
n
 a

ff
e
c
t 
th

e
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
. 
F

u
rt

h
e

rm
o
re

 t
h
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
o
n
e
 o

r 
tw

o
 l
a
rg

e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 

c
a
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 t
e
a
m

 r
e
g
u
la

rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

. 
It
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 r

e
m

it
 t
o
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

a
n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
s
ta

lle
d
 s

it
e
s
. 
C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 m

o
s
t 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 d

a
ta

 o
f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 i
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
p
ri
o
r 

to
 b

e
in

g
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 t
o
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 

o
ff
ic

e
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
e
v
e
ry

 y
e
a
r.

 

T
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 R

e
p
o
rt

 s
h
o
u
ld

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
a
 m

o
re

 a
c
c
u
ra

te
 p

ic
tu

re
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 a

re
 o

n
 t
ra

c
k
. 
T

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il'

s
 r

e
c
o
rd

 (
L
o
n
d
o
n

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
D

a
ta

b
a
s
e
) 

in
d
ic

a
te

 t
h
a
t 
o
v
e
r 

4
0
0
0
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 u

n
it
s
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
r 

c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 a

re
 d

u
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 c

o
m

in
g
 y

e
a
r.

1
0
0
0

1
5
0
0

2
0
0
0

2
5
0
0

3
0
0
0

3
5
0
0

4
0
0
0

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

2
0
0

7
0
0

1
2
0
0

1
7
0
0

2
2
0
0

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0

/1
1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

8

Page 139



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

3
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
o
c
ia

l 
re

n
te

d
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

fa
m

ily
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 (

g
ro

s
s
 f
ig

u
re

s
 o

n
ly

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(a
 c

o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 -

 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

, 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 a

s
s
o
c
ia

ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n

d

c
o
-o

p
e
ra

ti
v
e
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

. 
 F

a
m

ily
 h

o
u
s
in

g
 i
s
 3

 b
e
d
ro

o
m

s
 o

r 
m

o
re

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

3
9
3

4
6
7

6
1
9

4
0
5

3
2
.5

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

4
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 s
a
ti
s
fi
e
d
 w

it
h
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
 t
o
 A

S
B

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

4
7
.6

6
0

6
7

6
5

1
1
.7

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

5
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 t
im

e
 t
o
 r

e
-l
e
t 
p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 (

d
a
y
s
) 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
D

a
y
s
 (

T
h
e
 t
im

e
 i
n
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

d
a
y
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 d

a
y
 a

ft
e
r 

te
n
a
n
c
y
 i
s
 t
e
rm

in
a
te

d
 u

p

to
 a

n
d
 d

a
te

 w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 t
e
n
a
n
c
y
 a

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 
s
ta

rt
s
.)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

3
1
.5

4
2
8

2
7
.2

3
2
6

2
.8

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
a
n
d
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
to

 a
u
d
it
in

g
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 f
in

a
lis

e
d
 a

ro
u
n
d
 J

u
ly

. 
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 P
I 
w

a
s
 s

tr
o
n
g
 a

t 
th

e
 s

ta
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 y

e
a
r,

 w
e
e
k
e
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

s
u
m

m
e
r 

la
rg

e
ly

 a
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
d
e
la

y
s
 i
n
 r

e
tu

rn
in

g
 f
o
rm

e
r 

N
S

T
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
e
tt
in

g
s
 p

o
o
l,
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
n
 s

tr
o
n
g
e
r 

a
g
a
in

 t
h
ro

u
g
h

 t
h
e
 w

in
te

r 
o
n
c
e
 c

o
rr

e
c
ti
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

N
S

T
 w

a
s
 t
a
k
e
n
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 b

e
c
a
u
s
e
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
la

rg
e
 s

c
h
e
m

e
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
e
re

 a
ls

o
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 

p
la

n
n
e
d
 m

ix
e
d
 t
e
n
u
re

 w
a
s
 v

a
ri
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
le

 h
o
u
s
in

g
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

, 
a
s
 p

ri
v
a
te

 d
e
v
e
lo

p
e
rs

 s
o
u
g
h
t 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
u
n
it
s
 f
o
r 

s
a
le

 w
h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 

p
u
rc

h
a
s
e
rs

 m
ig

h
t 
h
a
v
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 o
f 
m

o
rt

g
a
g
e
 f
in

a
n
c
e
. 
T

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
1
2
8
7
 i
s
 s

im
p
ly

 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 3
 y

e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t,
 a

c
k
n
o
w

le
d
g
in

g
 t
h
a
t 

s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 d

e
liv

e
r 

u
n
it
s
 o

v
e
r 

a
 t
im

e
s
p
a
n
 l
o
n
g
e
r 

th
a
n
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 s

u
p
p
ly

 i
s
 n

o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 l
e
v
e
l 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 R

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
re

fe
r 

to
 o

n
ly

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 2
 c

a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 o

n
ly

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
fo

r 
7
 m

o
n
th

s
 d

a
ta

, 
w

h
e
n
 T

H
H

 a
s
s
u
m

e
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

th
e
s
e
 c

a
s
e
s
. 
R

e
s
u
lt
s
 p

ri
o
r 

to
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

a
re

 d
e
e
m

e
d
 t
o
o
 u

n
re

lia
b
le

 t
o
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
. 
T

a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
x
t 
th

re
e
 y

e
a
rs

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 1
 a

n
d
 2

 c
a
s
e
s
 a

s
 T

H
H

 a
s
s
u
m

e
 t
o
ta

l 
re

s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

A
S

B
. 

R
e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 a

 m
o
n
th

ly
 t
e
le

p
h
o
n
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 j
u
s
t 
o
n
e
 o

f 
a
 s

e
ri
e
s
 o

f 
q
u
e
s
ti
o
n
s
 a

s
k
e
d
 b

a
s
e
d
 o

n
 t

h
e
 R

e
s
p
e
c
t 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
. 
O

n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 o

f 
2
2
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 e

a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

. 
R

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 e

a
c
h
 m

o
n
th

 t
o
 t
h
e
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 a

n
d
 T

H
H

 B
o
a
rd

.

3
0
0
.0

0

3
5
0
.0

0

4
0
0
.0

0

4
5
0
.0

0

5
0
0
.0

0

5
5
0
.0

0

6
0
0
.0

0

6
5
0
.0

0

7
0
0
.0

0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

J
u
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

9

Page 140



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

6
T

o
ta

l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 c

h
a
rg

e
 d

e
b
t 
o
u
ts

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

t 
y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
 (

£
m

ill
io

n
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
£

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
5
.3

1
5

1
2
.6

1
1
.5

1
6
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

7
R

e
n
t 
c
o
lle

c
te

d
 a

s
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

n
t 
d
u
e

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

9
9
.6

6
1
0
0
.0

1
9
9
.9

7
1
0
0
.1

0
%

R
E

D

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

2
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
v
is

it
s
 t
o
 p

u
b
lic

 l
ib

ra
ry

 p
re

m
is

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 a

 o
n
e
 w

e
e
k
 s

a
m

p
le

, 
a
n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

 o
f 
th

e
 t
o
ta

l 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
v
is

it
s
 b

y
 m

e
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 

th
e
 p

u
b
lic

 t
o
 l
ib

ra
ri
e
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
a
te

v
e
r 

p
u
rp

o
s
e
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

9
2
8
4
.7

6
9
3
6
1
.8

9
3
9
6
.5

2
2
,0

9
2
,6

5
1

0
.4

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 R

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
s
h
o
w

 a
 r

e
a
l 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
d
e
b
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 i
n
 e

x
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
1
5
%

 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 s

e
t 
ta

rg
e
t.
 T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 b

y
 b

e
tt
e
r 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 g

re
a
te

r 
s
c
ru

ti
n
y
 o

f 
d
e
b
t 
a
n
d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
. 
T

h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 s

h
o
w

e
d
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 f
ig

u
re

s
 i
n
 t
h
re

e
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 d

e
b
t,
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 a

 

d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

H
H

 h
a
v
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

 f
in

a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 o
f 
9
9
.9

7
%

, 
b
u
t 
th

is
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

o
u
n
d
e
d
 u

p
 t
o
 1

0
0
%

. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 p

ra
c
ti
c
e
 w

h
e
n
 p

re
s
e
n
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rp
re

ti
n
g
 d

a
ta

. 
E

v
e
n
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
d
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 r
e
p
o
rt

 i
n
 t
h
is

 w
a
y
. 
S

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 T

H
H

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
te

d
 t
o
 b

o
th

 u
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 i
s
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

o
n
th

ly
 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

u
b
m

is
s
io

n
 t
h
e
y
 h

a
v
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
. 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 
a
t 
1
0
1
%

 w
a
s
 i
n
 f
a
c
t 
a
n
 a

d
m

in
s
it
a
rt

iv
e
 e

rr
o
r 

m
a
d
e
 b

y
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 C

le
rk

. 
It
 s

h
o
u
ld

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 1

0
0
.1

%
. 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
 i
s
 i
n
 f
a
c
t 
1
0
0
.1

%
.

T
h
e
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 f
o
r 

0
7
-0

8
 w

a
s
 9

9
.1

0
%

 a
n
d
 i
n
 0

8
-0

9
, 
th

is
 w

a
s
 9

9
.6

0
%

. 
T

h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 e
v
id

e
n
t.
 I
t 
c
a
m

e
 t
o
 T

H
H

 a
tt
e
n
ti
o
n
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
re

 w
e
re

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v

a
lu

e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
in

g
 

b
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
a
y
m

e
n
ts

 w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y
 f
e
lt
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

s
. 
A

 j
o
in

t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 w

a
s
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
d
 o

n
 2

0
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 w

it
h
 H

B
, 
m

y
s
e
lf
, 
J
K

 &
 T

H
H

. 
In

 t
h
is

 m
e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 w

a
s
 a

g
re

e
d

*H
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
p
ro

v
id

e
 T

H
H

 a
 r

e
p
o
rt

 s
h
o
w

in
g
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
o
v
e
rp

a
y
m

e
n
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
ro

m
 A

p
ri
l 
0
9

*H
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 T

H
H

 d
e
ta

ile
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 o

n
 f
ile

 t
h
a
t 
w

o
u
ld

 s
h
o
w

 h
o
w

 m
a
n
y
 t
e
n
a
n
ts

 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
fu

ll 
a
n
d
 p

a
rt

ia
l 
b
e

n
e
fi
t

*H
o
u
s
in

g
 b

e
n
e
fi
t 
to

 p
ro

v
id

e
 T

H
H

 a
 c

o
p
y
 o

f 
le

tt
e
r 

e
x
p
la

in
in

g
 ‘
c
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
c
la

im
a
n
t'
.

W
e
 a

re
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
t 
a
n
d
 I
C

T
 t
e
a
m

s
 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

a
y
m

e
n
t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 s

h
o
u
ld

 g
e
t 
b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
in

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
is

 s
e
t 
to

 1
0
0
.1

%
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n
c
o
rp

o
ra

te
s
 m

o
n
e
y
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
v
e
re

d
 f
ro

m
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

.

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0
0

1
0
5

1
1
0

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1
0

Page 141



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
0

4
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

9
%

 o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 f
e
e
l 
th

e
y
 c

a
n
 i
n
fl
u
e
n
c
e
 d

e
c
is

io
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
lit

y
 (

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 -

 P
ro

x
y
) 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

4
6

N
/A

5
3

N
/A

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

1
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 a
g
re

e
in

g
 t
h
a
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

is
 d

o
in

g
 a

 g
o
o
d
 j
o
b
 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
u
rv

e
y
 M

e
a
s
u
re

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

6
9

7
2

7
2

7
5

M
E

T
G

R
E

E
N

L
A

A
N

I0
4

7
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
4

7
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

6

P
e
o
p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly

 i
n
ju

re
d
 i
n
 r

o
a
d
 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
c
c
id

e
n
ts

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
%

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 k
ill

e
d
 o

r 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
ly

 i
n
ju

re
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 c

a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
r 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

-9
.1

3
.3

4
.5

1
2
.7

3
6
.4

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r'
s
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 b
y
 4

.2
4
%

. 
T

h
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 o

n
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
o
ff

 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 
V

ie
w

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 i
m

a
g
e
 o

f 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 s

h
o
w

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 r

e
m

a
in

 o
n
 a

 p
a
r 

w
it
h
 t
h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
e
v
e
ry

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
g
a
in

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 a

 p
ro

x
y
.

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 t
w

o
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
, 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
rv

e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 u
s
e
fu

l 
p
ro

x
y
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 -

 t
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
. 
 I
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 w

e
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 a

 f
la

t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

ra
th

e
r 

th
a
n
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

e
o
p
le

.

1
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

4
0

0
0

5
0

0
0

6
0

0
0

7
0

0
0

8
0

0
0

9
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

5
0

.0
0

5
5

.0
0

6
0

.0
0

6
5

.0
0

7
0

.0
0

7
5

.0
0

8
0

.0
0

8
5

.0
0

9
0

.0
0

9
5

.0
0

1
0

0
.0

0

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1
1

Page 142



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

1
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
9

2
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 
fo

r 
re

u
s
e
, 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
to

ta
l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 s

e
n
t 
fo

r 
re

u
s
e
, 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
, 
c
o
m

p
o
s
ti
n
g
 o

r 

a
n
a
e
ro

b
ic

 d
ig

e
s
ti
o
n
 d

iv
id

e
d
 b

y
 t
o
ta

l 
to

n
n
a
g
e
 o

f 
h
o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

 w
a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
te

d
.)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
9
.2

6
2
6

2
6
.5

1
3
2
 [
P

]
2
.0

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
N

I1
9

5
a

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
9

5
a

,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

2

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 l
it
te

r

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
1

1
0

1
1

8
-1

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
re

a
c
h
e
d
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r.

 T
ra

n
c
h
e
s
 1

 a
n
d
 3

 w
e
re

 b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
, 
o
r 

o
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
t 
9
%

 a
n
d
 1

0
%

 r
e
s
p
e
c
ti
v
e
ly

 b
u
t 
a
 t
ra

n
c
h
e
 2

 s
c
o
re

 o
f 
1
3
%

 w
a
s
 

re
p
o
rt

e
d
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

 d
e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 m

a
jo

r 
re

ta
il 

a
re

a
s
. 
T

ra
n
c
h
e
 r

a
w

 d
a
ta

 w
a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 V

e
o
lia

 s
o
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

 c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 a

d
d
re

s
s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
m

 

a
n
d
 t
h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 s

c
o
re

 d
u
ri
n
g
 T

ra
n
c
h
e
 3

.

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
in

 s
tr

ic
t 
te

rm
s
 i
t 
is

 u
s
e
fu

l 
to

 n
o
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 i
s
 u

n
lik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
a
lly

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
g
iv

e
n
 t
h
e
 N

I 
1
9
5
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

s
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 e

rr
o
r 

o
f 
±
2
%

. 
T

h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 

fo
c
u
s
 o

n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 s

c
o
re

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
ro

p
 i
n
 K

S
Is

 f
o
r 

th
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
 h

a
s
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
4
.5

; 
a
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ti
n
g
 "

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
" 

a
s

d
e
fi
n
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 T

h
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 f
o
r 

th
is

 y
e
a
r 

a
ls

o
 b

ri
n
g
s
 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

n
 t
h
e
 b

o
u
n
d
a
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 T

o
p
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 Q

u
a
rt

ile
 f
ig

u
re

 o
f 
4
.8

3
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

n
d
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 3

7
.9

5
%

 T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
-w

id
e
 R

e
c
y
c
le

 M
o
re

 C
a
m

p
a
ig

n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
8
. 
D

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

e
re

 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
:

- 
W

e
e
k
ly

 m
ix

e
d
 r

e
c
y
c
lin

g
, 
fo

o
d
 a

n
d
 g

a
rd

e
n
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 w

a
s
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 2

3
,0

0
0
 l
o
w

 r
is

e
 p

ro
p
e
rt

ie
s
.

- 
In

c
re

a
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
re

s
id

u
a
l 
w

a
s
te

 s
e
n
t 
to

 a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 2
,0

0
0
 t
o
 3

,5
0
0
 t
o
n
n
e
s
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
. 

- 
F

o
o
d
 w

a
s
te

 c
o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 1

0
8
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
in

 t
h
e
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

- 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
o
rt

in
g
 o

f 
b
u
lk

y
 w

a
s
te

 a
t 
N

o
rt

h
u
m

b
e
rl
a
n
d
 R

e
u
s
e
 a

n
d
 R

e
c
y
c
lin

g
 C

e
n
tr

e
.

- 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
s
e
p
a
ra

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

c
y
c
lin

g
 l
it
te

r 
b
y
 l
it
te

r 
p
ic

k
e
rs

 a
n
d
 S

tr
e
e
t 
S

w
e
e
p
e
rs

.

- 
A

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 s

ta
ff
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 W

a
s
te

 M
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
T

e
a
m

.

0
.0

0

2
.0

0

4
.0

0

6
.0

0

8
.0

0

1
0
.0

0

1
2
.0

0

1
4
.0

0

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2

0
1
0
/1

1

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

J
u

ly
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
2

0
1

0
/1

1

-1
0-505

1
0

1
5

2
0
0
4
/0

5
2
0
0
5
/0

6
2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1
2

Page 143



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

L
A

A
N

I1
9

5
b

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
9

5
b

,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

3

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 d
e
tr

it
u
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
2

1
1

1
0

1
0

9
.1

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
N

I1
9

5
c
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
9

5
c
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

4

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 g
ra

ff
it
i

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
6

7
2
0

6
-1

8
5
.7

0
%

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I1
9

5
d

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
9

5
d

,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

5

Im
p
ro

v
e
d
 s

tr
e
e
t 
a
n
d
 e

n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
ta

l 
c
le

a
n
lin

e
s
s
 -

 f
ly

-p
o
s
ti
n
g

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

5
2

8
2

-3
0
0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 r
e
s
u
lt
 e

x
c
e
e
d
s
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 B

e
n
c
h
m

a
rk

in
g
 i
n
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
a
t 
in

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
a
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 o

f 
th

e
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
1
9
 b

o
ro

u
g
h

s

(1
0
%

).
T

h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 r

e
s
u
lt
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 c
le

a
n
s
in

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 I
n
 r

e
c
o
g
n
it
io

n
 t
h
a
t 
g
ra

ff
it
i 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t
w

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
g
ra

ff
it
i/
fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n
g
 t
e
a
m

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 a

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 L

E
T

s
 o

ff
ic

e
r 

h
a

s

b
e
e
n
 a

p
p
o
in

te
d
 t
o
 w

o
rk

 c
lo

s
e
ly

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 M

e
tr

o
p
o
lit

a
n
 P

o
lic

e
 a

n
d
 B

ri
ti
s
h
 T

ra
n
s
p
o
rt

 P
o
lic

e
 g

ra
ff
it
i 
u
n
it
s
, 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 E
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 R

S
L
s
. 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 P

a
y
b
a
c
k
 

p
e
rs

o
n
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
le

m
e
n
t 
re

m
o
v
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 i
n
 p

a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

ia
l/
w

a
re

h
o
u
s
e
 l
a
n
d
-u

s
e
 c

la
s
s
e
s
.

T
h
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
ly

 o
v
e
r 

th
e
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
n
 a

p
p
ro

a
c
h
 a

n
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 d

e
a
l 
w

it
h
 t
h
is

. 
A

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 f

o
c
u
s
 o

n
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l,
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 j
o
in

t 

e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
w

ill
 r

e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 s

c
o
re

. 
T

h
e
 o

b
je

c
ti
v
e
 i
s
 t
o
 b

e
 o

n
 o

r 
v
e
ry

 n
e
a
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
w

it
h
 N

I1
9
5
c
 s

c
o
re

s
 b

y
 t
h
e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
2
0
1
0
/1

1
. 
T

h
e
 t
o
p
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 o

f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
 i
n
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
S

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 w

a
s
 4

%
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 f
ly

-p
o
s
ti
n
g
 s

c
o
re

 h
a
s
 d

e
te

ri
o
ra

te
d
 e

v
e
n
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 p

re
s
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
tw

o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
g
ra

ff
it
i/
fl
y
-p

o
s
ti
n
g
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
te

a
m

s
. 
A

n
 e

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
“b

lit
z
” 

o
n
 f
ly

-p
o
s
ti
n
g
 w

a
s
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
e
d
 l
a
te

 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
.

T
h
e
 b

lit
z
 i
s
 h

a
v
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
a
lr
e
a
d
y
 a

n
d
 i
t 
is

 a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
fo

c
u
s
 o

n
 f
ly

-p
o
s
ti
n
g
 w

ill
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

c
o
re

s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 2

0
1

0
/1

1

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

J
u

ly
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

T
a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

J
u
ly

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1
3

Page 144



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

6
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 t
h
in

k
 t
h
a
t 
s
tr

e
e
t 
c
le

a
n
in

g
 i
s
 g

o
o
d
, 
v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
u
rv

e
y
 M

e
a
s
u
re

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

5
9

6
1

6
2

6
3
 [
P

]
1
.6

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

7
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 r

a
te

 p
a
rk

s
 a

n
d
 o

p
e
n
 s

p
a
c
e
s
 a

s
 g

o
o
d
, 
v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
u
rv

e
y
 M

e
a
s
u
re

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

5
3

5
8

6
1

6
3
 [
P

]
5
.2

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

8
Im

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
a
n
ti
s
o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r:

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 v

ie
w

 r
u
b
b
is

h
 a

n
d
 l
it
te

r 
ly

in
g
 

a
ro

u
n
d
 a

s
 "

a
 v

e
ry

 b
ig

 p
ro

b
le

m
" 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
u
rv

e
y
 M

e
a
s
u
re

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
m

ie
 B

la
k
e

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
6

1
5

1
6

1
4
 [
P

]
-6

.7
0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
  
L
o
n
d
o
n
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
T

H
 p

a
rk

s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 s

te
a
d
ily

 s
in

c
e
 2

0
0
0
. 
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
th

is
 

y
e
a
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 b

ro
u
g
h
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 l
in

e
 w

it
h
  
tr

e
n
d
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 T

H
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 n

a
rr

o
w

 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 
L
o
n
d
o
n
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 -

 t
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 c
it
in

g
 l
it
te

r 
a
n
d
 r

u
b
b
is

h
 a

s
 a

  
v
e
ry

  
b
ig

 p
ro

b
le

m
 i
n
 t
h
e
ir
 a

re
a
 h

a
s
  
re

m
a
in

e
d
 t

h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r.

  
T

h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

d
e
c
lin

e
 i
n
 s

ta
n
d
a
rd

s
 i
n
 m

a
jo

r 
re

ta
il 

a
re

a
s
 i
n
 t
e
rm

s
 o

f 
lit

te
r 

a
n
d
 s

e
v
e
ra

l 
p
u
b
lic

 g
ra

ff
it
i 
e
v
e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 a

 r
is

e
 i
n
 t

h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
's

 g
ra

ff
it
i 
le

v
e
ls

. 
 T

h
e
 a

d
o
p
ti
o
n
 o

f 
n
e
w

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 a

d
v
e
n
t 
o
f 
m

o
re

 e
n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
 (

T
H

E
O

's
 a

n
d
 J

E
T

s
) 

w
ill

 e
n
h
a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 y
e
a
r,

 w
h
ic

h
 s

h
o
u
ld

 e
n
s
u
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

4
0
.0

0

4
5
.0

0

5
0
.0

0

5
5
.0

0

6
0
.0

0

6
5
.0

0

7
0
.0

0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

4
0

.0
0

4
5

.0
0

5
0

.0
0

5
5

.0
0

6
0

.0
0

6
5

.0
0

7
0

.0
0

2
0

0
6

/0
7

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

0
.0

0

5
.0

0

1
0
.0

0

1
5
.0

0

2
0
.0

0

2
5
.0

0

3
0
.0

0

3
5
.0

0

4
0
.0

0

2
0
0
6
/0

7
2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1
4

Page 145



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
2

0
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 w
h
o
 r

a
te

d
 l
e
is

u
re

 a
n
d
 s

p
o
rt

s
 f
a
c
ili

ti
e
s
 a

s
 g

o
o
d
, 
v
e
ry

 g
o
o
d
 o

r 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
ts

 S
u
rv

e
y
 M

e
a
s
u
re

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
h
ig

h
e
r

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

4
5

4
6

4
7

4
8

2
.2

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
N

I1
8

6
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
8

6
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
1

0

P
e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 C

O
2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 L

A
 a

re
a

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
to

n
n
e
s
 (

C
O

2
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

n
 a

g
re

e
d
 s

e
t 
o
f 
s
e
c
to

rs
, 
m

e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
5
 

b
a
s
e
lin

e
 y

e
a
r)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

J
a
c
k
ie

 O
d
u
n
o
y
e

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
5
.3

7
N

/A
1
2
.9

2

L
A

A
N

I0
0

1
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
0

1
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

4

%
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 b

e
lie

v
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
b
a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 g

e
t 
o
n
 w

e
ll 

to
g
e
th

e
r 

in
 t
h
e
ir
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 (

A
n
n
u
a
l 

R
e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 -

 P
ro

x
y
) 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
/H

a
fs

h
a
 A

li

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

6
9

N
/A

7
5

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 P

le
a
s
e
 n

o
te

 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 d

a
ta

 r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 -

 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 l
a
g
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
o
n
s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 o

n
 t
h

e
 m

a
n
y
 d

a
ta

 s
o
u
rc

e
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 b

y
 D

E
F

R
A

. 
 T

h
e
 d

a
ta

 

re
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 2

0
0
5
 p

e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 w

a
s
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
. 
T

h
e
re

 w
a
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 d

o
m

e
s
ti
c
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
, 
th

e
 m

a
jo

r 
in

c
re

a
s
e
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

w
e
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
u
s
tr

y
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

m
e
rc

ia
l 

s
e
c
to

r,
 w

h
ic

h
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 7

0
%

 o
f 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
s
 t
o
ta

l 
e
m

is
s
io

n
s
. 
A

 p
o
s
s
ib

le
 e

x
p
la

n
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
u
ld

 b
e
 d

u
e

 t
o
 t
h
e
 l
a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
 

th
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 C

a
n
a
ry

 W
h
a
rf

 a
re

a
 a

t 
th

e
 t
im

e
. 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

a
n
a
ly

s
is

 o
f 
th

e
 d

a
ta

 n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
to

 g
a
in

 d
e
ta

il 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 l
a
rg

e
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 p

e
r 

c
a
p
it
a
 e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
6
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 2

0
0
5
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

p
lic

a
te

d
 a

n
d
 t
im

e
 c

o
n
s
u
m

in
g
 t
a
s
k
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 C

lim
a
te

 C
h
a
n
g
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
.

T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 1

2
.9

%
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 (

o
f 
9
.2

9
%

 i
n
 2

0
0
5
).

  
W

e
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
1
3
 .
3
 %

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e

 t
h
e
 f
ir
s
t 
L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 2

0
0
8
 (

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 o

u
r 

C
O

2
 

e
m

is
s
io

n
s
 b

y
 2

%
 t
o
 9

.1
1
%

).
  
T

h
e
 2

0
0
8
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 b

y
 D

E
C

C
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
. 
 T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
2
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o

 2
0
0
8
/0

9
, 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
0
9
/1

0
 i
s
 6

%
 a

n
d
 1

2
%

 

is
 f
o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 -

 t
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
e
v
e
ry

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
g
a
in

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 a

 p
ro

x
y
.

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 t
w

o
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
, 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
rv

e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 u
s
e
fu

l 
p
ro

x
y
.

2
0
.0

0

2
5
.0

0

3
0
.0

0

3
5
.0

0

4
0
.0

0

4
5
.0

0

5
0
.0

0

5
5
.0

0

6
0
.0

0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1
5

Page 146



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

L
A

A
N

I0
0

5
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
0

5
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

2
0

5

O
v
e
ra

ll/
g
e
n
e
ra

l 
s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
re

a
 (

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 -

 P
ro

x
y
) 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

7
6

N
/A

8
4

N
/A

 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
e
v
e
ry

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
g
a
in

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t

h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 a

 p
ro

x
y
.

W
h
ils

t 
th

e
 t
w

o
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
, 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
rv

e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 u
s
e
fu

l 
p
ro

x
y
.

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1
6

Page 147



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

T
h

e
m

e
 3

: 
A

 P
ro

s
p

e
ro

u
s
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
3

0
1

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 A

 L
e
v
e
l 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
- 

A
 L

e
v
e
l 
A

v
e
ra

g
e
 P

o
in

ts
 S

c
o
re

 p
e
r 

s
tu

d
e
n
t 
in

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
n
u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

6
3
9
.5

7
2
2

6
3
1

N
O

T
 S

E
T

-1
2
.6

0
%

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I0
7

9
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

9
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

3

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 L

e
v
e
l 
2
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

6
5

6
9
.5

7
0
.5

7
1
.8

1
.4

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
  
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

W
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 o

u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 a

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 t
re

n
d
 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 f
o
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
2
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 a

g
e
 1

9
 A

c
h
ie

v
e

m
e
n
t 
le

v
e
ls

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
ro

m
 6

5
%

 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

to
 7

0
.5

%
 

th
is

 y
e
a
r.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
. 

T
h
e
 2

0
0
9
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 s

a
w

 a
 s

m
a
ll 

b
u
t 
w

o
rr

y
in

g
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 A

v
e
ra

g
e
 P

o
in

ts
 S

c
o
re

 (
A

P
S

) 
p
e
r 

le
a
rn

e
r.

 T
h
is

 h
a
s
 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o

r 
L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 r
e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
b
y
 1

9

a
n
d
, 
p
o
te

n
ti
a
lly

, 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 t
o
 H

E
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
 d

is
a
d
v
a
n
ta

g
e
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
W

h
ile

 i
n
s
ti
tu

ti
o
n
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 v

a
ri
e
d
 a

n
d
 d

ip
p
e
d
 f
o

r 
m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 o

n
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r,

 t
h
e
 f
a
ll 

in
 A

P
S

 p
e
r 

le
a
rn

e
r 

a
t 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 C
o
lle

g
e
 h

a
d
, 
b
y
 v

ir
tu

e
 o

f 
th

e
 v

o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
e
n
tr

a
n
ts

, 
th

e
 g

re
a
te

s
t 
im

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
-w

id
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

A
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

g
re

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 H

u
b
 B

o
a
rd

 a
n
d
 C

S
&

F
 D

M
T

. 
In

 p
a
rt

ic
u
la

r 
th

is
 f
o
c
u
s
e
s
 o

n
 a

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 p

ro
c
e
d
u

re
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

ll 
le

a
rn

e
rs

 a
re

 p
la

c
e
d
 o

n
 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
y
 c

a
n
 s

u
c
e
e
d
, 
o
n
 r

ig
o
ro

u
s
 u

s
e
 o

f 
d
a
ta

 t
o
 t
ra

c
k
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
re

s
s
 u

n
d
e
rp

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
e
s
 t
h
a
t 
in

fo
rm

 t
h
e
 L

A
's

 n
e
w

 

c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 f
o
r 

1
6
-1

9
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
. 
T

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

  
re

ta
in

s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
ix

th
 f
o
rm

s
 b

u
t 
n
o
t 
F

u
rt

h
e
r 

E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 c

o
lle

g
e
s
. 
W

e
 a

re
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
c
ti
v
e
ly

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 C

o
lle

g
e
's

 t
h
e
 p

o
s
t 
in

s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
p
la

n
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

in
g
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
u
p

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
e
.

5
0
0

5
5
0

6
0
0

6
5
0

7
0
0

7
5
0

8
0
0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

9
0

1
0
0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1
7

Page 148



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

L
A

A
N

I0
8

0
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
8

0
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

4

A
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

g
e
 o

f 
1
9

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

3
8

4
3

4
0
.9

4
6

-4
.9

0
%

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I1
0

6
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
0

6
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

5

Y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 t
o
 h

ig
h
e
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r 

(T
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 f
ro

m
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 b

a
c
k
g
ro

u
n
d
s
 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
in

g
 t
o
 H

E
).

 

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

7
2

6
0

-2
0
0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
. 

T
h
e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 l
e
v
e
l 
3
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

t 
1
9
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

b
y
 3

%
, 
h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
is

 w
a
s
 n

o
t 
a
s
 h

ig
h
 a

s
 w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d

 o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
t.
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 

a
re

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 b

u
t 
a
t 
a
 s

lo
w

e
r 

p
a
c
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 a

s
 a

 w
h
o
le

 d
id

 n
o
t 
s
h
o
w

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 a

d
d
e
d
 v

a
lu

e
 a

t 
L
e
v
e
l 
3
. 
A

 1
4
-1

9
 P

la
n
 i
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
a
 v

a
ri
e
ty

 o
f 
m

a
te

ri
a
l 
fa

c
to

rs
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
s
h
ip

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 e

n
tr

y
 l
e
v
e
l 
q
u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 L

e
v
e
l 
3
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
, 
e
n
tr

y
 l
e
v
e
l 
re

q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

o
u
t 
b
o
ro

u
g
h
 l
e
v
e

l 
3
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 a
n
d
 h

e
lp

in
g
 l
e
a
rn

e
rs

 c
h
o
o
s
e
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri
a
te

 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

o
u
te

s
. 
 T

h
e
 P

la
n
 a

ls
o
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
e
s
 a

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
v
ie

w
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 a

g
re

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

p
o
s
a
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 p

la
n
s
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 b

e
s
t 

p
ra

c
ti
c
e
 o

n
 r

a
is

in
g
 q

u
a
lif

ic
a
ti
o
n
 l
e
v
e
ls

 w
h
ils

t 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 a

ls
o
 n

a
rr

o
w

 t
h
e
 a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
g
a
p
 f
o
r 

th
o
s
e
 f
ro

m
 l
o
w

 i
n
c
o
m

e
 h

o
u
s
e
h
o
ld

s
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

th
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 r

a
te

 i
s
 3

0
%

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

0123456789

1
0

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1
8

Page 149



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

6
Y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

's
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
:%

 (
P

u
p
ils

 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

1
0
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a

n
y
 g

ro
u
p
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 l
e
d
 b

y
 a

n
 a

d
u
lt
 o

u
ts

id
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 

le
s
s
o
n
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
4
 w

e
e
k
s
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 H

ig
h
e
r

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

7
0
.3

7
5

6
4
.1

8
1
.2

-1
4
.5

0
%

R
E

D

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

2
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

5
A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
7
8
 p

o
in

ts
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 w

it
h
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
6
 i
n
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 
th

e
 

s
c
a
le

s
 i
n
 P

e
rs

o
n
a
l 
S

o
c
ia

l 
a
n
d
 E

m
o
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 C

o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 L

it
e
ra

c
y

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 f
ro

m
 b

ir
th

 t
o
 e

n
d
 o

f 
a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

in
 w

h
ic

h
 a

 c
h
ild

 t
u
rn

s
 5

, 
a
t 
le

a
s
t 
6
 p

o
in

ts
 o

r 

m
o
re

 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

3
 E

Y
F

S
 s

ta
tu

to
ry

 f
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

) 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

4
0

4
5
.3

4
2
.9

4
6

-5
.3

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 i
s
 4

2
.9

%
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
5
.3

%
. 
P

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 M

e
m

b
e
rs

. 

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

is
 r

e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
4
0
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 W
e
 a

re
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 a

n
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
in

g
 w

e
ll 

to
w

a
rd

s
 

o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

lw
a
y
s
 p

u
rp

o
s
e
fu

lly
 s

e
t 
s
tr

e
tc

h
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ta

rg
e
ts

 –
 

th
is

 r
e
fl
e
c
ts

 o
u
r 

h
ig

h
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

s
' a

tt
a
in

m
e
n
t.
  
T

h
e
 t
re

n
d
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
5
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 o

n
e
 o

f 
c
o
n
ti
n
u

o
u
s
, 
s
te

a
d
y
 a

n
d
 r

o
b
u
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
, 
w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 h

a
v
in

g
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 e

a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

’ 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t.

W
e
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 M

a
k
e
 a

 B
ig

 D
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 (

D
C

S
F

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
),

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 L

it
e
ra

c
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

C
L
L
D

) 
a
n
d
 E

v
e
ry

 C
h
ild

 a
 T

a
lk

e
r 

(E
C

a
T

) 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 y
e
a
rs

' T
e
llu

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 d

is
a
p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
, 
w

it
h
 6

4
.1

%
 o

f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 s
a
y
in

g
 t
h
e
y
 e

n
a
g
e
d
 i
n
 p

o
s
it
iv

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 7

0
.3

%
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 a

 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
7
5
%

. 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 o

u
r 

o
u
t 
o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
a
n
s
io

n
 o

f 
o
u
r 

P
o
s
it
iv

e
 A

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 f
o
r 

Y
o
u
n
g
 P

e
o
p
le

 (
P

A
Y

P
)s

c
h
e
m

e
. 
T

h
is

 

d
is

p
a
ri
ty

 b
e
tw

e
e
n
 f
ro

n
tl
in

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 c

a
p
tu

re
d
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 T

e
llu

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

re
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

in
g
. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
is

s
u
e
s
 n

e
e
d
 t

o
 b

e
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 t
o
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 r

e
a
s
o
n
s
 

fo
r 

th
is

. 
T

h
e
s
e
 m

ig
h
t 
re

la
te

 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 r

a
te

s
 o

f 
o
ff
e
re

d
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
, 
th

e
 n

a
rr

o
w

 s
p
a
n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
to

 c
o
v
e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 
4
 w

e
e
k
s
, 
th

a
t 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

o
ff
e
re

d
 a

re
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
'q

u
a
lif

y
' 
u
n
d
e
r 

th
e
 T

e
llu

s
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 ,
e
g
 o

rg
a
n
is

e
d
 a

c
ti
v
it
y
 r

u
n
 b

y
 a

n
 a

d
u
lt
. 
In

 a
d
d
it
io

n
 i
t 

a
p
p
e
a
rs

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
 v

o
lu

n
ta

ry
 w

o
rk

, 

u
n
s
tr

u
c
tu

re
d
 t
im

e
 i
n
 y

o
u
th

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
, 
a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 c

h
u
rc

h
 o

r 
m

o
s
q
u
e
 o

r 
a
tt
e
n
d
in

g
 l
o
c
a
l 
p
a
rk

s
/p

la
y
 a

re
a
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

n
d
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
th

e
r 

is
s
u
e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 e

x
p
lo

re
d
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 
o
u
r 

w
o
r k

in
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 T

e
llu

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n
fo

rm
e
d
 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

w
h
e
n
 w

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 f
u
ll 

p
u
b
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 D

C
S

F
.

It
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 o

f 
n
o
te

 t
h
a
t 
a
ll 

L
A

's
 r

e
p
o
rt

 l
o
w

e
r 

le
v
e
ls

 c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
is

 r
a
is

e
s
 m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
ic

a
l 
is

s
u
e
s
 a

s
 a

 p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 
c
a
u
s
e
.

A
c
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
T

e
llu

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 5

:

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 b

e
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 b

e
fo

re
 t
h
e
 T

e
llu

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 s

ta
rt

s
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

e
 T

e
llu

s
 s

u
rv

e
y
 a

n
d
 e

x
p
la

in
 w

h
a
t 
is

 r
e
q
u
ir
e
d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 k

id
s
 

T
o
 b

ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 o
n
 b

o
a
rd

 r
e
 t
h
e
 T

e
llu

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 H

U
B

 B
o
a
rd

 i
n
 o

rd
e
r 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
 r

a
te

. 

T
o
 u

ti
lis

e
 t
h
e
 K

e
y
w

o
rk

e
rs

, 
c
a
re

e
r 

a
d
v
is

e
rs

, 
y
o
u
th

 w
o
rk

e
rs

 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 t
h
e
 p

ro
fi
le

 o
f 
th

e
 T

e
llu

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 a

t 
S

c
h
o
o
l 
A

s
s
e
m

b
ly

. 

T
o
 F

in
d
 o

u
t 
w

h
ic

h
 l
e
s
s
o
n
s
 t
h
e
y
 u

s
e
 t
h
e
 a

d
m

in
is

te
r 

th
e
 s

u
rv

e
y
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 A

d
v
is

o
ry

 T
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 c
a
n
 b

e
 u

ti
lis

e
d
 t
o
 e

x
p
la

in
 t
h
e
 T

e
llu

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

T
o
 c

re
a
te

 a
 B

ro
c
h
u
re

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
h
e
d
u
le

 o
f 
th

e
 P

A
Y

P
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 

T
o
 g

iv
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
m

e
s
 o

f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 s
e
le

c
te

d
 t
o
 Y

o
u
th

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 C

a
re

e
r 

A
d
v
is

o
r'
s
 t
e
a
m

 o
n
c
e
 t
h
e
s
e
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

e
le

c
te

d
 b

y
 D

C
S

F
 s

o
 t
h
a
t 

th
e
y
 c

a
n
 s

ta
rt

 r
a
is

in
g
 t
h
e
 T

e
llu

s
 S

u
rv

e
y
 

p
ro

fi
le

.

T
o
 u

ti
lis

e
 t
h
e
 E

x
te

n
d
e
d
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 F
o
ru

m

T
o
 h

a
v
e
 a

n
 i
n
s
e
t 
d
a
y
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
e
a
c
h
e
rs

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
th

e
 T

e
llu

s
 s

u
rv

e
y

T
o
 P

re
p
a
re

 a
 p

a
c
k
 f
o
r 

P
A

Y
P

 

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0

/1
1

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

1
9

Page 150



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

6
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

6
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 f
e
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 5

5
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

M
a
th

s
 a

t 
K

S
2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

3
1

6
1

-5
0
0
%

R
E

D

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

8
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

8
R

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
h
e
re

 f
e
w

e
r 

th
a
n
 3

0
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 a

n
d

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 G

C
S

E
s
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

3
0

1
0

N
O

T
 M

E
T

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 i
s
 6

 f
o
r 

th
e
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 (

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
).

 T
h
is

 m
e
a
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

is
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
b
y
 5

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
T

h
e
re

 a
re

 d
if
fe

re
n
t 
re

a
s
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

w
h
y
 e

a
c
h
 o

f 

th
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
e
n
t 
b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 O

v
e
ra

ll 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 6

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 2
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 d
ro

p
p
e
d
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
u
n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
ly

 -
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
d
a
ta

 t
h
e
y
 w

e
re

 s
h
a
ri
n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 

- 
2
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
d
 v

e
ry

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

s
 t
h
u
s
 m

a
k
in

g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 m

o
re

 f
ra

g
ile

. 
1
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
- 

th
o
u
g
h
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
- 

d
id

 b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a

n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 a

n
d
 1

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
d
id

 n
o
t 
w

e
lc

o
m

e
 L

A
 

in
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
.

In
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

- 
5
 o

f 
th

e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

IS
P

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

. 

- 
U

s
e
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

ri
ti
n
g

- 
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 P

u
p
ils

’ 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 K

S
2
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

- 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

W
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 T

a
lk

 f
o
r 

W
ri
ti
n
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
 

- 
B

ro
a
d
e
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
C

A
M

E
 p

ro
je

c
t 
–
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

A
M

E
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

- 
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
:1

 T
u
it
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
p
la

c
e
s
 o

ff
e
re

d
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 i
n
 n

e
e
d
 

- 
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
n
 L

a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
p
e
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 L

is
te

n
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

 

- 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
P

L
L
A

) 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 i
s
 1

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
w

h
e
re

 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 3

0
%

 o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
e
d
 5

 o
r 

m
o
re

 A
-C

 g
ra

d
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 f
o
r 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 (

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
).

W
e
 d

id
 

n
o
t 
m

e
e
t 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 3
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 m

is
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
z
e
ro

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

. 
A

ll 
th

re
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 a
c
h
ie

v
in

g

g
o
o
d
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 t
w

o
 o

f 
th

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
e
re

 ‘
lif

te
d
 o

u
t’
 o

f 
th

e
 l
o
w

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 z

o
n
e
.

O
n
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l’s

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 1

6
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
, 
a
n
o
th

e
r 

b
y
 1

1
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 o

n
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l,
 s

ti
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t,
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 6

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 a

n
d
 i
s
 

n
o
w

 j
u
s
t 
1
%

 b
e
lo

w
 t
a
rg

e
t.

T
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
c
u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
is

 j
u
s
t 
1
%

 p
o
in

t 
b
e
lo

w
 t
a
rg

e
t,
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

te
rv

e
n
ti
o
n
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
o
r 

n
e
x
t 
y
e
a
r.

 

A
ll 

th
re

e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
a
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
C

h
a
lle

n
g
e
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 e

n
s
u
re

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
s
 s

u
s
ta

in
e
d
. 
W

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
th

a
t 
in

 A
u
g
u
s
t 
2
0
1
0
 

w
h
e
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
x
t 
G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 t
h
e
re

 w
ill

 b
e
 n

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 b
e
lo

w
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 c

o
lle

c
te

d
 t
h
e
 Y

e
a
r 

6
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 h

a
v
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 a

ll 
th

o
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 o

f 
b
e
in

g
 b

e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 M

a
n
y
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 n
o
t 
th

e
 s

a
m

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 f
lo

o
r

ta
rg

e
t 
in

 2
0
0
9
. 
  
T

h
e
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
t 
ri
s
k
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 c

lo
s
e
ly

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

n
d
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 l
in

k
 a

d
v
is

e
rs

 a
n
d
 l
in

k
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

.

S
u
p
p
o
rt

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 p

u
t 
in

 p
la

c
e
. 
  
T

h
e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 o

f 
th

e
 Y

e
a
r 

6
 p

u
p
ils

 i
n
 t
h
e
s
e
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 a
re

 d
is

c
u
s
s
e
d
 a

t 
e
v
e
ry

 j
o
in

t 
lin

k
 a

d
v
is

e
r 

a
n
d
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
t 
m

e
e
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 

a
d
ju

s
te

d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
ly

.
0123456789

1
0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

0123456789

1
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2
0

Page 151



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
8

7
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

9
S

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
a
ro

u
n
d
 a

p
p
ro

x
 6

4
 h

a
lf
 d

a
y
 s

e
s
s
io

n
s
 i
n
 a

 t
y
p
ic

a
l 
y
e
a
r)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

4
.8

4
.6

4
.4

4
.2

4
.3

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
0

1
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

0
L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
s
 (

o
r 

e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t)

 a
t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 4

 (
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 

m
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

6
.7

2
3

1
3
.8

9
2
0

-3
9
.6

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 O

u
r 

s
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rs

is
te

n
t 
a
b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

a
te

 h
a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 f
ro

m
 4

.8
%

 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

to
 4

.4
%

 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 w

e
 m

e
t 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
.6

%
. 
O

u
r 

re
s
u
lt
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 i
s
 l
is

te
d
 a

s
 4

7
th

 o
u
t 
o
f 
1
5
0
 L

A
’s

 w
h
ic

h
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 q

u
a
rt

ile
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
.

T
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 h

a
s
 n

o
ti
fi
e
d
 t
h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
h
a
t 
o
u
r 

S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 S
c
h
o
o
l 
P

e
rs

is
te

n
t 
A

b
s
e
n
c
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

h
a
lf
 t
e
rm

s
 1

-5
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
-0

9
 a

c
a

d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

(2
0
0
9
/1

0
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r)

 w
a
s
 4

.4
%

. 

T
h
e
 L

A
's

 o
ri
g
in

a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
w

a
s
 5

.1
0
%

%
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 b

y
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
m

a
rg

in
. 
T

h
e
 a

m
e
n
d
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
4
.6

%
 h

a
s
 a

ls
o
 b

e
e
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
.

S
o
m

e
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
2
0
0
8
-0

9
 P

A
 d

a
ta

 (
T

a
b
 7

.2
 C

o
lu

m
n
 M

) 
in

 t
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
t 
a
tt
a
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 P

I 
a
c
c
u
ra

c
y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 p

a
p
e
r.

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 i
s
 j
o
in

t 
4
7
th

 l
o
w

e
s
t 
o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 1

5
0
 L

A
s
 l
is

te
d
 a

s
 h

a
v
in

g
 s

u
b
m

it
te

d
 d

a
ta

 a
n
d
 s

o
 w

e
 a

re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
(s

e
c
o
n
d
 b

e
s
t)

 q
u
a
rt

ile
).

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

1
3
.8

9
%

 o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 5

 A
*-

C
 G

C
S

E
's

 a
t 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 4

 i
n
c
l 
E

n
g
lis

h
 &

 M
a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 T

h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 a

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
fr

o
m

 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 f
a
c
to

rs
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

re
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

, 
m

e
a
n
in

g
 e

a
c
h
 c

h
ild

 h
a
s
 a

 d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
, 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
c
o
h
o
rt

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
3
1
%

 

o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

h
a
d
 S

E
N

's
. 

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 
fo

r 
5
 G

C
S

E
's

 i
n
c
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 m

a
th

s
 w

a
s
 s

e
t 
w

h
e
n
 t
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 t
a
rg

e
t 
re

la
te

d
 t
o
 o

b
ta

in
in

g
 5

 G
C

S
E

's
 A

-C
 i
n
 a

n
y
 s

u
b
je

c
t 

(n
o
t 
n
e
c
e
s
s
a
ri
ly

 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
).

 

W
e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
a
m

e
n
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
to

 c
o
m

p
e
n
s
a
te

 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 c

ri
te

ri
a
. 
If
 w

e
 w

e
re

 m
e
a
s
u
ri
n
g
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 c

ri
te

ri
a

 (
5
 A

-C
 i
n
 a

n
y
 s

u
b
je

c
t)

 w
e
 a

c
tu

a
lly

 e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 

ta
rg

e
t.
 T

h
e
re

 a
re

 v
e
ry

 r
o
b
u
s
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 o

f 
p
u
p
ils

 p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
 k

e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 4

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

 p
la

n
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 w

e
re

 p
u
t 

in
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
 t
h
e
 d

is
a
p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 a

p
p
e
a
r 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 t
o
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e

.

T
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
re

m
a
in

s
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 b

u
t 
a
g
a
in

 w
e
 a

re
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
o
f 
c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.

0123456789

1
0

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

2
0
0
8

/0
9

2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2
1

Page 152



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
9

2
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

1
N

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
%

 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 F
o
u
n
d
a
ti
o
n
 S

ta
g
e
 P

ro
fi
le

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

re
s
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
e
 %

 g
a
p
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
d
ia

n
 s

c
o
re

 o
f 
a
ll 

c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
c
a
lly

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 m

e
a
n
 s

c
o
re

 o
f 
th

e
 l
o
w

e
s
t

a
c
h
ie

v
in

g
 2

0
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 l
o
c
a
lly

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

3
7
.3

3
1
.5

3
5

3
0
.9

-1
1
.1

0
%

R
E

D

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
9

3
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

2
P

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

8
6
.5

9
2

8
9
.1

9
3

-3
.2

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
:

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 i
s
 3

5
%

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 a

 2
.3

%
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 s

in
c
e
 2

0
0
5
 (

1
0
.7

%
 o

v
e
ra

ll)
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 g
o
o
d
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 E

a
rl
y
 Y

e
a
rs

 O
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 D

u
ty

. 

W
e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

is
 y

e
a
r 

b
u
t 
ta

rg
e
ts

 a
re

 d
e
lib

e
ra

te
ly

 s
e
t 
to

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
o
u
r 

h
ig

h
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 

A
s
 f
o
r 

n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
in

d
ic

a
to

r 
7
2
 r

e
la

ti
n
g
 t
o
 e

a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

, 
w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 w

it
h
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 h
a
v
in

g
 a

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
u
p
o
n
 e

a
rl
y
 y

e
a
rs

’ 
a
tt
a
in

m
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n

a
rr

o
w

in
g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
t 
o
f 
le

a
rn

e
rs

.

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
e
 M

a
k
e
 a

 B
ig

 D
if
fe

re
n
c
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 (

D
C

S
F

 f
u
n
d
e
d
),

 C
o
m

m
u
n
ic

a
ti
o
n
, 
L
a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 L

it
e
ra

c
y
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

C
L

L
D

) 
a
n
d
 E

v
e
ry

 C
h
ild

 a
 T

a
lk

e
r 

(E
C

a
T

).

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 i
s
 8

9
.1

%
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
u
p
o
n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r,

 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
r 

3
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 7

%
 a

b
o
v
e
 l
a
s
t 

y
e
a
r’
s
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 h
a
s
 s

e
t 

s
tr

e
tc

h
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
to

 r
e
fl
e
c
t 
o
u
r 

h
ig

h
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
p
ir
a
ti
o
n
s
 f
o
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

.

A
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 w

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 
w

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 m

a
k
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 s

h
o
w

 a
n
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
io

n
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

A
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 a

n
d
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 o

n
-g

o
in

g
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
: 

- 
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 C

h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 s

k
ill

s
 i
n
 r

e
a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

ri
ti
n
g

- 
U

s
in

g
 ‘
A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 P

u
p
ils

’ 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
’ 
in

 k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 2

 f
o
r 

re
a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

- 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 ‘
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

W
ri
ti
n
g
’ 
a
n
d
 ‘
T

a
lk

 f
o
r 

W
ri
ti
n
g
’ 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

- 
F

iv
e
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

IS
P

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

- 
R

o
lli

n
g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
1
:1

 T
u
it
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

 f
o
r 

re
a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

ri
ti
n
g

- 
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
n
 L

a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 S
p
e
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 L

is
te

n
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ti
n
g
 

P
ri
o
ri
ty

 L
e
a
rn

in
g
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
.

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2
2

Page 153



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
9

4
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

3
P

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 b

y
 2

 l
e
v
e
ls

 i
n
 M

a
th

s
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 1

 a
n
d
 K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

8
4

8
5

8
7
.2

8
8

2
.6

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
L

o
c
a

l0
0

1
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

4
E

S
O

L
 E

n
tr

y
 L

e
v
e
l 
O

n
e
 C

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

4
0
0

3
5
2

3
8
7

3
6
2

9
.9

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

5

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

5
A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
5
 o

r 
m

o
re

 A
*-

 C
 g

ra
d
e
s
 a

t 
G

C
S

E
 o

r 
e
q
u
iv

a
le

n
t 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

4
1
.2

5
0

4
5
.8

5
3

-8
.4

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
In

c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

E
S

O
L
 (

A
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 8

0
 o

f 
th

e
s
e
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n
s
 c

a
m

e
 f
ro

m
 p

la
c
e
s
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 W

o
rk

in
g
 N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 F

u
n
d
 (

W
N

F
) 

w
h
ic

h
 

e
n
d
s
 i
n
 S

e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0

- 
A

p
p
o
in

tm
e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 S

k
ill

s
 f
o
r 

L
if
e
 C

o
-o

rd
in

a
to

r 
w

it
h
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ty

 f
o
r 

m
a
n
a
g
in

g
 E

S
O

L
.

- 
T

ig
h
te

r 
s
y
s
te

m
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

c
o
lle

c
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

in
it
ia

l 
a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t,
 e

n
ro

lm
e
n
ts

, 
a
tt
e
n
d
a
n
c
e
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

e
r 

s
a
ti
s
fa

c
ti
o
n
.

- 
R

e
g
u
la

r 
o
b
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
te

a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 o

f 
te

a
c
h
in

g
 s

ta
ff
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
. 

T
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
v
e
ra

g
e
 f
o
r 

5
 A

*-
C

 G
C

S
E

s
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
, 
is

 4
5
.8

%
 f
o
r 

a
c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 (

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0

9
/1

0
).

 W
e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 

T
h
is

 r
e
p
re

s
e
n
ts

 a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
ro

m
 2

0
0
8
 o

f 
4
.6

%
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 o

u
r 

s
tr

o
n
g
 u

p
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 i
n
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

T
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 w
a
s
 a

lm
o
s
t 
tw

ic
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
c
h
a
n
g
e
 a

n
d
 w

e
 a

re
 c

lo
s
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 w

it
h
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d
 d

e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
ti
n
g
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 

2
0
1
0
 t
a
rg

e
ts

.

W
e
 a

re
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 t
h
is

 i
n
 t
w

o
 m

a
in

 w
a
y
s
 –

 f
ir
s
tl
y
 b

y
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 a

n
d
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 u

n
d
e
ra

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 a

n
d
 v

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 g
ro

u
p
s
.

S
e
c
o
n
d
ly

, 
w

e
 a

re
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

in
g
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 t
h
e
 q

u
a
lit

y
 o

f 
te

a
c
h
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
re

 s
u
b
je

c
ts

. 

P
o
o
re

r 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 E

n
g
lis

h
, 
M

a
th

s
, 
S

c
ie

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 T

e
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
ts

 w
ill

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
y
 c

o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
e
rs

h
ip

 t
e
a
m

s
.

S
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 e

x
tr

a
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 s

tr
e
n
g
th

e
n
 l
in

e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
n
d
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ta

b
ili

ty
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 a

 s
tr

o
n
g
 c

o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 i
m

p
ro

v
in

g
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
o
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
t 
o
u
r 

G
C

S
E

 A
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 t
o
 r

a
is

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 t
o
 b

e
 t
h
e
 b

e
s
t 
in

 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
tr

y

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 a

re
 o

n
ly

 1
%

 a
w

a
y
 f
ro

m
 o

u
r 

2
0
1
0
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ri
s
e
 o

n
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 t
h

e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
 f
o
r 

3
 y

e
a
rs

. 
W

e
 w

ill
 e

n
s
u
re

 t
h
a
t 

fu
tu

re
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
tt
in

g
 t
a
k
e
s
 a

c
c
o
u
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 a

n
d
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 d
e
g
re

e
 o

f 
s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
o
 r

e
fl
e
c
t 
o
u
r 

in
c
re

a
s
in

g
 e

x
p
e
c
ta

ti
o
n
s
 f
o

r 
p
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
. 

2
0

0

2
5

0

3
0

0

3
5

0

4
0

0

4
5

0

5
0

0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0
0

2
0
0
8
/0

0
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2
3

Page 154



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
9

9
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

5
L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

3
6
.4

5
3

5
0

5
3

-5
.7

0
%

R
E

D

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
0

0
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

6
L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

3
6
.4

5
3

3
5
.7

1
5
3

-3
2
.6

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

5
0
%

 i
s
 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 f
o
r 

L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 E

n
g
lis

h
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

 a
s
 o

f 
N

o
v
 2

0
0
9
.W

e
 d

id
 n

o
t 
m

e
e
t 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
 I
t 
s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 n

o
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 m

a
d
e
 a

 c
o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 E
n
g
lis

h
 f
ro

m
 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 n

a
rr

o
w

ly
 m

is
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 w

e
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
fo

r 
s
c
ie

n
c
e
 (

n
o
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 O

C
2
).

 T
h
e
 f
a
c
to

rs
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

re
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

, 
m

e
a
n
in

g
 e

a
c
h
 c

h
ild

 h
a
s
 a

 d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
, 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 n

a
tu

re
 o

f 
c
o
h
o
rt

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
3
1
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

h
a
d
 S

E
N

's
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

u
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 o

f 
p
u
p
il 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 k

e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 2

 p
u
p
ils

. 
W

e
 a

re
 c

o
n
fi
d
e
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

is
 w

ill
 r

e
s
u
lt
 

in
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 W

e
 a

ls
o
 h

a
d
 1

0
0
%

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 k

e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 1

 a
tt
a
in

in
g
 l
e
v
e
l 
2
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 s
ta

n
d
s
 u

s
 i
n
 g

o
o
d
 s

te
a
d

 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 o

f 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 2

.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

3
5
.7

1
%

 o
f 
L
o
o
k
e
d
 a

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 r

e
a
c
h
in

g
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 i
n
 m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

. 
W

e
 m

is
s
e
d
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
n
 l
e
v
e
l 
4
 k

e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 2

 m
a
th

s
 b

u
t 
n
e
v
e
rt

h
e
le

s
s
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 

la
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

in
 n

u
m

e
ri
c
a
l,
 n

o
t 
s
ta

ti
s
ti
c
a
l,
 t
e
rm

s
. 
T

h
e
 f
a
c
to

rs
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 a

re
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 s
m

a
ll 

c
o
h
o
rt

, 
m

e
a
n
in

g
 e

a
c
h
 c

h
ild

 h
a
s
 a

 d
is

p
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
a
te

 e
ff
e
c
t 
o
n
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
, 
th

e
 c

h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 

n
a
tu

re
 o

f 
c
o
h
o
rt

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
a
c
t 
th

a
t 
3
1
%

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 c

a
re

 l
a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

h
a
d
 S

E
N

's
. 

W
e
 h

a
v
e
 p

u
t 
im

p
ro

v
e
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 f
o
r 

th
e
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 t
ra

c
k
in

g
 o

f 
p
u
p
il 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
, 
w

it
h
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

n
 k

e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 2

 p
u
p
ils

 a
n
d
 t
h
is

 w
ill

 r
e
s
u
lt
 i
n
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 W

e
 a

ls
o
 h

a
d
 1

0
0
%

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
 f
o
r 

p
u
p
ils

 i
n
 k

e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 1

 a
tt
a
in

in
g
 l
e
v
e
l 
2
 a

n
d
 t
h
is

 s
ta

n
d
s
 u

s
 i
n
 g

o
o
d
 s

te
a
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
u
tu

re
 o

f 
k
e
y
 s

ta
g
e
 2

.

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2
4

Page 155



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
7

3
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

7
A

c
h
ie

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
le

v
e
l 
4
 o

r 
a
b
o
v
e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 E
n
g
lis

h
 a

n
d
 M

a
th

s
 a

t 
K

e
y
 S

ta
g
e
 2

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

7
4

7
9

7
4

8
0

-6
.3

0
%

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I1
1

6
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
1

6
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

7

P
ro

p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 p

o
v
e
rt

y

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
o
u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
n
d
 w

o
rk

in
g
 

fa
m

ili
e
s
 w

h
o
s
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 b

e
lo

w
 6

0
%

 o
f 
th

e
 m

e
d
ia

n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
n
e
 C

a
n
n
in

g

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

5
1
.4

4
9
.9

4
8

4
8
.4

3
.8

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

0
9
.

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
re

s
u
lt
 i
s
 7

4
%

 f
o
r 

th
e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 a

c
a
d
e
m

ic
 y

e
a
r 

(f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
) 

w
h
ic

h
 m

e
a
n
s
 w

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
is

 a
n
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 w

e
 a

re
 2

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
. 
B

o
th

 m
a
th

s
 a

n
d
 w

ri
ti
n
g
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

re
 a

b
o
v
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

s
 i
s
 t
h
e
 

c
u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
m

b
in

e
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
 a

lt
h
o
u
g
h
 w

e
 h

a
d
 a

 s
lig

h
t 
d
ro

p
 i
n
 r

e
a
d
in

g
. 

W
e
 a

im
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 a

c
h
ie

v
a
b
le

 t
a
rg

e
t 
th

o
u
g
h
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 a

n
d
 w

e
 e

x
p
e
c
t 
to

 g
e
t 
c
lo

s
e
r 

to
 i
t 
e
a
c
h
 y

e
a
r 

- 
b
u
t 
th

e
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

ill
 a

ls
o
 r

is
e
 e

a
c
h
 y

e
a
r.

 T
h
e
 L

A
 

h
a
s
 a

 h
is

to
ry

 o
f 
s
e
tt
in

g
 a

m
b
it
io

u
s
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
is

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 t
a
rg

e
t 
d
o
e
s
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a
g
e
n
d
a
.

T
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 w

e
 a

re
 d

o
in

g
 t
h
e
 f
o
llo

w
in

g
: 

- 
U

s
e
 o

f 
C

h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
in

 r
e
a
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 w

ri
ti
n
g
.

- 
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 P

u
p
ils

’ 
P

ro
g
re

s
s
 i
n
 K

S
2
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

- 
C

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
o
r 

W
ri
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 T

a
lk

 f
o
r 

W
ri
ti
n
g
 t
ra

in
in

g
.

- 
5
 n

e
w

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 f
o
r 

Im
p
ro

v
in

g
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 (

IS
P

) 
s
u
p
p
o
rt

.

- 
B

ro
a
d
e
n
in

g
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
C

o
g
n
it
iv

e
 a

c
c
e
le

ra
ti
o
n
 o

f 
m

a
th

e
m

a
ti
c
s
 e

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 (

C
A

M
E

) 
p
ro

je
c
t 
–
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 u

s
e
 o

f 
th

e
 C

A
M

E
 p

ri
n
c
ip

le
s
 i
n
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

- 
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
1
:1

 T
u
it
io

n
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 a

ll 
s
c
h
o
o
ls

.

- 
R

o
ll 

o
u
t 
o
f 
th

e
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
io

n
 i
n
 L

a
n
g
u
a
g
e
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
s
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 s
p
e
a
k
in

g
 a

n
d
 l
is

te
n
in

g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 a

ll 
s
u
b
je

c
ts

.

- 
Im

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ty

 (
P

L
L
A

) 
to

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 v
u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 s
c
h
o
o
ls

 w
it
h
 i
n
c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
s
. 

- 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
n
 y

e
a
r 

a
lb

e
it
 i
n
 s

m
a
ll 

in
c
re

m
e
n
ta

l 
s
te

p
s
. 
T

h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t

h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 d
a
ta

 i
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r 

in
 a

rr
e
a
rs

, 
th

e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 o
f 
4
8
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
.

T
h
e
 i
n
te

ri
m

 c
h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
c
h
a
n
g
e
d
 i
n
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
 f
ro

m
 c

a
lc

u
la

ti
n
g
 t
h
e
 p

ro
p
o
rt

io
n
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 w

h
o
 l
iv

e
 i
n
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
o
u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

, 
to

 a
ls

o
 

in
c
lu

d
e
 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
ta

x
 c

re
d
it
s
 w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 6

0
%

 m
e
d
ia

n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
. 
 U

n
d
e
r 

th
is

 r
e
v
is

e
d
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 o
u
r 

n
e
w

 b
a
s
e
lin

e
 f
ig

u
re

 f
o
r 

2
0
0
7
 i
s
 5

1
.4

%
 a

n
d
 a

 

4
.5

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 b

y
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
s
 u

s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 t
o
 4

6
.9

%
. 
T

h
e
 l
a
te

s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 d

a
ta

 a
v
a
ila

b
le

 i
s
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
8
 a

n
d
 s

h
o
w

s
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 h

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t
o
 

4
8
%

, 
a
 3

.4
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 1

.9
%

 b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
is

 e
q
u
a
te

s
 t
o
 1

,3
0
0
 c

h
ild

re
n
 l
if
te

d
 o

u
t 
o
f 
p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
n
 2

0
0
8
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 a

 v
e
ry

 p
o
s
it
iv

e
 r

e
s
u
lt
 a

n
d
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 o
u
r 

c
o
m

m
it
m

e
n
t 
to

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
c
e
n
tl
y
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 a

 C
h
ild

 P
o
v
e
rt

y
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d
 a

re
 u

n
d
e
rt

a
k
in

g
 a

 

d
e
ta

ile
d
 N

e
e
d
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
to

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

in
fo

rm
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
. 
A

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

s
e
a
rc

h
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 o

n
g
o
in

g
 w

it
h
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
in

g
 p

o
v
e
rt

y
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 a

 m
o
re

 q
u
a
lit

a
ti
v
e
 

a
s
p
e
c
t 
to

 o
u
r 

u
n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
e
s
 t
o
 c

h
ild

 p
o
v
e
rt

y
.

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

2
0

0
7

/0
8

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

8
5

9
0

9
5

1
0

0

2
0

0
8

/0
0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2
5

Page 156



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

8
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
1

7
1
6
 t
o
 1

8
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
 w

h
o
 a

re
 n

o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
 (

N
E

E
T

)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

6
.7

6
.2

5
6

5
.5

4
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

9

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
4

6
A

d
u
lt
s
 w

it
h
 l
e
a
rn

in
g
 d

is
a
b
ili

ti
e
s
 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
3
.3

3
.1

3
.4

3
.1

9
.7

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

0
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

0
A

d
u
lt
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 m
e
n
ta

l 
h
e
a
lt
h
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 i
n
 e

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
le

n
 T

a
y
lo

r

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
2
.4

3
.5

6
.2

3
.5

7
7
.1

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
w

a
s
 p

re
v
io

u
s
ly

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 t
o
 C

a
b
in

e
t 
in

 F
e
b
ru

a
ry

. 
 T

h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 h
a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
fo

r 
th

e
 t
h
ir
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 y

e
a
r 

fo
r 

re
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 n
o
t 
in

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
, 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

tr
a
in

in
g
. 
T

h
e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

u
t 
tu

rn
 i
s
 c

a
lc

u
la

te
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 t
h
re

e
 m

o
n
th

 p
e
ri
o
d
 

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

to
 J

a
n
u
a
ry

, 
w

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 6

%
 N

E
E

T
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 a

 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
6
.2

5
%

, 
th

is
 i
s
 a

 f
u
rt

h
e
r 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

n
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
6
.7

%
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
is

 o
u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
a
l 
u
n
ti
l 
fi
n
a
l 
v
a
lid

a
ti
o
n
, 
w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

H
 I
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 C

e
n
tr

e
 i
n
 J

u
ly

. 
  
T

h
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 f
o
r 

L
D

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
re

la
te

s
 t
o
 1

) 

p
e
o
p
le

 o
n
 o

u
r 

b
o
o
k
s
 (

c
ri
ti
c
a
l/
s
u
b
s
ta

n
ti
a
l)
 w

h
o
 a

re
 2

) 
in

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
a
t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
th

e
ir
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
. 
 T

h
is

 d
o
e
s
 n

o
t 
m

e
a
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 w

id
e
r 

a
c
ti
v
it
y
 r

e
la

te
d
 t
o
 W

N
F

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
u
n
le

s
s
 e

m
p
lo

y
in

g
 (

o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 i
n
to

 e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t)

 t
h
o
s
e
 i
n
 1

 a
n
d
 2

 a
b
o
v
e
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
.

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

0123456789

1
0

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

3
.54

4
.55

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2
6

Page 157



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

1
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

1
O

v
e
ra

ll 
e
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
ra

te
 (

w
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

6
0
.8

5
4
.9

6
0
.4

5
5
.7

1
0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

2
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

2
a

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

. 
B

y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
1
 (

Q
2
 d

a
ta

) 
n
a
rr

o
w

 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 

ra
te

 t
o
 a

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 
-5

.7
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 c

la
im

in
g
 o

u
t 

o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 -
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
.)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

N
/A

-5
.7

-4
.9

-5
.7

1
4
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

2
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

2
b

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 c

la
im

in
g
 o

u
t 

o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

1
7
.1

1
7
.7

1
7
.6

N
/A

0
.6

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

3

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

3
a

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 c
la

im
in

g
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
. 
B

y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
1
 (

Q
2
 

d
a
ta

) 
e
x
te

n
d
 t
h
e
 l
e
a
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

a
te

 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
3
.1

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 c

la
im

in
g
 o

u
t 

o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
 -

 r
e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
a
v
e
ra

g
e
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

N
/A

3
.1

4
.4

3
.1

4
1
.9

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 o

n
 E

m
p
lo

y
m

e
n
t 
L
A

A
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

tr
o
n
g
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

a
n
d
 i
s
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t.

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 a
s
 w

it
h
 N

I1
5
2
 a

n
d
 N

I1
5
3
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 t
im

e
 l
a
g
 i
n
 t
h
is

 d
a
ta

 s
e
t 
(o

f 
b
e
tw

e
e
n
 6

-8
m

o
n
th

s
) 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 i
s
 b

e
g
in

n
in

g
 t
o
 p

la
te

a
u
 a

n
d
 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 d

e
c
lin

e
 a

s
 t
h
e
 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
f 
th

e
 

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 b

e
g
in

s
 t
o
 s

h
o
w

. 
 N

I1
5
1
 i
s
 4

.7
p
p
 a

b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 3

 y
e
a
r 

L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
5
5
.7

%
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 p
ro

je
c
ts

 t
h
e
 1

0
/1

1
 t

a
rg

e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
, 
h
e
n
c
e
 t
h
is

 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 w

it
h
 G

o
L
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
W

h
ile

 N
I1

5
2
 h

a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 0

9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
(N

I1
5
2
 i
s
 a

t 
1
7
.6

%
; 
0
.1

p
p
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 0

9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
o
f 
1
7
.7

) 
a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

 m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
 

fo
rm

e
r 

L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
, 
in

 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

is
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 h
a
s
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 r

e
n
e
w

e
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h
 G

o
L
.

T
h
is

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 N

I 
1
5
2
a
. 
 G

o
L
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 o

u
r 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n
g
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t
h
a
t 
b
y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
1
 (

Q
2
 d

a
ta

) 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 n
a
rr

o
w

 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 t
o
 t
h
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

a
te

 t
o
 a

 m
a
x
im

u
m

 o
f 

-5
.7

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 

 A
t 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
0
 t
h
e
 g

a
p
 s

to
o
d
 a

t 
4
.9

%
; 
s
o
 w

e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 a

c
h
ie

v
in

g
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
o
u
r 

re
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 t
a
rg

e
t.
  
  
In

 2
0
1
0
/1

1
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
N

I 
(N

I1
5
2
b
) 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 

In
d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t 
to

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 s
e
t.
  
T

h
e
 G

O
L
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 N

I 
(N

I1
5
3
a
) 

w
ill

 r
e
m

a
in

 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

tr
a
te

g
ic

 s
e
t.

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

6
5

7
0

7
5

8
0

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
A

u
g

u
s
t

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

O
c
to

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

-1
0 -9 -8 -7 -6 -5 -4 -3 -2 -1 0

2
0

0
9

/1
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2
7

Page 158



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
1

3

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
5

3
b

W
o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

e
o
p
le

 o
n
 o

u
t 
o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 w

o
rs

t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 t
h
e
 p

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
th

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 a

g
e
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 w

h
o
 a

re
 c

la
im

in
g
 o

u
t 

o
f 
w

o
rk

 b
e
n
e
fi
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
o
w

e
s
t 
p
e
rf

o
rm

in
g
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
s
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

2
5
.4

2
8

 
2
6
.8

N
/A

4
.3

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

D
&

R
4

0
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
2

8
£
's

 o
f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
o
n
 b

y
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
M

ill
io

n
s

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

N
ic

k
 S

m
a
le

s

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
&

 R
e
n
e
w

a
l

N
/A

£
5
M

[L
A

T
E

 -
 ]

 N
O

T
 S

E
T

 
 

 

L
A

A
N

I0
0

7
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
0

7
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

3
0

2

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
 t
h
ri
v
in

g
 t
h
ir
d
 s

e
c
to

r

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

L
o
u
is

e
 R

u
s
s
e
ll

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

2
1
.1

[N
/A

]
[N

/A
]

2
7
.1

B
I-

A
N

N
U

A
L
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
:

C
o
m

p
e
te

F
o
r 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

b
le

 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 t
h
e
 n

a
m

e
s
 o

f 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 a

w
a
rd

e
d
 c

o
n
tr

a
c
ts

. 
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 i
n
 t
h
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
re

q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 a

p
p
ro

v
a
l 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 

A
u
th

o
ri
ty

 a
s
 t
o
 w

h
e
th

e
r 

th
e
 £

's
 o

f 
c
o
n
tr

a
c
ts

 w
o
n
 a

s
 p

e
r 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 c

a
n
 b

e
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 t
o
 u

s
. 
 W

e
 a

re
 s

ti
ll 

a
w

a
it
in

g
 a

n
 u

p
d
a
te

 f
ro

m
 C

o
m

p
e
te

F
o
r.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 W

h
ile

 N
I1

5
3
 h

a
s
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 t
h
e
 0

9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t 
(N

I1
5
3
 i
s
 a

t 
2
6
.8

%
; 
1
.2

p
p
 u

n
d
e
r 

th
e
 0

9
/1

0
 t
a
rg

e
t)

 a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 b

a
s
e

lin
e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

lim
a
te

 m
a
d
e
 t
h
e
 f
o
rm

e
r 

L
A

A
 t
a
rg

e
t 
e
x
tr

e
m

e
ly

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
, 
in

 l
ig

h
t 
o
f 
th

is
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 h
a
s
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 r

e
n
e
w

e
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 w
it
h
 G

o
L
. 
 T

h
is

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 N

I 
1
5
2
a
. 
 G

o
L
 h

a
v
e
 a

c
c
e
p
te

d
 o

u
r 

n
e
g
o
ti
a
ti
n

g

p
o
s
it
io

n
 t
h
a
t 
b
y
 M

a
y
 2

0
1
1
 (

Q
2
 d

a
ta

) 
th

e
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 w
ill

 e
x
te

n
d
 T

H
’s

 l
e
a
d
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 r

a
te

 t
o
 a

t 
le

a
s
t 
3
.1

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 p

o
in

ts
. 
 W

e
 a

re
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 a

h
e
a
d
 o

f 

th
e
 E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 b

y
 4

.4
%

.

In
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 t
h
e
 o

ri
g
in

a
l 
N

I 
(N

I1
5
3
b
) 

w
ill

 b
e
 r

e
m

o
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 I
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
s
e
t 
to

 b
e
 m

o
n
it
o
re

d
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 p

ri
o
ri
ty

 s
e

t.
  
T

h
e
 G

O
L
 r

e
n
e
g
o
ti
a
te

d
 N

I 
(N

I1
5
3
a
) 

w
ill

 r
e
m

a
in

 i
n
 t
h
e
 

s
tr

a
te

g
ic

 s
e
t.

T
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 r
e
p
o
rt

e
d
 o

n
 a

 b
i-
a
n
n
u
a
l 
b
a
s
is

 -
 n

e
x
t 
d
u
e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
.

0123456789

1
0

2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2
8

Page 159



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

T
h

e
m

e
 4

: 
A

 S
a
fe

 a
n

d
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
iv

e
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
S

tr
a

te
g

ic
4

1
2

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
3

5
C

a
re

rs
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 n

e
e
d
s
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
a
re

r’
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
o
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
a
re

rs
 w

h
o
s
e
 n

e
e
d
s
 w

e
re

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 o

r 
re

v
ie

w
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 c

o
u
n
c
il 

in
 a

 y
e
a
r 

w
h
o
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

 s
p
e
c
if
ic

 c
a
re

r’
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
o
r 

a
d
v
ic

e
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 s

a
m

e
 y

e
a
r 

a
s
 a

 p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
p
e
o
p
le

 

re
c
e
iv

in
g
 a

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 b

a
s
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

D
e
b
o
ra

h
 C

o
h
e
n
 

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 

W
e
llb

e
in

g
3
0
.1

2
5
.9

3
3
.9

3
0
.9

3
0
.9

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
1

3
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
6

5
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 b

e
c
o
m

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

u
b
je

c
t 
o
f 
C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
 f
o
r 

a
 s

e
c
o
n
d
 o

r 
s
u
b
s
e
q
u
e
n
t 
ti
m

e

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
e
 a

v
e
ra

g
e
 w

e
e
k
ly

 r
a
te

 o
f 
d
e
la

y
e
d
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 o

f 
c
a
re

 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
N

H
S

 h
o
s
p
it
a
ls

, 
a
c
u
te

 a
n
d
 n

o
n
-

a
c
u
te

, 
p
e
r 

1
0
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 a

g
e
d
 1

8
+

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

H
e
le

n
 L

in
c
o
ln

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

6
.8

7
[L

A
T

E
 -

 J
u
l]

6

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

1
P

e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 c

ri
m

e
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
ir
 t
o
p
 t
h
re

e
 c

o
n
c
e
rn

s
 (

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
) 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

4
7

4
6

4
6

4
4

M
E

T
G

R
E

E
N

T
h
e
 f
in

a
l 
o
u
tt
u
rn

 w
ill

 n
o
t 
b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 u
n
ti
l 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
u
ly

, 
in

 l
in

e
 w

it
h
 D

C
S

F
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

 (
C

IN
 c

e
n
s
u
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 S

S
D

A
9
0
3
)

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

a
rg

e
t 
e
x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
re

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 s

o
m

e
 v

e
ry

 h
ig

h
 p

ro
fi
le

 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
a
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

ff
e
c
te

d
 p

e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 m

e
a
s
u
re

 h
a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 

ta
rg

e
t 
a
n
d
 s

h
o
w

s
 s

o
m

e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t.
 

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

5
5

6
0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

J
u
n
e

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

A
p
ri
l

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

A
u
g
u
s
t

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

F
e
b
ru

a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

2
9

Page 160



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

2
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
1

5
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
m

o
s
t 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 v

io
le

n
t 
c
ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(N
o
. 
o
f 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 m

o
s
t 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 v

io
le

n
t 
c
ri
m

e
s
/t
o
ta

l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 x

 1
0
0
0
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

2
.3

5
2
.2

8
2
.1

4
2
.0

9
6
.1

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

3
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
1

6
N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
s
e
ri
o
u
s
 a

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
s
 p

e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(N
o
. 
o
f 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 s

e
ri
o
u
s
 a

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
s
/t
o
ta

l 
p
o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
 x

 1
0
0
0
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

2
5
.5

1
2
5
.0

5
2
0
.2

9
2
0
.0

9
1
9
%

G
R

E
E

N

2
0
.2

9
2
0
.0

9
1
9
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
N

I0
1

8
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
1

8
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

4

R
a
te

 o
f 
p
ro

v
e
n
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 a

d
u
lt
s
 u

n
d
e
r 

P
ro

b
a
ti
o
n
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

3
.7

8
-4

.9
8

[L
A

T
E

 -
 

S
e
p
t]

-9
.9

7

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 A

c
h
ie

v
e
d
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
ta

rg
e
t 
o
f 
3
%

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
. 
O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
 o

f 
A

u
tu

m
n
 n

ig
h
ts

 w
it
h
 t
h
e
 T

H
E

O
'S

 f
o
c
u
s
in

g
 i
n
 B

ri
c
k
 L

a
n
e
 h

o
ts

p
o
t,
 

e
n
h
a
n
c
e
d
 p

a
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 W

h
it
e
c
h
a
p
e
l 
ro

a
d
 c

o
rr

id
o
r,

 d
e
d
ic

a
te

d
 R

o
b
b
e
ry

 T
a
s
k
 f
o
rc

e
 a

n
d
 t
a
s
k
in

g
s
 v

ia
 t
h
e
 J

o
in

t 
T

a
s
k
in

g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
. 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 a

c
q
u
is

it
iv

e
 c

ri
m

e
 o

ff
e
n
c
e
s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 l
a
rg

e
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 p

ro
a
c
ti
v
e
 o

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 t
a
rg

e
ti
n
g
 k

n
o
w

n
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 a
n
d
 l
o
c
a
ti
o
n
s
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
e
 P

ro
b
a
ti
o
n
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 r

e
le

a
s
e
 t
h
is

 d
a
ta

 S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

0

0
.51

1
.52

2
.53

M
a

y
J
u

n
e

J
u

ly
S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

J
a

n
u

a
ry

M
a

rc
h

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

N
o
v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

J
a
n
u
a
ry

M
a
rc

h
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

3
0

Page 161



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

7
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
3

3
i

A
rs

o
n
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 -
 N

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
e
lib

e
ra

te
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(P
ri
m

a
ry

 i
s
 c

a
s
u
a
lt
y
, 
re

s
c
u
e
 o

r 
e
s
c
a
p
e
) 

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

9
.9

9
1
1
.9

7
.3

1
1
.5

3
8
.7

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

8
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
3

3
ii

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
e
lib

e
ra

te
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
 p

e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0
 p

o
p
u
la

ti
o
n
. 
(A

rs
o
n
)

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(S
e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 i
s
 n

o
t 
in

v
o
lv

in
g
 p

ro
p
e
rt

y
 &

 d
id

 n
o
t 
in

v
o
lv

e
 c

a
s
u
a
lt
ie

s
 o

r 
re

s
c
u
e
s
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

2
0
.9

9
3
5
.8

1
1
.4

3
3
4
.7

6
8
.1

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

A
N

I0
4

2
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
4

2
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
1

1

P
e
rc

e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

f 
d
ru

g
 u

s
e
 o

r 
d
ru

g
 d

e
a
lin

g
 a

s
 a

 p
ro

b
le

m
 (

A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 -

 P
ro

x
y
) 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

5
4

N
/A

5
1

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
e
v
e
ry

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
g
a
in

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 a

 p
ro

x
y
. 
 W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 t
w

o
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
, 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
rv

e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 u
s
e
fu

l 
p
ro

x
y
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 T

h
e
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 F

ir
e
 B

ri
g
a
d
e
 (

L
F

B
) 

th
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e
 A

rs
o
n
 s

u
b
-g

ro
u
p
 o

f 
th

e
 C

D
R

P
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 C

o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 S

a
fe

ty
 F

o
ru

m
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 t
h
e
 L

F
B

 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

in
g
 d

e
re

lic
t 

b
u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 l
a
n
d
, 
w

it
h
 t
h
e
 h

e
lp

 o
f 
th

e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 S
a
fe

r 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 T

e
a
m

s
 (

S
N

T
s
),

 a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 t
h
e
 A

S
B

 O
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 S

u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
 t
e
a
m

s
 .
 T

h
e
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 h

a
v
e
 

b
e
e
n
 b

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
a
lly

 m
o
n
it
o
re

d
 b

y
 L

F
B

, 
S

N
T

 a
n
d
 O

p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
/S

u
rv

e
ill

a
n
c
e
 s

ta
ff
. 
A

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 h

a
s
 m

e
a
n
t 
th

a
t 
b

in
 r

o
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 r

u
b
b
is

h
 s

to
ra

g
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

re
 c

o
u
n
te

d
 

w
it
h
in

 t
h
is

 N
I.
 C

a
re

ta
k
e
rs

 a
n
d
 e

s
ta

te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 o
n
 e

s
ta

te
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 t
ra

in
e
d
 i
n
 a

rs
o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 a

n
d
 t
o
 l
o
c
k
 b

in
 r

o
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 r

e
m

o
v
e
 b

u
lk

 r
u
b
b
is

h
 i
n
 a

 t
im

e
ly

 a
n
d
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
t 

m
a
n
n
e
r.

• 
R

e
g
is

te
re

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
L
a
n
d
lo

rd
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
ir
 b

u
lk

 r
u
b
b
is

h
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
s
, 
a
n
d
 p

u
b
lic

is
e
 b

u
lk

 w
a
s
te

 r
e
m

o
v
a
l 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 a
n
d
 r

u
b
b
is

h
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o
n
 d

a
te

s
 -

 t
h
is

 h
a
s
 

b
e
e
n
 a

c
h
e
iv

e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 b

e
tw

e
e
n
 A

re
a
 D

ir
e
c
to

rs
, 
N

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 R

S
L
s

• 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

d
u
c
a
te

d
 o

n
 a

rs
o
n
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 k

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 v

ia
 l
e
a
fl
e
t 
d
ro

p
s
, 
n
e
w

s
 a

rt
ic

le
s
 a

n
d
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 l
e
tt
e
rs

. 

• 
A

 b
o
ro

u
g
h
 w

id
e
 p

o
s
te

r 
a
n
d
 s

ti
c
k
e
r 

c
a
m

p
a
ig

n
 e

n
c
o
u
ra

g
in

g
 p

e
o
p
le

 t
o
 S

E
E

 I
T

, 
R

E
P

O
R

T
 I
T

, 
R

E
M

O
V

E
 I
T

 h
a
s
 h

e
lp

e
d
 t
o
 g

e
t 
th

e
 f
u
e
l 
fo

r 
n
o
n
-a

c
c
id

e
n
ta

l 
fi
re

s
 o

ff
 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

. 

T
h
e
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 r

is
e
 i
n
 d

e
lib

e
ra

te
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

c
o
n
o
m

ic
 d

o
w

n
tu

rn
 d

id
 n

o
t 
m

a
te

ri
a
lis

e
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
e
lib

e
ra

te
 s

e
c
o
n
d
a
ry

 f
ir
e
s
 i
s
 a

tt
ri
b
u
ta

b
le

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 i
n
 r

e
m

o
v
in

g
 r

u
b
b
is

h
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 f
ro

m
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 a

re
a
s
 w

it
h
in

 t
o
w

e
r 

b
lo

c
k
s
 a

n
d
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
a
t 
s
e
c
u
ri
ty

 m
e
a
s
u
re

s
 w

it
h
in

 b
in

 r
o
o
m

s
 c

h
u
te

 r
o
o
m

s
 a

n
d
 s

to
ra

g
e
 a

re
a
s
 a

re
 k

e
p
t 
u
p
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
m

o
v
a
l 
o
f 
ru

b
b
is

h
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

tr
e
e
ts

 a
n
d
 n

e
ig

h
b
o
u
rh

o
o
d
 a

re
a
s
 b

y
 

R
S

L
's

 a
n
d
 L

E
T

S
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 h

e
lp

e
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
in

c
id

e
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
rs

o
n
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
T

h
e
 t
ra

in
in

g
 o

f 
c
a
re

ta
k
e
rs

, 
c
o
n
c
ie

rg
e
 e

s
ta

te
 m

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 h
a
s
 a

ls
o
 r

a
is

e
d
 a

w
a
re

n
e
s
s
 

o
f 
a
rs

o
n
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

s
. 
A

n
o
th

e
r 

w
e
t 
s
u
m

m
e
r 

k
e
p
t 
th

e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
a
rs

o
n
 s

ta
ti
s
ti
c
s
 l
o
w

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 s

u
m

m
e
r 

p
e
ri
o
d
, 
a
n
 e

q
u
a
lly

 w
e
t 

fi
re

w
o
rk

 p
e
ri
o
d
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
 o

f 
o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
 

A
s
h
fo

rd
 m

e
a
n
t 
th

a
t 
th

e
 A

rs
o
n
 i
n
c
id

e
n
ts

 a
c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 w

e
re

 a
t 
b
e
tt
e
r 

th
a
n
 e

x
p
e
c
te

d
 l
e
v
e
ls

.

0

1
0

2
0

3
0

4
0

5
0

6
0

7
0

8
0

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

02468

1
0

1
2

1
4

1
6

1
8

2
0

M
a
y

J
u
n
e

J
u
ly

S
e
p
te

m
b
e
r

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

3
1

Page 162



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

L
A

A
N

I0
4

0
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
4

0
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
1

0

N
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
d
ru

g
 u

s
e
rs

 r
e
c
o
rd

e
d
 a

s
 b

e
in

g
 i
n
 e

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

8
1

1
2
3

1
7
4
 [
P

]
1
3
8
 [
P

]
4
1
.5

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

5
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
1

9
R

a
te

 o
f 
p
ro

v
e
n
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 b

y
 y

o
u
n
g
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 a
g
e
d
 1

0
-1

7

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
N

u
m

b
e
r 

(a
v
e
ra

g
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

-o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 p

e
r 

y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
rs

o
n
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

M
a
ry

 D
u
rk

in

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
S

c
h
o
o
ls

 &
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s

1
.1

1
.1

3
1
.1

5
1
.0

8
-1

.8
0
%

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I0
2

1
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
2

1
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

6

D
e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
n
c
e
rn

s
 a

b
o
u
t 
a
n
ti
-s

o
c
ia

l 
b
e
h
a
v
io

u
r 

a
n
d
 c

ri
m

e
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 b

y
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 p

o
lic

e
 

(A
n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 -

 P
ro

x
y
) 

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
n
d
y
 B

a
m

b
e
r

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

3
9

N
/A

4
8

N
/A

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 (

P
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
- 

T
h
e
re

 i
s
 a

 d
e
la

y
 i
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

in
g
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
b
e
c
a
u
s
e
 t
h
e
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
m

e
a
s
u
re

s
 't

h
o
s
e
 w

h
o
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 i
n
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 
fo

r 
a
 p

e
ri
o
d
 o

f 
1
2
 w

e
e
k
s
".

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 1
2
 w

e
e
k
 p

e
ri
o
d
 a

ft
e
r 

y
e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 
th

e
 N

a
ti
o
n
a
l 
D

ru
g
 T

re
a
tm

e
n
t 
M

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 S

y
s
te

m
 s

p
e
n
d
s
 a

ro
u
n
d
 6

 w
e
e
k
s
 f
in

a
lis

in
g
 t
h
e
 d

a
ta

. 
 T

h
e
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 i
s
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
le

a
s
e
d
 b

y
 

N
D

M
S

 i
n
 m

id
 A

u
g
u
s
t.
) 

 T
h
e
 m

o
s
t 
re

c
e
n
t 
d
a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 f
o
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri
o
d
 t
o
 e

n
d
 N

o
v
. 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 c

a
n
 f
lu

c
tu

a
te

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

h
if
ti
n
g
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 b

u
t 

tr
a
je

c
to

ri
e
s
 s

h
o
w

 t
h
a
t 
w

e
 a

re
 l
ik

e
ly

 t
o
 a

c
h
ie

v
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
a
g
a
in

s
t 
th

is
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r.
 

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 W

e
 h

a
v
e
 n

o
t 
m

e
t 
o
u
r 

ta
rg

e
t.
  
T

h
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 a
re

 c
h
a
lle

n
g
in

g
 a

n
d
 a

re
 m

a
d
e
 m

o
re

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

m
a
ll 

n
u

m
b
e
rs

 o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
s
e
 r

e
o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 i
s
 

m
o
n
it
o
re

d
. 
Y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 o

ff
e
n
d
e
d
 a

re
 e

n
g
a
g
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 Y

O
T

 a
n
d
 i
ts

 p
a
rt

n
e
rs

 i
n
 a

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
d
iv

e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 d
e
s
ig

n
e
d
 t
o
 l
o
w

e
r 

th
e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
th

o
s
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
l e

re
o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 f
u
tu

re
. 
 T

h
e
 a

c
tu

a
l 
ra

te
 o

f 
re

-o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 a

ft
e
r 

9
 m

o
n
th

s
 w

a
s
 0

.9
2
, 
w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
ra

te
 o

f 
re

-o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
0
.8

4
. 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

in
 t
h
e
 c

o
h
o
rt

 i
s
 1

6
4
. 
T

h
e
 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

re
-o

ff
e
n
d
in

g
 a

ft
e
r 

9
 m

o
n
th

s
 i
s
 6

6
 (

4
0
.2

%
 o

f 
th

e
 c

o
h
o
rt

).
 T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 a

b
o
v
e
 6

6
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 i
s
 1

5
1
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
A

n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

h
e
 P

la
c
e
 S

u
rv

e
y
 i
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
e
v
e
ry

 t
w

o
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
p
o
rt

 a
g
a
in

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
. 
T

h
e
re

fo
re

, 
w

e
 h

a
v
e
 u

s
e
d
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
R

e
s
id

e
n
t 
S

u
rv

e
y
 

in
d
ic

a
to

r 
a
s
 a

 p
ro

x
y
. 
 W

h
ils

t 
th

e
 t
w

o
 s

u
rv

e
y
s
 a

re
 n

o
t 
d
ir
e
c
tl
y
 c

o
m

p
a
ra

b
le

, 
d
u
e
 t
o
 d

if
fe

re
n
t 
m

e
th

o
d
o
lo

g
y
, 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
re

s
id

e
n
ts

 s
u
rv

e
y
 p

ro
v
id

e
s
 a

 u
s
e
fu

l 
p
ro

x
y
.

W
h
ils

t 
o
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 r

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

fi
rs

t 
ti
m

e
 e

n
tr

a
n
ts

 r
e
m

a
in

 l
o
w

, 
a
 h

ig
h
e
r 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
y
o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

in
g
 Y

O
T

 i
n
te

rv
e
n
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
-o

ff
e
n

d
e
d
 t
h
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
, 
p
a
rt

ic
u
la

rl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

s
t 
q
u
a
rt

e
r.

 I
n

th
is

 q
u
a
rt

e
r,

 a
 s

m
a
ll 

n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
re

o
ff
e
n
d
e
rs

 c
o
m

m
it
te

d
 a

n
 u

n
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
ly

 h
ig

h
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
. 
A

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 t
h
e
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 r

o
s
e
 b

y
 a

 h
ig

h
e
r 

th
a
n
 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 n

u
m

b
e
r.

T
h
e
 Y

o
u
th

 O
ff
e
n
d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
ts

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 o

f 
d
iv

e
rs

io
n
a
ry

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 t
o
 t
h
o
s
e
 y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 w
h
o
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 i
n
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

u
p
e
rv

is
io

n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

. 
F

o
r 

e
x
a
m

p
le

 i
n
 

re
s
p
o
n
s
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 c

ri
m

e
s
 o

f 
v
io

le
n
c
e
, 
tw

o
 g

ro
u
p
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 r

u
n
, 
th

e
 V

io
le

n
t 
O

ff
e
n
d
e
r 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 (

V
O

P
) 

a
n
d
 a

 k
n
if
e
 c

ri
m

e
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

d
e
liv

e
re

d
 b

y
 Y

O
T

 P
o
lic

e
. 

T
h
e
 h

ig
h
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
o
ff
e
n
c
e
s
 c

o
m

m
it
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 1

s
t 
a
n
d
 4

th
 q

u
a
rt

e
rs

 h
a
s
 m

a
d
e
 i
t 
u
n
lik

e
ly

 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 a

n
n
u
a
l 
ta

rg
e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 m

e
t 
in

 J
u

ly
 2

0
1
0
.

0

0
.2

0
.4

0
.6

0
.81

1
.2

1
.4

1
.6

1
.82

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r

D
e

c
e

m
b

e
r

M
a

rc
h

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

5
0

7
0

9
0

1
1
0

1
3
0

1
5
0

1
7
0

1
9
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

3
2

Page 163



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

C
E

0
6

5
,

L
A

A
N

I0
3

5
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
3

5
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

4
0

9

B
u
ild

in
g
 r

e
s
ili

e
n
c
e
 t
o
 v

io
le

n
t 
e
x
tr

e
m

is
m

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
L
e
v
e
l

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

F
ra

n
c
e
s
 J

o
n
e
s
/H

a
fs

h
a
 A

li

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
's

1
6

1
8

1
8

2
0

M
E

T
G

R
E

E
N

T
h

e
m

e
 5

: 
A

 H
e
a
lt

h
y
 C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
L

A
A

L
o

c
a

lN
I0

0
8

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
0

8
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0

1

A
d
u
lt
 p

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 s

p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
v
e
 r

e
c
re

a
ti
o
n

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

H
e
a
th

e
r 

B
o
n
fi
e
ld

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 

C
u
lt
u
re

1
7
.7

1
8
.7

1
7

1
9
.7

-9
.1

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 D

a
ta

 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 d
e
ri
v
e
d
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 A

n
n
u
a
l 
A

c
ti
v
e
 P

e
o
p
le

 S
u
rv

e
y
. 
A

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 a

re
 t
a
k
in

g
 p

la
c
e
, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 f
re

e
 s

w
im

m
in

g
 i
n
 a

ll 
th

e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
’s

 

le
is

u
re

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

a
n
d
 ‘
Y

o
u
n
g
 a

t 
H

e
a
rt

’ 
–
 a

 d
ri
v
e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 e

x
e
rc

is
e
 r

a
te

s
 a

m
o
n
g
 a

d
u
lt
s
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 s
e
lf
 a

s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 P

re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 V

io
le

n
t 
E

x
tr

e
m

is
m

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 T

e
a
m

 a
g
a
in

s
t 
d
e
s
c
ri
p
to

rs
 f
o
r 

th
e
 f
o
u
r 

d
o
m

a
in

s
:

• 
U

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f,
 a

n
d
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
w

it
h
, 
M

u
s
lim

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
;

• 
K

n
o
w

le
d
g
e
 a

n
d
 u

n
d
e
rs

ta
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 d

ri
v
e
rs

 a
n
d
 c

a
u
s
e
s
 o

f 
v
io

le
n
t 
e
x
tr

e
m

is
m

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 P

re
v
e
n
t 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
;

• 
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
a
 r

is
k
-b

a
s
e
d
 p

re
v
e
n
ti
n
g
 v

io
le

n
t 
e
x
tr

e
m

is
m

 a
c
ti
o
n
 p

la
n
, 
in

 s
u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 P

re
v
e
n
t 
o
b
je

c
ti
v
e
s
;

• 
E

ff
e
c
ti
v
e
 o

v
e
rs

ig
h
t,
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 a
n
d
 e

v
a
lu

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 a
n
d
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
.

O
u
r 

P
re

v
e
n
t 
P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
s
 t
o
 b

e
 a

n
 e

x
a
m

p
le

 o
f 
e
x
c
e
lle

n
t 
n
a
ti
o
n
a
l 
p
ra

c
ti
c
e
.

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
0

0
8

/0
9

2
0

0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
2

0
1

0
/1

1

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

3
3

Page 164



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

L
A

A
N

I0
5

6
d

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l0
5

6
d

,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0

4

P
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r 

6
 w

it
h
 h

e
ig

h
t 
a
n
d
 w

e
ig

h
t 
re

c
o
rd

e
d
 w

h
o
 a

re
 o

b
e
s
e
.

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
C

h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 d

e
fi
n
e
d
 a

s
 o

b
e
s
e
 i
f 
th

e
ir
 B

M
I 
is

 a
b
o
v
e
 t
h
e
 9

5
th

 c
e
n
ti
le

 o
f 
th

e
 r

e
fe

re
n
c
e
 c

u
rv

e
 f
o
r 

th
e
ir
 a

g
e
 a

n
d
 s

e
x
)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

E
s
th

e
r 

T
re

n
c
h
a
rd

-M
a
b
e
re

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t

2
4
.4

9
2
3
.6

2
5
.7

2
3
.7

-8
.9

0
%

R
E

D

L
A

A
N

I1
1

2
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
1

2
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0

6

U
n
d
e
r 

1
8
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
%

 (
T

h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 p
e
r 

1
,0

0
0
 g

ir
ls

 r
e
s
id

e
n
t 
in

 t
h
e
 a

re
a
 f
o
r 

th
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
c
a
le

n
d
a
r 

y
e
a
r,

 a
s
 

c
o
m

p
a
re

d
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 1

9
9
8
 b

a
s
e
lin

e
 r

a
te

)

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

E
s
th

e
r 

T
re

n
c
h
a
rd

-M
a
b
e
re

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t

-2
0
.8

-4
4

-4
2
.1

-5
5

-4
.3

0
%

R
E

D

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
  
 O

u
r 

re
s
u
lt
s
 t
h
is

 y
e
a
r 

s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 t
re

n
d
 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 f
o
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

6
, 
w

h
e
re

 2
5
.7

%
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 m

e
a
s
u
re

d
 w

e
re

 f
o
u
n
d
 t
o
 b

e
 o

b
e
s
e
. 
T

h
e
 

ta
rg

e
ts

 s
e
t 
w

ill
 b

e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 t
o
 m

e
e
t 
a
s
 t
h
e
y
 w

e
re

 s
e
t 
b
a
s
e
d
 u

p
o
n
 o

n
e
 y

e
a
r 

o
f 
d
a
ta

, 
a
n
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
n
o
 m

o
re

 t
h
a
n
 1

%
 o

v
e
r 

4
 y

e
a
rs

. 
L
a
rg

e
 n

u
m

b
e
rs

 o
f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

re
 

m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 l
o
c
a
lly

: 
8
7
.1

 t
o
 9

2
.2

%
 o

f 
c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 Y

e
a
r 

6
 w

e
re

 m
e
a
s
u
re

d
 a

c
c
o
rd

in
g
 t
o
 d

a
ta

 s
o
u
rc

e
. 
C

o
n
fi
d
e
n
c
e
 i
n
te

rv
a
ls

 f
o
r 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
 l
e
v
e
l 
m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
n
e
th

e
le

s
s
 r

e
la

ti
v
e
ly

 

w
id

e
 (

-1
.7

%
 a

n
d
 +

2
.2

%
 a

b
o
v
e
 a

n
d
 b

e
lo

w
 2

5
.7

%
, 
h
e
n
c
e
 t
h
e
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 i
n
 a

c
c
u
ra

te
ly

 d
e
te

rm
in

in
g
 t
ru

e
 v

a
lu

e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
th

e
 t
a
rg

e
t;
 t
h
is

 r
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 v

a
lu

e
s
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
o
n
 t
o
 a

ll 

b
o
ro

u
g
h
s
).

L
o
n
d
o
n
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

f 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 (
L
B

T
H

) 
a
n
d
 N

H
S

-T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
g
e
th

e
r 

to
 t
a
c
k
le

 o
b
e
s
it
y
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
. 
L
B

T
H

 i
s
n
’t
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 c

u
rr

e
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

e
a
s
u
re

m
e
n

t

p
ro

c
e
s
s
 –

 i
t 
is

 c
a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y
 N

H
S

-T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 s
ta

ff
 (

lia
is

in
g
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
s
ta

ff
);

 a
ro

u
n
d
 c

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 t
h
e
re

 i
s
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
c
ro

s
s
 w

o
rk

in
g
, 
a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 “

H
e
a
lt
h
y
 

W
e
ig

h
t 
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 L

iv
e
s
 i
n
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 s
tr

a
te

g
y
” 

(r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 4

) 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 “
H

e
a
lt
h
y
 B

o
ro

u
g
h
 P

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
” 

(r
e
fe

re
n
c
e
 5

 a
n

d
 6

).
 R

e
p
o
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 s

c
ru

ti
n
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
 w

o
rk

in
g
 g

ro

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
T

e
e
n
a
g
e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 h

a
v
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 o

v
e
r 

th
e
 l
a
s
t 
1
0
 y

e
a
rs

 a
n
d
 a

ft
e
r 

a
 s

h
o
rt

 p
e
ri

o
d
 o

f 
s
ta

b
ili

s
a
ti
o
n
 h

a
v
e
 o

n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
e
d
 t
o
 

d
ro

p
. 
T

h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 a

re
 p

u
b
lis

h
e
d
 1

4
 m

o
n
th

s
 i
n
 a

rr
e
a
rs

, 
th

e
re

fo
re

 l
a
te

s
t 
d
a
ta

 r
e
la

te
s
 t
o
 2

0
0
8
. 
T

h
is

 s
h
o
w

s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 o
f 
c
o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
 i
s
 a

 r
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
4
2
.1

%
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 

to
 t
h
e
 r

a
te

 i
n
 1

9
9
8
. 
 L

a
s
t 
y
e
a
r 

th
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 w

a
s
 a

 2
0
.8

%
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
re

fo
re

 d
e
m

o
n
s
tr

a
te

s
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

. 
T

h
is

 p
la

c
e
s
 t
h
e
 b

o
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
ir
d
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 f
o
r 

ra
te

 o
f 

re
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 h

ig
h
e
s
t 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 r

a
te

 i
n
 L

o
n
d
o
n
. 
L
o
c
a
l 
in

te
lli

g
e
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 N

H
S

 T
O

W
E

R
 H

a
m

le
ts

 c
a
p
tu

re
s
 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 a

b
o
u
t 
te

e
n
a
g

e
 c

o
n
c
e
p
ti
o
n
s
 o

n
 a

 m
o
re

 t
im

e
ly

 b
a
s
is

 a
n
d
 

in
d
ic

a
te

s
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
re

n
d
 i
s
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
.

T
h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il’

s
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
la

n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
-1

1
/1

2
: 
Y

e
a
r 

1
 A

c
ti
o
n
 P

la
n
, 
s
e
ts

 o
u
t 
k
e
y
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 k

e
y
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 p

la
n
n
e
d
 t
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
. 
M

a
n
y
 o

f 

th
e
s
e
 i
n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 w

ill
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
 w

o
rk

in
g
 w

it
h
 p

a
rt

n
e
rs

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 l
o
c
a
l 
c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
. 
P

le
a
s
e
 s

e
e
 (

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 1

3
a
) 

p
a
g
e
 3

8
 P

ri
o
ri
ty

 5
.1

: 
R

e
d
u
c
e
 d

if
fe

re
n
c
e
s
 i
n
 p

e
o
p
le

’s
 h

e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 p

ro
m

o
te

 

h
e
a
lt
h
y
 l
if
e
s
ty

le
s
. 

T
h
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 t
h
a
t 
re

la
te

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 a

re
 b

e
lo

w
:

A
c
ti
v
it
y
 6

8
. 
D

e
liv

e
r 

a
 t
a
rg

e
te

d
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
e
o
p
le

 t
a
k
in

g
 r

e
g
u
la

r 
p
h
y
s
ic

a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
y
, 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 6

9
. 
A

g
re

e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 s
p
o
rt

s
 e

n
g
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 

re
s
id

e
n
ts

, 
C

Y
P

P
 B

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
. 
A

c
ti
v
it
y
 7

1
. 
S

u
p
p
o
rt

 c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
 w

it
h
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 w

e
ig

h
t 
m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
n
e
e
d
s
 t
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h
e
ir
 w

e
ig

h
t,
 C

Y
P

P
 B

e
 H

e
a
lt
h
y

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 a
 r

a
n
g
e
 o

f 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h
e
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 F
o
o
d
 A

w
a
rd

 S
c
h
e
m

e
 l
a
u
n
c
h
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
0
9
, 
2
5
 a

p
p
lic

a
ti
o

n
s
 h

a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 o

f 
w

h
ic

h
 7

 t
a
k
e
 a

w
a
y
s
 

a
re

 w
o
rk

in
g
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 t
h
e
 B

ro
n
z
e
 A

w
a
rd

. 
T

h
e
 B

u
y
w

e
ll 

s
c
h
e
m

e
 i
s
 a

ls
o
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 i
n
 1

0
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 c
o
n
v
e
n
ie

n
c
e
 s

to
re

s
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h

e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d
 a

ff
o
rd

a
b
ili

ty
 o

f 
fr

e
s
h
 f
ru

it
 a

n
d
 

v
e
g
e
ta

b
le

s
 f
o
r 

lo
c
a
l 
c
h
ild

re
n
 a

n
d
 f
a
m

ili
e
s
. 
P

u
b
lic

 h
e
a
lt
h
 a

n
d
 P

la
n
n
in

g
 O

ff
ic

e
rs

 a
re

 a
ls

o
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ri
n
g
 h

o
w

 p
o
lic

y
 a

n
d
 p

la
n
n
in

g
 l
e

v
e
rs

 c
o
u
ld

 c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 c

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 o

b
e
s
it
y
, 

b
y
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 t
h
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
ta

k
e
 a

w
a
y
 f
a
s
t 
fo

o
d
.

A
s
 t
h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
is

 a
ls

o
 a

 D
e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
H

e
a
lt
h
 v

it
a
l 
s
ig

n
 (

V
S

B
0
9
: 
O

b
e
s
it
y
 a

m
o
n
g
 p

ri
m

a
ry

 s
c
h
o
o
l 
a
g
e
d
 c

h
ild

re
n
) 

a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 L

A
A

 t
a
rg

e
t.
 A

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 N

H
S

 T
o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
t 

C
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
ic

 P
ri
o
ri
ty

 t
a
rg

e
t 
w

e
 a

re
 f
o
c
u
s
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

w
o
rk

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 t
o
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
 t
h
e
s
e
 t
a
rg

e
ts

; 
W

e
 h

a
v
e
 a

ls
o
 a

tt
a
c
h
e
d
 (

re
fe

re
n
c
e
 9

) 
th

e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
“S

ta
y
in

g
 H

e
a
lt
h
y
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 

B
o
a
rd

” 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 p
la

n
 f
o
r 

th
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
(y

r 
6
 c

h
ild

h
o
o
d
 o

b
e
s
it
y
 S

T
&

C
S

(U
p
d
a
te

d
) 

s
p
re

a
d
s
h
e
e
t)

.

05

1
0

1
5

2
0

2
5

3
0

3
5

4
0

4
5

5
0

2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

-1
0
0

-9
0

-8
0

-7
0

-6
0

-5
0

-4
0

-3
0

-2
0

-1
0 0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
T

a
rg

e
t 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

3
4

Page 165



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 3

P
I
 R

e
f 

N
o

P
I
 D

e
s
c
r
ip

ti
o

n
R

e
s
p

o
n

s
ib

le
 O

ff
ic

e
r
 

&
 D

ir
e
c
to

r
a
te

O
u

tt
u

r
n

2
0

0
8

/
0

9

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

A
c
tu

a
l

2
0

0
9

/
1

0

T
a
r
g

e
t

2
0

1
0

/
1

1

V
a
r
ia

n
c
e

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g

a
c
tu

a
l 
to

 t
a
r
g

e
t)

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
r
a
v
e
l 

(
c
o

m
p

a
r
in

g
 a

c
tu

a
ls

 

0
8

/
0

9
 a

n
d

 0
9

/
1

0
)

T
r
a
ff

ic
 L

ig
h

t

(
R

E
D

 /
 G

R
E
E
N

)

0

Ma

y

Jul

y

No

ve

Ja

nu

Ta

rg

A
c
tu

a
l 
0
9

/1
0

T
a

rg
e

t 
1

0
/1

1
T

a
rg

e
t 

0
9
/1

0

L
A

A
N

I1
2

0
a

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
2

0
a

,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0

7

A
ll-

a
g
e
 a

ll 
c
a
u
s
e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

 -
 M

a
le

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
n
u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
lw

e
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t

8
5
6
.1

4
8
0
4

[L
A

T
E

 -
 J

u
l]

7
8
7

L
A

A
N

I1
2

0
b

,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
2

0
b

,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0

8

A
ll-

a
g
e
 a

ll 
c
a
u
s
e
 m

o
rt

a
lit

y
 r

a
te

 -
 F

e
m

a
le

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
n
u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
L
o
w

e
r

A
lw

e
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t

5
7
7

5
5
5

[L
A

T
E

 -
 J

u
l]

5
4
7

L
A

A
N

I1
2

3
,

N
a

ti
o

n
a

l1
2

3
,

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

5
0

9

S
to

p
p
in

g
 s

m
o
k
in

g

M
e
a
s
u
re

d
 i
n
: 
n
u
m

b
e
r

G
o
o
d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
H

ig
h
e
r

A
lw

e
n
 W

ill
ia

m
s
 

P
ri
m

a
ry

 C
a
re

 T
ru

s
t

1
2
5
3

1
0
4
3

1
4
8
9

1
0
6
1

4
2
.8

0
%

G
R

E
E

N

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r 
h
a
s
 e

x
c
e
e
d
e
d
 i
ts

 t
a
rg

e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

m
o
rt

a
lit

y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
, 
a
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
in

q
u
e
s
ts

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e

re
fo

re
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
in

 J
u
ly

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

A
n
n
u
a
l 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
: 
 T

h
is

 i
n
d
ic

a
to

r,
 a

lo
n
g
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 o

th
e
r 

m
o
rt

a
lit

y
 i
n
d
ic

a
to

rs
, 
a
re

 s
u
b
je

c
t 
to

 t
h
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 o

f 
in

q
u
e
s
ts

, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e

re
fo

re
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 o

u
tt
u
rn

 w
ill

 b
e
 a

v
a
ila

b
le

 a
s
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
a
l 
in

 J
u
ly

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 p
u
b
lis

h
e
d
 i
n
 O

c
to

b
e
r 

2
0
1
0
.

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

1
0
0
0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

1
0
0
0

2
0
0
7
/0

8
2
0
0
8
/0

9
2
0
0
9
/1

0
2
0
1
0
/1

1

8
0

0

9
0

0

1
0

0
0

1
1

0
0

1
2

0
0

1
3

0
0

1
4

0
0

1
5

0
0

2
0

1
0

/1
1

M
:\

S
tr

a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
e

rf
o

rm
a

n
c
e

\P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
&

IN
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
\M

O
N

IT
O

R
IN

G
 (

T
H

I)
\2

0
0

9
-1

0
\9

 -
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 (

Y
R

 E
N

D
)\

R
e

p
o

rt
s
\C

a
b

in
e

t\
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 3
 -

 S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
 -

 C
A

B
 -

 V
4

.x
ls

3
5

Page 166



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National014 Reducing avoidable contact: Minimising the proportion of customer contact that 

is of low or no value to the customer

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Claire Symonds

Resources
25.47 20 24.1 20 -20.50% RED

National179 Value for money – total net value of ongoing cash-releasing value for money 

gains that have impacted since the start of the 2008-09 financial year

Measured in: £

Good Performance: Higher

Alan Finch

Resources

6,214,000 5,158,000
[LATE - 

Jun]
16,149,000

National180 The number of changes of circumstances which affect customers’ HB/CTB 

entitlement within the year.

Measured in: Number (Per 1,000.  Changes include those that result in an 

increase in benefit, which would have resulted in an underpayment if left 

unactioned, and those that result in a decrease in benefit, which would lead to 

an overpayment if left unactioned)

Good Performance: Higher

Claire Symonds

Resources

1657 3500 4714 3525 34.70% GREEN

National181 Time taken to process Housing Benefit/Council Tax Benefit new claims and 

change

Measured in: Days (The average time taken in calendar days to process all new 

claims and change events in Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit)

Good Performance: Lower

Claire Symonds

Resources
15.7 12 8.54 9 28.80% GREEN

Theme 2
National002 % of people who feel that they belong to their neighbourhood

Measured in: % (Place Survey Indicator)

Good Performance: Higher

Frances Jones / Hafsha 

Ali

Chief Executive's 42.8 N/A N/A 46.7
PLACE

SURVEY

National003 Civic participation in the local area

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Louise Russell

Chief Executive's
23.7 N/A N/A 25.9

PLACE

SURVEY

National006 Participation in regular volunteering

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Louise Russell

Chief Executive's
20.8 N/A N/A 23

PLACE

SURVEY

National009 Use of public libraries

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Heather Bonfield

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 56.6 57.1 48.6 57.6 -14.90% RED

National010 Visits to museums and galleries

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Heather Bonfield

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 62.1 63.1 59.9 64.1 -5.10% RED

National011 Engagement in the Arts

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Heather Bonfield

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 43.8 44.8 41.2 45.8 -8% RED

Annual Performance:    Measured avoidable contact for 09/10 fell from 25.47% to 24.10% with decreases in both customer-assessed and staff-assessed repeat contact.  While no specific projects were put in place 

during 2009/10 to target avoidable contact, it is likely that the awareness of the indicator among service teams has led to small service and process improvements which have resulted in the overall reduction in 

avoidable contact.  While the nominal local target of 20% was missed, the main objective of the indicator - to reduce levels of avoidable contact - was met. 

The level of customer-assessed avoidable contact remains around double that of staff-assessed and at 37.93% is likely to represent a more realistic indicator of the level of 'failure demand' and repeat contacts.

Implementation of the Corporate Channel Strategy through 2010/11 will be the main tool for further reducing the levels of avoidable contact. While NI14 will no longer form part of the NI set for 2010/11, it is proposed 

to retain it as a local indicator.

Annual Performance:    Drop in performance is at variance with increasing visitor and issue figures, both of which indicate a rise in use of public libraries. We are not the owners of the data for this indicator which is 

provided by the Active people Survey.

Annual Performance: The change is not statistically significant. The council does not own any museums and galleries, however we have provided support to several in the borough, most notably the new extensions 

to the Whitechapel Gallery opened in 2009 and Bethnal Green Childhood Museum. Both of these report increased attendance so it is surprising that the figures are not higher.

Annual Performance: This indicator can be calculated once the year end accounts have been finalised (around end June).

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Theme 1: One Tower Hamlets

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 1Page 167



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National138 Satisfaction of people over 65 with both home and neighbourhood

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Taylor

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 63.6 N/A N/A NOT SET
PLACE

SURVEY

National157a Processing of planning applications within 13 weeks for Major applications

Measured in: % 

Good Performance: Higher

Owen Whalley

Development & 

Renewal 47.78 60 57.35 65 -4.44% RED

National157b Processing of planning applications within 8 weeks for Minor applications

Measured in: % 

Good Performance: Higher

Owen Whalley

Development & 

Renewal 87.96 87 89.35 88 2.70% GREEN

National157c Processing of planning applications within 8 weeks for Other applications

Measured in: % 

Good Performance: Higher

Owen Whalley

Development & 

Renewal 88.17 89 91.5 89.5 2.40% GREEN

National159 Supply of ready to develop housing sites

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal
N/A 90 [LATE - Sep] 90

National160 Local authority tenants’ satisfaction with landlord services

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal 58 61 n/a 64

National167 Congestion – average journey time per mile during the morning peak

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 4.49 NOT SET [LATE - Sep] NOT SET

National168 Principal roads where maintenance should be considered

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 14 12 14 11 -16.70% RED

National169 Non-principal classified roads where maintenance should be considered

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 14 11 22 18 -100% RED

Annual Performance:  The actual for this indicator is due in September in line with the statutory return of the Annual Monitoring Report planning document. 

Annual Performance: This is measured in a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance:    Not all 2009/10 works which were identified from the 2008/9 survey were completed in time for the completion of the survey 2009/10 

Annual Performance:    High level of utility works have affected the integrity of the roads - it has been estimated nationally that street works reduce the life of a carriageway surface by 305 and there were some 9000 

openings for road works in Tower Hamlets in 2009.

Because funding for major resurfacing is programmed to follow major developments, improvements cannot be timetabled to resolve priority sites eg Marsh Wall.

Annual Performance:  Data Not Available: TfL to Supply Summer/Autumn 2010

Annual Performance:    The change is not statistically significant. Levels of activity have continued to rise with, for example, record numbers attending the Council run Mela. One issue is that, as the borough has no 

theatres or concert halls, a lot of arts provision is through outdoor festivals and events and this may not be percieved in the same way as theatre attendance with regard to how the questions are put. 

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance:  The Council has improved from 47.78% in 2008/2009 to currently determining major applications this year at 57.35%. This shows a steady improvement, despite the difficult environment Tower 

Hamlets has when determining ‘major’ applications (we have more referable cases to the Mayor than any other London Borough - i.e. very, very large cases which, by their very nature, are difficult and time 

consuming to deal with). You will also note that the monthly performance figures for the last 3 months were 75% (Jan), 83.33% (Feb) and 57.14% (March) either above or close to the 60% Tower Hamlets and 

Government targets. The monthly outturns and year end result shows that Officers have continued to strive for the Government and TH targets.  With the current rate of improvement, the Development Control Team 

will continue with instructions that ‘major’ applications must be determined, where realistic, within the Government’s targets and rigorously enforce this to achieve the 65% target for next year.

Please also note that applications that sign up to Planning Performance Agreements (PPA's) are not counted in the NI157a figures unless the targets within PPA's are missed, in which case they are then counted in 

NI157a which can then have a negative impact on NI157a results. There is no steady flow of applications that the Council receives, some months and quarters will be higher than others. The DC team have strict 

deadlines in place for staff to ensure that they meet the 13 week turnaround time for applications.

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 2Page 168



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National170 Previously developed land that has been vacant or derelict for more than 5 

years

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal 0.76 NOT SET 0.86 NOT SET

National175 Access to services and facilities by public transport, walking and cycling

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture

a: 86

b: 88

c: 94

d: 82

e: 65

f: 92

NOT SET
[LATE - 

Sep]
NOT SET

National176 Working age people with access to employment by public transport (and other 

specified modes)

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 89.41 NOT SET LATE [Sept] NOT SET

National177 Local bus and light rail passenger journeys originating in the authority area

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: None

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture
Awaiting

Data
NOT SET LATE [Sept] NOT SET

National178a Bus services running on time - Percentage of non-frequent services on time

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture
Awaiting

Data
NOT SET LATE [Sept] NOT SET

National178b Bus services running on time - Excess waiting time of frequent services (number 

of minutes)

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture
Awaiting

Data
NOT SET LATE NOT SET

National182 Satisfaction of business with local authority regulation services - %

Measured in: % (% of business customers of regulatory services who respond 

that they have been treated fairly and /or the contact has been helpful. The term 

“regulatory services” corresponds to local authority core functions of trading 

standards, environmental health and licensing)

Good Performance: Higher

Bryan Jones

Communities, Localities 

& Culture

74 NOT SET 77 78 [P]

National185 CO2 reduction from local authority operations

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal

38,169

tonnes
3 [LATE - Jul] 7

National187a Tackling fuel poverty – % of people receiving income based benefits living in 

homes with a - low energy efficiency rating

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal 2.74 2.54 3.51 2.29 -38.20% RED

Annual Performance: Data Not Available: TfL to Supply Summer/Autumn 2010

Annual Performance: Data Not Available: TfL to Supply Summer/Autumn 2010

Annual Performance: Data Not Available: TfL to Supply Summer/Autumn 2010

Annual Performance:  NI182 is an  indication of satisfaction level of businesses that the Council's Environmental Health and Trading Standards services have dealings with. The 2009/10 performance shows a 3% 

increase from 2008/9. The survey carried out shows that 93% of non compliant and compliant business either strongly agree or agree that they have been dealt with fairly and have found the contact helpful*

Annual Performance: The outturn will not be available until July 2010.  This is due to the time required to collate and scrutinise the information sent by third parties.  This will be reported in line with DEFRA's deadline 

(July).

Annual Performance: There are no targets set for this PI however, the 2009/10 figure is higher than the 2008/09 figure because an additional site Blackwall Yard was added. The start date of this site is 23/10/2003. 

The figures reported by CLG differ from the TH data. It is possible that the LDA reported the borough's interim figures before all the sites had been verified. A number of sites had been excluded from the calculation 

as it was anticipated that construction would commence on site. However, because of the current economic climate this has not happened. Listed below are sites that were excluded form the calculations.

1. St Andrews Hospital (Construction was about to commence) 

2. 2 Millharbour

Annual Performance: Data Not Available: TfL to Supply Summer/Autumn 2010

a = core services

b = timetabled bus services

c = light rail and tram services

d = demand responsive transport

e = walking

f = cycling

Annual Performance: Data Not Available: TfL to Supply Summer/Autumn 2010

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 3Page 169



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National187b Tackling fuel poverty – % of people receiving income based benefits living in 

homes with a - high energy efficiency rating

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal 48.03 48.22 45.73 48.47 -5.20% RED

National188 Planning to Adapt to Climate Change

Measured in: Level

Good Performance: Higher

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal Level 0 Level 1 Level 0
Level 2 & 

Level 3
-100% RED

National189 Flood and coastal erosion risk management

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Bryan Jones

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 100 NOT SET 57 [P] 60 [P]

National191 Residual household waste per household

Measured in: Number (the number of kilograms of residual household waste 

collected per household)

Good Performance: Lower

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 543 487 450.07 439 [P] 7.60% GREEN

National193 Percentage of municipal waste land filled

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 83.3 79 62.03 74.00 [P] 21.10% GREEN

National194a Air quality – Annual % primary PM10 reduction emissions through local 

authority’s estate and operations

Measured in: % 

Good Performance: Lower

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal
2423 0.8 [LATE - Jul] 2

National194b Air quality – annual % NOx reduction emissions through local authority’s estate 

and operations

Measured in: % 

Good Performance: Lower

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal 82659 1.6 [LATE - Jul] 3.6

It is hoped that performance will be better next year as the decent homes programme gets fully underway and the £2M of cavity insulation works that is being carried out by THH which is due to complete by 2012. It is

also anticipated that as the economy strengthens the financial situations of households will improve, which will impact positively upon results.

It is also unlikely that we shall meet the previously set 2010/11 target of reaching Level 2 which requires a comprehensive risk assessment to take place. The guidelines state that ideally the LA should use existing 

processes for this which means working to Tower Hamlets usual risk assessment and Directorate/Team planning timeline which is likely to mean that the process will not be complete by the end of March 2011. It is 

more likely that Level 2 will be reached by Autumn 2011 with Level 3 being met on target by March 2012 and subsequently Level 4 on target by march 2013.

Annual Performance:    This indicator is about assessing the potential threats and opportunities across its estate and services (for example, flood and coastal resilience plans, emergency planning, community risk 

registers/strategies etc) and how the LA has identified and agreed the next steps to build on that assessment in a systematic and coordinated way. There was a breakdown in the understanding of this indicator by the 

contractor commissioned to undertake this work (the contractor, Scott Wilson blamed the brief given to them by London Councils). The Local Climate Impact Profile (LCLIP) is not complete because it was not 

monitored closely enough at an Officer level while it was being carried out during Nov/Dec 2009. Other Councils have also reported difficulties in meeting targets. 22 other boroughs assessed at level 0 and 3 did not 

submit a return. Performance will get back on track when the LCLIP is completed. The Council aims to start the Level 2 preparation by November 2010.

Annual Performance:    The number of households receiving income related benefits for which a SAP assessment has been carried out has increased by 4,111 (14.3%) from the end of 08/09 to 09/10. This is mainly 

due to the financial downturn we have been experiencing since the end of 2008. The downturn has lead to an increase in the number of households on income related benefits living in a property which has a SAP 

rating below 35 (fuel poverty). Therefore, although the intention was for a year on year reduction for NI187a, the impact of the economic downturn has seen increases in:

• Households receiving income related benefits

• Those living in a SAP rating of below 35 (picked up for the calculation of this PI via the UNO database)

• Thus, the outturn for 09/10 shows an increase in results when compared to last year (more than 10%) and the target for 09/10 has been missed by more than 10% 

Annual Performance:    The number of households receiving income related benefits for which a SAP assessment has been carried out has increased by 4,111 (14.3%) from the end of 08/09 to 09/10. The number 

of households on benefits and living in a property of SAP rating above 65 has also gone up by 1,222 (8.8%) increase. This is mainly due to the financial downturn we have been experiencing since the end of 2008. 

Therefore, although the intention was for a year on year increase for NI187b, the increase in the numerator and denominator figures have resulted in the target being missed by 4.78%. 

Tower Hamlet Homes are currently developing an Affordable Warmth Strategy, which will look at reducing fuel poverty amongst THH residents, the council is developing a borough wide Affordable Warmth Strategy 

and also work with the Primary Care Trust in reducing fuel poverty, especially amongst the vulnerable households, also the Private Sector Renewal Study will highlight and identify the inefficient dwellings in the 

private sector. All three strategies are scheduled to be complete this financial year (by March 2011).

Tower Hamlet Homes are currently developing an Affordable Warmth Strategy, which will look at reducing fuel poverty amongst THH residents, the council is developing a borough wide Affordable Warmth Strategy 

and also work with the Primary Care Trust in reducing fuel poverty, especially amongst the vulnerable households, also the Private Sector Renewal Study will highlight and identify the inefficient dwellings in the 

private sector. All three strategies are scheduled to be complete this financial year (by March 2011).

It is also hoped that performance will be better next year as the decent homes programme gets fully underway and the £2M of cavity insulation works that is being carried out by THH which is due to complete by 

2012. It is also anticipated that as the economy strengthens the financial situations of households will improve, which will impact positively upon results.

Annual Performance:    Provisional data has been provided based on the Self Assessment undertaken by LBTH. The Final Outturn will be confirmed by the Environmental Agency in the Summer 2010.

Annual Performance:    The difference between the 2008/09 and 2009/10 results 37.95% The increase in performance is due to the investment in additional services and the Borough-wide Recycle More Campaign, 

which was launched in October 2008. During 2009/10 the following additional services were introduced:

- Weekly mixed recycling, food and garden waste collection was introduced to 23,000 low rise properties.

- Increasing the amount of residual waste sent to additional treatment from 2,000 to 3,500 tonnes in September 2009. 

- Food waste collection service introduced to 108 schools within the Borough. 

- Continuation of additional sorting of bulky waste at Northumberland Reuse and Recycling Centre.

- Continuation of separation of recycling litter by litter pickers and Street Sweepers.

- Additional temporary staff within the Waste Management Team.

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 4Page 170



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National194c Air quality – total primary PM10 tonnes

Measured in: % 

Good Performance: Lower

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal
2423 2554.4 [LATE - Jul] 2523.5

National194d Air quality – total NOx tonnes

Measured in: % 

Good Performance: Lower

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal
82659 92037.5 [LATE - Jul] 90166.8

National196 Improved street and environmental cleanliness – fly tipping

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 4 3 1 1 [P] 66.70% GREEN

National197 Improved Local Biodiversity – proportion of Local Sites where positive 

conservation management has been or is being implemented

Measured in: % 

Good Performance: Higher

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 52 57 54 58 [P] -5.30% RED

National198 Children aged 5 - 16 years travelling to school - mode of transport usually used 

cars (including vans or taxis, even if the taxi is carrying more than one child)

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 11.3 11 11.8 [P] 10.5 [P] 7.27% RED

National199 Children and young people’s satisfaction with parks and play areas

Measured in: % 

Good Performance: Higher

Jamie Blake

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 49.3 49.8 56.9 58.5 [P] 14.30% GREEN

National013 Migrants’ English language skills and knowledge

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Heather Bonfield

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 53 56 N/A 59  

National057 Children and young people’s participation in high-quality PE and sport

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families N/A NOT SET 42.2 80   

National081 Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 3 qualification by the age of 19

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 6 7 1 6 85.70% GREEN

National082 Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the age of 19

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 6 N/A 72 72 MET GREEN

Annual Performance:  There has been considerable investment in the parks and play areas over the monitoring period. This has contributed to a significant rise in satisfaction amongst children in relation to these 

facilities which has exceeded the targets set. 

Annual Performance:    The outturn for this indicator is 53% and this applies to 2008/09.  The 53% (baseline) figure probably is quite low but this is because this was the first year that we put learners in our provision 

through ESOL exams. Previously we only ran unaccredited ESOL. We intend our percentage of those achieving a qualification to achieve dramatically over the next 2- 3 years.

 Annual Performance: The result of 'Very Effective' is a significant improvement in the fight against fly-tipping in the borough on the previous year. 

Annual Performance: These outturns will not be available until July 2010.  This is due to the time required to collate and scrutinise the information sent by third parties.  This will be reported in line with DEFRA's 

deadline (July).

Annual Performance:   The inequality gap at level 3 between those eligible for free school meals and those who are not has reduced to our lowest level of a 1%. This is a considerable improvement from a 6% gap 

reported last year. We will review our targets set for the next 3 years to reflect this achievement.

Annual Performance:    The outturn for 09/10 is 3% lower than the projected target as work has concentrated on developing more robust systems within Parks to measure and provide a more true reflection in 

respect of positive management. 

Annual Performance: Provisional data

Theme 3: A Prosperous Community

Annual Performance:    This is a new measure introduced in 2009/10 and explains why there is not a target. This measures participation in high quality PE and sport for 5 – 16 year olds and 5 to 19 year olds. Our 

performance for 5 to 16 year is slightly above the national average at 42.2% compared to 41%, however when this extends up to 19 years old the rate is 41% compared to 51% nationally.  Using 2009/10 as a 

baseline year we will set improvement targets for the borough.

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 5Page 171



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National082 Inequality gap in the achievement of a Level 2 qualification by the age of 19

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families

6 N/A 72 72 MET GREEN

National084 Achievement of 2 or more A*- C grades in Science GCSEs or equivalent

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 49.2 52 51.3 53 -1.30% RED

National085a Post-16 participation in physical sciences A Level Physics

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 31 40 38 50 -5% RED

National085b Post-16 participation in physical sciences A Level Chemistry

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 90 90 87 100 -3.30% RED

National085c Post-16 participation in physical sciences A Level Mathematics

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 104 110 137 120 24.50% GREEN

National086 Secondary schools judged as having good or outstanding standards of 

behaviour

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 80 100 80 100 -20.00% RED

National088 Percentage of schools providing access to extended services

Measured in: % (The percentage of all schools providing access to the full core 

offer of extended services - inc. study support, parenting & family support, 

referrals, community use, 8am-6pm childcare for primary).

Good Performance: Higher

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families 90 100 100 100 MET GREEN

National089a Reducing the number of failing schools - Reduction of number of schools 

judged as requiring special measures.

Measured in: Number (count of all eligible schools in special measures at the 

end of the summer term each year)

Good Performance: Lower

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 0 0 0 0 MET GREEN

National089b To raise school standards by the average time a school spends in failure.

Measured in: Months (average of time spent by schools in special measures, for 

those schools which have come out of special measures during the previous 

academic year)

Good Performance: Lower

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 0 0 0 0 MET GREEN

Annual Performance:    No schools are judged as requiring special measures so we met our target.

Annual Performance:    No schools are judged as requiring special measures.

Annual Performance:    The percentage of secondary schools judged as having good or outstanding standards of behaviour remained the same at 80%. Although this falls short of our target of 100% our 

performance has remained the same. We are better than the national result by 14 percentage points. 

Annual Performance:    Our target of 40 students participating in A level physics was narrowly missed with a result of 38, however this has increased from 31 in the previous year. We have several projects to improve 

pupil experience of science at key stage 3 and 4 which is aimed to encourage further participation post 16.  These are ‘Science Maximising Pupil Progress’ and ‘Triple Science’. Both projects involve continuing 

professional development for teachers, including non specialist teachers as well as a focus on improving teaching and learning. We have also organised A/A* workshops for the most able pupils.

Annual Performance:    Target achieved. 100% of schools in the borough are providing the full core offer.

Annual Performance:    87 pupils participated in A level chemistry this year compared to a target of 90, this also shows a reduction from 90 pupils who participated last year. We have several projects to improve pupil 

experience of science at key stage 3 and 4 which is aimed to encourage further participation post 16.  These are ‘Science Maximising Pupil Progress’ and ‘Triple Science’. Both projects involve continuing professiona

development for teachers, including non specialist teachers as well as a focus on improving teaching and learning. We have also organised A/A* workshops for the most able pupils.

Annual Performance:    We narrowly missed our target of 52% with a result of 51.3%.  We are continuing to work with teachers on a key element of the new science GCSE’s ‘ How Science Works’.  Science 

consultants are also working with teachers through INSET and the development of schemes of work and in class support. Another factor is appropriate courses for pupils and central training sessions are being 

delivered by exam boards. Literacy for science particularly for EAL learners is also being looked at with work ongoing between science consultants,  EMA and schools.

Annual Performance:    We are pleased to report a significant increase in post 16 students participating in A level mathematics.  Students increased from 104 last year to 137 this year and exceeded our target of 110.

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 6Page 172



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National090 Take up of 14-19 Learning Diplomas

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families
40 400 328 700 -18% RED  

National091 Participation of 17 year-olds in education or training

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families
80.5 81 86.6 83 6.90% GREEN  

National102a Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free school meals and their peers 

achieving the expected level at Key Stage 2

Measured in: % (% point gap between those pupils known to be eligible for free 

schools meals (FSM) achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS2 

and pupils not known to be eligible for FSM achieving the same outcome)

Good Performance: Lower

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families

Cllr A Asad 11.5 6.5 8.6 6 -32.30% RED

National103a Percentage of final statements of special education need issued within 26 

weeks excluding exception cases as a proportion of all such statements issued 

in the year.

Measured in: % (statements issued for the first time (not reassessments) within 

the financial year.  26 weeks starts when a request for assessment is received 

from a responsible body – parents, school or early years setting – or the date on 

which the authority issues a notice to parents)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families

98.3 100 100 100 MET GREEN

National103b Percentage of final statements of special education need issued within 26 

weeks as a proportion of all such statements issued in the year.

Measured in: % (statements issued for the first time (not reassessments) within 

the financial year.  26 weeks starts when a request for assessment is received 

from a responsible body – parents, school or early years setting – or the date on 

which the authority issues a notice to parents)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families

77.2 85 97 100 14.10% GREEN

National104 The Special Educational Needs (SEN)/non-SEN gap – achieving Key Stage 2 

English and Maths threshold

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 41.6 38.5 46.1 38.5 -19.70% RED

National105 The Special Educational Needs (SEN)/non-SEN gap – achieving 5 A*- C GCSE 

inc. English and Maths 

Measured in: % (% point gap between pupils who are identified as having 

special educational needs who achieve 5 A*-C GCSE grades or equivalent 

including English and Maths at KS4 and their peers i.e.. pupils who have not 

been identified as having SEN)

Good Performance: Lower

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families

33.3 34 36.5 33.5 -7.40% RED

National106 Young people from low income backgrounds progressing to higher education

Measured in: % 

Good Performance: Lower

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families

7 2 6 0 -200.00% RED  

National107ai Key Stage 2 attainment for; White - British

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 68.9 71 73 78 2.80% GREEN

National107ci

i
Key Stage 2 attainment for; Black - African Heritage

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families N/A 71 77 8.50% GREEN  

Annual Performance: In 09/10 financial year 328 young people have taken up Diploma courses in Tower Hamlets. The target of 400 was not met but 5 new lines were introduced in addition to the Information 

Technology line introduced in 2008.

Performance was off target because we didn’t recruit to Hair and Beauty and Environment and Land Based Studies lines. Performance reflects status of neighbouring boroughs and nationwide providers. Tower 

Hamlets is increasing its marketing campaign for 14-19 diplomas and will be providing additional taster sessions to young people to increase Diploma take-up next year.

Annual Performance: The achievement gap between children eligible for free school meals and those who are not at key stage 2 has further narrowed from 11.5% last year to 8.6% this year, and is better than the 

national achievement gap,  but unfortunately we did not meet our target of 6% this year. We are continuing to work with schools and school improvement advisors to focus our effects on reducing the gap and setting 

‘closing the gap’ targets with schools. We are working with other LA’S which have achieved accelerated progress in closing the achievement gap and identifying areas of best practice. Other programmes and 

interventions to support achievement include one to one tuition and progression of language structures to support Speaking and Listening across all subjects and implementation of PLLA to support vulnerable 

schools.

Annual Performance:    The final result is 46.1% for the Special Educational Needs (SEN)/non-SEN gap – achieving Key Stage 2 English and Maths threshold. The gap between SEN and non SEN achieving key 

stage 2 English and maths threshold has increased compared to last year and we have not met our target. There has been insufficient focus of the LA team on this indicator in terms of reducing the gap. 

We have briefed School Improvement Partners (SIPS) on the importance of closing the Special Education Need (SEN) gap. Schools are now setting targets on closing the SEN gap and submitting them to the Local 

Authority (LA). We are looking at best practice in other LAs where they are closing the gap quicker than we are - though they may still have a larger gap to close. We have also a range of other programmes and 

interventions in place to support this target including - A focus on the SENCo conference on narrowing the gap. 

Roll out of 1:1 Tuition Programme to all schools with a focus on closing the SEN gap

Implementation of the Priority Learning for Local Authority (PLLA) to support vulnerable schools with inconsistent results 

We expect that this enhanced focus on the SEN should yield greater improvement. 

We aim to meet the target in 2010

Annual Performance:    2009/10 outturn against this indicator was previously reported to Cabinet in November 09. 

 The final result for the Special Educational Needs (SEN)/non-SEN gap – achieving 5 A*- C GCSE inc. English and Maths is 36.5%. We have not met our target. SEN groups incorporate students with statements of 

educational need. There is continued analysis of progress measures and what works to enable the least able to attain. Targeted support is to be refined. Performance will continue to improve. Schools are working 

towards closing the gap year on year.

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 7Page 173



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National107bi

v
Key Stage 2 attainment for; Mixed - Any other Mixed Background

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 83.3 79 73 81 -7.60% RED

National107ei

I
Key Stage 2 attainment for; any other minority ethnic group

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 75.4 76 76 78 0% GREEN

National107ci Key Stage 2 attainment for; Mixed - White and Black Caribbean

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families N/A 79 69 80 12.70% RED

National107ci Key Stage 2 attainment for; Black - Caribbean Heritage

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 65.2 74 72 78 -2.70% RED

National107ci

iI
Key Stage 2 attainment for; Black - Other 

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 61.3 77 75 72 -2.60% RED

School Improvement Partners are also now required to comment on the attainment of ethnic and gender groups when judging standards, this will be used next term to inform the allocation of school support.  SIPS 

also ensure that particular groups are receiving the correct intervention strategies and broker support for this work.

School Improvement Partners are now required to comment on the attainment of ethnic and gender groups when judging their standards. This information can now be used next term to inform allocation of support. 

They also check that particular groups are getting the correct intervention strategies and broker support for this work.

The work of the EMA team is targeted at supporting underachieving groups, particularly new arrivals whose lack of English inhibits their capacity to succeed in tests. There is also a big emphasis in 8 primary schools 

and 5 secondary on training all teachers/teaching assistants to plan for language structures in all subjects as a support for the more advanced bilingual learner.

We aim to close the gap in performance for all pupil groups and schools. However, better-informed target setting will allow us to set targets that are realistic with some challenge added.  We intend to close the gap 

with national standards in secondary in 2011 and in primary we hope to get all schools in line with national standards in the same year. In order to do this we need to maintain the current levels of support.

Annual Performance:    The target was not met and a reduction in attainment in this ethnic group is noted compared to last year.  The DSCF target setting criteria requires a more fine grained approach to looking at 

the attainment of different ethnic groups. The targets are set when the pupils are in Year 5 and Year 10 and is based upon using prior attainment data from key stage 1 and 2 tests to project possible outcomes and 

targets. This has not been reliable approach as pupils come and go from school rolls at a higher rate than nationally and this skews the targets set and levels of achievement reported. The School Improvement 

Team work together to provide information about schools and report to the SMG.  The SMG allocate resources according to need and schools receive intensive, medium or light touch support.  This process has 

been effective as more schools have moved to being satisfactory and good. At present one third of our schools are receiving intensive support aimed at increasing standards next year.

The work of the EMA team is targeted at supporting underachieving groups, particularly new arrivals whose lack of English inhibits their capacity to succeed in tests. There is also a big emphasis in 8 primary schools 

and 5 secondary schools on training all teachers/teaching assistants to plan for language structures in all subjects as a support for the more advanced bilingual learner.

We aim to close the gap in performance for all pupil groups and schools. However, better-informed target setting will allow us to set targets that are realistic with some challenge added.

We intend to close the gap with national standards in secondary schools in 2011 and in primary schools we hope to get all schools in line with national standards in the same year. In order to do this we need to 

maintain the current levels of support.

The school improvement team comprised of School Improvement Partners, School Development Advisors, primary, secondary and EMA consultants work together in the School Improvement Framework to provide 

evidence on schools that is evaluated termly by SMG. Resources are allocated by this group according to need and then schools get intensive, medium or light touch support. The process clearly works as many 

primary and secondary schools have been supported to move from being unsatisfactory to satisfactory and good. At present we have about one third of our schools or secondary departments that continue to need 

intensive support and this is aimed at standards increasing next year. The TIG meetings monitor progress and the ISP project supports primary schools with results below the floor target to improve rapidly by 

concentrating on assessment and progress. Secondary consultants target most support for the five schools causing concern by working with senior and middle leaders.

School Improvement Partners are now required to comment on the attainment of ethnic and gender groups when judging their standards. This information can now be used next term to inform allocation of support. 

They also check that particular groups are getting the correct intervention strategies and broker support for this work.

The school improvement team comprised of SIPs, SDAs, primary, secondary and EMA consultants work together in the School Improvement Framework to provide evidence on schools that is evaluated termly by 

SMG. Resources are allocated by this group according to need and then schools get intensive, medium or light touch support. The process clearly works as many primary and secondary schools have been 

supported to move from being unsatisfactory to satisfactory and good. At present we have about one third of our schools or secondary departments that continue to need intensive support and this is aimed at 

standards increasing next year. The TIG meetings monitor progress and the ISP project supports primary schools with results below the floor target to improve rapidly by concentrating on assessment and progress. 

Secondary consultants target most support for the five schools causing concern by working with senior and middle leaders.

School Improvement Partners are now required to comment on the attainment of ethnic and gender groups when judging their standards. This information can now be used next term to inform allocation of support. 

They also check that particular groups are getting the correct intervention strategies and broker support for this work.

The work of the EMA team is targeted at supporting underachieving groups, particularly new arrivals whose lack of English inhibits their capacity to succeed in tests. There is also a big emphasis in 8 primary schools 

and 5 secondary on training all teachers/teaching assistants to plan for language structures in all subjects as a support for the more advanced bilingual learner.

We aim to close the gap in performance for all pupil groups and schools. However, better-informed target setting will allow us to set targets that are realistic with some challenge added. The LA intends to close the 

gap with national standards in secondary schools in 2011 and in primary schools we hope to get all schools in line with national standards in the same year. In order to do this we need to maintain the current levels of 

support.

The EMA team is also targeted at supporting underachieving groups, particularly new arrivals whose lack of English inhibits their capacity to succeed in tests.  There is also a significant emphasis in 8 primary schools 

and 5 secondary schools on training all teachers and assistants to plan for language structures in all subjects as a support for the more advanced bilingual learner.

Annual Performance: Key stage 2 attainment for ethnic group black Caribbean has improved from 65% last year to 72% this year and for black other from 61.3% last year to 75% this year.  This is encouraging 

however we did not meet the target. There are concerns about the  target setting method we have to use where targets are set when the pupils are in Year 5 and Year 10 and are based upon using prior attainment 

data from key stage 1 and 2 tests to project possible outcomes and targets. This has not been a reliable approach as pupils come and go from school rolls at a higher rate than nationally and this skews the targets 

set and levels of achievement reported.

Although data on ethnicity and gender is vital to identifying underachieving groups and supporting effective intervention strategies in schools, the school effect is also significant. Altogether the number of schools 

causing concern is reducing, but improvement cannot be secured in one year so there is a residual proportion of pupils who do not do as well as they should. 

The school improvement team comprised of SIPs, SDAs, primary, secondary and EMA consultants work together in the School Improvement Framework to provide evidence on schools that is evaluated termly by 

SMG. Resources are allocated by this group according to need and then schools get intensive, medium or light touch support. The process clearly works as many primary and secondary schools have been 

supported to move from being unsatisfactory to satisfactory and good. At present we have about one third of our schools or secondary departments that continue to need intensive support and this is aimed at 

standards increasing next year. The TIG meetings monitor progress and the ISP project supports primary schools with results below the floor target to improve rapidly by concentrating on assessment and progress. 

Secondary consultants target most support for the five schools causing concern by working with senior and middle leaders.

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 8Page 174



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National107di

ii
Key Stage 2 attainment for; Asian - Bangladeshi

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 73 79 72 81 -8.90% RED

National108ai Key Stage 4 attainment for; White - British

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 33 45 34 52 -24.40% RED

National108ai

v
Key Stage 4 attainment for; any other white background

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 4)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 30 49 38 49 -22.00% RED

National108Bi Key Stage 4 attainment for; mixed - White and Black Caribbean

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 4)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 34.4 52 43 49 -17.30% RED

National108ci Key Stage 4 attainment for; Black - Caribbean Heritage

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 4)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 35.3 48 40 49 -16.70% RED

National108ci

i
Key Stage 4 attainment for; Black - African Heritage

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 37.2 47 45 N/A -4.30% RED

National108C

III
Key Stage 4 attainment for; Black - other

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 46.5 52 41 52 21.10% RED

National108di

ii
Key Stage 4 attainment for; Asian - Bangladeshi

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Diana Warne

Children, Schools & 

Families 42.8 52 46 52 -11.50% RED

National108ei Key Stage 4 attainment for; Chinese

Measured in: % (percentage point gap between pupils in each ethnic group and 

all pupils, in achieving at least Level 4 in English and Maths at KS 2)

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 60.7 NOT SET 70 N/A  

National109 Delivery of Sure Start Children’s Centres

Measured in: Yes/No 

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families
88 NOT SET 100 100   

National114 Rate of permanent exclusions from school

Measured in: % (number of permanent exclusions from school in the academic 

year expressed as a percentage of the school population)

Good Performance: Lower

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 0.1 0.1 0.06 0.1 40% GREEN

National127 Self reported experience of social care users 

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Deborah Cohen

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing
N/A NOT SET 56.6 NOT SET   

The school improvement team comprised of SIPs, SDAs, primary, secondary and EMA consultants work together in the School Improvement Framework to provide evidence on schools that is evaluated termly by 

SMG. Resources are allocated by this group according to need and then schools get intensive, medium or light touch support. The process clearly works as many primary and secondary schools have been 

supported to move from being unsatisfactory to satisfactory and good. At present we have about one third of our schools or secondary departments that continue to need intensive support and this is aimed at 

standards increasing next year. The TIG meetings monitor progress and the ISP project supports primary schools with results below the floor target to improve rapidly by concentrating on assessment and progress. 

Secondary consultants target most support for the five schools causing concern by working with senior and middle leaders.  School Improvement Partners are now required to comment on the attainment of ethnic 

and gender groups when judging their standards. This information can now be used next term to inform allocation of support. They also check that particular groups are getting the correct intervention strategies and 

broker support for this work.

The work of the EMA team is targeted at supporting underachieving groups, particularly new arrivals whose lack of English inhibits their capacity to succeed in tests. There is also a big emphasis in 8 primary schools 

and 5 secondary on training all teachers/teaching assistants to plan for language structures in all subjects as a support for the more advanced bilingual learner.

We aim to close the gap in performance for all pupil groups and schools. However, better-informed target setting will allow us to set targets that are realistic with some challenge added.

We intend to close the gap with national standards in secondary schools in 2011 and in primary schools we hope to get all schools in line with national standards in the same year. In order to do this we need to 

maintain the current levels of support.

Annual Performance:    With the exception of the ethnic group White British, which has stayed the same, attainment at level 4 has improved on last year for all other ethnic groups. The White British ethnic group does 

however have the lowest target of groups at 45% and the lowest achievement levels compared to other groups in the borough.  There is intensive support by consultants to underachieving schools and universal 

support to all schools targeting improvement of White British progress. All schools using intervention strategies are supported by English and Maths consultants who assist departmental Heads to analyse attainment 

data and identify year 11 targeted pupils.

Annual Performance:    We achieved our target improved upon last year in reducing the rate of permanent exclusions from school.

24 permanent exclusions from Tower Hamlets Schools in academic year 2008/9 (financial year 2009/10). This represents a percentage 0.06 per thousand of the maintained school population (37,561) as at Jan 

2009. We have met our target

Annual Performance:    There has been a slight reduction in key stage 2 attainment for Asian Bangladeshi compared to last year down from 73% to 72.3% and the target of 79% was not met. The School 

Improvement Team work together to provide information about schools and report to the SMG.  The SMG allocate resources according to need and schools receive intensive, medium or light touch support.  This 

process has been effective as more schools have moved to being satisfactory and good. At present one third of our schools are receiving intensive support aimed at increasing standards next year.  School 

Improvement Partners are also now required to comment on the attainment of ethnic and gender groups when judging standards, this will be used next term to inform the allocation of school support.  SIPsS also 

ensure that particular groups are receiving the correct intervention strategies and broker support for this work.  The EMA team is also targeted at supporting underachieving groups, particularly new arrivals whose 

lack of English inhibits their capacity to succeed in tests.  There is also a significant emphasis in 8 primary schools and 5 secondary schools on training all teachers and assistants to plan for language structures in all 

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 9Page 175



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National148 Care leavers in education, employment or training

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families
76.9 70 82.9 72.5 18.40% GREEN  

National161 Number of Level 1 qualifications in literacy (including ESOL) achieved

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Higher

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families
1059 611

[LATE - 

Jun]
635   

National162 Number of Entry Level qualifications in numeracy achieved

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Higher

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families
242 278 [LATE - Jul] 284   

National163 Proportion of population aged 19-64 for males and 19-59 for females qualified 

to at least Level 2 or higher 

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families 62.4 59.1
[LATE - 

Aug]
59.5   

National164 Proportion of population aged 19-64 for males and 19-59 for females qualified 

to at least Level 3 or higher

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families 48.1 44.2
[LATE - 

Aug]
44.5   

National165 Proportion of population aged 19-64 for males and 19-59 for females qualified 

to at least Level 4 or higher

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families 37.2 28.4
[LATE - 

Aug]
28.6   

National166 Median earnings of employees in the area

Measured in: £

Good Performance: Higher

Nick Smales

Development & 

Renewal 811.7 828.3 831.6 831.6 0.40% GREEN

National171 New business registration rate

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Higher

Nick Smales

Development & 

Renewal 124.6 124.6 117.5 91.8 -5.70% RED

National172 Percentage of small businesses in an area showing employment growth 

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Nick Smales

Development & 

Renewal N/A 13.9 15.7 13.61 12.90% GREEN  

National173 Flows on to incapacity benefits from employment

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Nick Smales

Development & 

Renewal
N/A 8.5 [LATE] 8.4   

National174 Skills gaps in the current workforce reported by employers

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Nick Smales

Development & 

Renewal N/A 13.3 17.8 N/A -33.80% RED  

Annual Performance:  [HUB update] The DWP have reported that due to complications associated with the collection of the data which records the flows from work to incapacity benefits, the data for this indicator is 

not available.  There is currently no indication of when this data will become available.

Annual Performance:    The National Skills Survey is commissioned by the London Skills Council on a bi annual basis. The 2009 survey has reported an increase in of 4.5% between 2007 and 2009. As this survey is 

commissioned externally and the raw data is not available, it is difficult to say what the exact skills gaps reported by employers were. There can be various reasons for this development for example a labour market 

with potential employees not fully trained to enter the job. It could also be possible that companies have been reducing in house training over the last two years to reduce costs. 

The 14- 19 Partnership is focused on ensuring that young people have qualifications that count, aptitudes and behaviours that employers value and the skills and resources to plan and manage their personal route to 

success.

Annual Performance:    The national indicator 161 is an Adult indicator and following the abolition of the LSC it is now the responsibility of the Skills Funding Agency. We expect the result to be available in July, on the 

usual annual schedule.

Annual Performance:    Target currently not met. However this is caused by a current revision of the data provided by BIS. As part of this process, the target should have been revised too. But we were unable to 

change the 09/10 target as this was set and agreed as part of the 09/10 directorate planning process. 

Annual Performance:    Results available June 2010.

Annual Performance:    09/10 result will be available in August 2010. The result is published by DCSF.

Annual Performance:    The national indicator 161 is an Adult indicator and following the abolition of the LSC it is now the responsibility of the Skills Funding Agency. We expect the result to be available in July, on the 

usual annual schedule.

Annual Performance:    09/10 result will be available in August 2010. The result is published by DCSF.

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 10Page 176



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National017 Perceptions of anti-social behaviour

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 45.9 N/A N/A 44
PLACE

SURVEY

National020 Number of ‘Assaults with less serious injury’ (including racially and religiously 

aggravated) offences per 1,000 population as a proxy for alcohol related violent 

offences

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Culture & 

Localities 8.65 8.56 8.61 8.52 -0.60% RED

National022 Perceptions of parents taking responsibility for the behaviour of their children in 

the area

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Andy Bamber

Communities, Culture & 

Localities 19.6 N/A N/A 21.6
PLACE

SURVEY

National023 Perceptions that people in the area treat one another with respect and 

consideration

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Culture & 

Localities 50.4 N/A N/A 48.5
PLACE

SURVEY

National026 Specialist support to victims of a serious sexual offence

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Andy Bamber

Communities, Culture & 

Localities
N/A NOT SET [LATE] NOT SET   

National027 Understanding of local concerns about anti-social behaviour and crime issues 

by the local council and police

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Andy Bamber

Communities, Culture & 

Localities 25.7 N/A N/A 27.7
PLACE

SURVEY

National028 Number of serious violent knife crimes per 1,000 population

Measured in: Number (includes threats and attempts in addition to actual 

stabbings)

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Culture & 

Localities 2.23 2.12 1.95 1.92 8.00% GREEN

National029 Number of gun crimes per 1,000 population

Measured in: Number (includes where the victim is convinced of the presence of 

a firearm, even if it is concealed)

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Culture & 

Localities 0.22 0.21 0.41 0.40 [P] -95.20% RED

National030 The change in convictions for Prolific and other Priority Offenders (PPOs) over a 

12 month period

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Culture & 

Localities 2.4 119 [LATE - Sep] NOT SET   

Tower Hamlets Education Business Partnership is running a range of programmes, collectively called Employability Skill Development, which are delivered into all 15 Secondary Schools in the borough. The schools 

and the Partnership recruit business volunteers to help 14 to 19 year olds of all abilities develop their employability and business skills and give them firsthand experience and knowledge of the wide range of careers 

available to them in the local economy. The anticipated output of this scheme is that 4650 young people will work with business volunteers from City and Canary Wharf companies over 18 months, 4000 in 2009/10 

and 650 in 2010/11. This is funded by £150,000 of WNF, and the scheme is also leveraging an additional £200,000 from the private sector.

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance:    Increase of 25 offences over the year, up from 65 offences on previous year. This has been impacted of definition changes relating to counting of offences to include use of imitation weapons, 

such as BB guns as threat or intimated when committing (Provisional)

Annual Performance: The Home Office will continue piloting this during 2010/11.  We are awaiting the result of the pilot excise like all other boroughs.

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance:   Whilst we improved against last year's outturn, it was disappointing to have just missed the target. Enhanced work in 3 key areas related to youth violence addressed via the use of partnership 

Problem solving policing reduced the youth violence increase by 50% by the end of the year. Level of assaults was a key driver to establish the Town Centre Team.

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Theme 4: A Safe and Supportive Community

The accredited Passport to Employability Programme is a structured framework that allows 14 to 19 year olds to assess their employability skill development needs online and then guides them through a range of 

employability skill development initiatives, leading to a formal employability skill qualification that is equivalent to a GCSE. It is run by Tower Hamlets 14 to 19 Education Improvement Partnership (The Hub). 

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 11Page 177



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National032 Repeat incidents of domestic violence

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Culture & 

Localities N/A 30 26 30 13.30% GREEN  

National034 Number of domestic homicides per 1,000 population

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Culture & 

Localities 0.01 0 0.01 0 NOT MET RED

National036 Reducing the vulnerability of crowded places from terrorist attack

Measured in: Level

Good Performance: Higher

Andy Bamber

Communities, Localities 

& Culture

N/A 5 [LATE] 5   

National037 Awareness of civil protection arrangements in the local area

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Bryan Jones

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 12.8 N/A N/A N/A
PLACE

SURVEY

National038 Drugs related (Class A) offending rate

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Localities 

& Culture

N/A NOT SET [LATE - Sep] NOT SET   

National039 Rate of Hospital Admissions per 100,000 for Alcohol Related Harm

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Localities 

& Culture

N/A 1850 [LATE - Jun] 1800   

National041 Perceptions of drunk or rowdy behaviour as a problem

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 47.2 N/A N/A 43.2
PLACE

SURVEY

National043 Young people within the Youth Justice System receiving a conviction in court 

who are sentenced to custody

Measured in: % (The proportionate use of custody is the percentage of custodial 

sentences issued to young people (aged 10-17) out of all convictions received 

by young people in court . Age is measured at the time of arrest.)

Good Performance: Lower

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families
9.1 4.9 5.2 4.8 -6.10% RED

National044a Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth Justice System disposals - White

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families -5.8 0 -5.8 0 EXCEEDED GREEN

Annual Performance: We are awaiting from Counter-Terrorism Security Advisers (CTSAs) to re-evaluative and feed back to us. They alone are able to assess the initial vulnerability and they alone are able to re-

evaluate how our work has impacted on the reduction of that initial vulnerability.   The CTSAs sit outside of any Boroughs control.  We are currently enquiring when the outturn for this indicator will be available.

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance: Probation Service tend to release data late.

Annual Performance:    There has been a slight increase in the number of domestic violence murders in 2009/10 compared to 2008/09 (2 in 08/09 and 4 in 09/10). Initial reviews of these cases are currently being 

undertaken to ascertain which local agencies if any were aware of these cases. The key multi-agency arrangement in place for managing risk in domestic violence cases is the MARAC. Following a recent visit by 

CAADA, Tower Hamlets MARAC was reviewed as operating well and in line with national best practice. However, a majority of the murders recorded this year have involved murders of parents by children indicating 

that work is needed to improve understanding and awareness of violence between family members and to link better with adult protection procedures. The Government has recently published interim guidance on 

conducting domestic homicide reviews. Tower Hamlets will be looking to implement this guidance for cases recorded this year to ensure that lessons are being learned locally.

Annual Performance: Year end data expected end September 2010.  The outturn for Quarter 2 is 41.

Annual Performance:    The target was based on national projection - the indicator has required changes in working practices which are now embedded and the direction of travel is as anticipated. Our Safety 

Planning Panel has been operating to national standards for MARAC since April 2009. 

This is therefore the first year that NI32 performance has been recorded. Our target has been to bring our performance on this indicator in line with mature MARACs (i.e. those MARACs that are well established and 

seen as best practice models nationally). Mature MARACs currently have a repeat victimisation rate of between 30 and 35%. Although our average performance for the year has been below this target, performance 

has increased significantly since the first quarter of the year and it is thought we are performing well compared to other MARACs across the country.

Annual Performance: Outturn requested from PCT

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance:    Although we narrowly missed our target of 4.9%, there have been significant improvements compared to last year with a reduction in the number of young people in youth justice system who 

are sentenced to custody from 9.1% to 5.4%. There were 28 custodial sentences this year compared to 45 last year, representing 5.4% of all court disposals. Offenders receive custodial sentences due to 3 main 

factors 1) seriousness of offence 2) significant risk to the public 3) history of repeat offending.  The Youth Offending Teams run preventative and diversionary interventions and presents to the court robust community 

based alternatives to custodial sentences commensurate with the seriousness of the offence.  However there are occasions when the seriousness of the offences where a court will rule out any other option than 

custody, and occasions where our own assessment is concurrent with that of the court and where custody is the most appropriate option.

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 12Page 178



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National044b Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth Justice System disposals - Mixed

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families 6.3 6 2.5 5.5 58.30% GREEN

National044c Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth Justice System disposals - Asian

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families 0.5 0 -0.3 0 EXCEEDED GREEN

National044d Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth Justice System disposals - Black

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families 4.4 4 5.1 3.5 -27.50% RED

National044e Ethnic composition of offenders on Youth Justice System disposals - 

Chinese/Other

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families -1.5 0 -1.6 0 EXCEEDED GREEN

National045 Young offenders’ engagement in suitable education, training and employment

Measured in: % (the proportion of young offenders who are actively engaged in 

education, training or employment (at least 25 hours), and for those above 

statutory school age at least 16 hours)

Good Performance: Higher

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families 80.8 90 83.2 90 -7.60% RED

National046 Young Offenders’ access to suitable accommodation

Measured in: % (measures the proportion of known young offenders who have 

access to suitable accommodation as defined according to the Children 

(Leaving Care) (England) Regulations 2001)

Good Performance: Higher

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families 97.2 95 97.8 95 2.90% GREEN

National048 Children killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents

Measured in: % (% change in number of children killed or seriously injured 

during the calendar year compared to the previous year)

Good Performance: Higher

Jamie Blake

Children, Schools & 

Families -16.6 8.4 -10.8 .- 9.7 [P] -228.60% RED

National049a Total number of primary fires per 100,000 population - primary fires and related 

fatalities and non-fatal casualties (excluding precautionary checks).

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 263.8 263.2 251.6 258 4.40% GREEN

National049b Total number of fatalities due to primary fires per 100,000 population - primary 

fires and related fatalities and non-fatal casualties (excluding precautionary 

checks).

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 1.4 0 0.91 0 NOT MET RED

Annual Performance:    3 young people of Other ethnicity offended in 2009/10. This was 0.7% of an estimated Other 10 - 17 year old population of 456. The estimated Other percentage of the total 10 - 17 year old 

youth population of Tower Hamlets was 2.4%. The disproportion is therefore -1.6%. We have met the target of 0% or less.

There is not a constant pattern of disproportionality in the youth justice system. The YOS has previously set up a multi-agency Race Audit Action Group to investigate instances of disproportionality in the Youth Justice

System and this group has implemented recommendations for local partner agencies. The YOS has also produced a more recent analysis of disproportionality, based on annual data collected for the Youth Justice 

Plan. The YJB now produces the data on an annual basis.

Annual Performance:    Of the 273 young people completing eligible interventions with the YOT in 2009/10, 227 were engaged in the required amount of Education, Training or Employment (ETE) at the end of their 

orders. This was 83.2% of the total, against a target of 90%. This is the best performance since 2006/07 when the Counting Rules for this indicator were changed by the Youth Justice Board. The YOT provides a 

comprehensive ETE support service to each young offender. The YOT works in partnership with schools, colleges, Connexions, New Start and local training providers to provide a service which addresses the unique 

needs of each individual. Young people who do not engage in the required amount of ETE are those with the most challenging personal circumstances and are usually deeply disaffected from mainstream 

opportunities.

Annual Performance:    45 young people of Black ethnicity offended in 2009/10. This was 11.1% of an estimated Black 10 - 17 year old population of 1,139. The estimated Black percentage of the total 10 - 17 year 

old youth population of Tower Hamlets was 5.9%. The disproportion is therefore 5.1%.

There is not a constant pattern of disproportionality in the youth justice system. The YOS has previously set up a multi-agency Race Audit Action Group to investigate instances of disproportionality in the Youth Justice

System and this group has produced recommendations for local partner agencies. The YOS has also produced a more recent analysis of disproportionality, based on annual data collected for the Youth Justice Plan. 

The YJB now produces the data on an annual basis.

Annual Performance:    96 young people of White ethnicity offended in 2009/10. This was 23.6% of an estimated White 10 - 17 year old population of 5,645. The estimated White percentage of the total 10 - 17 year 

old youth population of Tower Hamlets was 29.4%. The disproportion is therefore -5.8%, and the target has been achieved.

Annual Performance:    26 young people of Mixed ethnicity offended in 2009/10. This was 6.4% of an estimated Mixed 10 - 17 year old population of 740. The estimated Mixed percentage of the total 10 - 17 year old 

youth population of Tower Hamlets was 3.9%. The disproportion is therefore 2.5%. We have met our target of 6% disproportional.

There is not a constant pattern of disproportionality in the youth justice system. The YOS has previously set up a multi-agency Race Audit Action Group to investigate instances of disproportionality in the Youth Justice

System and this group has produced recommendations for local partner agencies. The YOS has also produced a more recent analysis of disproportionality, based on annual data collected for the Youth Justice Plan. 

The YJB now produces the data on an annual basis.

Annual Performance:    In 2009/10, 97.8% of young people were in suitable accommodation at the end of their orders. We have met the target of 95%.

Annual Performance: There were 12 KSIs reported for 2009 and this remains consistent with 2008. This figure remains low even though the challenging target of 7KSI for 2009 had been set. The KSIs continue to be 

prone to random fluctuation in their locations.

Annual Performance:    237 young people of Asian ethnicity offended in 2009/10. This was 58.2% of an estimated Asian 10 - 17 year old population of 11,230. The estimated Asian percentage of the total 10 - 17 year 

old youth population of Tower Hamlets was 58.5%. The disproportion is therefore -0.3%. We have met the target of 0% or less.

There is not a constant pattern of disproportionality in the youth justice system. The YOS has previously set up a multi-agency Race Audit Action Group to investigate instances of disproportionality in the Youth Justice

System and this group has implemented recommendations for local partner agencies. The YOS has also produced a more recent analysis of disproportionality, based on annual data collected for the Youth Justice 

Plan. The YJB now produces the data on an annual basis.

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 13Page 179



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National049c Total number of non-fatal casualties per 100,000 population - primary fires and 

related fatalities and non-fatal casualties (excluding precautionary checks).

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Andy Bamber

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 11.1 16.4 11.39 16 30.50% GREEN

National050 Emotional health of children

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Higher

Susan Acland-Hood

Children, Schools & 

Families 61.8 61.5 52.6 62.5 -14.50% RED

National051 Effectiveness of child and adolescent mental health (CAMHS) services

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Susan Acland-Hood

Children, Schools & 

Families 16 16 16 16 MET GREEN

National054 Services for disabled children 

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families N/A NOT SET 61 N/A   

National058 Emotional and behavioural health of looked after children

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families

13 N/A [LATE - Aug] N/A   

National060 Percentage of core assessments for children’s social care that were carried out 

within 35 working days of their commencement

Measured in: % (% of core assessments (in depth) that were completed within 

35 working days of their commencement)

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families 57.28 80 [LATE - Aug] 86   

National061 Timeliness of placements of looked after children for adoption following an 

agency decision that the child should be placed for adoption

Measured in: % (% of looked after children adopted during the year who were 

placed for adoption within 12 months of the decision that they should be placed 

for adoption, and who remained in that placement on adoption. )

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families
73.91 76.41 [LATE - Aug] 78.91   

National062 Stability of placements of looked after children: number of placements

Measured in: % (% of children looked after at 31 March with three or more 

placements during the year.)

Good Performance: Lower

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families 10.43 10.75 [LATE - Aug] 10.25   

National063 Stability of placements of looked after children: length of placement

Measured in: % (% of looked after children aged under 16 at 31 March who had 

been looked after continuously for at least 2.5 years who were living in the same 

placement for at least 2 years, or are placed for adoption and their adoptive 

placement together with their previous placement together last for at least 2 

years.)

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families

65.14 64.75 [LATE - Aug] 68.75   

Annual Performance:    Results will be available in Aug 2010. This is because for the results of this PI, we are reliant on getting back completed questionnaires from carers by the end of the financial year and then it 

is processed by the Social Care and Data & Stats team by May yearly.

Annual Performance:    The final outturn will not be available until the end of Aug, in-line with current DCSF reporting requirement (CIN census and the SSDA903).

Annual Performance:    In Tower Hamlets we had no results for 2008/09 as we did not monitor as a local target. In 2009 the Tower Hamlets results is 61. This result is the same as the England result. No targets 

were set for this performance Indicator.

The overall scores for England in 2009/10 is 61 with a base of 31,466, compared to the results in 2008/09 which was 59 with a base of 12.226.

The results for all the Local Authorities range between 57 and 68.

From the Statistical Neighbours results, the highest result is Camden with 62, followed by Tower Hamlets, Manchester, Hackney and Barking and Dagenham at 61. Islington at 59, Hammersmith at 58 and 

Birmingham at 57.

Annual Performance:    This is the result of the CAMHS annual self assessment exercise where CAMHS have scored top marks. This is an interim measure and will be replaced by new national indicator in 2010. 

The self assessment poses a set of questions for CAMHS services. Affirmative responses to these questions in terms of whether a particular service is provided will yield the highest marks and all services referred to 

in the assessment exercise were provided by CAMHS therefore resulting in the high mark. 

Annual Performance:    This represent 35% improvement on last year's outturn, accepting that we missed our stretch target 

Annual Performance:    The final outturn will not be available until the end of Aug, in-line with current DCSF reporting requirement (CIN census and the SSDA903).

Annual Performance:    The final outturn will not be available until the end of Aug in-line with current DCSF reporting requirement (CIN census and the SSDA903).

Annual Performance:    It is disappointing that our results this year show a reduction from 61.8% to 52.6%, although reductions are also reported across London and nationally. Analysis of the answers to the 

questions from which this results is derived appears to show lower levels of young people who feel they are able to talk to their parents when they are worried about something compared to nationally and lower than 

national and statistical neighbour averages for young people reporting they have one or more good friends. Further analysis is to be undertaken with Psychology Services and Be Healthy Group to consider universal 

programmes to target emotional health through the TAMHS programme for example. 

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 14Page 180



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National064 Child Protection Plans lasting 2 years or more

Measured in: % (% ceasing to be the subject of a Child Protection Plan (CPP) 

during the year ending 31 March, who had been the subject of a CPP 

continuously for two years or longer.)

Good Performance: Lower

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families 12.87 13 [JUNE - Aug] 13   

National066 Looked after children cases which were reviewed within required timescales

Measured in: % (% of children looked after cases which should have been 

reviewed during the year ending 31 March that were reviewed on time during the

year.)

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families 99.07 98 [LATE - Aug] 98   

National067 Percentage of child protection cases which were reviewed within required 

timescales

Measured in: % (within 6 months)

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families
99.54 100 [LATE - Aug] 100   

National068 Percentage of referrals to children’s social care going on to initial assessment

Measured in: (The percentage of children referred to children’s social services 

departments whose cases go on to initial assessments)

Good Performance: None 

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families
74.9 74 [LATE - Aug] 70   

National069 Children who have experienced bullying

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families 43.1 39.1 28 37.4 28.40% GREEN

National070 Reduce emergency hospital admissions caused by unintentional and deliberate 

injuries to children and young people

Measured in: Number (number of finished in-year emergency admissions per 

10,000 population of children and young people)

Good Performance: Lower

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families 114.55 N/A 116.18 N/A   

National071 Children who have run away from home/care

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families
6 10 9 15 10% GREEN  

National111 Number of first time entrants to the Youth Justice System aged 10-17 (per 

100,000)

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Mary Durkin

Children, Schools & 

Families
2050 2128 [LATE - Nov] NOT SET   

National115 Substance misuse by young people

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Susan Acland-Hood

Children, Schools & 

Families 4.3 4.1 7 3.8 -70.70% RED

Annual Performance:    The final outturn will not be available until the end of Aug in-line with current DCSF reporting requirement (CIN census and the SSDA903).

Annual Performance:    The final outturn will not be available until the end of Aug in-line with current DCSF reporting requirement (CIN census and the SSDA903).

Annual Performance:    The Tellus 4 Survey shows an increase in the percentage of substance misuse.  This includes drugs, alcohol and other volatile substances and is defined as use of drugs or any other volatile 

substance in the last 4 weeks, or where they have either been drunk at least once in the last 4 weeks. The result is lower than the national average which is 10% but is an increase compared to last year where this 

was 4.3%.  This may be a result of young people being more open in the survey or may indeed reflect increased misuse.  We have recently completed a Alcohol and Young People Needs Assessment and will be 

using this to inform our response to these results and provide a basis for further action. 

Annual Performance:    The final outturn will not be available until the end of Aug in-line with current DCSF reporting requirement (CIN census and the SSDA903).

Annual Performance:    28% of young people in Tower Hamlets reported that they have experienced bullying as part of this National Indicator. There is little significance between LBTH and our Statistical Neighbours 

or the National average.  This indicator is made up of a number of questions on the experiences of young people and bullying. When asked if they had ever been bullied, 41% of pupils said that they had. Although 

higher than our statistical neighbour, this was not significantly and we are below that of the national average. Based on these pupils 33% said they had been bullied in the last year (compared to 26% nationally and 

39% statistical neighbours). 84% of young said that they had not been bullied outside school (including on your journey to school) 5ppt higher than the national average. 

Annual Performance:    The final outturn will not be available until the end of Aug in-line with current DCSF reporting requirement (CIN census and the SSDA903).

Annual Performance:    The reporting cycle for this indicator means that 2009/10 data will not be available until November 2010. However results obtained in November 2009 for the 2008/09 year shows a reduction 

in the number of first time entrants to the youth justice system which puts the borough on track to meet its 5% reduction target in 2009/10.

The rate of First Time Entrants per 100,000 of the Tower Hamlets 10 - 17 year old population in 2008/09 was 2050. We have exceeded our target of reducing the rate to 2195. The Youth Offending Service (YOS) is 

on target to meet the 2009/10 target of a 5% reduction compared to the 2007/08 baseline.

The actual number of First Time Entrants in Tower Hamlets in 2008/09 was 374 (2007/08 = 415).

Annual Performance:    The final outturn will not be available until the end of Aug in-line with current DCSF reporting requirement (CIN census and the SSDA903).

The Survey also asked pupils how well their school dealt with bullying. We have seen a significant improvement (21ppt) in the percentage of pupils that said that their school is dealing with bullying “Very well or “Quite

well”. However, the percentage of pupils that said the school was doing “Quite well” is significantly lower than our comparable authorities. The number of pupils that feel that bullying is not a problem in their school 

has also declined since Tellus3 (7ppt)

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 15Page 181



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National118 Take up of formal childcare by low-income working families

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Anne Canning

Children, Schools & 

Families
6.94 9 [LATE - Jul] 10   

National119 Self-reported measure of people’s overall health and wellbeing

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

John Roog

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 78.8 N/A N/A NOT SET
PLACE

SURVEY

National125 Achieving independence for older people through rehabilitation/intermediate 

care

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

John Roog

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing
91.4 NOT SET 86.6 NOT SET  `

National126 Early Access for Women to Maternity Services

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Esther Trenchard-

Mabere

Primary Care Trust
62.43 70 76.03 88.54 8.60% GREEN  

National128 User reported measure of respect and dignity in their treatment 

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Katharine Marks

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing
N/A NOT SET 81.7 NOT SET   

National132 Timeliness of social care assessment (all adults)

Measured in: % (Acceptable waiting times for assessments: For new clients 

(aged 18+), the percentage from where the time from first contact to completion 

of assessment is less than or equal to four weeks)

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Taylor

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing
86.5 90 88.7 92 -1.40% RED

National133 Timeliness of social care packages following assessment

Measured in: % (% for whom the time from completion of assessment to 

provision of all services in the care package is less than or equal to 4 weeks)

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Taylor

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 97 97 93 98 4.10% RED

National136 People supported to live independently through social services (all adults)

Measured in: Number (Adults and older people helped to live at home at 31 

March and those receiving grant funded services during a sample week)

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Taylor

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 2646.1 NOT SET 2559.18 NOT SET  

National139 The extent to which older people receive the support they need to live 

independently at home

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Taylor

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 23.3 N/A N/A NOT SET
PLACE

SURVEY

National140 Fair treatment by local services

Measured in: % (Place Survey indicator)

Good Performance: higher

Frances Jones / Hafsha 

Ali

Chief Executive's 61.7 N/A N/A N/A
PLACE

SURVEY

National141 Percentage of vulnerable people achieving independent living

Measured in: % (number of service users who have moved on from supported 

accommodation in a planned way to independent living divided by total number 

of service users who have moved on)

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Taylor

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 61.4 68 78.4 71 15.30% GREEN

Annual Performance:    We have exceeded the target this year and have made further improvement by 13.6 percentage points from last year’s result (62.43%).

PCT have applied the Department of Health 'proxy' method (which appears to be more consistent for scoring in line with NI 126) i.e. (no of women assessed < 12wks 6days) / (total no of women assessed within 

quarter) gives: 76.03% for the year. 

Annual Performance:    Results will be published during the last week of July in 2010.

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance: We are currently waiting for data from the PCT which informs our performance on this indicator. This indicator is derived from data submitted as part of the ASC-CAR statutory return to the NHS 

IC on May 26th 2010. 

Annual Performance: comments requested

Annual Performance: comments requested

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

Annual Performance: This Place Survey indicator reports on a bi-annual basis - next due 2010/11

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 16Page 182



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National142 Percentage of vulnerable people who are supported to maintain independent 

living

Measured in: % (proportion of people who are supported to establish and 

maintain independent living)

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Taylor

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 98.9 99 99.7 99 -0.70% RED

National143 Offenders under probation supervision living in settled and suitable 

accommodation at the end of their order or licence

Measured in: % (number of offenders in settled and suitable accommodation at 

the end of their order or licence divided by number of offenders who terminate 

their licence or order and are subject to a termination assessment (during the 

year).

Good Performance: Higher

Andy Bamber

Communities, Localities 

& Culture

65.2 70 85 70 21.40% GREEN

National144 Offenders under probation supervision in employment at the end of their order 

or licence

Measured in: % (number of offenders in employment at the end of their order or 

licence divided by the total number of offenders who terminate their licence or 

order and are subject to a termination assessment (during the year). 

Good Performance: Higher

Andy Bamber

Communities, Localities 

& Culture
32.5 40 39 43 -2.50% RED

National145 Adults with learning disabilities in settled accommodation

Measured in: % (number of adult learning disabled clients known to CASSRs in 

settled accommodation in their usual accommodation at the time of their 

assessment or latest review divided by total number) 

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Taylor

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 77.4 NOT SET 50 NOT SET   

National147 Care leavers in suitable accommodation

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Lincoln

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing

92.3 90 100 92 11.10% GREEN  

National149 Adults receiving secondary mental health services in settled accommodation

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Katharine Marks

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 39 NOT SET 85.1 NOT SET  

National183 Impact of local authority trading standards services on the fair trading 

environment

Measured in: % ( number of primary complaints of unfair trading practices 

recorded by Consumer Direct against businesses in each Local Authority)

Good Performance: Lower

Bryan Jones

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 0.47 NOT SET 0.19 N/A   

National184 Food establishments in the area which are broadly compliant with food hygiene

Measured in: % (number of food establishments within the local authority area 

deemed to be ‘Broadly Compliant’ divided by the total number of food 

establishments)

Good Performance: Higher

Bryan Jones

Communities, Localities 

& Culture 74 79 81.23 81 [P] 2.80% GREEN

National190 Achievement in meeting standards for the control system for animal health.

Measured in: Level

Good Performance: n/a

Bryan Jones

Communities, Localities 

& Culture N/A NOT SET 1.0 [P] 1.3 [P]   

National052a Take up of school lunches - Primary schools

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Kate Bingham

Children, Schools & 

Families
64.47 68 64.9 70 -4.60% RED  

National052b Take up of school lunches - Secondary schools

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Kate Bingham

Children, Schools & 

Families

48.7 50 51 52 2% RED  

Annual Performance:    Throughout London Probation each team, in each borough, has been meeting once a week to look at performance and concentrating on areas of weakness i.e. missing information on our 

database system. This missing information has had an effect on our performance. Concentrating on these areas, has proved effective, and has shown a much better performance for Tower Hamlets (provisional).

Annual Performance:    A slight drop in performance for this financial year and this can be contributed to the recession. Although in 2010, we saw an increase in employment in January and February at 36%. March 

was 38%, with end of year result of 39%. This is positive imrovement given current economic conditions. 

Annual Performance: Performance is reported as part of a detailed statutory process of year end reporting to the Department of Health, which takes place on 26 May.  Final validation of our performance will be 

provided by the DH Information Centre in July.   Provisional outturn performance will be available in early June.

Annual Performance:    This indicator judges how the Trading Standards deals with the referrals it receives from the national consumer help lines Consumer Direct. The indicator judges how problem traders are 

bought into compliance. Examples for 2009/10 included a range of investigations into a range of web traders under the Enterprise Act 2002 including 3 Light goods vehicle training web sites and an International base 

web trader,  referrals to Ofcom in relation to misleading advertising tariffs (International phone card business) and working with traders to improve their commitment to consumers eg the correction of misleading 

statements and  terms and conditions international.*

Annual Performance: Our broadly compliant number of food premises increased last year due to an increase in the number of re-inspections undertaken compared to 08/09, from 469 to 500 and a refocus of our 

inspection time on failing businesses. 

We also closed 17 premises last year compared to 08/09 (13) and sought wider publicity for this activity. This may have contributed to the increase of broadly compliant food premises and the corresponding 

decrease in complaints relating to pest infestations, down to 59 from 88, food poisoning down to 79 from 104.

Annual Performance: DEFRA have not yet released their assessment guidance and therefore the outturn reported is provisional.

Theme 5 - A Healthy Community

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 17Page 183



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National052c Take up of school lunches - Special schools

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Kate Bingham

Children, Schools & 

Families

71.3 72 71.1 73 -1.30% RED  

National053a Percentage of infants being breastfed at 6-8 weeks

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Esther Trenchard-

Mabere

Primary Care Trust

62.80 70.00 71.94 72.00 2.80 GREEN  

National053b Percentage of infants for whom breastfeeding status is recorded

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Susan Acland-Hood

Children, Schools & 

Families

87.20 90.00 97.26 95.00 8.10 GREEN  

National055d Percentage of children in Reception with height and weight recorded who are 

obese.

Measured in: % (total number recorded as obese divided by total number of 

children)

Good Performance: Lower

Esther Trenchard-

Mabere

Primary Care Trust

Cllr A Ali
13.75 15.20 13.50 15.4 11.20% GREEN

National059 Percentage of initial assessments for children’s social care carried out within 7 

working days of referral

Measured in: % (number of initial assessments completed, in the period 

between 1 April and 31 March, within seven working days of referral divided by 

overall of initial assessments completed in the period in same period)

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Lincoln

Children, Schools & 

Families
63.55 85.00 [LATE - Jun] 90.00   

National102b Achievement gap between pupils eligible for free school meals and their peers 

achieving the expected level at Key Stage 4

Measured in: % (The percentage point gap between pupils known to be eligible 

for FSM achieving 5A*-C grades at GCSE (and equivalent) inc English and 

mathematics, at KS4 and pupils ineligible for FSM achieving the same outcome)

Good Performance: Lower

Carmel Littleton

Children, Schools & 

Families

5.9 7.5 11.2 7.0 -49.30% RED

National113a Percentage of the resident population aged 15-24 accepting tests/screen for 

Chlamydia

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Esther Trenchard-

Mabere

Primary Care Trust 20.8 25.0 29.5 35.0 18% GREEN  

National113b Number of positive diagnosis for Chlamydia in the resident population aged 15-

24 (prevalence)

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Lower

Esther Trenchard-

Mabere

Primary Care Trust 21.3 NOT SET 20.3 NOT SET  

National121 Mortality rate from all circulatory diseases at ages under 75

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Alwen Williams

Primary Care Trust 126.75 113.01 [LATE - Jul] 108.3   

National122 Mortality rate from all cancers at ages under 75

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Alwen Williams

Primary Care Trust 139.35 130.11 [LATE - Jul] 127.3   

National124 People with a long-term condition supported to be independent and in control of 

their condition

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Alwen Williams

Primary Care Trust
51 NOT SET [LATE] NOT SET   

Annual Performance:    This indicator measures the prevalence of breast-feeding at 6-8 weeks from birth (breastfeeding prevalence). PCT provide quarterly updates and year to date figures. 

We have met the target of 70% for breastfeeding in 09/10. At the end of Quarter 4 the actual breastfeeding prevalence rate was 71.03% and the Quarter 4 year to date prevalence was 71.94%.

Annual Performance:    This indicator measures the prevalence of breast-feeding at 6-8 weeks from birth (breastfeeding coverage). According to Audit Commission for sufficient confidence to be placed on the 

figures, coverage should be at least 85% and ideally 95% or more. PCT provide quarterly updates and year to date figures. 

We have met the target of 90% for breastfeeding coverage in 09/10. At the end of Quarter 4 the actual breastfeeding coverage rate was 96.91% and the Quarter 4 year to date coverage rate was 97.26%.

Annual Performance:  This indicator, along with the other mortality indicators, are subject to the results of inquests, and therefore the 2009/10 outturn will be available as provisional in July and will be nationally 

published in October 2010.

Annual Performance:    The final outturn will not be available until the end of June, in-line with current DCSF reporting requirement (CIN census and the SSDA903).

Annual Performance:    The final result is 11.2%.The achievement gap FSM eligible pupils and non FSM pupils for key stage 4 achievement has increased since last year and we have not met target. School 

Improvement Partners are conducting an in depth review and analysis to further understand the reasons for this and associated barriers to learning. Schools are identifying vulnerable groups sooner and are focussed

upon providing earlier intervention.

Annual Performance: Results will confirmed in June 2010 and will be provided by NHS Tower Hamlets.

Annual Performance:  This indicator, along with the other mortality indicators, are subject to the results of inquests, and therefore the 2009/10 outturn will be available as provisional in July and will be nationally 

published in October 2010.

Annual Performance: Data requested from PCT.

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 18Page 184



APPENDIX 4

PI Ref No PI Description Responsible Officer & 

Directorate

Outturn

2008/09

Target

2009/10

Actual

2009/10

Target

2010/11

Variance

(comparing

actual to 

target)

Traffic Light

(Red/Green)

Direction of Travel 

(comparing actuals 

08/09 and 09/10)

National129 End of life care – access to appropriate care enabling people to be able to 

choose to die at home

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Alwen Williams

Primary Care Trust
19.49 19 19.59 20 3.10% GREEN

National130a Social care clients receiving Self Directed Support per 100,000 population 

Measured in: % (Self-directed support means that people are able to design the 

support or care arrangements that best suit their specific needs

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Taylor

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing 6.60 10.00 10.70 30.00 7.00% GREEN

National131 Delayed transfers of care

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Alwen Williams

Primary Care Trust
2.97 15 6.5 [P] 15 56.70% GREEN

National134 The number of emergency bed days per head of weighted population

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Alwen Williams

Primary Care Trust
92,447 119,648 103,561 118,691 13.44% GREEN

National137 Healthy life expectancy at age 65

Measured in: %

Good Performance: Higher

Helen Taylor

Adults, Health & 

Wellbeing
11.4 NOT SET [LATE] NOT SET   

National156 Number of households living in temporary accommodation

Measured in: Number

Good Performance: Lower

Jackie Odunoye

Development & 

Renewal 2,423 1,743 1,899 1700 -9% RED

Annual Performance: Data requested from PCT.

Annual Performance:    Homeless preventions have increased resulting in fewer applications being made whilst we have continued to re-house existing homeless applicants at a similar rate which has resulted in a 

decrease greater than 10% from last years result.

Although the 1743 target for 09/10 has been missed by 8.95%, a month on month, year on year reduction can be seen in the number of households living in temporary accommodation. It is anticipated that with 

increased homelessness prevention work and by re-housing homeless households more quickly, a further reduction will be made to meet the 10/11 target of 1700.

Annual Performance: This data is provisional and subject to validation. 

M:\Strategy and Performance\PERFORMANCE&INFORMATION\MONITORING (THI)\2009-10\9 - ANNUAL REPORT (YR END)\Reports\Cabinet\APPENDIX 4 - Priority Indicators - CAB - V1.xls 19Page 185



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

£
'0

0
0

 L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/1

0
 

(b
e
fo

re
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
) 

  
  
  
 

£
'0

0
0

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  

£
'0

0
0

R
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
  
  
  
  
 

£
'0

0
0

R
e
v
is

e
d

 

d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

8
9
,5

4
7

9
2
,0

3
1

9
1
,7

1
2

-3
1
9

3
0
1

-1
8

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

'S
1
0
,8

7
1

1
7
,3

4
0

1
6
,9

6
3

-3
7
7

5
6
0

1
8
3

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 A
N

D
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S
9
6
,7

9
5

1
0
1
,6

1
7

1
0
2
,5

3
1

9
1
4

-6
8
4

2
3
0

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 A

N
D

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E
7
4
,4

9
9

7
7
,5

9
4

7
5
,6

8
3

-1
,9

1
1

1
,5

0
4

-4
0
7

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 A

N
D

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L
1
7
,7

0
2

1
4
,6

7
8

1
5
,0

7
2

3
9
4

-2
5
4

1
4
0

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
1
5
,9

0
4

1
4
,8

3
9

1
5
,6

9
1

8
5
2

-4
3
4

4
1
8

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 /
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

1
4
,1

7
4

1
9
,1

3
6

1
7
,2

7
7

-1
,8

5
9

1
,2

7
1

-5
8
8

T
O

T
A

L
3
1
9
,4

9
2

3
3
7
,2

3
5

3
3
4
,9

2
9

-2
,3

0
6

2
,2

6
4

-4
2

S
T

R
E

E
T

 T
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
0

0
-8

8
-8

8
0

-8
8

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 C
O

N
T

R
O

L
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

0
0

9
9

9
9

0
9
9

A
R

E
A

 B
A

S
E

D
 G

R
A

N
T

-1
9
,0

5
5

-3
3
,1

6
6

-3
3
,1

6
6

0
0

0

O
T

H
E

R
 C

E
N

T
R

A
L

 F
U

N
D

S
-2

,5
1
0

-6
,1

4
2

-6
,1

4
2

0
0

0

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

2
9
7
,9

2
7

2
9
7
,9

2
7

2
9
5
,6

3
2

-2
,2

9
5

2
,2

6
4

-3
1

N
E

T
 E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

Page 186



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

 L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/1

0
 

(b
e
fo

re
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
) 

  
  

  
 

£
'0

0
0

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  

£
'0

0
0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 m

a
jo

r 
v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

£
1
0
0
k

R
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
  

  
  

  
 

£
'0

0
0

R
e
v
is

e
d

 

d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
8
2

1
7
6

1
6
2

-1
4

-1
4

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

  
A

0
2
  

D
iv

is
io

n
a
l 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 A
d

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

1
8
2

1
7
6

1
6
2

-1
4

0
-1

4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
2

8
2

6
4

-1
8

-1
8

In
c
o
m

e
-8

2
-8

2
-6

4
1
8

1
8

  
A

0
4
  

P
re

v
e
n

ta
ti

v
e
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

1
9

1
,0

7
9

1
,2

0
8

1
2
9

1
2
9

In
c
o
m

e
-4

1
0

-1
7
3

-1
7
3

-1
7
3

  
A

0
5
  

C
a
re

rs
 P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

1
,0

7
8

1
,0

7
9

1
,0

3
5

-4
4

0
-4

4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

2
5

2
,1

0
0

2
,0

4
5

-5
5

-5
5

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
A

0
9
  

E
ld

e
rs

 A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
&

 C
a
re

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
2
,1

2
5

2
,1

0
0

2
,0

4
5

-5
5

0
-5

5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1
2

1
1
0

6
9

-4
1

-4
1

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
A

1
1
  

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 S

u
b

 D
iv

is
io

n
1
1
2

1
1
0

6
9

-4
1

0
-4

1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

9
0

1
,1

7
7

1
,1

3
9

-3
8

-3
8

In
c
o
m

e
0

-5
2

-4
5

7
7

  
A

1
2
  

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
1
,0

9
0

1
,1

2
5

1
,0

9
4

-3
1

0
-3

1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
1

9
0

6
6

-2
4

-2
4

In
c
o
m

e
-3

5
-3

5
-3

5
0

0
  

A
1
3
  

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 S

u
b

 D
iv

is
io

n
5
6

5
5

3
1

-2
4

0
-2

4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
9
8

7
9
0

8
7
0

8
0

8
0

In
c
o
m

e
-7

9
-7

9
-9

5
-1

6
-1

6
  

A
1
4
  

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
7
1
9

7
1
1

7
7
5

6
4

0
6
4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,8

9
0

1
,8

5
0

1
,8

6
9

1
9

1
9

In
c
o
m

e
-4

-4
-1

8
-1

4
-1

4
  

A
1
5
  

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

T
h

e
ra

p
y

1
,8

8
6

1
,8

4
6

1
,8

5
1

5
0

5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
0
8

1
,0

7
9

1
,0

4
1

-3
8

-3
8

In
c
o
m

e
0

-1
6
0

-1
1
8

4
2

4
2

  
A

1
6
  

O
c
c
u

p
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

T
h

e
ra

p
y
 -

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
9
0
8

9
1
9

9
2
3

4
0

4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
8
9

4
3
7

4
8
2

4
5

4
5

In
c
o
m

e
-1

2
7

-1
2
7

-1
3
0

-3
-3

  
A

1
7
  

H
IV

 D
ru

g
s
 A

lc
o

h
o

l
3
6
2

3
1
0

3
5
2

4
2

0
4
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,3

6
6

1
,3

4
8

1
,4

4
3

9
5

9
5

In
c
o
m

e
0

-4
5

-4
5

-4
5

  
A

1
8
  

H
o

s
p

it
a
l 

S
o

c
ia

l 
W

o
rk

 T
e
a
m

s
1
,3

6
6

1
,3

4
8

1
,3

9
8

5
0

0
5
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
0
7

3
7
7

3
9
4

1
7

1
7

In
c
o
m

e
0

-1
7
0

-1
7
0

0
0

  
A

1
9
 V

u
ln

e
ra

b
le

 A
d

u
lt

s
2
0
7

2
0
7

2
2
4

1
7

0
1
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
1
7

2
7
0

2
5
5

-1
5

-1
5

In
c
o
m

e
-1

2
3

-1
2
3

-1
2
5

-2
-2

  
A

2
3
  

M
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 S

u
b

 D
iv

is
io

n
 M

&
A

1
9
4

1
4
7

1
3
0

-1
7

0
-1

7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,2

9
9

3
,3

7
9

3
,3

5
5

-2
4

-2
4

In
c
o
m

e
-4

8
3

-5
9
3

-5
1
7

7
6

7
6

  
A

2
4
  

A
re

a
 M

e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 T

e
a
m

s
2
,8

1
6

2
,7

8
6

2
,8

3
8

5
2

0
5
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
9
8

5
2
6

4
7
5

-5
1

-5
1

In
c
o
m

e
-3

4
-3

4
-2

5
9

9

 

A
D

U
L

T
S

, 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 &

 W
E

L
L

B
E

IN
G

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

 

Page 187



  
A

2
5
  

M
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

4
6
4

4
9
2

4
5
0

-4
2

0
-4

2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
3

1
0
3

8
8

-1
5

-1
5

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

  
A

3
0
  

A
d

u
lt

 R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 S

u
b

 D
iv

is
io

n
 

1
0
3

1
0
3

8
8

-1
5

0
-1

5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
9
1

5
8
1

6
1
6

3
5

3
5

In
c
o
m

e
-1

-1
-3

-2
-2

  
A

3
1
  

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 

6
9
0

5
8
0

6
1
3

3
3

0
3
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
6
3

4
6
0

4
7
7

1
7

1
7

In
c
o
m

e
-5

-5
-4

1
1

  
A

3
2
  

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 D

a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e

4
5
8

4
5
5

4
7
3

1
8

0
1
8

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,6

9
1

1
,6

8
7

1
,7

0
6

1
9

1
9

In
c
o
m

e
-4

4
-3

7
-4

5
-8

-8
  

A
3
3
  

E
ld

e
rs

 D
a
y
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

1
,6

4
7

1
,6

5
0

1
,6

6
1

1
1

0
1
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,6

4
9

7
,5

8
7

7
,9

3
9

3
5
2

3
5
2

In
c
o
m

e
0

-3
8
0

-3
8
0

0
0

  
A

3
4
  

H
o

m
e
 C

a
re

6
,6

4
9

7
,2

0
7

7
,5

5
9

3
5
2

0
3
5
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
5
7

2
5
4

3
0
7

5
3

5
3

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
A

3
7
  

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 D

u
ty

 T
e
a
m

2
5
7

2
5
4

3
0
7

5
3

0
5
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
6
8

1
6
9

1
7
8

9
9

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
A

3
8
  

O
ld

e
r 

P
e
o

p
le

 A
n

d
 H

o
m

e
le

s
s
n

e
s
s
 D

iv
is

io
n

1
6
8

1
6
9

1
7
8

9
0

9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
2
1

8
6
4

8
5
9

-5
-5

In
c
o
m

e
-1

7
8

-5
1
3

-5
0
6

7
7

  
A

4
1
  

P
e
rs

o
n

a
li

s
a
ti

o
n

3
4
3

3
5
1

3
5
3

2
0

2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
4
,4

2
8

2
5
,7

2
9

2
5
,9

4
9

2
2
0

3
0
1

5
2
1

In
c
o
m

e
-3

,3
4
3

-3
,9

4
0

-4
,1

4
5

-2
0
5

-2
0
5

  
A

4
2
  

E
ld

e
rs

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
2
1
,0

8
5

2
1
,7

8
9

2
1
,8

0
4

1
5

3
0
1

3
1
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
3
,0

8
5

2
4
,1

8
9

2
3
,9

0
6

-2
8
3

-2
8
3

In
c
o
m

e
-3

,6
0
9

-3
,8

2
1

-3
,9

6
7

-1
4
6

-1
4
6

  
A

4
3
  

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
1
9
,4

7
6

2
0
,3

6
8

1
9
,9

3
9

-4
2
9

0
-4

2
9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
,0

5
9

1
0
,2

9
1

1
0
,3

7
4

8
3

8
3

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,6
1
7

-1
,5

1
3

-1
,9

9
0

-4
7
7

-4
7
7

  
A

4
4
  

M
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
8
,4

4
2

8
,7

7
8

8
,3

8
4

-3
9
4

0
-3

9
4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
,3

4
6

7
,6

9
3

7
,8

5
1

1
5
8

1
5
8

In
c
o
m

e
-9

3
3

-1
,2

8
3

-1
,5

4
8

-2
6
5

-2
6
5

  
A

4
5
  

P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 

D
is

a
b

il
it

ie
s
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
6
,4

1
3

6
,4

1
0

6
,3

0
3

-1
0
7

0
-1

0
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6
0

2
6
0

1
8
9

-7
1

-7
1

In
c
o
m

e
-1

5
1

-1
5
1

-1
0
0

5
1

5
1

  
A

4
6
  

H
IV

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
1
0
9

1
0
9

8
9

-2
0

0
-2

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
7
,5

8
4

3
7
,6

2
9

3
7
,7

4
3

1
1
4

0
1
1
4

In
c
o
m

e
-3

6
,5

3
8

-3
6
,6

8
5

-3
6
,6

2
3

6
2

0
6
2

  
A

4
9
  

H
o

m
e
le

s
s
 &

 H
o

u
s
in

g
 A

d
v
ic

e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,0

4
6

9
4
4

1
,1

2
0

1
7
6

0
1
7
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
6
,9

4
5

1
6
,9

4
5

1
6
,1

7
9

-7
6
6

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
re

d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 m

a
in

 S
P

 

p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 d

e
la

ys
 i
n
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
ts

 a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

d
e
c
o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
a
s
 w

e
ll 

a
s
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

o
s
ts

 

o
f 
o
n
-o

ff
 b

id
s
.

-7
6
6

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
s
 m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t
o
 o

v
e
r 

e
s
ti
m

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 H

o
m

e
C

a
re

 c
o
s
ts

.T
h
e
re

 a
re

 p
ro

b
le

m
s
 w

it
h
 t
h
e
 

d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 w

h
ic

h
 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
je

c
t 
th

e
 s

p
e
n
d
 a

t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

e
n
d
, 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r 

m
a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
a
c
ti
o
n
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 t
a
k
e
n
 t
o
 l
o
o
k
 a

t 
th

e
 

c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 s

ys
te

m
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 n

e
w

 d
a
ta

b
a
s
e
 

s
ys

te
m

 w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0

 A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 

H
e
a
lt
h
 t
o
w

a
rd

s
 J

o
in

t 
p
a
c
k
a
g
e
s
 o

f 
c
a
re

T
h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
  
m

a
in

ly
 d

u
e
 t
o
  
th

e
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 

tr
e
a
tm

e
n
t 
o
f 
G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
re

q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 

to
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 

T
h
e
 m

a
rg

in
a
l 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 g

ro
s
s
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

n
 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 e

m
p
lo

ye
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
p
a
rt

ly
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 o

n
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y 

a
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
 

fo
r 

b
a
d
 d

e
b
ts

.

A
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
, 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 i
n
tr

o
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 

re
a
b
le

m
e
n
t 
p
ilo

t 
h
a
v
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

. 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g
ra

n
t 
h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 p

a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
. 
M

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
is

 c
o
n
tr

o
lli

n
g
 t
h
e
 r

e
fe

rr
a
ls

 t
o
 t
h
e
 I
n
 

H
o
u
s
e
 H

o
m

e
c
a
re

 T
e
a
m

 a
n
d
 i
s
 c

o
n
tr

o
lli

n
g
 t
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
lo

s
e
ly

. 

A
 d

o
w

n
w

a
rd

 t
re

n
d
 i
n
 a

c
tv

it
y 

is
 n

o
w

 e
v
id

e
n
t.

M
a
rg

in
a
l 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 m

e
t 
b
y 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
.

Page 188



In
c
o
m

e
-1

6
,8

0
6

-1
6
,8

0
6

-1
6
,0

4
0

7
6
6

7
6
6

  
A

5
0
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

1
3
9

1
3
9

1
3
9

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
7
3

1
7
3

1
9
4

2
1

2
1

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
A

5
3
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 D
iv

is
io

n
 M

&
A

1
7
3

1
7
3

1
9
4

2
1

0
2
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
1
7

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

1
1

0
0

0
  

A
5
4
  

P
o

li
c
y
 a

n
d

 P
la

n
n

in
g

4
0
6

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
9
2

4
2
2

4
4
1

1
9

1
9

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
  

A
5
5
  

Q
u

a
li

ty
 a

n
d

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

3
9
2

4
2
2

4
4
1

1
9

0
1
9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
8
8

3
8
8

3
7
9

-9
-9

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
  

A
5
6
  

A
d

u
lt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 I

T
3
8
8

3
8
8

3
7
9

-9
0

-9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
9
0

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
-7

2
0

0
0

  
A

5
7
  

S
tr

a
te

g
ic

 P
ro

je
c
ts

3
1
8

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
5
9

5
6
7

5
9
7

3
0

3
0

In
c
o
m

e
-2

7
-1

-1
5

-1
4

-1
4

  
A

5
8
  

T
e
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

5
3
2

5
6
6

5
8
2

1
6

0
1
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
7
2

6
0
4

6
3
6

3
2

3
2

In
c
o
m

e
-1

-1
-1

  
A

5
9
  

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

5
7
2

6
0
4

6
3
5

3
1

0
3
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

7
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0

  
A

6
0
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
7

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
9
0

9
1
7

2
7

2
7

In
c
o
m

e
-3

8
9

-4
2
6

-3
7

-3
7

  
A

6
1
  

B
u

s
 S

u
p

p
 &

 P
ro

g
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
0

5
0
1

4
9
1

-1
0

0
-1

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
8
0

4
9
4

1
4

1
4

In
c
o
m

e
-1

1
1

-1
3
2

-2
1

-2
1

  
A

6
2
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 P
o

li
c
y

0
3
6
9

3
6
2

-7
0

-7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
8
7

5
8
7

7
3
8

1
5
1

1
5
1

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

  
A

6
6
  

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 a
n

d
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
5
8
7

5
8
7

7
3
8

1
5
1

0
1
5
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
6

2
6

1
0

-1
6

-1
6

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
  

A
6
8
  

S
u

p
p

o
rt

e
d

 E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t
2
6

2
6

1
0

-1
6

0
-1

6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,1

3
2

1
,1

9
6

1
,1

5
4

-4
2

-4
2

In
c
o
m

e
-9

-3
9

-3
1

8
8

  
A

7
1
  

F
in

a
n

c
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,1

2
3

1
,1

5
7

1
,1

2
3

-3
4

0
-3

4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
6
1

0
0

0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
  

A
7
2
  

B
u

d
g

e
t 

S
h

o
rt

fa
ll

 C
o

n
ti

n
g

e
n

c
y

1
6
1

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,2

7
2

4
,3

0
9

4
,3

7
0

6
1

6
1

In
c
o
m

e
0

0

  
A

9
0
  

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 H

o
ld

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

t
4
,2

7
2

4
,3

0
9

4
,3

7
0

6
1

0
6
1

  
A

d
u

lt
s
' 
H

e
a
lt

h
 &

 W
e
ll

b
e
in

g
 T

o
ta

l
8
9
,5

4
7

9
1
,8

1
9

9
1
,7

1
2

-1
0
7

3
0
1

1
9
4

A
n

c
h

o
ra

g
e
 H

o
u

s
e
 r

e
c
h

a
rg

e
s

0
2
1
2

0
-2

1
2

0
-2

1
2

R
e
v
is

e
d

 t
o

ta
l

8
9
,5

4
7

9
2
,0

3
1

9
1
,7

1
2

-3
1
9

3
0
1

-1
8

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
tr

a
in

in
g
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
o
 b

e
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y 
A

H
W

B
 a

t 
ye

a
r 

e
n
d
.

T
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 i
s
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
re

la
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

s
lip

p
a
g
e
 i
n
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

. 
T

h
e
 G

ra
n
t 
is

 r
in

g
fe

n
c
e
d
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 b

e
 

u
ti
lis

e
d
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
-1

1
.

Page 189



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

 L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/1

0
 

(b
e
fo

re
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
) 

  
  

  
 

£
'0

0
0

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  

£
'0

0
0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 m

a
jo

r 
v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

£
1
0
0
k

R
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
  

  
  

  
 

£
'0

0
0

R
e
v
is

e
d

 

d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,3

4
4

3
,3

2
6

3
,4

8
7

1
6
1

1
6
1

In
c
o
m

e
-3

,3
4
4

-3
,9

2
5

-3
,6

7
0

2
5
5

2
5
5

C
1
4
 C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
 

0
-5

9
9

-1
8
3

4
1
6

0
4
1
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
6
4

6
5
8

7
3
7

7
9

7
9

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
-1

2
6

-1
2
6

-1
2
6

C
1
6
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 &

 P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

6
6
4

6
5
8

6
1
1

-4
7

0
-4

7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
5
,9

5
6

5
,7

1
7

-2
3
9

4
9
9

2
6
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

-5
0

-1
9
7

-1
4
7

-1
4
7

C
1
8
 T

h
ir

d
 S

e
c
to

r 
te

a
m

0
5
,9

0
6

5
,5

2
0

-3
8
6

4
9
9

1
1
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,9

4
3

3
,9

2
2

4
,2

2
9

3
0
7

3
0
7

In
c
o
m

e
-3

,6
4
9

-3
,3

0
8

-3
,5

9
2

-2
8
4

-2
8
4

C
5
2
 L

e
g

a
l 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
9
4

6
1
4

6
3
7

2
3

0
2
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,3

3
8

1
,8

9
9

2
,1

5
3

2
5
4

1
1

2
6
5

In
c
o
m

e
-5

5
6

-1
3
5

-5
5
7

-4
2
2

-4
2
2

C
5
4
 S

c
ru

ti
n

y
 &

 E
q

u
a
li

ti
e
s
 

1
,7

8
2

1
,7

6
4

1
,5

9
6

-1
6
8

1
1

-1
5
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,0

6
3

1
,0

6
4

8
9
5

-1
6
9

5
0

-1
1
9

In
c
o
m

e
-3

9
3

-3
9
3

-5
6
1

-1
6
8

-1
6
8

C
5
6
 R

e
g

is
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
B

ir
th

s
, 

D
e
a
th

s
 

6
7
0

6
7
1

3
3
4

-3
3
7

5
0

-2
8
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
0
5

6
0
8

7
5
7

1
4
9

1
4
9

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
-1

3
7

-1
3
7

-1
3
7

C
5
8
 E

le
c
to

ra
l 

R
e
g

is
ta

ti
o

n
 

6
0
5

6
0
8

6
2
0

1
2

0
1
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
0

3
0

4
1

1
1

1
1

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

C
6
0
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 E

le
c
ti

o
n

s
 

3
0

3
0

4
1

1
1

0
1
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,7

4
1

2
,7

4
1

2
,9

4
9

2
0
8

2
0
8

In
c
o
m

e
-2

6
3

-2
6
3

-2
6
6

-3
-3

C
6
2
 D

e
m

o
c
ra

ti
c
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

2
,4

7
8

2
,4

7
8

2
,6

8
3

2
0
5

0
2
0
5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
3
0

9
2
0

8
6
1

-5
9

-5
9

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
0

C
7
8
 D

e
m

o
 R

e
p

re
s
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 &
 M

g
t 

8
3
0

9
2
0

8
6
1

-5
9

0
-5

9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
,0

4
1

4
,4

5
3

4
,3

7
0

-8
3

-8
3

In
c
o
m

e
-5

2
3

-1
6
3

-1
2
7

3
6

3
6

C
8
0
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
3
,5

1
8

4
,2

9
0

4
,2

4
3

-4
7

0
-4

7

C
h

ie
f 

E
x
e
c
u

ti
v
e
's

 T
o

ta
l

1
0
,8

7
1

1
7
,3

4
0

1
6
,9

6
3

-3
7
7

5
6
0

1
8
3

E
x
tr

a
 a

d
m

in
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 w
a
s
 p

ro
v
id

e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
 O

ff
ic

e
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 t
o
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 f
u
n
c
ti
o
n
s
 s

u
c
h
 a

s
 

C
o
u
n
c
il 

m
e
e
ti
n
g
s
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 M

a
y
o
r'
s
 c

h
a
ri
ty

 b
a
ll 

a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

e
v
e
n
ts

. 

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 r

e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

fr
o
m

 l
e
g
a
l 
a
d
v
ic

e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 H

e
ro

n
 Q

u
a
y
s
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
p
ro

je
c
t.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 g

ra
n
t 
fu

n
d
e
d
 "

p
re

v
e
n
t 
p
ro

g
ra

m
" 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

.

L
o
w

e
r 

ta
k
e
u
p
 r

a
te

s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 b

u
ri
a
l 
s
u
b
s
id

y
 s

c
h
e
m

e
 r

e
d
u
c
in

g
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
o
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 o
f 
e
le

c
to

ra
l 
re

g
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 C

e
n
tr

a
l 
 

G
o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t.

C
H

IE
F

 E
X

E
C

U
T

IV
E

'S
 

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

T
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 e

x
p
e
ri
e
n
c
e
d
 u

n
fa

v
o
u
ra

b
le

 m
a
rk

e
t 
a
n
d
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
 c

o
n
d
it
io

n
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
  

w
it
h
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
tl
y
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 h

ig
h
 l
e
v
e
ls

 o
f 
a
d
v
e
rt

is
in

g
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 c

o
m

p
a
re

d
 t
o
 p

re
v
io

u
s
 y

e
a
rs

 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
re

b
y
 e

x
e
rt

e
d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 t
o
 r

e
m

a
in

 w
it
h
in

 b
u
d
g
e
t.
 T

h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 

th
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r 

th
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 r

e
v
ie

w
e
d
 i
ts

 o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
s
 a

n
d
 h

a
s
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
  

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 t
o
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 m

a
x
im

is
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
  
in

 o
rd

e
r 

to
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 i
ts

 d
e
fi
c
it
.

T
h
is

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
fl
e
c
ts

 t
im

in
g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 s

e
c
o
n
d
e
d
 s

ta
ff
 a

n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 B

e
a
c
o
n
 F

u
n
d
.

Page 190



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

£
'0

0
0

 L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/1

0
 

(b
e
fo

re
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
) 

  
  
  
 

£
'0

0
0

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  

£
'0

0
0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 m

a
jo

r 
v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

£
1
0
0
k

R
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
  
  
  
  
 

£
'0

0
0

R
e
v
is

e
d

 

d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4
,2

3
9

4
,9

4
0

6
,2

4
8

1
,3

0
8

1
,3

0
8

In
c
o

m
e

-4
,1

0
5

-4
,9

6
3

-6
,4

4
5

-1
,4

8
2

-1
,4

8
2

  
G

0
2
  
P

re
-P

ri
m

a
ry

 E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

1
3
4

-2
3

-1
9
7

-1
7
4

0
-1

7
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
1
9
,5

1
4

1
3
5
,1

6
4

1
6
2
,7

2
6

2
7
,5

6
2

2
7
,5

6
2

In
c
o

m
e

-1
1
5
,5

1
0

-1
2
8
,3

9
2

-1
5
5
,5

3
5

-2
7
,1

4
3

-2
7
,1

4
3

  
G

0
4
  
P

ri
m

a
ry

 E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

4
,0

0
4

6
,7

7
2

7
,1

9
1

4
1
9

0
4
1
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
1
1
,8

5
5

1
2
1
,0

7
5

1
5
2
,9

5
4

3
1
,8

7
9

3
1
,8

7
9

In
c
o

m
e

-1
0
6
,5

1
7

-1
2
0
,1

5
2

-1
5
0
,1

2
3

-2
9
,9

7
1

-2
9
,9

7
1

  
G

0
6
  
S

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

 E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

5
,3

3
8

9
2
3

2
,8

3
1

1
,9

0
8

0
1
,9

0
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
1
,8

0
0

1
4
,4

2
1

1
8
,3

2
6

3
,9

0
5

3
,9

0
5

In
c
o

m
e

-1
1
,3

1
9

-1
3
,7

8
4

-1
9
,9

1
4

-6
,1

3
0

-6
,1

3
0

  
G

0
8
  
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

4
8
1

6
3
7

-1
,5

8
8

-2
,2

2
5

0
-2

,2
2
5

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6
2
8

1
,0

3
1

9
6
1

-7
0

-7
0

In
c
o

m
e

-2
5
1

-3
4
2

-2
5
2

9
0

9
0

  
G

1
0
  
E

Y
C

L
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

3
7
7

6
8
9

7
0
9

2
0

0
2
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6
,2

1
5

6
,5

0
3

6
,4

0
0

-1
0
3

-1
0
3

In
c
o

m
e

-5
,6

9
9

-5
,9

1
4

-5
,8

5
9

5
5

5
5

  
G

1
1
  
E

a
rl

y
 Y

e
a
rs

5
1
6

5
8
9

5
4
1

-4
8

0
-4

8

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
,7

6
5

3
,0

4
0

3
,0

2
6

-1
4

-1
4

In
c
o

m
e

-3
9

-1
1
4

-1
6
7

-5
3

-5
3

  
G

1
2
  
L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
 D

a
y
 N

u
rs

e
ri

e
s

2
,7

2
6

2
,9

2
6

2
,8

5
9

-6
7

0
-6

7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
0
,5

1
0

1
2
,8

5
3

1
2
,7

3
0

-1
2
3

-1
2
3

In
c
o

m
e

-1
0
,5

1
0

-1
2
,2

9
9

-1
2
,1

7
4

1
2
5

1
2
5

  
G

1
3
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

's
 C

e
n

tr
e
s

0
5
5
4

5
5
6

2
0

2

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5
8
0

1
,1

5
4

1
,3

7
8

2
2
4

2
2
4

In
c
o

m
e

-2
8

-1
0
6

-3
4
5

-2
3
9

-2
3
9

  
G

1
4
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

ri
m

a
ry

5
5
2

1
,0

4
8

1
,0

3
3

-1
5

0
-1

5

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
,1

6
1

0
0

0
In

c
o

m
e

-7
5
3

0
0

0
  
G

1
5
  
P

u
p

il
 &

 S
tu

d
e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,4

0
8

0
0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
9
,4

9
9

1
0
,4

8
6

1
1
,6

4
1

1
,1

5
5

-9
3

1
,0

6
2

In
c
o

m
e

-5
,2

2
7

-6
,3

2
2

-7
,0

3
4

-7
1
2

-7
1
2

  
G

1
6
  
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
N

e
e
d

s
4
,2

7
2

4
,1

6
4

4
,6

0
7

4
4
3

-9
3

3
5
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3
,2

8
3

4
,6

4
2

4
,6

4
8

6
6

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,2

3
0

-4
,0

3
5

-4
,1

9
8

-1
6
3

-1
6
3

  
G

1
7
  
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 F

o
r 

L
e
a
rn

in
g

 S
e
rv

ic
e

5
3

6
0
7

4
5
0

-1
5
7

0
-1

5
7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,0

1
0

1
,6

4
1

1
,6

5
1

1
0

1
0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
2
2

-6
9
3

-7
0
4

-1
1

-1
1

  
G

1
8
  
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
P

s
y
c
h

o
lo

g
y

6
8
8

9
4
8

9
4
7

-1
0

-1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,6

1
4

3
,1

8
9

3
,3

1
6

1
2
7

1
2
7

In
c
o

m
e

-1
7
4

-1
,1

8
5

-1
,2

8
1

-9
6

-9
6

  
G

1
9
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
 a

n
d

 P
a
re

n
ta

l 
E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
1
,4

4
0

2
,0

0
4

2
,0

3
5

3
1

0
3
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
7
2

2
0
6

2
6
4

5
8

5
8

In
c
o

m
e

0
-4

-4
-4

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 a
re

a
 o

f 
u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 T

w
o
 Y

e
a
r 

O
ld

 O
ff
e
r,

  
fr

e
e
 n

u
rs

e
ry

 

e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 p

la
c
e
s
 f
o
r 

tw
o
 y

e
a
r 

o
ld

s
. 
N

a
ti
o
n
a
lly

 t
h
e
 t
a
k
e
 u

p
 o

f 
th

is
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 b

e
lo

w
 t
a
rg

e
t.
 T

h
e
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 i
n
 m

a
n
y 

re
s
p
e
c
ts

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 s

u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 

in
 T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 a
n
d
 a

ll 
e
lig

ib
le

 p
la

c
e
s
 a

re
 n

o
w

 f
u
ll.

 T
h
is

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

is
 h

o
w

e
v
e
r 

is
 s

ti
ll 

w
e
ll 

b
e
lo

w
 t
h
e
 t
a
rg

e
t 
s
e
t 
b
y 

th
e
 D

C
S

F
. 
W

e
 s

e
n
t 
a
 p

ro
p
o
s
a
l 
to

 t
h
e
 D

C
S

F
 

re
q
u
e
s
ti
n
g
 a

 r
e
fo

c
u
s
in

g
 o

f 
th

e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 t
u
rn

e
d
 d

o
w

n
, 
a
n
d
 

c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
tl
y 

o
u
r 

s
p
e
n
d
 w

a
s
 l
e
s
s
 t
h
a
n
 f
o
re

c
a
s
t.

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
e
 C

h
ild

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
G

ra
n
t 
re

s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 a

 c
o
rr

e
s
p
o
n
d
in

g
 

u
n
d
e
r-

u
ti
lis

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
in

c
o
m

e
.

T
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
b
o
v
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
re

s
u
lt
e
d
 f
ro

m
 l
a
te

 r
e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
g
ra

n
t,
 

w
h
ic

h
 w

a
s
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
g
ra

n
t 
in

c
o
m

e
.

O
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

a
s
t 
fe

w
 y

e
a
rs

 t
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 r
is

e
 i
n
 b

o
th

 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

a
n
d
 s

e
v
e
ri
ty

 

o
f 
p
u
p
ils

 b
e
in

g
 r

e
fe

rr
e
d
 f
o
r 

A
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
ts

 o
f 
S

p
e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e
d
s
. 
T

h
e
 L

A
 i
s
 l
e
g
a
lly

 

o
b
lig

e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 s

u
it
a
b
le

 e
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

S
ta

te
m

e
n
te

d
 P

u
p
ils

; 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 r
o
s
e
 

fr
o
m

 7
1
 p

la
c
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 l
a
s
t 
ye

a
r 

to
 9

3
 p

la
c
e
s
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
.

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
c
to

rs
, 
p
lu

s
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
o
r 

G
6
8
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
F

u
n
d
in

g
 a

n
d
 P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 s
h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
O

v
e
ra

ll 

th
e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 
£
0
.5

7
4
m

. 

U
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f
ro

m
 b

e
tt
e
r 

tr
a
d
in

g
 p

o
s
it
io

n
 t
h
a
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
 f
o
r 

a
n
d
 t
h
e
 

o
p
p
o
rt

u
n
it
y 

to
 c

h
a
rg

e
 m

o
re

 o
f 
th

e
 c

o
s
ts

 t
o
 G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
g
ra

n
ts

.

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
H

IL
D

R
E

N
, 
S

C
H

O
O

L
S

 &
 F

A
M

IL
IE

S

Page 191



  
G

2
0
  
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 &

 I
n

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

1
7
2

2
0
6

2
6
0

5
4

0
5
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
5
8

3
0
5

2
8
6

-1
9

-1
9

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

  
G

2
1
  
O

n
e
 O

'c
lo

c
k
 C

lu
b

s
2
5
8

3
0
5

2
8
6

-1
9

0
-1

9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
0

4
5
9

3
5
8

-1
0
1

-1
0
1

In
c
o

m
e

0
-3

8
-5

8
-2

0
-2

0
  
G

2
2
  
S

tu
d

e
n

t 
A

w
a
rd

s
0

4
2
1

3
0
0

-1
2
1

0
-1

2
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
5
1

0
0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
  
G

2
5
  
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 &
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 M
&

A
1
5
1

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6
2
8

1
,4

9
8

1
,2

5
8

-2
4
0

-2
4
0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
9
9

-3
0
4

-2
6
6

3
8

3
8

  
G

2
6
  
S

c
h

o
o

l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
c
o

n
d

a
ry

4
2
9

1
,1

9
4

9
9
2

-2
0
2

0
-2

0
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6
4

3
,9

9
8

3
,7

0
1

-2
9
7

-2
9
7

In
c
o

m
e

0
-8

7
7

-8
5
4

2
3

2
3

  
G

2
7
  
1
4
 -

 1
9
 Y

e
a
r 

O
ld

s
6
4

3
,1

2
1

2
,8

4
7

-2
7
4

0
-2

7
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
0

3
2
6

3
2
7

1
1

In
c
o

m
e

0
-1

0
6

-1
0
7

-1
-1

  
G

2
8
  
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
Im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

t 
P

's
h

ip
0

2
2
0

2
2
0

0
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3
,9

8
1

4
,2

9
0

5
,1

5
2

8
6
2

0
8
6
2

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,9

8
1

-4
,3

6
7

-5
,1

6
7

-8
0
0

0
-8

0
0

  
G

2
9
  
P

R
U

 (
P

u
p

il
 R

e
fe

rr
a
l 
U

n
it

)
0

-7
7

-1
5

6
2

0
6
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
0

9
0
4

5
9
7

-3
0
7

0
-3

0
7

In
c
o

m
e

0
-9

0
4

-5
9
7

3
0
7

0
3
0
7

  
G

3
0
 M

u
s
ic

/A
rt

s
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3
9
6

6
8
7

6
9
9

1
2

0
1
2

In
c
o

m
e

-1
0

-1
0

-2
2

-1
2

0
-1

2
  
G

3
3
  
E

-L
e
a
rn

in
g

3
8
6

6
7
7

6
7
7

0
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
0
0

2
0
0

0
0

0
In

c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
  
G

3
4
  
E

x
c
e
ll
e
n

c
e
 i
n

 C
it

ie
s

0
2
0
0

2
0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5
9
7

1
,0

2
0

1
,0

6
2

4
2

0
4
2

In
c
o

m
e

-1
8
6

-1
8
6

-2
2
4

-3
8

0
-3

8
  
G

3
7
  
Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 L

e
a
rn

in
g

 M
&

A
4
1
1

8
3
4

8
3
8

4
0

4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3
,7

3
1

4
,8

7
3

5
,1

6
5

2
9
2

2
9
2

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,2

5
5

-3
,3

5
6

-3
,4

9
4

-1
3
8

0
-1

3
8

  
G

3
8
  
L

if
e
lo

n
g

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

4
7
6

1
,5

1
7

1
,6

7
1

1
5
4

0
1
5
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8
,0

1
6

1
1
,2

9
6

1
0
,7

8
7

-5
0
9

-5
0
9

In
c
o

m
e

-7
2
1

-1
,9

5
7

-1
,8

1
5

1
4
2

1
4
2

  
G

3
9
  
Y

o
u

th
 &

 C
o

n
n

e
x
io

n
s
 S

e
rv

ic
e

7
,2

9
5

9
,3

3
9

8
,9

7
2

-3
6
7

0
-3

6
7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,1

9
2

1
,4

5
9

1
,5

1
3

5
4

5
4

In
c
o

m
e

-2
6
3

-2
0
3

-2
2
6

-2
3

-2
3

  
G

4
0
  
J
u

n
io

r 
Y

o
u

th
 S

e
rv

ic
e

9
2
9

1
,2

5
6

1
,2

8
7

3
1

0
3
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
4
8

4
5
7

4
6
3

6
6

In
c
o

m
e

0
-3

0
3

-2
3
4

6
9

6
9

  
G

4
1
  
H

e
a
lt

h
 T

h
ro

u
g

h
 E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

1
4
8

1
5
4

2
2
9

7
5

0
7
5

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7
6
1

1
,1

6
4

1
,1

8
3

1
9

1
9

In
c
o

m
e

-1
4

-1
2
0

-1
6
2

-4
2

-4
2

  
G

4
2
  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 L

a
n

g
u

a
g

e
s
 T

e
a
m

7
4
7

1
,0

4
4

1
,0

2
1

-2
3

0
-2

3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6
0

2
4
6

2
4
8

2
2

In
c
o

m
e

-5
6

-5
5

1
1

  
G

4
3
  
O

u
t-

o
f-

h
o

u
rs

 L
e
a
rn

in
g

 &
 S

tu
d

y
 

6
0

1
9
0

1
9
3

3
0

3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,3

1
8

1
,4

6
2

1
,5

2
6

6
4

6
4

In
c
o

m
e

-6
0

-6
0

-1
2
3

-6
3

-6
3

  
G

4
4
  
E

x
te

n
d

e
d

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
1
,2

5
8

1
,4

0
2

1
,4

0
3

1
0

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4
2
0

4
5
3

3
3

3
3

In
c
o

m
e

-1
2
0

-1
4
5

-2
5

-2
5

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 u

n
s
p
e
n
t 
W

N
F

 m
o
n
ie

s
 w

h
ic

h
 a

re
 t
o
 b

e
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 

to
 f
o
rm

 p
a
rt

 o
f 
th

e
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 T

ru
s
t 
F

u
n
d
 S

u
p
p
o
rt

 d
ra

w
in

g
s
 f
ro

m
 C

o
rp

o
a
ra

te
 F

in
a
n
c
e
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

re
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
-y

e
a
r 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
'A

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 D

e
liv

e
ry

' f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

im
p
ro

v
in

g
 G

C
S

E
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 w

a
s
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
o
o
 l
a
te

 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

to
 u

ti
lis

e
.

T
h
e
 I
d
e
a
s
 S

to
re

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

 b
u
d
g
e
ta

ry
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 f
o
r 

s
o
m

e
 t
im

e
. 
T

h
e
 T

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 
L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 C
u
lt
u
re

 D
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 h
a
d
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 C

S
F

 

d
ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 w
o
u
ld

 b
ri
d
g
e
 t
h
is

 g
a
p
 f
ro

m
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 e

ls
e
w

h
e
re

. 
A

t 
ye

a
r 

e
n
d
 

h
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 i
t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 
p
o
s
s
ib

le
 t
o
 i
d
e
n
ti
fy

 a
n
y 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
in

g
, 
le

a
v
in

g
 t
h
e
 

o
v
e
ra

ll 
a
d
v
e
rs

e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
fu

n
d
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 f
o
r 

Y
o
u
th

 c
o
u
ld

 n
o
t 
b
e
 s

p
e
n
t 
w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

ye
a
r,

 r
e
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 a

n
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
.

In
c
re

a
s
e
d
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
s
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
d
 t
o
 p

ro
v
id

e
 S

ta
tu

to
ry

 E
d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
 t
o
 p

u
p
ils

 w
h
o
 

h
a
v
e
 b

e
e
n
 e

x
c
lu

d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 s

c
h
o
o
l;
 a

n
d
 p

u
p
ils

 w
h
o
 h

a
v
e
 S

p
e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u
c
a
ti
o
n
a
l 

N
e
e
d
 r

e
q
u
ir
e
m

e
n
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 p

u
p
ils

 w
h
o
 a

re
 r

e
c
e
iv

in
g
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
in

 

h
o
s
p
it
a
l.
  
T

h
is

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 l
e
a
d
.

T
h
e
 c

h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

a
n
d
 d

e
la

y 
in

 a
p
p
o
in

ti
n
g
 s

ta
ff
; 
p
lu

s
 t
h
e
 s

lip
p
a
g
e
 

o
f 
a
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 'C

o
o
l 
C

a
rd

s
', 

h
a
v
e
 a

ll 
c
o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 a

g
a
in

s
t 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

.

Page 192



  
G

4
5
  
P

la
y

0
3
0
0

3
0
8

8
0

8

Page 193



E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
9
3
3

9
4
2

7
9
8

-1
4
4

-1
4
4

In
c
o

m
e

-9
3
3

-9
3
4

-7
9
8

1
3
6

1
3
6

  
G

4
6
  
C

o
m

m
u

n
it

y
 P

re
m

is
e
s

0
8

0
-8

0
-8

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
6
3

3
9
1

3
9
2

1
1

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

  
G

4
9
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 M
&

A
2
6
3

3
9
1

3
9
2

1
0

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,9

8
2

2
,1

9
1

2
,4

2
8

2
3
7

2
3
7

In
c
o

m
e

-6
3

-6
3

-2
4
1

-1
7
8

-1
7
8

  
G

5
0
  
C

h
il
d

 P
ro

te
c
ti

o
n

 &
 R

e
v
ie

w
in

g
1
,9

1
9

2
,1

2
8

2
,1

8
7

5
9

0
5
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6
5
1

7
3
5

7
7
0

3
5

3
5

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

  
G

5
1
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 :

 M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
6
5
1

7
3
5

7
7
0

3
5

0
3
5

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,5

1
5

1
,7

1
8

1
,8

4
1

1
2
3

1
2
3

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

  
G

5
2
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 :

 R
e
s
id

e
n

t
1
,5

1
5

1
,7

1
8

1
,8

4
1

1
2
3

0
1
2
3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
,4

8
0

2
,7

4
9

2
,7

8
9

4
0

4
0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
1

-3
1

-6
5

-3
4

-3
4

  
G

5
3
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 :

 F
a
m

il
y
 

2
,4

4
9

2
,7

1
8

2
,7

2
4

6
0

6

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
8
,0

3
2

1
8
,1

9
5

1
8
,4

7
4

2
7
9

2
7
9

In
c
o

m
e

-6
1
6

-4
4
1

-5
2
1

-8
0

-8
0

  
G

5
4
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 :

 C
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
in

g
1
7
,4

1
6

1
7
,7

5
4

1
7
,9

5
3

1
9
9

0
1
9
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
,2

3
6

2
,4

3
8

2
,4

6
4

2
6

2
6

In
c
o

m
e

0
-7

-1
7

-1
0

-1
0

  
G

5
5
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

 L
o

o
k
e
d

 A
ft

e
r

2
,2

3
6

2
,4

3
1

2
,4

4
7

1
6

0
1
6

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
,5

3
3

2
,7

8
2

2
,6

8
7

-9
5

-9
5

In
c
o

m
e

-1
6
9

-1
6
9

-1
3
5

3
4

3
4

  
G

5
6
  
L

e
a
v
in

g
 C

a
re

2
,3

6
4

2
,6

1
3

2
,5

5
2

-6
1

0
-6

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6
,8

3
7

8
,7

4
4

9
,6

2
3

8
7
9

8
7
9

In
c
o

m
e

-1
2

-9
0
2

-1
,1

0
1

-1
9
9

-1
9
9

  
G

5
7
  
F

ie
ld

w
o

rk
6
,8

2
5

7
,8

4
2

8
,5

2
2

6
8
0

0
6
8
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
,5

7
3

2
,8

2
4

2
,5

9
1

-2
3
3

-2
3
3

In
c
o

m
e

-2
1
1

-3
6
9

-3
8
3

-1
4

-1
4

  
G

5
8
  
In

te
g

ra
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

o
r 

C
W

D
2
,3

6
2

2
,4

5
5

2
,2

0
8

-2
4
7

0
-2

4
7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3
1
3

3
4
4

3
8
5

4
1

4
1

In
c
o

m
e

-4
4

-4
4

-4
3

1
1

  
G

5
9
  
E

m
e
rg

e
n

c
y
 D

u
ty

 T
e
a
m

2
6
9

3
0
0

3
4
2

4
2

0
4
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,5

4
7

2
,5

8
1

2
,4

3
2

-1
4
9

-1
4
9

In
c
o

m
e

-8
6
4

-1
,3

3
6

-1
,2

1
0

1
2
6

1
2
6

  
G

6
0
  
Y

o
u

th
 O

ff
e
n

d
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e

6
8
3

1
,2

4
5

1
,2

2
2

-2
3

0
-2

3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,6

2
3

1
,8

0
9

1
,8

2
4

1
5

1
5

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
  
G

6
1
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

-M
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
 (

C
A

M
H

S
)

1
,6

2
3

1
,8

0
9

1
,8

2
4

1
5

0
1
5

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,7

6
2

1
,7

6
8

6
6

In
c
o

m
e

-5
0
9

-5
3
4

-2
5

-2
5

  
G

6
2
  
A

tt
e
n

d
a
n

c
e
 &

 W
e
lf

a
re

 S
e
rv

ic
e

1
,2

5
3

1
,2

3
4

-1
9

0
-1

9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5
6
4

3
4
1

3
6
6

2
5

2
5

In
c
o

m
e

-4
0

-5
0

-5
5

-5
-5

  
G

6
5
  
S

P
P

 M
&

A
5
2
4

2
9
1

3
1
1

2
0

0
2
0

T
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 G

5
4
 f
o
r 

2
0
0
9
/2

0
1
0
, 
a
t 
0
.5

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

e
 b

u
d
g
e
t,
 w

a
s
 

c
a
u
s
e
d
 b

y 
a
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
L
o
o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 l
a
s
t 

q
u
a
rt

e
r 

o
f 
2
0
0
9
/2

0
1
0
. 
T

h
e
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
lo

o
k
e
d
 A

ft
e
r 

c
h
ild

re
n
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r 

w
a
s
 3

2
7
. 
A

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
J
a
n
u
a
ry

 t
h
is

 h
a
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 3

3
6
, 
b
y 

th
e
 

e
n
d
 o

f 
F

e
b
ru

a
ry

 t
h
is

 h
a
d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 3

5
3
 a

n
d
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d
 o

f 
M

a
rc

h
 i
t 
h
a
d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 3

5
5
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
ra

ll 
p
e
rc

e
n
ta

g
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 o

f 
8
.5

 p
e
r 

c
e
n
t.

T
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 a

 c
o
lle

c
ti
v
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

f 
C

h
ild

re
n
 w

it
h
 

C
o
m

p
le

x
 N

e
e
d
s
 s

p
o
n
s
o
rs

h
ip

.

S
a
v
in

g
s
 o

n
 P

F
I 
re

c
h
a
rg

e
 a

t 
O

s
m

a
n
i,
 g

e
n
e
ra

l 
c
o
s
ts

 a
t 
W

e
s
s
e
x
 d

u
e
 t
o
 Y

 &
 C

 

v
a
c
a
ti
n
g
 p

re
m

is
e
s
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 r

e
fl
e
c
te

d
 i
n
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t,
 

e
x
p
la

in
in

g
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
.

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 a

 s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t 
ri
s
e
 i
n
 C

h
ild

 P
ro

te
c
ti
o
n
 a

c
ti
v
it
y 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 n

e
c
e
s
s
it
y 

to
 r

e
c
ru

it
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
; 
a
 s

h
o
rt

fa
ll 

b
e
tw

e
e
n
 a

c
tu

a
l 

s
a
la

ry
 c

o
s
ts

; 
a
n
d
 t
h
e
 s

a
la

ry
 b

a
s
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
fo

r 
p
e
rm

a
n
e
n
t 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 r

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 t
o
 s

o
c
ia

l 
w

o
rk

e
rs

 w
it
h
 e

ff
e
c
t 
fr

o
m

 0
1
/0

1
/1

0
. 
T

h
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

p
ri
m

a
ri
ly

 d
u
e
 t
o
 n

o
n
 b

u
d
g
e
te

d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 C

h
o
ic

e
 P

ro
te

c
ts

 G
ra

n
t 
a
n
d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 Q

u
a
lit

y 
P

ro
te

c
ts

 G
ra

n
t.
 

A
 r

e
g
ra

d
in

g
 o

f 
b
o
th

 t
h
e
 M

a
n
a
g
e
rs

 a
n
d
 D

e
p
u
ti
e
s
 a

t 
th

e
 C

h
ild

re
n
s
 H

o
m

e
s
, 
p
lu

s
 

th
e
 R

e
te

n
ti
o
n
 p

a
ym

e
n
t 
m

a
d
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 R

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
 M

a
n
a
g
e
r 

h
a
s
 p

ri
m

a
ri
ly

 l
e
d
 t
o
 

th
is

 o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d

T
h
e
re

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 a

n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
m

a
n
d
 i
n
 t
h
is

 a
re

a
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 n

e
c
e
s
s
it
a
te

d
 

e
m

p
lo

yi
n
g
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
s
ta

ff
. 
A

 m
a
n
a
g
e
d
 w

o
rk

fl
o
w

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 e

s
ta

b
lis

h
e
d
 a

c
ro

s
s
 

a
g
e
n
c
ie

s
 t
o
 d

iv
e
rt

 a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 
c
a
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 r

e
d
u
c
e
 s

o
m

e
 o

f 
th

e
 

p
re

s
s
u
re

 o
n
 t
h
e
 F

ie
ld

w
o
rk

 T
e
a
m

. 
N

e
v
e
rt

h
e
le

s
s
 a

n
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 

in
c
u
rr

e
d
. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
p
o
rt

e
d
 c

o
n
s
is

te
n
tl
y 

th
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 y

e
a
r 

in
 t
h
e
 

q
u
a
rt

e
rl
y 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 r

e
tu

rn
s
.

Page 194



E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,8

9
1

3
,0

4
0

2
,8

2
2

-2
1
8

-2
1
8

In
c
o

m
e

-3
4

-4
9
8

-5
3
9

-4
1

-4
1

  
G

6
7
  
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e
d

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
,8

5
7

2
,5

4
2

2
,2

8
3

-2
5
9

0
-2

5
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
3
3
,7

1
4

3
3
,6

6
0

4
,3

1
5

-2
9
,3

4
5

-2
9
,3

4
5

In
c
o

m
e

-3
1
,5

9
9

-3
4
,4

3
6

-4
,4

4
5

2
9
,9

9
1

2
9
,9

9
1

  
G

6
8
  
E

x
te

rn
a
l 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 &

 P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

2
,1

1
5

-7
7
6

-1
3
0

6
4
6

0
6
4
6

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
2
6

4
3
1

7
7
1

3
4
0

3
4
0

In
c
o

m
e

-4
0

-2
6
0

-5
0
7

-2
4
7

-2
4
7

  
G

6
9
  
C

o
m

m
u

n
ic

a
ti

o
n

s
8
6

1
7
1

2
6
4

9
3

0
9
3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
3
0

6
2
2

6
7
1

4
9

4
9

In
c
o

m
e

-1
5
5

-1
9
7

-1
9
5

2
2

  
G

7
0
  
C

IS
7
5

4
2
5

4
7
6

5
1

0
5
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,0

6
6

8
7
0

7
9
5

-7
5

-7
5

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

-1
-1

-1
  
G

7
1
  
S

tr
a
te

g
y

1
,0

6
6

8
7
0

7
9
4

-7
6

0
-7

6

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
6
0

4
7
7

4
2
5

-5
2

-5
2

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

-1
1

-1
1

-1
1

  
G

7
2
  
P

ro
g

ra
m

m
e
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
2
6
0

4
7
7

4
1
4

-6
3

0
-6

3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
0

0
0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
  
G

7
3
  
Q

u
a
li
ty

 A
u

d
it

 &
 P

ro
je

c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
0

0
0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
0

9
6
1

9
7
9

1
8

1
8

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

-1
5

-1
5

-1
5

  
G

7
4
  
E

q
u

a
li
ti

e
s
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
0

9
6
1

9
6
4

3
0

3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6
8
7

7
4
4

7
2
0

-2
4

-2
4

In
c
o

m
e

-3
7
9

-3
7
9

-3
7
9

0
0

  
G

7
5
  
IT

 S
o

c
ia

l 
C

a
re

3
0
8

3
6
5

3
4
1

-2
4

0
-2

4

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
2
6
6

2
8
8

3
3
9

5
1

5
1

In
c
o

m
e

-2
6

-2
9

-1
1
6

-8
7

-8
7

  
G

7
9
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
 R

e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 M

&
A

2
4
0

2
5
9

2
2
3

-3
6

0
-3

6
E

x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5
2
3

4
7
1

-5
2

-5
2

In
c
o

m
e

-4
1
5

-3
7
0

4
5

4
5

  
G

7
8
  
P

u
p

il
 A

d
m

is
s
io

n
s
 &

 E
x
c
lu

s
io

n
s

1
0
8

1
0
1

-7
0

-7

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
4
3
8

5
7
8

6
1
7

3
9

3
9

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
  
G

8
0
  
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

 &
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

4
3
8

5
7
8

6
1
7

3
9

0
3
9

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,0

8
9

1
,1

6
8

9
8
8

-1
8
0

-1
8
0

In
c
o

m
e

-4
6
7

-4
7
0

-2
8
9

1
8
1

1
8
1

  
G

8
1
  
B

u
il
d

in
g

 D
e
v
 &

 T
e
c
h

 S
e
rv

ic
e

6
2
2

6
9
8

6
9
9

1
0

1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
1
,4

3
9

2
,1

5
0

3
,1

3
5

9
8
5

4
0

1
,0

2
5

In
c
o

m
e

-1
,1

7
1

-1
5
0

-8
9
5

-7
4
5

-7
4
5

  
G

8
2
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
F

in
a
n

c
e

1
0
,2

6
8

2
,0

0
0

2
,2

4
0

2
4
0

4
0

2
8
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
1
,7

1
8

1
,7

1
9

1
,2

2
8

-4
9
1

-4
9
1

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0

  
G

8
3
  
C

h
il
d

re
n

s
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
  
H

R
1
,7

1
8

1
,7

1
9

1
,2

2
8

-4
9
1

0
-4

9
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
5
0

5
0

1
2

-3
8

-3
8

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0
  
G

8
4
  
T

e
a
c
h

e
r 

R
e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t
5
0

5
0

1
2

-3
8

0
-3

8

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
6
6
6

0
0

0
In

c
o

m
e

-6
4

0
0

0
  
G

8
5
  
L

e
a
rn

in
g

 &
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
6
0
2

0
0

0
0

T
h
is

 v
o
te

 i
s
 u

s
e
d
 a

s
 a

 c
o
n
d
u
it
 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 s
e
rv

ic
e
s
, 
u
n
a
llo

c
a
te

d
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 a

n
d
 

g
ro

w
th

, 
s
u
rp

lu
s
e
s
 o

r 
d
e
fi
c
it
s
 o

n
 t
ra

d
e
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y 

fu
n
d
in

g
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

o
m

e
 D

S
G

 c
o
n
ti
n
g
e
n
c
y 

fu
n
d
in

g
. 
T

h
e
 n

e
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 

m
a
n
y 

o
ff
s
e
tt
in

g
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 a

c
ro

s
s
 t
h
e
s
e
 a

c
ti
v
it
ie

s
.

T
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 r

e
s
u
lt
s
 f
ro

m
 a

 c
h
a
n
g
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 p

ro
to

c
o
l 
a
s
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 e
a
rl
y 

re
ti
re

m
e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts

 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 b

e
fo

re
 1

 A
p
ri
l 
2
0
0
5
 w

e
re

 c
h
a
rg

e
d
 d

ir
e
c
t 
to

 n
o
n
 

d
e
le

g
a
te

d
 s

c
h
o
o
l 
b
u
d
g
e
ts

.

T
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 a
n
d
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

s
c
h
o
o
l 
s
e
c
to

rs
 (

G
0
2
, 
G

0
4
, 
G

0
6
 a

n
d
 G

0
8
) 

p
lu

s
 t
h
o
s
e
 f
o
r 

G
6
8
 s

h
o
u
ld

 b
e
 c

o
n
s
id

e
re

d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
v
e
ly

. 
O

v
e
ra

ll 
th

e
re

 i
s
 a

 n
e
t 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
o
f 
£
0
.5

7
4
m

. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 £

4
4
9
,3

0
0
 

S
u
b
s
ta

n
c
e
 M

is
u
s
e
 G

ra
n
t 
la

te
 i
n
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r 

 f
ro

m
 P

C
T

 f
o
r 

jo
in

t 
w

o
rk

 u
n
d
e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

d
u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

T
h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 v

a
c
a
n
t 
p
o
s
ts

; 
o
n
e
 f
ill

e
d
 o

n
 a

n
 i
n
te

ri
m

 b
a
s
is

, 

o
th

e
rs

 h
a
d
 p

e
ri
o
d
s
 o

f 
v
a
c
a
n
c
y 

a
n
d
 o

n
e
 u

n
a
b
le

 t
o
 f
ill

. 
T

h
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 

d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
o
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
d
 t
o
 P

F
I 
G

ro
u
p
e
d
 S

c
h
o
o
ls

 

a
n
d
 C

a
p
it
a
l.

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 r
e
a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 

th
e
 n

e
t 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 w

a
s
 t
h
e
 u

n
d
e
r 

fu
n
d
in

g
 o

f 
s
a
la

ri
e
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 t
e
a
m

. 
 T

h
e
 t
e
a
m

 w
a
s
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o
r 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 p

ri
n
t 
w

o
rk

 o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 o

f 
a
ll 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 w

it
h
in

 C
S

F
 w

h
ic

h
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
te

d
 f
o
r 

o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 s

u
p
p
lie

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
. 

H
o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 g

ro
s
s
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 w
a
s
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 

b
y 

re
c
h
a
rg

in
g
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
.

Page 195



E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
7
9
3

9
1
1

1
,1

6
0

2
4
9

2
4
9

In
c
o

m
e

-4
2
4

-4
2
4

-9
2
6

-5
0
2

-5
0
2

  
G

8
6
  
P

D
C

3
6
9

4
8
7

2
3
4

-2
5
3

0
-2

5
3

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
8
4
9

1
,1

8
7

1
,4

6
1

2
7
4

2
7
4

In
c
o

m
e

0
-5

5
0

-7
2
8

-1
7
8

-1
7
8

  
G

8
9
  
B

u
il
d

in
g

 S
c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e
 F

u
tu

re
8
4
9

6
3
7

7
3
3

9
6

0
9
6

E
x
p

e
n

d
itu

re
0

2
1
4

2
2
,7

9
6

2
2
,5

8
2

2
2
,5

8
2

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

-2
2
,5

8
1

-2
2
,5

8
1

-2
2
,5

8
1

  
G

9
1
 H

o
ld

in
g

 a
c
c
o

u
n

ts
0

2
1
4

2
1
5

1
0

1

T
ra

d
in

g
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ts
0

0
6
3
1

6
3
1

-6
3
1

0

  
T

o
ta

l
9
6
,7

9
5

1
0
1
,6

1
7

1
0
2
,5

3
1

9
1
4

-6
8
4

2
3
0

T
ra

d
in

g
 a

c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
n
d
 P

F
I 
a
c
c
o
u
n
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 
b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 f
o
r,

 b
u
t 
a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 

b
re

a
k
 e

v
e
n
.

T
h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 m

a
in

ly
 t
o
 g

ro
s
s
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 

G
o
rs

e
fi
e
ld

 R
u
ra

l 
S

tu
d
ie

s
 C

e
n
tr

e
. 
T

h
is

 s
it
e
 o

n
ly

 h
a
s
 b

u
d
g
e
ts

 f
o
r 

s
u
p
p
o
rt

 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 a

n
d
 a

s
s
e
t 
re

n
ta

ls
. 
T

h
e
 G

o
rs

e
fi
e
ld

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 w

a
s
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y 

v
a
ri
o
u
s
 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 P

D
C

 e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 h
e
a
d
in

g
s
. 
T

h
e
 I
n
c
o
m

e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
s
u
lt
e
d
 

fr
o
m

 t
h
e
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
n
o
n
-b

u
d
g
e
te

d
 g

ro
s
s
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 G

o
rs

e
fi
e
ld

 R
u
ra

l 
S

tu
d
ie

s
 

C
e
n
tr

e
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 P

D
C

. 
T

h
e
 l
a
tt
e
r 

is
 d

u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 e

ff
e
c
t 
o
f 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 d

e
s
k
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 

p
lu

s
 m

o
re

 t
e
a
m

s
 a

n
d
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

 b
u
yi

n
g
 i
n
to

 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
a
g
re

e
m

e
n
t.

T
h
e
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

 c
o
m

b
in

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

d
u
c
e
d
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 f
o
r 

th
e
 

a
g
re

e
d
 t
e
a
m

 s
tr

u
c
tu

re
 a

n
d
 t
h
e
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
h
ir
in

g
 o

f 
a
d
v
is

o
rs

/c
o
n
s
u
lt
a
n
ts

 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 s
u
c
c
e
s
s
fu

l 
d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 B

S
F

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
. 
T

h
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 

to
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

in
g
 f
o
r 

w
o
rk

s
 a

n
d
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 
b
y 

th
e
 B

S
F

 t
e
a
m

 o
n
 b

e
h
a
lf
 

o
f 
tw

o
 s

c
h
o
o
ls

.

Page 196



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

O
ri

g
in

a
l 
B

u
d

g
e
t 

£
'0

0
0

 L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/1

0
 

(b
e
fo

re
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
) 

  
  
  
 

£
'0

0
0

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  

£
'0

0
0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 m

a
jo

r 
v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

£
1
0
0
k

R
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
  
  
  
  
 

£
'0

0
0

R
e
v
is

e
d

 

d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

0
2

2
,5

6
1

2
,4

5
9

-1
0
2

-1
0
2

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,7
0
2

-2
,5

6
1

-2
,4

5
9

1
0
2

1
0
2

  
E

0
1
  
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
8
6

5
7
5

9
7
3

3
9
8

3
9
8

In
c
o
m

e
-5

8
6

-5
7
5

-9
7
3

-3
9
8

-3
9
8

  
E

1
0
  
S

tr
e
e
t 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 A
d

m
in

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
0
,5

6
3

3
0
,8

5
1

3
1
,8

4
5

9
9
4

-2
2
0

7
7
4

In
c
o
m

e
-5

,0
3
4

-5
,1

7
7

-5
,8

9
8

-7
2
1

-7
2
1

  
E

1
1
  
W

a
s
te

 &
 C

le
a
n

s
in

g
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s

2
5
,5

2
9

2
5
,6

7
4

2
5
,9

4
7

2
7
3

-2
2
0

5
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
1
,8

4
9

1
1
,8

1
5

1
3
,0

5
7

1
,2

4
2

1
,2

4
2

In
c
o
m

e
-2

,0
8
0

-2
,1

3
0

-3
,1

9
8

-1
,0

6
8

-1
,0

6
8

  
E

1
2
  
T

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 &
 H

ig
h

w
a
y
s

9
,7

6
9

9
,6

8
5

9
,8

5
9

1
7
4

0
1
7
4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,7

2
1

1
,6

9
0

1
,5

1
1

-1
7
9

-1
7
9

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,7
2
1

-1
,6

9
0

-1
,5

1
1

1
7
9

1
7
9

  
E

1
4
  
L

o
c
a
l 
E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
T

e
a
m

s
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
2
5

1
2
3

1
2
2

-1
-1

In
c
o
m

e
-1

2
5

-1
2
2

-1
2
2

0
0

  
E

2
0
  
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r

0
1

0
-1

0
-1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

6
9

2
,6

3
6

2
,6

1
7

-1
9

-1
9

In
c
o
m

e
-8

8
4

-1
,0

7
6

-1
,0

6
6

1
0

1
0

  
E

2
1
  
T

ra
d

in
g

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
1
,5

8
5

1
,5

6
0

1
,5

5
1

-9
0

-9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,7

3
8

7
,0

5
3

6
,9

2
5

-1
2
8

-1
2
8

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,2
6
6

-1
,6

2
2

-1
,5

3
9

8
3

8
3

  
E

2
2
  
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt

h
5
,4

7
2

5
,4

3
1

5
,3

8
6

-4
5

0
-4

5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,1

0
7

5
,1

1
2

4
,5

1
7

-5
9
5

-5
9
5

In
c
o
m

e
-3

-3
-8

-5
-5

  
E

2
3
  
C

o
n

c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s
5
,1

0
4

5
,1

0
9

4
,5

0
9

-6
0
0

0
-6

0
0

1
0
,4

6
7

1
0
,4

6
7

1
1
,5

6
8

1
,1

0
1

1
,1

0
1

-1
0
,4

6
7

-1
0
,4

6
7

-1
3
,3

9
6

-2
,9

2
9

1
,8

2
8

-1
,1

0
1

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 e

m
p
lo

ye
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t 

u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
t 
a
n
d
 n

o
n
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
a
n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 g

ra
n
t 

in
c
o
m

e
 

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
IE

S
, 
L

O
C

A
L

IT
IE

S
 &

 C
U

L
T

U
R

E

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 r

e
la

te
 t
o
 n

o
ti
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
 

re
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
o
o
 l
a
te

 b
e
 i
n
c
lu

d
e
d
 i
n
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
e
s
it
m

a
te

s
 1

) 

P
C

T
 H

e
a
lt
h
y 

B
o
ro

u
g
h
s
; 
2
) 

S
1
0
6
 H

o
p
p
a
 B

u
s
; 
a
n
d
 

u
n
a
v
o
id

a
b
le

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
p
re

s
s
u
re

s
 i
n
 d

e
a
lin

g
 w

it
h
 

s
e
v
e
re

 w
in

te
r 

w
e
a
th

e
r 

c
o
s
ts

. 

T
h
e
 m

a
in

 e
le

m
e
n
t 
o
f 
th

is
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 

a
c
c
o
u
n
ti
n
g
 e

n
tr

ie
s
 f
o
r 

th
e
 L

a
n
d
fi
ll 

A
llo

w
a
n
c
e
 

T
ra

d
in

g
 S

c
h
e
m

e
, 
w

h
e
re

 t
h
e
 u

s
a
g
e
 a

n
d
 a

llo
c
a
ti
o
n
 

h
a
s
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
g
n
is

e
d
. 

T
h
is

 u
n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
fi
n
a
l 
c
la

ri
fi
c
a
ti
o
n
 

b
e
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

e
 p

ro
je

c
te

d
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 

C
o
n
c
e
s
s
io

n
a
ry

 F
a
re

s
 t
o
 L

o
n
d
o
n
 L

o
c
a
l 
A

u
th

o
ri
ti
e
s
 

w
ill

 n
o
w

 n
o
t 
ta

k
e
 p

la
c
e
 u

n
ti
l 
2
0
1
0
/1

1

N
e
t 
S

u
rp

lu
s
 w

ill
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 t
o
 f
u
n
d
 G

e
n
e
ra

l 
F

u
n
d
 

Page 197



  
E

2
4
  
P

a
rk

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l

0
0

-1
,8

2
8

-1
,8

2
8

1
,8

2
8

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
9
3
9

1
,9

3
9

1
,9

5
4

1
5

1
5

In
c
o
m

e
-1

9
3
9

-1
,9

3
9

-1
,9

5
2

-1
3

-1
3

  
E

3
0
  
F

le
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
0

0
2

2
0

2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
0
3
2

5
,0

3
2

5
,5

8
9

5
5
7

5
5
7

In
c
o
m

e
-5

0
3
2

-5
,0

3
2

-5
,5

9
6

-5
6
4

-5
6
4

  
E

3
1
  
P

a
s
s
e
n

g
e
r 

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

0
0

-7
-7

0
-7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

4
0
8

4
0
8

4
5
0

4
2

4
2

In
c
o
m

e
-4

0
8

-4
0
8

-4
4
5

-3
7

-3
7

 E
3
2
  
D

S
O

 V
e
h

ic
le

 W
o

rk
s
h

o
p

0
0

5
5

0
5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
4
7

7
4
5

8
0
4

5
9

5
9

In
c
o
m

e
-4

4
0

-4
2
6

-3
9
4

3
2

-1
1
7

-8
5

  
E

3
6
  
H

e
a
lt

h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
4
0
7

3
1
9

4
1
0

9
1

-1
1
7

-2
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
9
4

2
7
6

2
4
6

-3
0

-3
0

In
c
o
m

e
-3

9
4

-2
7
3

-2
4
3

3
0

3
0

  
E

4
0
  
D

iv
is

io
n

a
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
0

3
3

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
0
,1

0
9

9
,7

2
0

9
,9

1
0

1
9
0

1
9
0

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,6
3
0

-1
,4

9
9

-1
,5

9
1

-9
2

-9
2

  
E

4
1
  
Id

e
a
 S

to
re

s
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
8
,4

7
9

8
,2

2
1

8
,3

1
9

9
8

0
9
8

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,0

5
3

5
,1

5
1

5
,0

6
8

-8
3

-8
3

In
c
o
m

e
-2

3
3

-8
0
6

-7
1
3

9
3

9
3

  
E

4
2
  
S

p
o

rt
s
 &

 P
h

y
s
ic

a
l 
A

c
ti

v
it

y
4
,8

2
0

4
,3

4
5

4
,3

5
5

1
0

0
1
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,9

3
5

7
,0

3
4

7
,4

3
2

3
9
8

3
9
8

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,0
8
7

-1
,1

3
0

-1
,5

1
7

-3
8
7

-3
8
7

  
E

4
3
  
P

a
rk

s
 &

 O
p

e
n

 S
p

a
c
e
s

5
,8

4
8

5
,9

0
4

5
,9

1
5

1
1

0
1
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

2
3

2
,5

2
3

2
,7

5
0

2
2
7

-1
5
5

7
2

In
c
o
m

e
-3

9
2

-1
,0

4
6

-1
,1

7
0

-1
2
4

-1
2
4

  
E

4
4
  
A

rt
s
 &

 E
v
e
n

ts
1
,5

3
1

1
,4

7
7

1
,5

8
0

1
0
3

-1
5
5

-5
2

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

8
4
0

8
4
0

8
0
9

-3
1

-3
1

In
c
o
m

e
-8

4
0

-8
4
0

-7
0
5

1
3
5

1
3
5

  
E

4
5
  
M

il
e
 E

n
d

 P
a
rk

0
0

1
0
4

1
0
4

0
1
0
4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
5
0

1
5
4

1
8
1

2
7

2
7

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
-2

0
-2

0
-2

0

  
E

5
1
  
H

e
a
d

 o
f 

C
ri

m
e
 R

e
d

u
c
ti

o
n

1
5
0

1
5
4

1
6
1

7
0

7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

3
9

3
,7

3
5

3
,0

5
2

-6
8
3

1
0
0

-5
8
3

In
c
o
m

e
-1

8
9

-8
4
1

-2
7
7

5
6
4

5
6
4

  
E

5
3
  
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 a
n

d
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e

1
,9

5
0

2
,8

9
4

2
,7

7
5

-1
1
9

1
0
0

-1
9

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

4
6

2
,4

6
7

2
,5

2
1

5
4

5
4

In
c
o
m

e
-8

0
0

-8
0
0

-5
9
2

2
0
8

-3
7
8

-1
7
0

  
E

5
4
  
O

p
e
ra

ti
o

n
s

1
,1

4
6

1
,6

6
7

1
,9

2
9

2
6
2

-3
7
8

-1
1
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

9
0
3

9
6
2

1
,0

3
5

7
3

7
3

In
c
o
m

e
-7

7
-9

7
-2

2
3

-1
2
6

-1
2
6

  
E

5
5
  
P

o
li
c
y
 &

 V
ic

ti
m

s
8
2
6

8
6
5

8
1
2

-5
3

0
-5

3

.

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
re

p
a
ir
s
 a

n
d
 

m
a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 w

o
rk

s
 a

t 
B

a
n
c
ro

ft
 a

n
d
 B

e
th

n
a
l 
G

re
e
n
 

L
ib

ra
ri
e
s
.

T
h
is

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 i
n
c
o
rr

e
c
t 
in

c
lu

s
io

n
 o

f 
g
ra

n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 i
n
 t
h
e
 b

u
d
g
e
t.

T
h
is

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 e

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 o
f 

A
S

B
 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 D

e
c
e
n
t 
H

o
m

e
s
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
s
 

T
h
e
 m

a
jo

r 
re

a
s
o
n
 f
o
r 

v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
s
 i
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

B
ig

 L
o
tt
e
ry

 g
ra

n
t 
fu

n
d
in

g
. 

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 c

o
s
t 
o
f 
th

e
 B

a
is

h
a
k
h
i 
M

e
la

 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y 
a
n
 e

a
rm

a
rk

e
d
 r

e
s
e
rv

e
 a

n
d
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 

fu
n
d
in

g
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
s
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 f
o
r 

th
e
 e

v
e
n
t.
 

R
e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
n
ta

l 
in

c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 b

u
s
in

e
s
s
 g

o
in

g
 

in
to

 l
iq

u
id

a
ti
o
n
.

s
e
rv

ic
e
s
 

Page 198



E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

3
,4

5
0

3
,9

7
2

4
,0

1
8

4
6

4
6

In
c
o
m

e
-2

,1
5
1

-2
,1

5
6

-2
,1

4
6

1
0

1
0

  
E

5
6
  
D

ru
g

s
 A

c
ti

o
n

 T
e
a
m

1
,2

9
9

1
,8

1
6

1
,8

7
2

5
6

0
5
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,4

7
6

5
,2

6
9

3
,1

7
8

-2
,0

9
1

4
4
6

-1
,6

4
5

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,8
9
2

-2
,8

0
0

-1
,1

5
4

1
,6

4
6

1
,6

4
6

  
E

6
1
  
P

a
rt

ic
ip

a
ti

o
n

 &
 E

n
g

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
5
8
4

2
,4

6
9

2
,0

2
4

-4
4
5

4
4
6

1

  
T

o
ta

l
7
4
,4

9
9

7
7
,5

9
4

7
5
,6

8
3

-1
,9

1
1

1
,5

0
4

-4
0
7

T
h
is

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 r

e
la

te
s
 t
o
 d

e
la

ys
 i
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
s
 

c
o
m

m
e
n
c
in

g
 i
n
 y

e
a
r 

w
h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y 

g
ra

n
t 

fu
n
d
in

g
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d
 f
o
rw

a
rd

 i
n
to

 2
0
1
0
/1

1

Page 199



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/1

0
 

(b
e
fo

re
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
) 

  
  

  
 

£
'0

0
0

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  

£
'0

0
0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 m

a
jo

r 
v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

£
1
0
0
k

R
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
  

  
  

  
 

£
'0

0
0

R
e
v
is

e
d

 

d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,7

2
8

4
,5

4
0

4
,6

3
3

9
3

9
3

In
c
o
m

e
-9

1
8

-1
,9

7
0

-2
,1

6
0

-1
9
0

-6
0

-2
5
0

  
J
0
4
  

M
a
jo

r 
P

ro
je

c
t 

&
 D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t
1
,8

1
0

2
,5

7
0

2
,4

7
3

-9
7

-6
0

-1
5
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,7

3
1

4
,6

0
3

4
,7

4
2

1
3
9

1
3
9

In
c
o
m

e
-2

,2
4
0

-2
,6

8
2

-3
,1

4
8

-4
6
6

-4
6
6

  
J
0
6
  

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
D

e
c
is

io
n

s
4
9
1

1
,9

2
1

1
,5

9
4

-3
2
7

0
-3

2
7

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,6

7
0

2
,4

5
2

2
,9

6
4

5
1
2

0
5
1
2

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,1
2
8

-2
,4

6
3

-2
,9

6
0

-4
9
7

1
0
0

-3
9
7

  
J
0
8
  

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

P
ro

je
c
t 

F
u

n
d

in
g

1
,5

4
2

-1
1

4
1
5

1
0
0

1
1
5

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
6
0

0
0

0
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

0
0

0
  

J
1
0
  

M
a
tc

h
 F

u
n

d
in

g
6
6
0

0
0

0
0

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,9

4
1

3
,6

2
6

3
,4

9
1

-1
3
5

-1
3
5

In
c
o
m

e
-3

9
1

-3
,1

2
8

-3
,1

4
4

-1
6

-1
6

  
J
1
2
  

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s

1
,5

5
0

4
9
8

3
4
7

-1
5
1

0
-1

5
1

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

5
,6

0
2

8
6
4

1
,0

4
9

1
8
5

1
8
5

In
c
o
m

e
-1

1
6

-9
5
7

-9
3
2

2
5

2
5

  
J
1
4
  

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
&

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 S
e
rv

ic
e
s

5
,4

8
6

-9
3

1
1
7

2
1
0

0
2
1
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,2

1
1

2
,9

0
6

3
,7

8
9

8
8
3

8
8
3

In
c
o
m

e
-6

0
5

-1
,0

9
6

-2
,2

5
5

-1
,1

5
9

-1
,1

5
9

  
J
1
6
 A

s
s
e
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
1
,6

0
6

1
,8

1
0

1
,5

3
4

-2
7
6

0
-2

7
6

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
6
0

1
,1

9
7

1
,1

5
9

-3
8

-3
8

In
c
o
m

e
-2

8
0

-2
6
2

1
8

1
8

  
J
1
8
  

O
ly

m
p

ic
s

6
6
0

9
1
7

8
9
7

-2
0

0
-2

0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

6
,8

4
5

4
,4

7
5

5
,7

1
7

1
,2

4
2

1
,2

4
2

In
c
o
m

e
-2

,9
4
8

-1
,7

0
4

-2
,0

9
5

-3
9
1

-1
1
8

-5
0
9

  
J
2
0
  

R
e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 S

u
s
ta

in
a
b

il
it

y
3
,8

9
7

2
,7

7
1

3
,6

2
2

8
5
1

-1
1
8

7
3
3

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
8
0
9

7
8
8

-2
1

-2
1

In
c
o
m

e
0

-6
6
8

-5
2
9

1
3
9

1
3
9

  
J
2
2
  

H
o

u
s
in

g
 R

e
g

e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
0

1
4
1

2
5
9

1
1
8

0
1
1
8

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
6
,3

8
5

5
,0

9
6

-1
,2

8
9

-1
,2

8
9

In
c
o
m

e
0

-3
,1

0
8

-1
,9

5
3

1
,1

5
5

1
,1

5
5

  
J
2
4
  

E
m

p
lo

y
m

e
n

t 
&

 E
n

te
rp

ri
s
e

0
3
,2

7
7

3
,1

4
3

-1
3
4

0
-1

3
4

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0
1
,7

3
1

1
,7

6
1

3
0

3
0

In
c
o
m

e
0

-8
5
5

-8
5
7

-2
-2

D
E

V
E

L
O

P
M

E
N

T
 &

 R
E

N
E

W
A

L

T
h
e
 v

a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
th

is
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
is

 d
u
e
 t
o
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 b
e
in

g
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 o

n
 o

n
e
 o

ff
 s

p
e
c
ia

lis
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
in

 c
o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 a

d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 a

n
d
 a

p
p
lie

d
. 
T

h
is

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 S

e
c
ti
o
n
 

1
0
6
 r

e
s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 a

ll 
o
n
e
 o

ff
 a

n
d
 d

o
 n

o
t 
h
a
v
e
 a

n
y
 l
o
n
g
 t
e
rm

 i
m

p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
.

T
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
in

c
lu

d
e
s
 a

 h
ig

h
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
fe

e
s
. 
T

h
e
s
e
 a

re
 

fo
re

c
a
s
t 
to

 d
e
c
lin

e
 a

s
 a

  
d
ir
e
c
t 
c
o
n
s
e
q
u
e
n
c
e
 o

f 
 t
h
e
 c

u
rr

e
n
t 
'c

re
d
it
 c

ru
n
c
h
' a

n
d
 i
ts

 i
m

p
a
c
t 
o
n
 t
h
e
 

p
ro

p
e
rt

y
 m

a
rk

e
t.
 H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 f
e
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 d

u
ri
n
g
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
 w

a
s
 h

ig
h
e
r 

th
a
n
 

b
u
d
g
e
te

d
 l
e
v
e
ls

, 
a
lt
h
o
u
g
h
 i
t 
m

u
s
t 
b
e
 s

tr
e
s
s
e
d
 t
h
a
t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 d

u
e
 t
o
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 o

n
e
-o

ff
 l
a
rg

e
 

a
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
s
 b

e
in

g
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
, 
s
u
c
h
 a

s
 W

o
o
d
 W

h
a
rf

, 
S

o
u
th

 Q
u
a
y
 S

q
u
a
re

 a
n
d
 L

im
e
 H

a
rb

o
u
r.

 T
h
e
re

 

is
 s

ti
ll 

a
 s

ig
n
if
ic

a
n
t 
le

v
e
l 
o
f 
ri
s
k
 w

it
h
 r

e
g
a
rd

s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f
o
re

c
a
s
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 

y
e
a
rs

 a
s
 i
t 
is

 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
h
e
 2

0
0
9
/2

0
1
0
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
p
lic

a
te

d
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

.

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

T
h
e
 u

n
d
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
h
a
s
 a

ri
s
e
n
 m

a
in

ly
 a

s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
in

g
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

 

T
h
is

 f
o
llo

w
e
d
 a

 r
e
a
lig

n
m

e
n
t 
o
f 
re

p
o
rt

in
g
 r

e
s
p
o
n
s
ib

ili
ti
e
s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 f
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

T
h
e
s
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 n

o
n
-r

e
c
u
rr

e
n
t 
c
o
s
ts

 a
re

 d
u
e
 t
o
 t
h
e
 n

e
e
d
 f
o
r 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
te

m
p
o
ra

ry
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 

w
id

e
 a

d
m

in
s
tr

a
ti
v
e
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 o

th
e
r 

s
p
e
c
ia

lis
t 
it
e
m

s
 o

f 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 w
h
ic

h
 w

e
re

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 

th
e
 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
le

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 f
ro

m
 o

th
e
r 

a
re

a
s
 o

f 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

. 
T

h
e
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 c

o
s
ts

 a
re

 n
o
t 
e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 

to
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e
 i
n
to

 2
0
1
0
/2

0
1
1
.

T
h
e
 f
a
v
o
u
ra

b
le

 n
e
t 
v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 h

a
s
 m

a
in

ly
 a

ri
s
e
n
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 r

e
c
e
ip

t 
o
f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 f
ro

m
 t
h
e
 

re
n
ta

l 
o
f 
s
h
o
p
s
.

T
h
e
 n

e
t 
o
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 o

n
 t
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
c
o
u
ld

 b
e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 t
o
 a

p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 £

3
1
1
,0

0
0
 i
f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 G
ra

n
t 
o
f 
£
4
2
0
,0

0
0
 i
s
 a

llo
c
a
te

d
 t
o
 t
h
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
. 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 a

ro
s
e
 m

a
in

ly
 f
ro

m
 

th
e
 n

e
e
d
 t
o
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
 t
h
e
 s

ta
ff
fi
n
g
 s

tr
u
c
tu

re
 w

it
h
in

 t
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 c

o
n
ju

n
c
ti
o
n
 w

it
h
 

a
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 r

e
c
h
a
rg

e
s
 t
o
 c

a
p
it
a
l.

T
h
e
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 R

e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 t
e
a
m

 h
a
s
 b

e
e
n
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 f
ro

m
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 C

a
p
it
a
l 
re

s
o
u
rc

e
s
. 

T
h
e
 f
o
c
u
s
 o

f 
th

e
 t
e
a
m

 n
o
w

 c
e
n
tr

e
s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 t
w

o
 m

a
in

 r
e
g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o
n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 a
t 
B

la
c
k
w

a
ll 

R
e
a
c
h
 a

n
d
 

th
e
 O

c
e
a
n
 E

s
ta

te
. 
A

lt
e
rn

a
ti
v
e
 f
u
n
d
in

g
 s

o
u
rc

e
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
te

rm
in

e
d
 b

y
 t
h
e
 D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 t
o
 m

it
ig

a
te

 

th
e
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 
ri
s
k
 i
n
 f
u
tu

re

T
h
e
 n

e
t 
fa

v
o
u
ra

b
le

 v
a
ri
a
n
c
e
 o

n
 t
h
is

 b
u
d
g
e
t 
m

a
in

ly
 a

ri
s
e
s
 f
ro

m
 s

ta
ff
in

g
 v

a
c
a
n
c
ie

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e
 

fi
n
a
n
c
ia

l 
y
e
a
r.

Page 200



  
J
2
6
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 O

p
ti

o
n

s
0

8
7
6

9
0
4

2
8

0
2
8

  
T

o
ta

l
1
7
,7

0
2

1
4
,6

7
8

1
4
,8

9
5

2
1
7

-7
8

1
3
9

  
A

d
d

: 
T

ra
d

in
g

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
0

0
1
7
7

1
7
7

-1
7
6

1

  
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
&

 R
e
n

e
w

a
l 

T
o

ta
l

1
7
,7

0
2

1
4
,6

7
8

1
5
,0

7
2

3
9
4

-2
5
4

1
4
0

Page 201



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

 L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

£
'0

0
0

A
c

tu
a

l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 

a
s

 a
t 

3
1

/0
3

/1
0

 

(b
e

fo
re

 

tr
a

n
s

fe
rs

 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s

e
rv

e
s

) 
  

  
  

 

£
'0

0
0

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
  

£
'0

0
0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 m

a
jo

r 
v
a

ri
a

n
c

e
s

 o
v
e

r 
£

1
0

0
k

R
e

q
u

e
s

ts
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
s

fe
rs

 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s

e
rv

e
s

  
  

  
  

 

£
'0

0
0

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

d
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,2
6

1
2

,2
5

8
2

,2
7

6
1

8
1

8

In
c
o

m
e

-2
,2

6
1

-2
,2

7
6

-2
,2

7
6

0
0

R
3

2
 C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 F

in
a

n
c

e
0

-1
8

0
1

8
0

1
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

2
3

9
2

1
9

5
2

3
1

3
1

In
c
o

m
e

-9
2

3
-9

1
5

-9
5

2
-3

7
-3

7

R
3

4
 I

n
te

rn
a

l 
A

u
d

it
 

0
6

0
-6

0
-6

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

5
,2

1
0

3
4

,7
0

9
3

6
,1

6
7

1
,4

5
8

1
,4

5
8

In
c
o

m
e

-3
1

,1
5

9
-3

1
,1

5
9

-3
3

,1
2

5
-1

,9
6

6
-1

,9
6

6

R
3

6
 C

o
u

n
c

il
 T

a
x

 &
 N

N
D

R
4

,0
5

1
3

,5
5

0
3

,0
4

2
-5

0
8

0
-5

0
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

9
2

9
8

8
1

,2
8

3
2

9
5

-1
0

3
1

9
2

In
c
o

m
e

-7
5

2
-9

5
4

-9
6

8
-1

4
-1

4

R
3

8
 P

ro
c

u
re

m
e

n
t 

2
4

0
3

4
3

1
5

2
8

1
-1

0
3

1
7

8

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

9
2

5
9

0
5

9
0

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

-5
9

2
-5

8
3

-5
8

3
0

0

R
4

0
 R

is
k

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t

0
7

7
0

0
0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,2
2

5
1

,2
3

2
1

,2
1

2
-2

0
-2

0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
,2

2
5

-1
,2

1
0

-1
,2

1
2

-2
-2

R
4

2
 D

e
b

to
rs

 I
n

c
o

m
e

 S
e

rv
ic

e
0

2
2

0
-2

2
0

-2
2

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
5

0
8

5
0

8
6

0
7

9
9

9
9

In
c
o

m
e

-5
0

8
-5

9
8

-6
0

7
-9

-9

R
4

4
 C

a
s

h
ie

rs
 

0
-9

0
0

9
0

0
9

0

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
8

6
6

8
6

6
7

8
9

-7
7

-7
7

In
c
o

m
e

-8
6

6
-7

9
0

-7
8

9
1

1

R
4

6
 P

a
y
m

e
n

ts
 

0
7

6
0

-7
6

0
-7

6

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
9

,7
3

7
9

,7
0

1
1

4
,4

4
8

4
,7

4
7

6
2

4
,8

0
9

In
c
o

m
e

-9
,7

3
7

-9
,5

0
4

-1
4

,2
8

0
-4

,7
7

6
-4

,7
7

6

R
4

8
 I

n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

0
1

9
7

1
6

8
-2

9
6

2
3

3

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
7

,3
6

6
7

,7
1

6
8

,0
1

0
2

9
4

2
9

4

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,7

4
9

-3
,5

8
9

-3
,9

1
0

-3
2

1
-3

2
1

R
5

0
 C

u
s

to
m

e
r 

A
c

c
e

s
s

3
,6

1
7

4
,1

2
7

4
,1

0
0

-2
7

0
-2

7

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 f
ro

m
 a

 n
u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

c
a
p
it
a
l 
s
c
h
e
m

e
s
 

fu
n
d
e
d
 b

y 
th

e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 
p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
c
o
s
ts

 f
u
n
d
e
d
 b

y 
in

c
re

a
s
e
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 f

ro
m

 

p
a
rk

in
g
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
.

T
h
e
 p

a
ym

e
n
ts

 s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
in

g
 a

 r
e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

th
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
tu

p
 c

o
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
u
p
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 l
if
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
.

L
a
rg

e
r 

v
o
lu

m
e
 o

f 
b
e
n
e
fi
t 
p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 m
a
d
e
 o

v
e
r 

b
u
d
g
e
t 
b
y 

a
p
p
ro

x
im

a
te

ly
 £

1
.7

m
. 
H

o
w

e
v
e
r,

 t
h
is

 w
a
s
 o

ff
s
e
t 

b
y 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d
 s

u
b
s
id

y 
p
ro

d
u
c
in

g
 a

 s
a
v
in

g
 o

n
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 

a
d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
.

R
E

S
O

U
R

C
E

S
 

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

Page 202



E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

1
,9

6
5

1
9

,1
1

3
1

9
,3

0
4

1
9

1
1

9
1

In
c
o

m
e

-1
8

,2
8

3
-1

8
,8

3
9

-1
8

,7
2

6
1

1
3

1
1

3

R
5

2
 A

d
m

in
 B

u
il

d
in

g
s

 
3

,6
8

2
2

7
4

5
7

8
3

0
4

0
3

0
4

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

8
7

,9
6

9
1

8
7

,9
6

9
2

1
5

,8
2

1
2

7
,8

5
2

2
7

,8
5

2

In
c
o

m
e

-1
8

7
,4

7
4

-1
8

7
,4

7
4

-2
1

5
,3

8
8

-2
7

,9
1

4
-2

7
,9

1
4

R
5

4
 H

o
u

s
in

g
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
4

9
5

4
9

5
4

3
3

-6
2

0
-6

2

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

6
7

3
5

5
5

4
7

1
9

2
1

9
2

In
c
o

m
e

-8
5

8
-4

9
3

-5
4

7
-5

4
-5

4

R
5

6
 D

e
p

o
ts

 
-3

9
1

-1
3

8
0

1
3

8
0

1
3

8

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
6

,6
5

8
8

,1
2

1
8

,5
2

7
4

0
6

1
9

3
5

9
9

In
c
o

m
e

-6
,1

2
5

-6
,1

2
5

-6
,8

1
2

-6
8

7
-6

8
7

R
5

8
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 A

d
m

in
 T

e
a

m
5

3
3

1
,9

9
6

1
,7

1
5

-2
8

1
1

9
3

-8
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

2
5

4
2

3
7

2
3

3
0

0
3

0
0

In
c
o

m
e

-4
2

5
-4

2
5

-7
0

1
-2

7
6

-2
7

6

R
6

0
 R

e
p

ro
g

ra
p

h
ic

s
 

0
-2

2
2

2
4

0
2

4

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
2

,0
5

8
2

,0
5

3
2

,0
3

0
-2

3
-2

3

In
c
o

m
e

-2
,2

0
8

-2
,0

6
1

-2
,0

3
0

3
1

3
1

R
6

4
 S

h
a

re
d

 S
e

rv
ic

e
s

-1
5

0
-8

0
8

0
8

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

,6
8

7
3

,2
6

8
4

,7
5

4
1

,4
8

6
-5

8
6

9
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,6

5
8

-3
,0

5
9

-3
,6

6
8

-6
0

9
-6

0
9

R
7

2
 H

u
m

a
n

 R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

2
9

2
0

9
1

,0
8

6
8

7
7

-5
8

6
2

9
1

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
3

8
8

3
8

4
4

5
7

7
3

7
3

In
c
o

m
e

-6
5

-4
1

0
-4

5
7

-4
7

-4
7

R
7

4
 O

c
c

u
p

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

H
e

a
lt

h
3

2
3

-2
6

0
2

6
0

2
6

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
4

,9
6

2
4

,7
2

6
5

,3
4

6
6

2
0

6
2

0

In
c
o

m
e

-3
,3

9
3

-2
,6

2
1

-3
,1

1
5

-4
9

4
-4

9
4

R
7

6
 H

R
/L

e
a

rn
in

g
 &

 D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

1
,5

6
9

2
,1

0
5

2
,2

3
1

1
2

6
0

1
2

6

E
x
p

e
n

d
it
u

re
1

,9
0

5
2

,0
2

3
1

,9
9

4
-2

9
-2

9

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

0
0

0

R
8

2
 N

o
n

-D
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 C

o
s

ts
1

,9
0

5
2

,0
2

3
1

,9
9

4
-2

9
0

-2
9

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s

 T
o

ta
l

1
5

,9
0

4
1

4
,8

3
9

1
5

,6
9

1
8

5
2

-4
3

4
4

1
8

 T
h
e
 H

R
  
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
in

g
 a

 r
e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
tu

p
 c

o
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
u
p
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 l
if
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
. 

T
h
e
 L

e
a
rn

in
g
 &

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 h

a
s
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 i
ts

 

s
c
o
p
e
 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n
 t
o
 t
h
is

 p
ro

je
c
t 
a
n
d
 h

a
s
 i
n
c
u
rr

e
d
 i
n
it
ia

l 

c
o
s
ts

 a
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
.

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
d
e
m

a
n
d
 f

o
r 

w
o
rk

 r
e
s
u
lt
e
d
 i
n
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 

re
c
h
a
rg

e
s

T
h
e
 H

R
  
s
e
rv

ic
e
 i
s
 u

n
d
e
rg

o
in

g
 a

 r
e
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 i
n
 t
h
e
 

d
e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 

it
s
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 w

h
ic

h
 h

a
s
 i
n
v
o
lv

e
d
 i
n
it
ia

l 
p
ro

je
c
t 

a
n
d
 s

e
tu

p
 c

o
s
ts

 t
h
a
t 
a
re

 e
x
p
e
c
te

d
 t
o
 b

e
 r

e
c
o
u
p
e
d
 

th
ro

u
g
h
 s

a
v
in

g
s
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 l
if
e
 o

f 
th

e
 n

e
w

 s
e
rv

ic
e
.

T
h
e
re

 a
re

 c
o
n
ti
n
u
in

g
 p

re
s
s
u
re

s
 o

n
 t
h
e
 O

ff
ic

e
 

A
c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
 b

u
d
g
e
t 
a
ri

s
in

g
 f

ro
m

 d
e
la

ys
 i
n
 d

is
p
o
s
in

g
 

o
f 

v
a
c
a
n
t 
a
n
d
 u

n
d
e
ru

s
e
d
 o

ff
ic

e
 b

u
ild

in
g
s
 a

n
d
 p

re
s
s
u
re

 o
n
 

c
o
s
ts

 a
t 
E

a
s
t 
In

d
ia

 D
o
c
k
. 
 M

it
ig

a
ti
n
g
 a

c
ti
o
n
s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

p
u
rs

u
e
d
 t
o
 c

o
n
ta

in
 t
h
e
s
e
 c

o
s
ts

. 
T

h
e
 o

v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
 i
s
 l
e
s
s
 

th
a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 e

a
rl

ie
r 

in
 t
h
e
 y

e
a
r.

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 i
n
c
o
m

e
 d

u
e
 t
o
 l
e
v
e
l 
o
f 

a
c
ti
v
it
y 

w
it
h
 

p
a
ym

e
n
ts

 t
o
 c

lie
n
ts

 m
e
t 
b
y 

s
u
b
s
id

y.

O
v
e
rs

p
e
n
d
in

g
 o

n
 S

u
tt
o
n
 S

tr
e
e
t 
D

e
p
o
t 
n
o
w

 b
ro

u
g
h
t 
b
a
c
k
 

in
to

 u
s
e
 a

s
 o

ff
ic

e
 a

c
c
o
m

m
o
d
a
ti
o
n
.

T
h
e
 b

e
n
e
fi
ts

 a
d
m

in
 s

u
b
s
id

y 
g
ra

n
t 
w

a
s
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e
d
 t
o
 t
a
k
e
 

in
to

 a
c
c
o
u
n
t 
in

c
re

a
s
in

g
 c

la
im

a
n
t 
n
u
m

b
e
rs

 i
n
 2

0
0
9
-1

0
 a

s
 

a
 r

e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 U

K
 r

e
c
e
s
s
io

n
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 b

e
 r

e
d
u
c
e
d
 i
n
 

2
0
1
0
-1

1
. 
 

Page 203



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

 L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/1

0
 

(b
e
fo

re
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
) 

  
  
  
 

£
'0

0
0

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  

£
'0

0
0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 m

a
jo

r 
v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

£
1
0
0
k

R
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
  
  
  
  
 

£
'0

0
0

R
e
v
is

e
d

 

d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
1
4
,1

7
4

1
9
,1

3
6

1
7
,2

7
7

-1
,8

5
9

£
1
.1

m
 o

f 
a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
in

c
o
m

e
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n
 r

e
c
e
iv

e
d
 i
n
 

th
e
 f

o
rm

 o
f 

V
A

T
 r

e
fu

n
d
s
 d

a
ti
n
g
 b

a
c
k
 t
o
 t
h
e
 1

9
7
0
s
. 

In
 a

d
d
it
io

n
, 
a
c
ti
v
e
 m

a
n
a
g
e
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

c
a
s
h
 b

a
la

n
c
e
s
 

h
a
s
 a

llo
w

e
d
 t
h
e
 a

u
th

o
ri
ty

 t
o
 e

x
c
e
e
d
 t
a
rg

e
ts

 f
o
r 

in
v
e
s
tm

e
n
t 
in

c
o
m

e
, 
d
e
s
p
it
e
 h

is
to

ri
c
a
lly

 l
o
w

 i
n
te

re
s
t 

ra
te

s
. 

1
,2

7
1

-5
8
8

C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

E
 /
 C

A
P

IT
A

L
 F

IN
A

N
C

IN
G

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

Page 204



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

 L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

A
c
tu

a
l 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 

a
s
 a

t 
3
1
/0

3
/1

0
 

(b
e
fo

re
 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
) 

  
  

  
 

£
'0

0
0

D
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

  

£
'0

0
0

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 o

n
 m

a
jo

r 
v
a
ri

a
n

c
e
s
 o

v
e
r 

£
1
0
0
k

R
e
q

u
e
s
ts

 f
o

r 

tr
a
n

s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 

re
s
e
rv

e
s
  

  
  

  
 

£
'0

0
0

R
e
v
is

e
d

 

d
if

fe
re

n
c
e
 

b
e
tw

e
e
n

 

O
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a
te

s
t 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

2
,1

3
1

2
,1

3
1

2
,0

0
2

-1
2
9

-1
2
9

In
c
o
m

e
-2

,1
3
1

-2
,1

3
1

-2
,0

9
0

4
1

4
1

S
tr

e
e
t 

T
ra

d
in

g
 A

c
c
o

u
n

t
0

0
-8

8
-8

8
0

-8
8

E
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

1
,5

3
3

1
,5

3
3

1
,4

9
5

-3
8

-3
8

In
c
o
m

e
-1

,5
3
3

-1
,5

3
3

-1
,3

9
6

1
3
7

1
3
7

B
u

il
d

in
g

 C
o

n
tr

o
l 

A
c
c
o

u
n

t
0

0
9
9

9
9

0
9
9

T
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T
S

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

Page 205



A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 5
a

A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 5

A

O
ri

g
in

a
l 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

£
'0

0
0

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 

£
'0

0
0

A
c

tu
a

l 
O

u
tt

u
rn

 a
s

 

a
t 

3
1

/0
3

/1
0

 £
'0

0
0

 

(b
e

fo
re

 t
ra

n
s
fe

rs
 

to
/f

ro
m

 r
e

s
e

rv
e

s
)

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 

o
u

tt
u

rn
 a

n
d

 

L
a

te
s

t 
B

u
d

g
e

t 
 

£
'0

0
0

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

0

In
c
o

m
e

-5
8

,0
3

4
-5

8
,0

3
4

-5
7

,2
1

6
8

1
8

8
1

8

D
w

e
ll
in

g
 &

 N
o

n
 D

w
e

ll
in

g
 R

e
n

ts
-5

8
,0

3
4

-5
8

,0
3

4
-5

7
,2

1
6

8
1

8
0

8
1

8

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
6

,3
3

1
-1

6
,3

3
1

-1
8

,2
8

6
-1

,9
5

5
-1

,9
5

5

T
e

n
a

n
t 

&
 L

e
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
S

e
rv

ic
e

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

-1
6

,3
3

1
-1

6
,3

3
1

-1
8

,2
8

6
-1

,9
5

5
0

-1
,9

5
5

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
9

,3
4

4
-1

9
,3

4
4

-1
4

,9
3

0
4

,4
1

4
4

,4
1

4

G
o

v
e

rn
m

e
n

t 
S

u
b

s
id

y
-1

9
,3

4
4

-1
9

,3
4

4
-1

4
,9

3
0

4
,4

1
4

0
4

,4
1

4

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

0

In
c
o

m
e

-6
5

3
-6

5
3

-8
2

9
-1

7
6

-1
7

6

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 f
ro

m
 G

e
n

e
ra

l 
F

u
n

d
-6

5
3

-6
5

3
-8

2
9

-1
7

6
0

-1
7

6

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

0

In
c
o

m
e

-6
1

2
-6

1
2

-1
9

2
4

2
0

4
2

0

In
v

e
s

tm
e

n
t 

In
c

o
m

e
 R

e
c

e
iv

e
d

 (
It

e
m

 8
)

-6
1

2
-6

1
2

-1
9

2
4

2
0

0
4

2
0

G
ro

s
s

 H
R

A
 I
n

c
o

m
e

-9
4

,9
7

4
-9

4
,9

7
4

-9
1

,4
5

3
3

,5
2

1
0

3
,5

2
1

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

2
2

,9
0

1
2

2
,9

0
1

2
4

,3
1

5
1

,4
1

4
1

,4
1

4

In
c
o

m
e

0

R
e

p
a

ir
s

 &
 M

a
in

te
n

a
n

c
e

2
2

,9
0

1
2

2
,9

0
1

2
4

,3
1

5
1

,4
1

4
0

1
,4

1
4

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

2
5

,4
7

7
2

5
,4

7
7

2
7

,0
8

4
1

,6
0

7
1

,6
0

7

In
c
o

m
e

0
0

-3
3

6
-3

3
6

-3
3

6

S
u

p
e

rv
is

io
n

 &
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t
2

5
,4

7
7

2
5

,4
7

7
2

6
,7

4
8

1
,2

7
1

0
1

,2
7

1

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

1
6

,4
9

3
1

6
,4

9
3

1
6

,9
4

3
4

5
0

4
5

0

In
c
o

m
e

0

S
p

e
c

ia
l 
S

e
rv

ic
e

s
, 
R

e
n

t 
R

a
te

s
 &

 T
a

x
e

s
1

6
,4

9
3

1
6

,4
9

3
1

6
,9

4
3

4
5

0
0

4
5

0

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

9
0

0
9

0
0

-2
1

4
-1

,1
1

4
0

-1
,1

1
4

In
c
o

m
e

0

P
ro

v
is

io
n

 f
o

r 
B

a
d

 &
 D

o
u

b
tf

u
l 
D

e
b

ts
9

0
0

9
0

0
-2

1
4

-1
,1

1
4

0
-1

,1
1

4

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

3
5

,4
7

3
3

8
,4

7
3

3
3

,9
8

4
-4

,4
8

9
-4

,4
8

9

In
c
o

m
e

0

C
a

p
it

a
l 
F

in
a

n
c

in
g

 C
h

a
rg

e
s

3
5

,4
7

3
3

8
,4

7
3

3
3

,9
8

4
-4

,4
8

9
0

-4
,4

8
9

G
ro

s
s

 H
R

A
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

1
0

1
,2

4
4

1
0

4
,2

4
4

1
0

1
,7

7
6

-2
,4

6
8

0
-2

,4
6

8

N
e

t 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 B
e

fo
re

 R
e

s
e

rv
e

 U
s

a
g

e
6

,2
7

0
9

,2
7

0
1

0
,3

2
3

1
,0

5
3

0
1

,0
5

3

E
x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

0
0

0
0

0

In
c
o

m
e

-1
,9

7
0

-4
,9

7
0

-4
,5

1
6

4
5

4
4

5
4

C
o

n
tr

ib
u

ti
o

n
s

 f
ro

m
 R

e
s

e
rv

e
s

-1
,9

7
0

-4
,9

7
0

-4
,5

1
6

4
5

4
0

4
5

4

T
o

ta
l 
N

e
t 

H
R

A
 E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

4
,3

0
0

4
,3

0
0

5
,8

0
7

1
,5

0
7

0
1

,5
0

7

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 A

C
C

O
U

N
T

F
U

L
L

 Y
E

A
R

C
o

m
m

e
n

t/
R

is
k

 A
re

a

R
e

q
u

e
s

ts
 f

o
r 

tr
a

n
s

fe
rs

 t
o

/F
ro

m
 

E
a

r 
m

a
rk

e
d

 

re
s

e
rv

e
s

  
£

'0
0

0

R
e

v
is

e
d

 

d
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 o
u

tt
u

rn
 

a
n

d
 l
a

te
s

t 
b

u
d

g
e

t 
 

£
'0

0
0

R
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 r

e
n
t 
in

c
o

m
e

 d
u
e

 t
o

 r
e

s
id

u
a

l 
s
to

c
k
 t
ra

n
s
fe

r 
a

n
d

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
d

e
c
a

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 

re
g
e

n
e

ra
ti
o

n
 p

ro
je

c
ts

V
a

ri
a

n
c
e

 a
ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

  
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
lis

a
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 2

0
0

8
/0

9
  
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
. 

In
c
o

m
e

 i
s
 o

ff
s
e

t 
b
y
  
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
e

x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

 o
n
 r

e
p
a

ir
s
 a

n
d

 m
a

in
te

n
a

n
c
e

 r
e

c
o

v
e

re
d

 f
ro

m
 

le
a

s
e

h
o

ld
e

rs

L
o

s
s
 o

f 
H

o
u
s
in

g
 S

u
b
s
id

y
 r

e
s
u
lt
in

g
 f

ro
m

 a
 r

e
d

u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 t
h
e

 C
o

n
s
o

lid
a

te
d

 R
a

te
 I
n
te

re
s
t 

p
a

id
 o

n
 o

u
ts

ta
n
d

in
g
 d

e
b
t.
 T

h
e

 l
o

s
s
 o

f 
s
u
b
s
id

y
 i
s
 o

n
ly

 p
a

rt
ia

lly
 o

ff
s
e

t 
b
y
 a

 r
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 

c
a

p
it
a

l 
fi
n
a

n
c
in

g
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 p

a
id

. 

T
h
e

 b
u
d

g
e

t 
fo

r 
S

u
p
p
o

rt
in

g
 P

e
o

p
le

 C
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

o
k
 a

c
c
o

u
n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 T

e
n
a

n
t 
S

u
s
ta

in
m

e
n
t 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 t
ra

n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t
o

 a
 R

e
g
is

te
re

d
 S

o
c
ia

l 
L

a
n
d

lo
rd

. 
T

h
e

 d
a

te
 o

f 
tr

a
n
s
fe

r 
w

a
s
 d

e
la

y
e

d
 

re
s
u
lt
in

g
 i
n
 h

ig
h
e

r 
th

a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 S

P
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
s
. 

H
ig

h
e

r 
v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
re

p
a

ir
s
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

n
 t
h
a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 t
h
e

 r
e

v
e

n
u
e

 r
e

fu
rb

is
h
m

e
n
t 
o

f 

p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e

d
 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 t
h
e

 o
v
e

rc
ro

w
d

in
g
 s

tr
a

te
g
y

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
c
o

s
t 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 t
h
e

 f
in

a
l 
s
e

tt
le

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
th

e
 c

a
re

ta
k
e

rs
 b

u
y
 o

u
t 
s
c
h
e

m
e

. 
H

ig
h
e

r 

th
a

n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

o
m

p
e

n
s
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

h
o

u
s
in

g
 d

is
re

p
a

ir
 c

la
im

s
 m

a
d

e
 p

ri
o

r 
to

 t
h
e

 s
ta

rt
 o

f 

T
H

H
. 
 I
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
  
e

a
rl
y
 r

e
ti
re

m
e

n
t 
a

n
d

 r
e

d
u
n
d

a
n
c
y
 c

o
s
ts

. 
  

R
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 a

ri
s
in

g
 f

ro
m

  
lo

w
e

r 
in

te
re

s
t 
ra

te
s
 a

p
p
lie

d
 t
o

 a
ll 

in
te

rn
a

l 
b
o

rr
o

w
in

g
  
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 

a
ls

o
 a

 r
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 t
h
e

 p
la

n
n
e

d
 u

s
e

 o
f 

H
R

A
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

s
 d

u
ri
n
g
 t
h
e

 y
e

a
r

R
e

d
u
c
e

d
 c

o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 M
a

jo
r 

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 r

e
s
e

rv
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g
 t
h
e

 r
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 

d
e

p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
 o

n
 n

o
n
 d

w
e

lli
n
g
 H

R
A

 a
s
s
e

ts
.

A
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
e

x
p
e

n
d

it
u
re

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e

c
t 
o

f 
c
a

re
ta

k
e

rs
 c

o
s
ts

 a
c
c
o

m
p
a

n
ie

d
 b

y
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

d
 c

o
s
ts

 

o
f 

th
e

 e
s
ta

te
 p

a
rk

in
g
 s

c
h
e

m
e

 w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 n

o
t 
re

c
o

v
e

re
d

 t
h
ro

u
g
h
 f

e
e

 i
n
c
o

m
e

D
u
e

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

d
 c

o
lle

c
ti
o

n
 r

a
te

s
 t
h
e

 p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

b
a

d
 d

e
b
ts

 i
n
 r

e
s
p
e

c
t 
o

f 
le

a
s
e

h
o

ld
e

r 

s
e

rv
ic

e
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 r

e
d

u
c
e

d
. 
T

h
is

 i
s
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 t
h
e

 r
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 b

a
d

 d
e

b
t 

p
ro

v
is

io
n
 f

o
r 

s
h
o

p
s
 a

n
d

 c
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l 
p
ro

p
e

rt
ie

s

R
e

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 I
te

m
 8

 i
n
te

re
s
t 
fo

llo
w

in
g
 a

 l
o

w
e

r 
th

a
n
 a

n
ti
c
ip

a
te

d
 c

o
n
s
o

lid
a

te
d

 r
a

te
 o

f 

in
te

re
s
t.
 T

h
is

 i
s
 i
n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
 t
o

 r
e

d
u
c
e

d
 d

e
p
re

c
ia

ti
o

n
 c

h
a

rg
e

s
 o

n
 n

o
n
 d

w
e

lli
n
g
 H

R
A

 a
s
s
e

ts
 

w
h
ic

h
 i
s
 o

ff
s
e

t 
b
y
 a

 c
o

n
tr

ib
u
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 M
a

jo
r 

R
e

p
a

ir
s
 R

e
s
e

rv
e

Page 206



 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 6
 

 
R

E
Q

U
E

S
T

E
D

 C
A

R
R

Y
-F

O
R

W
A

R
D

S
  

A
N

D
 U

S
E

 O
F

 R
E

S
E

R
V

E
S

 
 

 

D
ir

e
c
to

ra
te

 
D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti

o
n

 
A

m
o

u
n

t 
(£

’0
0

0
) 

D
e
ta

il
 

U
N

B
U

D
G

E
T

E
D

 T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
 R

E
Q

U
IR

IN
G

 M
E

M
B

E
R

 A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

  

A
d
u
lt
s
, 
H

e
a
lt
h
 &

 W
e
llb

e
in

g
 

A
c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
P

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 

3
0
1
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

it
e
m

s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 s

ti
m

u
la

ti
n
g
 

a
d
d
it
io

n
a
l 
lu

n
c
h
 p

ro
v
is

io
n
, 

s
o
c
ia

l 
e
v
e
n
ts

 f
o
r 

o
ld

e
r 

p
e
o
p
le

 a
n

d
 o

ld
e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

’s
 

c
h
a
m

p
io

n
s
. 
 

T
o

ta
l 

A
H

W
B

  
  

3
0
1
 

  

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
R

e
g
is

tr
a
r’

s
 

5
0
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 c

o
n
s
tr

u
c
ti
o
n
 o

f 
 

a
 s

ta
ir
c
a
s
e
 a

t 
B

ro
m

le
y
 

R
e
g
is

tr
a
r’

s
 O

ff
ic

e
 a

n
d
 

s
u
b
s
e
q

u
e
n
t 

re
d
e
c
o
ra

ti
o
n
 

w
o
rk

s
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
M

ig
ra

ti
o
n
 I

m
p
a
c
t 

F
u
n
d

 
1
1
 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

p
la

n
n
e

d
 I

m
p
a
c
t 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
T

h
ir

d
 S

e
c
to

r 
7
0
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 o
f 
th

e
 

T
h
ir

d
 S

e
c
to

r 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 i
n
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
A

c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 
P

ri
o
ri

ti
e
s
 

4
2
9
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 C

a
b
in

e
t 

a
p
p
ro

v
e
d
 

a
c
c
e
le

ra
te

d
 d

e
liv

e
ry

 
p
ri
o
ri
ti
e
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 t

h
e
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 L

e
a

d
e
rs

h
ip

 S
k
ill

s
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

(£
2
0
k
),

 C
o

u
n
c
il 

fo
r 

V
o
lu

n
ta

ry
 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s
 (

£
1
0
5
k
),

 a
 

Page 207



“C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y
 C

h
e
s
t”

 t
o
 f

u
n
d
 

s
m

a
ll 

g
ra

n
ts

 f
o
r 

T
h
ir

d
 S

e
c
to

r 
o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
s
 (

£
3

0
0
k
) 

a
n
d
 

th
e
 D

e
liv

e
ry

 T
e
a
m

 (
£

4
k
) 

in
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

C
E

 T
o

ta
l 
 

  
5
6
0
 

  

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

S
p
e
c
ia

l 
N

e
e

d
s
 

-9
3
 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t
o
 f

u
n
d
 s

p
e

c
ia

l 
n
e
e
d
s
 w

o
rk

 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

U
n
a
p

p
lie

d
 R

a
te

 R
e

b
a
te

s
 

-5
9
1
 

T
o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h

o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

to
c
k
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

C
S

F
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
-6

8
4
 

  

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 
C

u
lt
u
re

 (
tr

a
n
s
fe

rr
in

g
 t

o
 C

h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

) 
  

P
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s
 

4
4
6
 

T
o
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 t
h

e
 c

o
s
ts

 o
f 

p
a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

 r
e
v
ie

w
 i
n
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 
C

u
lt
u
re

 
D

ru
g
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n
t 

In
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

1
0
0
 

C
a
rr

y
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 o
f 

u
n
s
p
e
n
t 

g
ra

n
t 

fo
r 

u
s
e
 i
n
 2

0
1
0
/1

1
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 
C

u
lt
u
re

 
P

a
rk

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
A

c
c
o
u

n
t 

1
,8

2
8
 

T
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 f

o
r 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 

a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 a

c
c
o
rd

a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 

th
e
 R

o
a
d
 T

ra
ff
ic

 A
c
t 
1
9
9
4
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 
C

u
lt
u
re

 
F

o
o

d
 W

a
s
te

 R
e
c
y
c
lin

g
 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

-2
2
0
 

T
o
 h

e
lp

 t
o
 p

ro
g
re

s
s
 t

h
e
 

W
a
s
te

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 P

ro
c
u
re

m
e
n
t 

in
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 
C

u
lt
u
re

 
C

iv
il 

C
o
n
ti
n
g
e

n
c
ie

s
 

-1
1
7
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 f

o
u
r 

s
e
p

a
ra

te
 

p
ro

je
c
ts

 i
d
e
n
ti
fi
e
d
 b

y
 t

h
e
 

B
u
s
in

e
s
s
 C

o
n
ti
n
u
it
y
 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 G

ro
u
p
 

Page 208



C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 &

 
C

u
lt
u
re

 
T

o
w

e
r 

H
a
m

le
ts

 M
e
la

 
-1

5
5
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

m
a
n
a

g
e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 

o
rg

a
n
is

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
th

e
 M

e
la

 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
 a

n
d
 t

o
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 

c
re

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
a
 n

e
w

 c
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

tr
u
s
t 
to

 d
e
liv

e
r 

th
e
 M

e
la

 i
n
 

fu
tu

re
 y

e
a
rs

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

D
e
c
e

n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 

-3
7
8
 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t
o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 

h
o
u
s
in

g
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 r

e
la

te
d
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 

C
L

C
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
1
,5

0
4
 

  

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 R

e
n
e

w
a
l 

T
h
ir

d
 P

a
rt

y
 L

o
a
n
s
 

3
5
0
 

T
o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

a
n

y
 

d
e
fa

u
lt
 i
n
 r

e
s
p

e
c
t 
o
f 

a
 t
h
ir
d
 

p
a
rt

y
 l
o

a
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 R

e
n
e

w
a
l 

O
c
e
a

n
 N

e
w

 D
e
a
l 
fo

r 
C

o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
 

1
0
0
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 r

e
s
id

e
n
t 

w
a
rd

e
n
s
 p

ro
je

c
t 

in
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 O

c
e
a
n
 N

D
C

 
re

g
e
n
e
ra

ti
o

n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
m

e
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 R

e
n
e

w
a
l 

C
ro

s
s
ra

il 
-6

0
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 t

h
e

 
d
e
ta

ile
d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 b

e
tw

e
e

n
 

th
e
 C

o
u
n
c
il 

a
n
d
 t
h

e
 

D
e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
t 

o
f 

T
ra

n
s
p
o
rt

 a
n
d
 

C
ro

s
s
 L

o
n
d

o
n
 R

a
il 

L
in

k
s
 

o
v
e
r 

th
e
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
in

g
, 

d
e
s
ig

n
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 R

e
n
e

w
a
l 

N
e
ig

h
b

o
u
rh

o
o
d
 R

e
n
e

w
a
l 

-4
6
8
 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t
o
 f

u
n
d
 l
e
g
a
c
y 

Page 209



is
s
u
e
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 D

a
v
e
n

a
n
t 

C
e
n
tr

e
 (

£
3

5
0
k
) 

a
n

d
 t

ra
n
s
fe

r 
to

 R
e
g
e
n

e
ra

ti
o

n
 I

s
s
u
e
s
 

R
e
s
e
rv

e
 (

£
1
1
8
k
) 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

a
n

d
 R

e
n
e

w
a
l 

B
u
ild

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 

-2
4
7
 

T
o
 p

a
rt

 f
u
n
d
 t

h
e
 i
n
 y

e
a

r 
d
e
fi
c
it
 o

n
 t
h
e
 B

u
ild

in
g
 

C
o
n
tr

o
l 
A

c
c
o
u

n
t 

fo
r 

2
0

0
9
/1

0
 

a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e
 p

ro
c
e
s
s
 t
o
 

e
n
s
u
re

 t
h
e
 A

c
c
o
u

n
t 

is
 s

e
lf
 

fi
n
a
n
c
in

g
 o

v
e

r 
a
 t
h

re
e
 y

e
a

rs
’ 

p
e
ri

o
d
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 

 a
n

d
 R

e
n

e
w

a
l 

L
a
n
d
 C

h
a
rg

e
s
 

7
1
 

C
re

a
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 s

u
rp

lu
s
 

g
e
n
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 l
a
n

d
 c

h
a
rg

e
s
 

to
 b

e
 t

a
k
e

n
 i
n
to

 a
c
c
o

u
n
t 

w
h
e

n
 s

e
tt
in

g
 t

h
e
 f

e
e
 

s
tr

u
c
tu

re
s
 f

o
r 

th
e
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 f

o
r 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 a

n
d
 b

e
y
o
n

d
 

D
&

R
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
-2

5
4
 

  

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

H
o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 

1
9
3
 

T
o
 m

a
tc

h
 t

h
e
 r

e
d
u
c
ti
o
n
 i
n
 

D
W

P
 H

o
u
s
in

g
 B

e
n
e
fi
ts

 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
a
ti
o
n
 S

u
b
s
id

y
 i
n
 

2
0
1
0
/1

1
 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

P
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
C

o
m

p
u
te

rs
 R

e
fr

e
s
h
 

6
2
 

T
o
 r

e
p
la

c
e
 a

ll 
d
e
s
k
to

p
/l
a
p
to

p
 

p
e
rs

o
n
a
l 
c
o
m

p
u
te

rs
 o

v
e
r 

a
 

fo
u
r 

y
e
a

r 
p

e
ri

o
d
 

R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

e
-G

o
v
e
rn

m
e
n
t 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

-6
8
9
 

A
p
p
lic

a
ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

s
e
rv

e
 t
o
 

fu
n
d
 H

R
 I
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 

P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 a

n
d
 R

2
P

 
p
ro

je
c
ts

  
 

Page 210



R
e
s
o

u
rc

e
s
 T

o
ta

l 
 

  
-4

3
4
 

  

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
  

E
le

c
ti
o
n
s
 

7
5
 

T
h
e
 a

m
o
u
n
t 
h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

e
x
p
e
n
d

e
d
 o

n
 r

u
n
n
in

g
 t

h
e
 

M
a

y
 2

0
1
0
 e

le
c
ti
o
n
s
  

 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

E
ff

ic
ie

n
c
y
 R

e
s
e

rv
e
 

1
,1

9
6
 

F
u
n

d
s
 g

e
n
e
ra

te
d
 b

y
 a

 r
e
v
ie

w
 

o
f 

V
A

T
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 

th
e
 c

o
s
t 

o
f 

te
c
h
n
o
lo

g
y
 d

ri
v
e

n
 e

ff
ic

ie
n
c
y
 

in
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 T
o

ta
l 

  
1
,2

7
1
 

  

T
O

T
A

L
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
S

 R
E

Q
U

IR
IN

G
 A

P
P

R
O

V
A

L
  

2
,2

6
4
 

  

 
 

 
 

B
U

D
G

E
T

E
D

 O
R

 P
R

E
-A

P
P

R
O

V
E

D
 T

R
A

N
S

F
E

R
S

 T
O

 a
n

d
 F

R
O

M
 R

E
S

E
R

V
E

S
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
M

is
c
e
lla

n
e
o
u
s
 I

n
fo

rm
a
ti
o
n
 

T
e
c
h
n

o
lo

g
y
 P

ro
je

c
ts

 
-2

1
3
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 v

a
ri
o
u
s
 I

T
 p

ro
je

c
ts

 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

C
h
ie

f 
E

x
e
c
u
ti
v
e
’s

 
C

o
rp

o
ra

te
 I

n
it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

-3
5
0
 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t
o
 u

n
d
e
rw

ri
te

 
v
a
ri
o
u
s
 c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

im
p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
t 
a

n
d
 

d
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t 
in

it
ia

ti
v
e
s
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

U
n
a
p

p
lie

d
 R

a
te

 R
e

b
a
te

s
 

-5
8
7
 

T
o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n
 

th
e
 C

h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h

o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 b

u
ild

in
g
 s

to
c
k
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
/1

1
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s
, 

L
o
c
a
lit

ie
s
 a

n
d
 

C
u
lt
u
re

 
P

a
rk

in
g
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
A

c
c
o
u

n
t 

-9
5
7
 

U
s
e
d
 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 f

o
r 

o
p
e
ra

ti
o
n
a
l 
a
c
ti
v
it
ie

s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 R

o
a
d
 

T
ra

ff
ic

 A
c
t 

1
9
9
4
 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 

S
c
h
o

o
ls

 a
n
d
 

F
a
m

ili
e
s
 

S
c
h
o
o
ls

’ 
D

e
le

g
a
te

d
 

B
a
la

n
c
e
s
 

-1
,4

2
5
 

D
e
fi
c
it
 o

n
 s

c
h
o

o
ls

’ 
b
u
d

g
e
ts

 
c
a
rr

ie
d
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 t
o
 f

u
tu

re
 

y
e

a
rs

 

Page 211



C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e
 R

e
la

te
d
 G

ra
n
t 

-1
,8

0
5
 

T
o
 d

e
liv

e
r 

in
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 

im
p
ro

v
e
d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 i
n
 

a
c
c
o

rd
a
n
c
e
 w

it
h
 t

h
e
 L

o
c
a
l 

A
re

a
 A

g
re

e
m

e
n
t 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

A
re

a
 B

a
s
e

d
 G

ra
n
t 
R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

-2
,0

2
0
 

T
o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 i
n
 2

0
0
9
/1

0
 

(£
2
,3

2
1
) 

p
a
rt

ly
 o

ff
s
e
t 
b
y
 

c
a
rr

y
in

g
 f

o
rw

a
rd

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 

g
ra

n
t 

in
to

 2
0

1
0
/1

1
 (

£
3
0
1
) 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

5
0
0
 

B
u
d

g
e
te

d
 a

n
n
u
a
l 

c
o
n
tr

ib
u
ti
o
n
  
to

 t
h

e
 F

u
n
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

In
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 R

e
s
e
rv

e
 

-1
,8

6
2
 

A
s
 a

 r
e
s
u
lt
 o

f 
th

e
 a

c
tu

a
ry

’s
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
o
te

n
ti
a
l 

lia
b
ili

ti
e
s
 t

h
is

 s
u
m

 w
a
s
 

tr
a
n
s
fe

rr
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 F

u
n
d
 i
n
 

2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

O
ly

m
p
ic

 L
e

g
a
c
y
  

-6
6
0
 

T
o
 f

u
n
d
 t

h
e
 O

ly
m

p
ic

 D
e
liv

e
ry

 
T

e
a
m

  

C
o
rp

o
ra

te
 

D
e
c
e

n
t 

H
o
m

e
s
 

-3
,6

2
5
 

In
 2

0
0

9
/1

0
 t
o
 f

in
a
n
c
e
 c

a
p
it
a
l 

e
x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

 (
£
3
,6

2
5
k
) 

 

 

Page 212



EFFICIENCY SAVINGS SUMMARY 2009-10 APPENDIX 7

Reported Annual Achieved 

Efficiency Gains savings Explanation/Consequences

for year

2009/10 2009/10

£000 £000

Adults Health & Wellbeing

SAV/AHWB/01 Efficiencies in Management & Monitoring of Home care 171 196

SAV/AHWB/02 Improved efficiency of procurement of Supplies & Services 150 150

SAV/AHWB/04 Restructuring of Hospital Social Work Services 129 129

SAV/AHWB/05 Business Process Re-engineering 586 586

sub-total 1,036                  1,061                

Children Schools and Families

SAV/CS/02 Streamlining Support for Families in need 46 20 The £20K for Early Years has been achieved. However the 

£26k savings target for G50 was not achieved due to most 

senior staff being at the top of their salary scale as well as 

recruitment of agency staff and the effect of retention 

payment for social workers.

SAV/CS/03 Children’s Social Care Commissioning 150 0 The overspend on G54 for 2009/2010, at 0.5 per cent of the 

budget, was caused by an increase in the number of Looked 

After Children in the last quarter of 2009/2010. The number 

of Looked After Children at the end of December was 327. 

At the end of January this had increased to 336; by the end 

of February this had increased to 353; and at the end of 

March it had increased to 355. This is an overall percentage 

increase of 8.5 per cent. The effect of these additional 28 

clients was to cancel the savings anticipated at CRBM Q3.

SAV/CS/04 Organisational Restructure YPL 40 40

SAV/CS/05 Invest to Save - Attendance Welfare Service 79 79

Attendance & Welfare services (G62) under budget overall 

for 2009/2010

SAV/CS/06 Non-Statutory Support to Schools 25 25

SAV/CS/08 Vendor Managed Service 30 30

SAV/CS/09 Integration of Children's Services 456 456 Achieved

SAV/CS/10 Young People Outside School 40 40 Achieved through recycling of the Find Your Talent grant

SAV/CS/11 Lifelong Learning 60 0 New Structure did not go live until 1st April 2010

SAV/CS/12 Review of Non-Statutory Provision 250 0 Target Savings totalling £67,700 for G51,G52 and G53 were 

not achieved owing to a combination of a regrading exercise 

in Childrens Residential costing £45K and the affect of 

'Retention ' payments for Social Workers, impacting for the 

last quarter of 2009/10.The Retention payments also 

impacted on well documented overspends for G57 Fieldwork 

which had a target of £84,100, G58 of £4,400 and G59 of 

£3,200, which were also not achieved. Total savings target 

SAV/CS/13 Early Years Advisory Team 50 50

SAV/CS/14 Streamlining Extended Provisions 30

0

Restructuring was not implemented in 2009/2010

SAV/CS/15 Restructure Quality & Audit Team 24 24

SAV/CS/16 EYCL Efficiencies 191

166

Despite application of grant funding where possible, savings 

of £191K on 81001 (G10) missed by £25.5

SAV/CS/01/09 Service Reviews 195 195 The staffing review was completed, with allocations across 

the department agreed by DMT, and full year savings being 

generated in 2010/11. There was slippage in implementing 

the savings, but, as reported in the previous quarters, the 

2009/10 saving was realised.

SAV/CS/02/09 Unit Cost Analysis - Children's Social Care 229 229 A detailed unit cost methodology was completed and DMT  

agreed allocations for the full year savings in support 

services across the department for 2010/11. There has been 

slippage in implementing these savings, but, as reported in 

the previous quarters, the 2009/10 saving was realised.

SAV/CS/03/09 Running Costs - Young People and Learning 715 715 The savings were applied to non-staff budgets across CSFD 

and reflected in budget monitoring positions. These have all 

been met.

sub-total 2,610                  2,069                

Communities, Localities & Culture

SAV/CLC/01 Idea Stores income initiative

80 80 Income initiatives will not be realised mainly as result of loss 

of TH College funding. Compensatory savings achieved on 

book purchases, via consortium purchasing arrangements 

with 8 other London Boroughs.

SAV/CLC/03 Ideas Store - Procurement 100 100

SAV/CLC/04 Reduce Street Light Maintenance 35 35

SAV/CLC/05 Traffic Enhancements - reduce provision 127 127

SAV/CLC/09 Highways Maintenance - Reduce Reactive Maintenance 45 45

Cumulative 2009/10 efficiency gains

Page 213



EFFICIENCY SAVINGS SUMMARY 2009-10 APPENDIX 7

Reported Annual Achieved 

Efficiency Gains savings Explanation/Consequences

for year

2009/10 2009/10

£000 £000

Cumulative 2009/10 efficiency gains

SAV/CLC/10 Closure of Parking shop 175 175

Full savings not achieved via Closure of Parking shop due to 

delays in finalising restructure, compensated by reduction in 

Contact Centre cost due to introduction of Interactive Voice 

Response

SAV/CLC/14 Car Pound 90 90 Savings not achieved due to requirement to vacate current 

car pound location. Compensatory efficiency savings being 

achieved via increased income resulting from improved 

quality of PCN Issues facilitated via digital images.

SAV/CLC/12 Asset Management System 45 45

Delays in the introduction of the AMS has resulted in 

compensatory savings being achieved 

sub-total 697                     697                   

Development & Renewal: 

SAV/COR/01 Horizontal Savings 5 5

SAV/DR/02 Utilisation of IT to produce Planning Consultation 

Documents

10 0 The suitability of the required software package is being 

considered. It is unlikely that any savings will be generated 

from the package in 2009-10

SAV/DR/05 Digitisation Project 60 0 It is assumed that there will be no efficiency savings realised 

in 2009-2010 or future years due to changes in the Local 

Land Charges legislation. The shortfall is being funded by the 

Directorate in the current year and compensatory savings 

have been made in the Medium Term Financial plan for 

Energy Services.

SAV/COR/01 Horizontal Savings - Housing General fund 7 7

SAV/DR/01/09 Review of Subscriptions 69 52

SAV/DR/02/09 Technical Support to Planning & Building control 51 51

SAV/DR/03/09 Review of Housing Related Employment 150 150 All of the efficiency savings will be realised towards the end 

of the financial year.

SAV/DR/04/09 Additional Gershon Savings 45 45

sub-total 397 310

Chief Executive's

SAV/CE/06 Reduction in Communications Expenditure 69 65 Compensating savings made in production cost of EEL

SAV/CE/07 Registration Services 40 40

Increased volume of citizenship ceremonies generating 

income

sub-total 109 105

Resources 

SAV/CE/05 Procurement of agency staff  through vendor management 20 15

SAV/CE/08 Re-provision of Care Alarm Service 150 0 Implementation of Shared Services delayed until 2010/11

SAV/DR/04 Corporate Match funding 20 15

SAV/CE/09

Re-provision of OOO service 125 167

Implementation of this initiative has progressed faster than 

anticipated.

SAV/CE/10 Centralised HR Shared Services 150 142

SAV/DR/06 Imp Eff in the Administration of Benefits 110 113

sub-total 575 452

Corporate

SAV/COR/01 Business rates Relief 250 424

sub-total 250 424

Total 5,674 5,118

Page 214



  1 of 36      

COMMITTEE: 
Overview and 
Scrutiny 

DATE:  
3 August 2010 

CLASSIFICATION: 
 
UNRESTRICTED 

REPORT NO. AGENDA ITEM 
NO. 9.3 

REPORT OF: 
 
KEVAN COLLINS 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
ORIGINATING OFFICER(S): 
 
RUTH DOWDEN 
CORPORATE COMPLAINTS MANAGER 

TITLE: 
 

CORPORATE COMPLAINTS AND 
SOCIAL CARE COMPLAINTS 

ANNUAL REPORT   
2009 2010 

 
                                 Wards Affected:  ALL 
 

1. Summary 
1.1 This report contains a summary of complaints received by the Council in the period 1 

April 2009 to 31 March 2010 through the Corporate Complaints Procedure, Children’s 
Social Care and Adults Social Care Complaints Procedures and those received and 
determined by the Local Government Ombudsman in the same period. This report 
fulfils the statutory requirements under the Children Act 1989 to produce an annual 
report. 

 
1.2 Under the Corporate Complaints procedure there are significant improvements in 

response times at each of the three stages. 
 
1.3 Radical changes in the statutory Adults Social Care Complaints procedure has resulted 

in a greater focus on early resolution and community outreach, as well as placing the 
complainant at the heart of the process.  

 
1.4 Children’s Social Care Complaints continue under the three stage statutory process.  
 
1.5 The Local Government Ombudsman has commented positively in the Annual Letter to 

the Council about our focus on local resolution, and prompt responses. 
 
1.6 The Complaints Service is accredited with the Customer Service Excellent Award. 
 

2. Recommendations 
 
2.1 Note the content of the report. 
  
2.2      Comment on how the issues arising from the report could inform the Overview and 

Scrutiny work programme. 
  
 

Agenda Item 9.2

Page 215



  2 of 36      

 
 
 

Complaints 
Annual Report 

 
2009-2010 

 
 

Page 216



  3 of 36      

Contents         
 
Section 1 Introduction 
 
Section 2 Corporate Complaints 
 
Section 3  Adults Social Care Complaints 
 
Section 4  Children’s Social Care Complaints  
 
Section 5  Ombudsman Complaints 
 
Section 6  Risk Assessment 
 
Section 7  Improvement Initiatives 

Page 217



  4 of 36      

1 INTRODUCTION 
 

1.1 This report addresses the volume of complaints received by the Council in the period 1 April 
2009 to 31 March 2010, the outcomes and the standard of performance in dealing with them. 
 

1.2 The Corporate Complaints Team work within the Customer Access division. The team 
comprises six members of staff, who register complaints under all stages of the Council’s 
Corporate Complaints Procedure (see section 2), the statutory Adults and Children’s Social 
Care Complaints Procedures (see sections 3 & 4), and those investigated by the Local 
Government Ombudsman (see section 5). The officers monitor complaint progression and 
provide management information on performance.  

 
1.3 Officers also investigate some Adults Social Care complaints and stage 2 Children’s Social 

Care complaints, and stage 3 corporate complaints on behalf of the Chief Executive.  
 
1.4 Most successful organisations encourage service users to complain, and as such a high 

volume of complaints is often an indication of a healthy relationship with service users. 
However, complaints should be resolved at the lowest possible point and the escalation of 
complaints can indicate difficulties in addressing matters at the service level. 

 
The Complaints Team’s role is to:- 

 
• receive complaints, enquiries and representations from service users and carers across all 

Council services including Adults’ and Children’s Social Care; 
• support front line services by advising on statutory duties, internal policies and 

procedures; 
• offer training and support to staff in resolving complaints; 
• undertake complaint investigations as appropriate; 
• organise and facilitate Independent Review Panels; 
• liaise with the Local Government Ombudsman, handling all such complaint enquiries; 
• provide reports to Team Managers and the Directorate Management Teams on a regular 

basis regarding the trends and progress of complaints; 
• facilitate advocacy and support to complainants; and, 
• ensure effective access for all service users to the statutory and non-statutory processes. 

 
 

1.5 THE CORORATE COMPLAINTS PROCEDURE 
 
1.5.1 The Corporate Complaints Procedure is a three stage process, accepting issues from anyone 

who wants or receives a service from the Council, except where the matter is covered by 
another channel of redress, such as a legal or appeal process (e.g. benefits, parking penalty 
charges, leasehold matters), or where a statutory procedure exists.  

 
 At stages 1 & 2, the matter is addressed by the relevant service managers, and the final stage 

is an independent investigation by the complaints team on behalf of the Chief Executive.  
 

Page 218



  5 of 36      

1.6 ADULTS SOCIAL CARE PROCEDURES 
 
1.6.1 The Local Authority Social Services and National Health Services Complaints (England) 

Regulations 2009, in respect of the Health and Social Care (Community Health and 
Standards) Act 2003 sets out the process for considering Adult Social Care and Health 
complaints. The key principles require Local Authorities to:- 

• consider Adults Social Care complaints once only;  
• involve the complainant in agreeing the method and likely timeframe for the investigation; 
• establish desired outcomes; and, 
• provide a unified approach to joint investigations with other bodies such as PCTs and other 

partners.  
 

1.6.2 The revised statutory complaint procedures came into place for Adults Social Care 
Complaints on 1 April 2009 and the new procedure can be found on the Council’s website.  

  
1.6.3 The Council places a strong emphasis on the informal resolution of complaints and in 

assisting Social Care Teams in effectively managing and resolving complaints. 
 
1.7 CHILDREN’S SOCIAL CARE PROCEDURES 
 
1.7.1  There is a legal requirement under the Children Act 1989 for Local Authorities to have a 

system for receiving representations and complaints by, or on behalf of, people who use 
social care services, or their carers. 

 
1.7.2 The Children’s Complaints Procedure has three stages.  
 

Stage 1 Complaints – Initial 
  
Team Managers are required to provide a written response to complaints within 10 working 
days. There is a possible extension to 20 working days to allow for a local resolution and 
where complaints are complex. 

 
Stage 2 Complaints – Formal 

 
Investigations should be completed within 25 working days. However this can be extended to 
65 working days in negotiation with the complainant due to the complexity of complaints. 
 
An Independent Person is appointed to oversee formal complaints at Stage 2 relating to 
children and young people. This is a legislative requirement under the Children Act (1989) 
and ensures that there is an impartial element. 

 
The report is passed to the Head of Service and an internal adjudication meeting is held 
before the report and outcomes are shared with the service user. 
 
Stage 3 Complaints – Independent Review Panel. 

 
An Independent Review Panel can review the case in the presence of the complainant and 
Service Head, and where appropriate make recommendations to the relevant Director.  

 
Page 219



  6 of 36      

1.8 THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN 
 
1.8.1   The Local Government Ombudsman is an independent watchdog to oversee the 

administration of Local Authorities, and considers complaints (usually) after the complainant 
has exhausted the internal complaints procedure, or Adults and Children’s Complaints 
Procedures, as appropriate, and covers Education matters.  

 
1.9 ENQUIRIES, COMMENTS AND COMPLIMENTS  
 
1.9.1 In order to fully capture the team’s contact with the public, all telephone and written enquiries 

are also recorded on the complaints component of the Council’s Customer Relationship 
Management (CRM) database, see table 1.1 below. 

 
   

  2008/09 2009/10 Variance 

Comments 7 6 -1 -14% 

Compliments 36 65 29 81% 

Enquiries 485 589 104 21% 
 Figure 1.1 
 
1.9.2 Volumes of compliments and comments recorded are increasing slowly. Although progress is 

slow, capturing compliments centrally will lead to useful data on good practice. 
 

Compliments

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

Compliments 36 65
2008/09 2009/10

 Figure 1.2 
 

Page 220



  7 of 36      

2 CORPORATE COMPLAINT STATISTICS AND ANALYSIS 2009 TO 2010 
 
2.1 VOLUME OF COMPLAINTS  
        

VOLUME OF COMPLAINTS 
   

01/04/2008 
31/03/2009 

 
01/04/2009 
31/03/2010 

 
Change 

Stage 1 2332 2292 -40 -2% 
  83% 81%     
Stage 2 344 361 17 5% 
  12% 13%     
Stage 3 120 184 64 53% 
  4% 6%     
Sum: 2796 2837 41 1% 

 
Figure 2.1 
 

2.1.2 Figure 2.1 shows that the total number of complaints received by the Council in the year is 
slightly lower than in the previous year, but the proportion escalated to stages 2 and 3 has 
increased. 

 
2.1.3 In 2007/08 there were 87 stage 3 complaints, with 120 stage 3 complaints in 2008/09, and 

184 in 2009/10. A further analysis of these records follows at section 2.4. 
 

ESCLATION OF COMPLAINTS  
  01/04/2007   

31/04/2008 
01/04/2008 
31/03/2009 

01/04/2009 
31/03/2010 

Stage 1 2152 2332 2292 
Stage 2 333 344 361 
Stage 3 87 120 184 
Escalated from Stage 1 to Stage 2 15.4% 12.3% 12.7% 
Escalated from Stage 2 to Stage 3 4% 4.3% 6.5% 

 
Figure 2.2  

 
2.1.4 Figure 2.2 indicates an increase in the rate of escalation, and this is being monitored for each 

service area. 
  
2.1.5 Figure 2.3 (below) demonstrates the seasonal trends and peaks in the reporting of 

complaints. 

Page 221



  8 of 36      

 Figure 2.3 
 
2.1.6 There is no obvious reason for the peaks which occur at different times year on year. 

Nevertheless any increases for individual services are discussed with the relevant managers 
and monitored. 

 
2.1.7 Performance management through a variety of measures, including the use of weekly lists of 

complaints due and outstanding distributed to the Corporate Management Team, and monthly 
directorate performance figures, have effectively driven up response times.  (see Section 2.2 
overleaf) 

 
2.1.8 The Corporate Management Team and Directorate Management Teams review reports on 

complaints each quarter in order to focus on areas of concern, both in terms of performance 
and service quality.  

 
 

0 

50 

100 

150 

200 

250 

April May June July August September October November December January February March 
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 

No
. o

f S
tag

es
   2

00
9 /
 10
 

Page 222



 
 

9 
of
 3
6 

   
  

 2.
2 

CO
RP

O
RA

TE
 C
O
M
PL

AI
NT

S 
BY

 D
IR
EC

TO
RA

TE
. 

CO
RP

O
RA

TE
 C
O
M
PL

AI
NT

S 
BY

 D
IR
EC

TO
RA

TE
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

St
ag

e 1
 

01
/04

/20
08
 

31
/03

/20
09
 

Ch
an

ge
 

01
/04

/20
09
 

31
/03

/20
10
 

No
t U

ph
eld

 
Pa

rti
all
y 

Up
he

ld 
Up

he
ld 

Wi
thd

raw
n o

r 
Re

fer
red

 O
n 

Co
mp

let
ed

 In
 

Tim
e 

Av
era

ge
 

Da
ys
 to

 
Co

mp
let

e 
Ad

ult
s H

ea
lth

 &
 W

ell
be
ing

 
7 

-3 
-43

% 
4 

3 
75
%
 

0 
0%

 
1 

25
%
 

0 
0%

 
3 

75
% 

9 
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti

ve
's 

32
 

3 
9%

 
35
 

25
 

71
%
 

6 
17
%
 

4 
11
%
 

0 
0%

 
33
 

94
% 

7 
Ch

ild
ren

 Sc
ho

ols
 an

d F
am

ilie
s 

29
 

-6 
-21

% 
23
 

13
 

57
%
 

3 
13
%
 

7 
30
%
 

0 
0%

 
17
 

74
% 

10
 

CL
C 

82
0 

- 95
 

-12
% 

72
5 

37
2 

51
%
 

15
4 

21
%
 

17
4 

24
%
 

25
 

3%
 

65
4 

90
% 

8 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

& 
Re

ne
wa

l 
18
5 

17
 

9%
 

20
2 

14
6 

72
%
 

21
 

10
%
 

17
 

8%
 

18
 

9%
 

16
8 

83
% 

8 
Re

so
ur
ce
s 

29
3 

84
 

29
% 

37
7 

14
5 

38
%
 

16
7 

44
%
 

57
 

15
%
 

8 
2%

 
36
7 

97
% 

5 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es
 

96
6 

- 40
 

-4%
 

92
6 

45
7 

49
%
 

9 
1%

 
44
4 

48
%
 

16
 

2%
 

86
8 

94
% 

9 
To

tal
s 

23
32
 

- 40
 

-2%
 

22
92
 

11
61
 

51
% 

36
0 

16
% 

70
4 

31
% 

67
 

3%
 

21
10
 

92
% 

8 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  

St
ag

e 2
 

01
/04

/20
08
 

31
/03

/20
09
 

Ch
an

ge
 

01
/04

/20
09
 

31
/03

/20
10
 

No
t U

ph
eld

 
Pa

rti
all
y 

Up
he

ld 
Up

he
ld 

Wi
thd

raw
n o

r 
Re

fer
red

 O
n 

Co
mp

let
ed

 In
 

Tim
e 

Av
era

ge
 

Da
ys
 to

 
Co

mp
let

e 
Ad

ult
s H

ea
lth

 &
 W

ell
be
ing

 
2 

0 
0%

 
2 

2 
10
0%

 
0 

0%
 

0 
0%

 
0 

0%
 

2 
10
0%

 
4 

Ch
ief

 Ex
ec
uti

ve
's 

11
 

-5 
-45

% 
6 

4 
67
%
 

2 
33
%
 

0 
0%

 
0 

0%
 

6 
10
0%

 
11
 

Ch
ild

ren
 Sc

ho
ols

 an
d F

am
ilie

s 
12
 

3 
25
% 

15
 

9 
60
%
 

4 
27
%
 

2 
13
%
 

0 
0%

 
9 

60
% 

29
 

CL
C 

11
6 

- 16
 

-14
% 

10
0 

57
 

57
%
 

20
 

20
%
 

21
 

21
%
 

2 
2%

 
91
 

91
% 

15
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

& 
Re

ne
wa

l 
53
 

- 11
 

-21
% 

42
 

25
 

60
%
 

6 
14
%
 

6 
14
%
 

5 
12
%
 

36
 

86
% 

16
 

Re
so

ur
ce
s 

24
 

17
 

71
% 

41
 

29
 

71
%
 

6 
15
%
 

4 
10
%
 

2 
5%

 
40
 

98
% 

10
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es
 

12
6 

29
 

23
% 

15
5 

96
 

62
%
 

2 
1%

 
56
 

36
%
 

1 
1%

 
14
3 

92
% 

16
 

To
tal

s 
34
4 

17
 

5%
 

36
1 

22
2 

61
% 

40
 

11
% 

89
 

25
% 

10
 

3%
 

32
7 

91
% 

15
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

St
ag

e 3
 

01
/04

/20
08
 

31
/03

/20
09
 

Ch
an

ge
 

01
/04

/20
09
 

31
/03

/20
10
 

No
t U

ph
eld

 
Pa

rti
all
y 

Up
he

ld 
Up

he
ld 

Wi
thd

raw
n o

r 
Re

fer
red

 O
n 

Co
mp

let
ed

 In
 

Tim
e 

Av
era

ge
 

Da
ys
 to

 
Co

mp
let

e 
Ad

ult
s H

ea
lth

 &
 W

ell
be
ing

 
1 

0 
0%

 
1 

1 
10
0%

 
0 

0%
 

0 
0%

 
0 

0%
 

1 
10
0%

 
7 

Ch
ief

 Ex
ec
uti

ve
's 

9 
7 

78
% 

16
 

6 
38
%
 

7 
44
%
 

2 
13
%
 

1 
6%

 
12
 

75
% 

17
 

Ch
ild

ren
 Sc

ho
ols

 an
d F

am
ilie

s 
3 

5 
16
7%

 
8 

5 
63
%
 

2 
25
%
 

0 
0%

 
1 

13
%
 

5 
63
% 

19
 

CL
C 

34
 

38
 

11
2%

 
72
 

55
 

76
%
 

12
 

17
%
 

5 
7%

 
0 

0%
 

58
 

81
% 

16
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

& 
Re

ne
wa

l 
26
 

- 10
 

-38
% 

16
 

15
 

94
%
 

1 
6%

 
0 

0%
 

0 
0%

 
10
 

63
% 

20
 

Re
so

ur
ce
s 

12
 

4 
33
% 

16
 

13
 

81
%
 

2 
13
%
 

0 
0%

 
1 

6%
 

12
 

75
% 

18
 

To
we

r H
am

let
s H

om
es
 

35
 

20
 

57
% 

55
 

18
 

33
%
 

17
 

31
%
 

20
 

36
%
 

0 
0%

 
40
 

73
% 

20
 

Fig
ure

 2.
4  
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
 To

tal
s 

12
0 

64
 

53
% 

18
4 

11
3 

61
% 

41
 

22
% 

27
 

15
% 

3 
2%

 
13
8 

75
% 

18
 

Page 223



Annual Report 2009/10 10 of 36 June 2010  

 
2.2.1 Figure 2.4 provides an overview of the complaints by directorate at each stage.  
 
2.2.2 The annual figures for the percentage of complaints competed on time has risen significantly 

at stage 1, achieving 92%, building on the positive improvements of the previous year, (83%).  
 
2.2.3 Similarly, at stage 2, an excellent 91% were completed in the standard time frame. Even 

though the volume of stage 3 complaints increased by 53% from 2008/09, the performance 
there increased by 5 percentage points to 75% completed in time and the average days to 
close fell to 18, well within the target of 20 working days; work is ongoing to improve this 
further.  

 
2.2.4 As stated earlier, most Social Care complaints come under statutory procedures and are 

detailed in sections 3 and 4. Schools complaints also fall under a separate procedure at 
Stages 1 and 2, with the final stage coming under the Corporate Complaints Procedure, at 
stage 3. 

 
2.3 Corporate Complaints by Service Area 
 
2.3.1 The charts that follow provide a breakdown of the corporate complaints in each directorate by 

service area.  For any service that moved into a new directorate structure, the year on year 
comparison is shown in the directorate current at 31 March 2009. 

 
Adults Health and Wellbeing  
 

Stage 1 Adults Health & Wellbeing by Service Issue

0

1

1

2

2

3

3

4

4

5

2008/2009 4 1 0 1 1
2009/2010 2 1 1 0 0

Elders Commissioning Services OT Services Learning Disabilities Resources

 Figure 2.5 
2.3.2 Corporate Complaints against Adults Health and Wellbeing relate to non-statutory processes 

and are few in number.  
 

Page 224



Annual Report 2009/10 11 of 36 June 2010  

Chief Executive’s 
 

Stage 1 Chief Executive's by Service Issue

0

5

10

15

20

25

2008/2009 11 2 4 11 3 1
2009/2010 20 8 4 2 1 0

Communications Democratic Services Legal Services - Community Business & Election Team  Information Governance Equalities & Inclusion

  Figure 2.6 
 
2.3.3 Although the volume of complaints in the Chief Executive’s directorate is low in all sections, a 

number of complaints were received regarding East End Life, with some residents concerned 
to ensure weekly delivery, and others having requested for delivery to stop. Complaints against 
Democratic Services related to the publication of Members’ expenses and timesheets on the 
Council’s website. With no election within the reported period, complaints for this service fell. 

 
Children’s Services 
 
2.3.4 Children’s Services complaints are also low in number, see figure 2.7 below.  
 

Stage 1 Children Schools and Families by Service Issue

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

2008/2009 12 3 3 9 2 0
2009/2010 9 5 4 3 1 1

Young People and Learning Youth & Community Learning Early Years Children Children's Social Care Strategy Commission& 
Prtnrshp Youth Offending

 Figure 2.7 
 

Page 225



Annual Report 2009/10 12 of 36 June 2010  

 Figure 2.8 
 

2.3.5 Complaints in Communities Localities and Culture (Figure 2.8) are spread across a range of 
services. Following a rise in complaints in 2008/09, performance issue have been addressed 
and volumes in 2009/10 have fallen. The volume of complaints regarding recycling and refuse 
collection has fallen considerably, as have street cleansing and highways maintenance.  

 
Arts and events complaints surround two events in Victoria Park. 

 

Stage 1 Communities Localities & Culture by Service Issue 

0 

20 

40 

60 

80 

100 

120 

140 

160 

180 

2008/2009 150 163 65 103 84 34 35 44 20 1 22 6 16 5 13 12 4 0 16 11 11 4 0 1 
2009/2010 159 102 76 76 51 35 29 27 26 25 18 16 15 13 11 10 10 5 5 4 4 3 2 1 

Parki
ng Recy

cling g Nois
e  Nuis

ance 
Highways  
Main
tena
nce  

Domestic  
Refu
se 

Pest  
Control Parks &  

Ope
n  Spaces 

Street  
Cleansin
g g 

Bulk  
Collectio
n n Arts and  

Events Communi
ty ty Safety LETs &  

Street  
Wardens Estate  

Parking Com
merc ial Waste  Sports &  Recreatio

n n 
Traffic  
and  

Transport Markets Licensing Idea  
Stores &  
Libraries 

Highways  
Enforcem 

ent Clinical  
Waste  Trading  

Standard 
s Lifelong  

Learning Other 

Page 226



Annual Report 2009/10 13 of 36 June 2010  

Development and Renewal 
 

Stage 1 Development & Renewal by Service Issue

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

2008/2009 77 64 23 6 0 2 5 3 3 2
2009/2010 67 65 44 8 6 5 4 2 0 1

Lettings Homeless 
Services Applications Building Control Major Project 

Development
Strtgy Regen & 
Sustainability

Asset Mngmnt & 
Property Srvcs

Corporate 
Property Services

Housing 
Management 

ALMO 
Other

 Figure 2.9 
 
2.3.6 Complaints regarding Lettings have fallen, and Homeless Service remain at the same level as 

2008/09. The rise in complaints regarding planning applications is thought to relate to the type 
of development occurring within the period, with a number of estate renewal programmes.  

 
Resources 
 
2.3.7  In the Resources directorate, services with a high rate of direct customer contact have the 

highest volume of complaints (see figure 2.10 overleaf).  Council Tax is higher than others but, 
when considered against the volume of transactions across all households, this volume is not 
unduly high. The rise in contact centre complaints relates in the main to the transfer of the out 
of hours service to an external provider and these matters are followed up in contract 
monitoring meetings. In addition, the early stages of bedding in the Council’s new telephony 
gave rise to a number of complaints.  

 The Council handled around 2,000 more new Benefits claims during the period 2009/10 than 
the previous year. 

Page 227



Annual Report 2009/10 14 of 36 June 2010  

Stage 1 Resources by Service Issue

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2008/2009 111 86 29 48 6 0 6 4 3 0 0
2009/2010 99 88 87 75 9 8 5 2 2 1 1

Council Tax One Stop Shops Contact Centre Benefits Risk Management 
& Audit ICT Human Resources Corporate 

Complaints
Facilities 

Management
Customer Access - 

Social Care Revenues

 Figure 2.10 
 
Tower Hamlets Homes  

Stage 1 Tower Hamlets Homes by Service Issue

0

100

200

300

400

500

600

700

2008/2009 649 193 37 39 10 1 26 0 3 9
2009/2010 586 163 63 43 27 17 11 8 6 2

Repairs
Housing 

Management  - 
NHO

Leasehold 
Services Caretaking Rents ASB Team Capital Works HUB Strategy & 

Performance Other

 Figure 2.11 
 
2.3.8 Housing related complaints have fallen overall, and this is noticeable in a number of key 

areas, with repair issues still comprising the highest volume, but reducing. Changes in 
charges for heating and hot water have given rise to a number of complaints about rents and 
service charges.  

Page 228



Annual Report 2009/10 15 of 36 June 2010  

 In 2008/09 ASB matters would have been recorded against the relevant Neighbourhood 
Housing Office, but with the new ASB team complaints are now grouped under this service.  

 
2.4 STAGE 3 COMPLAINTS  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure2.12 
 
2.4.1 The volume of complaints considered at stage 3 increased significantly and the escalation 

rate increased to 6.5% from 4.3%. The proportion upheld (or partially upheld) remained 
similar to the previous year at just under 40%. Figure 2.13 below takes a closed look at where 
the greatest increases fell by service, as well as the greatest decreases.  

 
Biggest Changes (6) by Service Issue of Stage 3 Complaints 

-10
-8
-6
-4
-2
0
2
4
6
8
10
12
14
16
18
20
22
24
26
28
30
32
34

Change 33 9 8 8 6 4 -2 -2 -2 -3 -4 -8

CLC   -    
Estate Parking

THH -  
Housing 

Management  - 

Chief Exec. -  
Information 
Governance

THH -  
Leasehold 
Services

Children S&F  -  
Young People 
and Learning

THH   -  
Repairs

D&R -  
Lettings

Chief Exec.  -  
Democratic 
Services

Resources -  
Human 

Resources

CLC   -    
Noise 

Nuisance

D&R  -  
Housing 

Management 

D&R  -  
Homeless 
Services

 Figure 2.13 
 
2.4.2 There are a number of issues that are only considered at the final stage of the corporate 

complaints procedure, and in this sense the procedure is used as a final appeal. Stage 3 

Comparison of Stage 3 Complaints 
  Total Not Upheld Partially 

Upheld 
Upheld Withdrawn 

or Referred 
On 

Completed In 
Time 

Average Days 
to Complete 

01/04/2008 
31/03/2009 120 73 61% 24 20% 22 18% 1 1% 84 70.0% 20 

01/04/2009 
31/03/2010 184 113 61% 41 22% 27 15% 3 2% 138 75.0% 18 

Change 64 40 1% 17 2% 5 -4% 2 1% 54 5.0% 2 
  53% 55%   71%   23%   200%   64%     

Page 229



Annual Report 2009/10 16 of 36 June 2010  

Estate Parking complaints are in essence a final stage appeal against vehicle removal. 
Challenges to Freedom of Information requests are also considered at stage 3, and these are 
reflected in the figure for Information Governance. Both areas saw a significant increase in 
2009/10. Stage 3 complaints against Homeless Services fell significantly in 2009/10.   

 
2.4.3 A summary of compensation paid past three years is shown in below. 
 
 

 Number of stage 3 
cases warranting 
compensation 

Total value of 
Compensation 

2009/10 30 £5,345 
2008/09 14 £3,390 
2007/08 9 £1,374 

 Figure2.14 
 
2.4.4  Of the £5,345 compensation paid in 2009/10, £1,700 was in refunds for estate parking fees (8 

cases), £2,465 for repairs (13 cases), and a further £1,000 for other housing matters (6 
cases) 

 
2.4.5 Summary of Key Issues in Stage 3 Complaints Upheld. 

In a number (7) of instances, documents previously refused under the Freedom of Information 
Act 2000 were later provided at the review stage. This is part of the process of assisting the 
requester to refine the request and frequently it is not the same request by they time it 
reaches the third stage. There were three incidents of delays in processing and responding to 
Freedom of Information requests because of the size and complexity of the requests it was 
not possible to keep to the statutory timescales. 
 
The need for devising and implementing a more robust policy on graffiti was identified.  
 
On the majority of estate parking appeals, the actions of the Council were found to be 
justified. However, in nine cases refunds were issued, some as a gesture of goodwill.  
 
Issues relating to blocked drains, housing conditions and repairs, cyclists, recycling, waste 
disposal and street maintenance have all been dealt with on an individual basis.  
 
In a number (5) of instances relating to the conduct of staff, it was found that the officer 
involved were not necessarily at fault. However, it was generally agreed that staff could have 
been more helpful with a view of providing better customer service.   
 
Issues surrounding delays in housing repairs, maintenance and the standard of work 
conducted were found to be largely related to the performance and conduct of contractors. In 
one notable incident, a complaint requested the service contract between the council and a 
contractor.  
 
The incorrect billing of housing service charge or other services provided to Leaseholders 
were identified. In these six instances an apology and the applicable refunds were provided.  
In one instance a failure to change the records of a leaseholder was identified for the 
generation of an incorrect bill.  

Page 230



Annual Report 2009/10 17 of 36 June 2010  

 

Page 231



Annual Report 2009/10 18 of 36 June 2010  

 
2.5   COMPLAINTS SERVICE USER PROFILES 
 
2.5.1 The service can be accessed by email, fax, in person, minicom, phone, post, and web-form.  

A breakdown of access methods is provided in Figure2.16 below. 
 

BREAKDOWN OF HOW COMPLAINTS RECEIVED 
  01/04/2008 31/03/2009 01/04/2009 31/03/2010 

  Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total 
Email 529 118 45 692 755 138 75 968 
  22.7% 34.3% 37.5% 24.7% 32.9% 38.2% 40.8% 34.1% 
Web 361 13 3 377 262 8 3 273 
  15.5% 3.8% 2.5% 13.5% 11.4% 2.2% 1.6% 9.6% 
Phone 952 90 7 1,049 912 103 10 1,025 
  40.8% 26.2% 5.8% 37.5% 39.8% 28.5% 5.4% 36.1% 
Post 464 114 64 642 347 104 92 543 
  19.9% 33.1% 53.3% 23.0% 15.1% 28.8% 50.0% 19.1% 
Fax 11 5 1 17 6 2 2 10 
  0.5% 1.5% 0.8% 0.6% 0.3% 0.6% 1.1% 0.4% 
In Person 15 4 0 19 10 6 2 18 
  0.6% 1.2% 0% 0.7% 0.4% 1.7% 1.1% 0.6% 

  2,332 344 120 2,796 2,292 361 184 2,837 
 

Figure 2.15 
 
2.5.2 Web form and email submissions increased to 43.7% of the total volume, with phone contact 

remaining at 36% and, although still a significant access route, postal contact falling to 19%.  
 
  

Page 232



Annual Report 2009/10 19 of 36 June 2010  

  
2.5.3 EQUAL ACCESS TO THE SERVICE 
 

BREAKDOWN OF CORPORATE COMPLAINTS BY ETHNICITY 
 2008 / 2009   2009 / 2010 

Ethnicity  
 

Stage 
1 

Stage 
2 

Stage 
3 

Borough 
Population 
Projection 

Stage 
1 

Stage 
2 

Stage 
3 

Asian Total 490 62 23   459 73 32 
 41.5% 31.2% 35.4% 36.6% 36.8% 34.8% 37.2% 

Bangladeshi 447 55 20   406 68 30 
Chinese 9 2 2   7 1 0 
Indian 15 3 0   18 2 0 

Pakistani 2 1 1   9 1 2 
Vietnamese 0 0 0   2 0 0 
Other Asian 
Background 

17 1 0   17 1 0 
Black Total 85 14 9   89 15 4 

  7.2% 7.0% 13.8% 6.0% 7.1% 7.1% 4.7% 
African 25 4 2   35 3 2 

Caribbean 40 5 3   36 10 2 
Somali 12 3 2   9 1 0 

Other Black 
Background 

8 2 2   9 1 0 
Mixed Heritage 18 5 1   28 5 1 

  1.5% 2.5% 1.5%   2.2% 2.4% 1.2% 
Other ethnic 

background 
21 8 0   16 1 1 

  1.8% 4.0% 0.0%   1.3% 0.5% 1.2% 
White 566 110 32   656 116 48 

  48.0% 55.3% 49.2% 51.0% 52.6% 55.2% 55.8% 
English 440 78 20   513 90 32 

Irish 18 5 2   29 7 2 
Scottish 15 5 2   13 3 2 
Welsh 10 1 0   9 4 2 

White Other  83 21 8   92 12 10 
Sub total (where 
ethnicity known) 1180 199 65   1248 210 86 

Not Known 1024 131 46   863 117 87 
Declined 128 14 9   181 34 11 
Total 2332 344 120   2292 361 184 

 Figure2.16 
 
2.5.4 The team continue to make every effort to collate equalities information from service users 

(Figure2.16). Overall the volume of complaints where ethnicity is known does not vary 
significantly from the projected Borough population. 

 
 

Page 233



Annual Report 2009/10 20 of 36 June 2010  

2008/09 2009/10 Corporate Complaints 
by Gender Stage 

1 
Stage 
2 

Stage 
3 

Stage 
1 

Stage 
2 

Stage 
3 

Female 1106 131 40 1088 141 65 
  47% 38% 33% 47% 39% 35% 
Male 1213 212 78 1198 218 117 
  52% 62% 65% 52% 60% 64% 
Not Known 13 1 2 5 2 2 
  1% 0% 2% 0% 1% 1% 
Other 0 0 0 1 0 0 
  0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 

Totals: 2332 344 120 2292 361 184 
Figure 2.17 
 

2.5.5 It is noticeable that the proportion of male complainants taking matters through to the final 
stages of the complaints procedure is greater than for women.  

 
2.5.6 The team collect equalities against the six strands, and this information is requested on 

complaint forms and web forms. However, collection rates on equalities data varies with 
people providing data on some strands more readily.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Figure 2.18 
 
2.5.7 Table 2.18 above shows that the collect rates have increased for each strand, but 

breakdowns have only been provided for strands with over 50% collection rates, (ethnicity 
and gender).  

% of data known for each 
equalities strand 

2008/09 2009/10 
Age 36% 41% 
Disability 40% 44% 
Ethnicity 55% 61% 
Gender 99% 100% 
Religion 22% 32% 
Sexual Orientation 13% 23% 

Page 234



Annual Report 2009/10 21 of 36 June 2010  

Stage 1 Complaints by Directorate and LAP Areas

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

Tower Hamlets Homes 331 79 191 108 84 7 102 18 6
CLC 147 75 85 67 81 49 38 84 99
Resources 84 41 44 31 38 22 37 34 46
Development & Renewal 30 21 27 12 16 29 25 18 24
Chief Executive's 5 4 4 5 1 2 3 8 3
Children Schools and Families 4 1 2 1 4 1 1 3 6
Adults Health & Wellbeing 0 0 0 1 1 1 0 0 1

LAP Area 1 LAP Area 2 LAP Area 3 LAP Area 4 LAP Area 5 LAP Area 6 LAP Area 7 LAP Area 8 Out Of Borough

 Figure 2.19 
 

2.5.8  Figure 2.19 above shows the volume of complaints by LAP for stage 1, under each 
directorate. More detailed breakdowns can be provided by LAP on request, and complaints 
data will also be provided to Members through the performance digest later in the year. 

 
3  Adults Social Care Complaints  
 
3.1 New Procedure 

 
3.1.1 From 1 April 2009, the Council adopted an interim procedure for handling Adult Social Care 

Complaints to meet the changes set out in section 1.7 of this document. From September to 
December 2009, the Complaints Team and Adults Health and Wellbeing Quality Team 
conducted a review of its impact, effectiveness and ease of access and the procedure has 
since been ratified and a communication strategy agreed. Along side data held on complaints 
considered since implementing the new procedure, a workshop was held for user and 
advocacy groups; individual complainants were asked for feedback; as were staff, to inform 
the review.   

 
3.1.2 User groups, advocacy and support groups provided important insights to access issues and 

the complaints team is maintaining regular contact to ensure that there is an effective 
dialogue to maximise access and confidence. 

 

Page 235



Annual Report 2009/10 22 of 36 June 2010  

3.1.3 The legislation sets out a requirement to cooperate and coordinate responses for issues that 
may overlap with Health services. In a successful joint venture with the PCT, joint publicity 
materials have been produced and distributed throughout the borough. 

 
3.1.4 Some matters will always be raised direct with the service and resolved without recourse to a 

formal complaint procedure. In order to capture important data from these interactions, we 
have produced a proforma for services to hold their records. Use of this method of recording 
has increased over the year and data is intended to be used in future reports.  

 
3.1.5 The new procedure allows one stage of investigation only, although the form this takes is 

agreed in the light of the issues raised. Over the year, a variety of methods have been used, 
including round table meetings, formal interview and file reviews, and liaison between the 
service manager and the complainant. Key to resolving matters has been the emphasis on 
identifying a resolution plan with the complainant.  

 
3.1.6 As there is only one stage of investigation, table 3.1 below compares the 2009/10 single 

stage volumes with stage 1 complaint volumes for the previous year. Fewer complaints have 
been received. Whilst it is thought that this is due to the change in focus to early resolution, 
we are also mindful that publicity was limited until the review had been undertaken.  

Figure 3.1 
 
3.1.7 The new procedure also does not set timescales for completion, and this is agreed at the 

onset of each case. In order to provide monitoring information we are capturing data of 
complaints closed within 10 working day brackets. Table 3.1 indicates that all but 3 
complaints were completed in less than 20 working days (86%). The single stage captures 
complaints of various levels of complexity and the figures above are very positive in 
comparison to 2008/09, where 10 complaints escalated to stage 2 and five of those 
complaints were closed outside the extended target of 65 working days. 

 
3.2 Overlap of Previous Procedure 
 
3.2.1 Although all new complaints from 1 April 2009 fell under the new single stage procedure, 

complaints initially received prior to this date still progressed through the three stage 
procedure. Five complaints progressed to stage 2 and one to Review Panel.  

 

(Stage 1) 

01
/04

/08
  

31
/03

/09
 

01
/04

/09
 

31
/01

/10
 

No
t U

ph
eld

 

Pa
rti
all
y 

Up
he

ld 

Up
he

ld 

Wi
thd

raw
n 

or
 R
efe

rre
d 

On
 

Wi
thi

n 1
0 

Da
ys
 

Wi
thi

n 2
0 

Da
ys
 

Wi
thi

n 3
0 

Da
ys
 

Wi
thi

n 5
0 

Da
ys
 

Av
era

ge
 

Da
ys
 to

 
Cl
os

e 

Commissioning 
Services 0 1 0 0% 0 0% 1 100% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 1 100% 0 0% 22 
Disability  
and Health 14 1 0 0% 0 0% 1 100% 0 0% 0 0% 1 100% 0 0% 0 0% 13 

Elders 17 9 5 56% 1 11% 3 33% 0 0% 3 33% 6 67% 0 0% 0 0% 13 
Learning  
Disabilities 3 2 0 0% 0 0% 2 100% 0 0% 2 100% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 7 

OT Services 9 7 2 29% 3 43% 1 14% 1 14% 5 71% 1 14% 1 14% 0 0% 10 

Resources 4 3 0 0% 0 0% 3 100% 0 0% 1 33% 1 33% 0 0% 1 33% 22 
Totals: 47 23 7 30% 4 17% 11 48% 1 4% 1

1 48% 9 39% 2 9% 1 4% 13 

Page 236



Annual Report 2009/10 23 of 36 June 2010  

 
Volume of Adults Health & Wellbeing Social Care Complaints 

Year 2008/09 2009/10 Variance 

Stage 1 47 23 -24 -51% 
**Stage 2 10 **5 **-5 **-50% 

Total Complaints 57 **28 **-29 **-51% 
Figure 3.2 

 
3.2.2 The new procedure places greater emphasis on resolving matters at the earliest opportunity 

and the complaints team is working with services to ensure that records are held of matters 
resolved at a service level are held in a format that can be used for further analysis in the 
coming year.  

 
3.3 Reason For Complaints 
3.3.1 The number of complaints challenging assessment decisions fell from 24 in 2008/09 to 7 in 

2009/10.  
 

COMPARISON OF COMPLAINTS BY REASON 
  
  

(Stage 1) 01/04/2008 
31/03/2009 

01/04/2009 
31/03/2010 

Dissatisfaction of Policy/ Procedure 0 1 4% 
Service Delay / Failure 9 3 13% 
Appropriateness of Service. 1 1 4% 
Attitude of Staff 4 2 9% 
Challenge Assessment Decision 24 7 30% 
Competence of Service 6 8 35% 
Discriminatory Service 1 0 0% 
Lack of Information 1 1 4% 
Other Reason 1 0 0% 

Totals: 47 23   
Figure 3.3 

 
 
 

47 

23 

**Old procedure 

10 
5 

0 
5 
10 
15 
20 
25 
30 
35 
40 
45 
50 

Stage 1 Stage 2 

2008/09 
2009/10 

No
. o

f S
tag

es
 

Page 237



Annual Report 2009/10 24 of 36 June 2010  

3.4 Access and Profiles 
 
3.4.1 People making Social Care complaints by telephone has fallen from 54% to 14%, although it 

appears to be that initial phone calls are backed up by email or letter.  
 

Breakdown of how Adults Social Care Complaints are received 

 How Received 2008/09 2009/10 

Email 5 9% 8 29% 
Fax 0 0% 1 4% 
In Person 1 2% 3 11% 
Phone 31 54% 4 14% 
Post 20 35% 12 43% 

Total Complaints 57   28   
Figure 3.4 

 
3.4.2 Figure 3.5 below indicates that there is a slight under-representation of Asian service users 

making complaints. However, there were no issues of discrimination reported.   
 

  Adults Social Care by Ethnicity  
  No. of service 

users in 
2009/10 

Percentage 
of service 
users by 
ethnicity 

Stage 1 
complaints 

Percentage of 
complainants  
by ethnicity 

Asian 1591 25% 3 13% 
Black 707 11% 2 9% 
White 3777 59% 14 61% 
Mixed Race 72 1% 0 0.0% 
Other 175 3% 0 0% 
Not Stated 54 1% 4 17% 

Totals 6,346 100% 47 
 

100%  
Figure 3.5 
 

3.5  Summary of key issues in upheld cases  
 
Elders 
Two complaints concerned inaccurate or misleading information; one relating to residential 
care cost and one on direct payments.  
Omissions in a Hospital Social Work assessment and wrong information on eligibility for direct 
payments fed into a review of assessment process. A further issue about PCT services was 
responded to separately by PCT as further time was required for this issue.  
 

Page 238



Annual Report 2009/10 25 of 36 June 2010  

One complaint was upheld as client was not being supervised in eating his main meal, 
another the agency experienced difficulties in getting an early morning service, and in one 
instance a door was left open by a carer. 
A further 3 complaints related to shifts not being covered and poor communication with 
service users and relatives around changes in service times. All of these issues were taken 
up direct with the service provider. 
 
OT Services  
A complaint about installing equipment for disabled person resulted in re-assessment of 
service user being carried out. 

 
Disability and Health  
Failure to ensure services were up and running before service user was discharged from 
hospital resulted from the failure to fully complete form by student social worker.  
Complaint about proposed change of service level and care provider to service user resulted 
in re-assessment being offered. 

 
Learning Disabilities  
Following a complaint about a lack of support to achieve certain tasks, it was agreed that 
assistance be provided to obtain personal documentation and sort out bills. 
A request for short term additional resources was approved but not confirmed with service 
user and carer, resulting in the service not being used.  After meeting the carer, an apology 
was given and explanation on how the procedure would be improved.  

 
4 Children’s Social Care Complaints 
 
4.1 Complaint Volumes 
 
4.1.1 Children’s Social Care retains a three stage procedure, and complaint volumes remain at a 

similar level to 2008/09. 
 

 Figure 4.1 
 
 

34 35 

8 
11 

1 0 
5 
10 
15 
20 
25 
30 
35 

No
. o

f S
tag

es
 

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 

2008/09 
2009/10 

Page 239



Annual Report 2009/10 26 of 36 June 2010  

4.2  Complaint Response Times  
 

Stage 1 Children’s Social Care Complaints - Performance 

  Volume 
Answered 
within 10 
working 
days 

Answered 
within 20 
working 
days 

Answered 
outside 
timescale 

Average response 
times (days) 

2008/09 34 17 50% 31 91% 3 9% 19 
2009/10 35 21 60% 31 89% 4 11% 13 

 Figure 4.2 
 
4.2.1 The above table (figure 4.2) shows that 60% of Stage 1 complaints in Children’s Social Care 

were answered within the 10 working day time scale, and 89% completed in the extended 
times scale. Four complaints were answered outside of the timescales. However the overall 
response rate improved to an average of 13 working days.  

 
4.2.2 It should also be noted that complaints in Children’s Social Care are often complex and may 

require the Team Manager meeting with the young person, appointing an advocate, etc in 
order to resolve complaints.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 4.3 
 

4.2.3. The Complaints Team aims to respond to 15% of stage complaints with 25 working days and 
to 80% within 65 working days. Figure 4.3 shows that more complaints were completed within 
the 65 working day deadline in 2009/10 than in the previous year.  

 
4.2.4 Although this is an improvement, the team is still short of the 80% target. Children’s Social 

care complaints are often complex and involve interviewing staff and service users. However, 
the Complaints Team continue to strive to improve this performance. 

 

Stage 2 Children’s Social Care Complaints - Performance 

  Volume 
Answered 
within 25 
working 
days 

Answered 
within 65 
working 
days 

Answered 
outside 
timescale 

Average response 
times (days) 

2008/09 8 1 13% 4 50% 4 50% 78 
2009/10 11 1 9% 7 64% 4 36% 63 

Page 240



Annual Report 2009/10 27 of 36 June 2010  

4.3 Reason for Complaint 
 

Stage 1  Children’s Social Care Complaints by Section 

  2008/09 Variance Total 
2009/10 

Not Upheld Partially 
Upheld Upheld 

Withdrawn 
or Referred 

On 
Children Looked After & Leaving 
Care 7 

-
2 -29% 5 14% 1 20% 0 0% 3 60% 1 20% 

Children's EDT 0 1   1 3% 1 100% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 
Children's Resources 3 2 67% 5 14% 5 100% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 
Fieldwork Services 23 

-
2 -9% 21 60% 14 67% 5 24% 2 10% 0 0% 

Integrated .Services Children 
Disability 1 2 200% 3 9% 2 67% 1 33% 0 0% 0 0% 

Total Stage 1 Complaints  34 1 3% 35 100% 23 66% 6 17% 5 14% 1 3% 
Stage 2  Children Schools and Families Social Care Complaints 

by Section 
  2008/09 Variance Total 

2009/10 
Not Upheld Partially 

Upheld Upheld 
Withdrawn 
or Referred 

On 
Children Looked After & Leaving 
Care 2 

-
2 -100% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 

Children's EDT 0 1   1 9% 0 0% 0 0% 1 100% 0 0% 
Children's Resources 3 

-
1 -33% 2 18% 0 0% 2 100% 0 0% 0 0% 

Fieldwork Services 3 5 167% 8 73% 3 38% 3 38% 2 25% 0 0% 
Total Stage 2 Complaints  8 3 38% 11 100% 3 27% 5 45% 3 27% 0 0% 
Figure 4.4 
 

4.3.1 Fieldwork services have received the highest number of complaints at Stage 1 and Stage 2,  
as is expected (see Figure3.8). This is due to the potentially contentious nature of the service 
and the large number of service users.  

 
4.3.2 Section 4.5 contains a summary of the key issues upheld. 
 
4.3.3 Figure 4.5 indicates that the highest number of complaints in Children’s Social Care remains 

“challenging assessments decisions” which may result in re-assessment, if it is found that 
there were issues in the original assessment process.  

 
Stage 1  Children Schools and Families Social Care Complaints by 

Reason 
  2008/09 Variance Total 

2009/10 

Not 
Upheld 

Partially 
Upheld Upheld 

Withdrawn 
or Referred 

On 

Challenge Assessment Decision 24 5 -14%  21 14% 12 57% 4 19% 4 19% 1 5% 
Service Delay / Failure 3 3 66%  5 9% 4 80% 0 0% 1 20% 0 0% 
Appropriateness of Service 0 1   1 3% 0 0% 1 100% 0 0% 0 0% 
Attitude of Staff 3 1 33% 4 11% 4 100% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 
Breach of Confidentiality 2 -2 -100% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 
Competence of Service 1 3 300% 4 11% 3 75% 1 25% 0 0% 0 0% 
Lack of Information 1 -1 -100% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 

Total Stage 1 Complaints  34 1 3% 35 100% 23 66% 6 17% 5 14% 1 3% 
Figure 4.5 

Page 241



Annual Report 2009/10 28 of 36 June 2010  

4.4 Service User Profiles 
 
 

Figure 4.6 
 
4.4.1 Figure 4.6 shows the number of those receiving a service by ethnicity and the volumes of 

complaints for each group. There is a higher proportion of complaints per head of the service 
user population for white clients and to a lesser degree black service users. Nevertheless this 
is a very small representation of the service user group, and matters of discrimination are 
examined where relevant. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Figure 4.7 
 
4.4.2 The above table (figure 4.7) shows that the majority of complainants prefer to make 

complaints by telephone, and email usage is now increasing.  
 
4.5  Summary of key issues in upheld complaints. 
 

In four instances, challenges to the various social care assessments resulted in 
reassessment. In on notable case, a challenge to the disability and child support assessment 
resulted in the complainant provided with a new support package following re-assessment.  
 

  Children's Services Social Care by Ethnicity 
  No. of service 

users in 
2009/10 

Percentage 
of service 
users by 
ethnicity 

Stage 1 
complaints 

Percentage of 
complainants  
by ethnicity 

Asian 1652 45% 10 29% 
Black 392 11% 7 20% 
White 928 25% 13 37% 
Mixed Race 431 12% 3 9% 
Other 62 2% 0 0% 
Not Stated 165 5% 2 6% 
Totals 3640 100% 35 100% 

Breakdown of how Children’s Social Care Complaints are received 

 How Received 2008/09 2009/10 

Email 5 12% 15 33% 
Fax 2 5% 0   
In Person 2 5% 3 7% 
Phone 12 29% 5 11% 
Post 21 50% 22 48% 
Web 0 0%  1 2% 

Total Complaints 42   46   

Page 242



Annual Report 2009/10 29 of 36 June 2010  

In two cases, challenges to the incorrect recording of information and the failure to disclose 
critical information were successfully challenged. In one of these instances, compensation 
was provided.  
 
The social care team failed support of a looked after child while in police custody. This 
decision resulted in the prolonged detention of the teenager. The case identified a failure on 
the part of the Council to meet its obligation as a corporate parent.  
 
The need for an internal audit and analysis of the competences and training of staff in 
adoption and fostering services were highlighted. This was as a result of three cases 
concerning procedural flaws that were successfully challenged. 
 

5 LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN (LGO) COMPLAINTS 
 
5.1 Set out below are details of the complaints closed by the Ombudsman in 2009/10, their 

findings and the Council’s response times to new enquiries.  
 

5.2 Complaints Closed by the Ombudsman.  
 

Ombudsman Decisions

0
20
40
60
80
100
120

2007/08 0 16 37 12 23 88
2008/09 0 21 29 17 15 82
2009/10 1 18 40 16 23 98

Mal-administration 
causing injustice Local Settlement No mal-

administration
Ombudsman’s 
discretion Out of jurisdiction Total 

 Figure 5.1 
 
5.2.1 Set out in Figure 5.1 above is the volume of complaints closed by decision. The Ombudsman 

issued one formal report this year, this being the Council’s first report in five years. Details are 
reported at section 5.3. Local Settlements are agreed where there is some indication of fault, 
or where a compromise might promote a positive relationship. At 24% of the total complaints 
determined (excludes out of jurisdiction), complaints settled is a relatively small proportion of 
complaints determined, and this compares favourably with the Ombudsman’s average across 
all Councils (26.9%). 

 
5.2.2 Figures 5.2 below and 5.3 overleaf show local settlements by directorate, and by directorate 

and division respectively. It is rare for a service to experience more than on settlement, 
indicating that errors are usually one off rather than systemic faults. 

. 

Page 243



Annual Report 2009/10 30 of 36 June 2010  

5.2.3 The increase in Tower Hamlets Homes complaints settled falls in the ASB team. This team is 
newly formed and previously these figures would have been shown against the 
Neighbourhood Housing Offices.  

 
Ombudsmen Local Settlements by Directorate

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

2008/09 2 2 5 2 0 9 0
2009/10 0 1 4 0 1 12 0

Adult Heath and 
Wellbeing Childrens's Services Communities Localities & 

Culture Development & Renewal Resources Tower Hamlets Homes Chief Executive's

 Figure 5.2 
 

Ombudsmen Local Settlements by Service Issue

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

2008/09 1 1 1 1 4 1 1 2 0 0 1 5 1 2
2009/10 0 1 1 0 3 0 0 1 1 3 0 5 1 2

AHW - 
Social Care 

CS -  Social 
Care

CS - School 
Admissions CLC - Land CLC - 

Parking
DR - 

Planning 
Enforcemen

DR -  
Planning 

Applications
DR - 

Homeless
RS -  

Benefits THH - ASB THH - 
Lettings

THH - 
Repairs

THH - 
Sales/ 
Resales

THH - 
Tenancy 

Managemen

 Figure 5.3 
 

Page 244



Annual Report 2009/10 31 of 36 June 2010  

5.2.4 Summary of Local Settlements and Finding of Maladministration 
 

Overall, £5,650 was paid over the18 Local Settlements, and in 2008/09, £5,600 was paid in 
compensation across 21 Local Settlements. 
 
A formal report finding maladministration in the handling of a planning application was 
determined in August 2009, and the Report was considered by the Strategic Planning 
Committee in November 2009. The error arose from an incorrect address being recorded for 
the application, resulting in neighbours missing the opportunity to comment on the application 
for a balcony on the adjacent property.  
 
One applicant for Housing Benefits was awarded £500 for lost opportunity when 
determination of his claim was delayed. 
 
As a gesture of goodwill, a number of Parking Scratch Cards were printed and sent to a 
disabled resident. 

   
Regarding support to a mother with disabilities, a review panel had not been held as there 
was an ongoing dialogue with the complainant. However, it was agreed to proceed with a 
panel 
 
In two cases of ASB action was taken to progress the cases and compensation of £300 for 
delay in one and £2,000 paid for delay and damage in the other. 
 
There were five cases of delay in carrying out repairs to stop water penetration / roof leaks. 
Compensation offered varied from £750 to £100, alongside making good of decoration, 
depending on the severity of the detriment.   
 
In two other Housing cases, one resident was awarded £100 for time and trouble because of 
the delay in obtaining a refund of Service Charges, and another £150 for time and trouble as 
their correspondence was not addressed satisfactorily.  
 
With no evidence of a tenancy termination visit on file, a recharge was wavered. 

 
For Estate Parking Appeals, one complainant was paid £50 for time and trouble in pursuing 
complaint, and another refunded the removal fee. 

 
Homeless Services agreed to amend their literature to explicitly inform users of the right to 
request a formal decision notice and paid £50 in compensation, offering a re-assessment to 
the complainant.  
 
In one School Admissions case, a new appeal was offered as the decision letter was not clear 
about the grounds considered 

 
5.3 Response times 
 
5.3.1  The Ombudsman maintains statistics of the time taken for the first response from the initial 

enquiry, which are published nationally.  Tower Hamlets is consistently one of the better 
performing London Boroughs, responding well under the Ombudsman’s 28 day target.  

Page 245



Annual Report 2009/10 32 of 36 June 2010  

 
Response Times 

 No of First Enquiries Average no of days to respond 
2007/08 50 16.2 
2008/09 50 19.3 
2009/10 56 19.6 
Figure 5.4 

 
5.3.2 The prompt turn-around time is usually reflected in all directorates, although there have been 

a few more delayed cases this year and performance can improve in some directorates. 
 

 
number of 
initial 

enquiries 
2008/09 

number of 
initial 

enquiries 
2009/10 

ave days to 
respond % in time 

Adult Heath and 
Wellbeing  7 4 19 75% 
Chief Executive's 0 0 0 n/a 
Resources 2 3 21 67% 
Children Schools & 
Families  6 8 17 100% 
Communities Localities 
& Culture 11 9 17 88% 

Development & Renewal 6 15 16 93% 
Tower Hamlets Homes 17 21 20 67% 
 Total  49 60 19.6 82% 

Figure 5.5 
 
5.5 The Local Government Ombudsman’s Annual Review is appended for information. 

Page 246



Annual Report 2009/10 33 of 36 June 2010  

6 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
6.1 Areas of risk that the Council may face can be summarised as follows:  
 
Project / Issue Pen Picture Value £m’s Risks / Comments 
Complaints 
handling 

The complaints 
procedures are 
explained in sections 
2, 3 and 4 of this 
report. The volume of 
complaints is also 
contained in this 
report.   

Difficult to quantify 
but includes officer 
time, cost of making 
good and 
compensation 
payments (the latter 
being the most 
easily measured). 
Reputation is also to 
be considered. 

A complaint may 
lead to an 
Ombudsman ruling, 
judicial review or 
other legal remedy 
over justified 
complaints. 
The Council is also 
at risk from spurious 
or malicious 
complaints if these 
are not identified 
and handled 
appropriately.  

Probability Impact Recommended Mitigating Action Risk Owner 
Low  Medium  The Complaints process should 

encourage the earliest possible 
resolution of complaints. Tracking 
first Stage complaints through the 
Siebel database will encourage and 
support officers to do this. The back 
up and co-ordinated working of 
Corporate Complaints, Insurance 
and Legal Services serve to support 
decision-making within Directorates 
on complaint issues. 
Policies on Complaint Handling, 
Compensation and Redress, and 
Dealing with Persistent 
Complainants are in place. 

The relevant 
Corporate Director  

 
7 IMPROVEMENT INITIATIVES 
 
7.1 Quality Standards Accreditation  

The Council achieved British Standards Institute Accreditation for Complaints Handling [CMS 
86:2000] in March 2005 and the revised higher ISO 10002 accreditation in 2007. In the year 
2008/09, as part of the Customer Access Division, the Complaints Service achieved 
accreditation to the Customer Service Excellence standard.  

 
7.2 Staff Training and Development. 
 

The Complaints Team continues to provide training workshops, advice and information 
sessions to teams. Direct feedback is also given to assist managers to improve the quality of 
their investigations and responses. 

Page 247



Annual Report 2009/10 34 of 36 June 2010  

 
7.3 Monitoring Complaints. 

 
Weekly outstanding lists are circulated to Directors and the Chief Executive. Detailed monthly 
monitoring is also distributed. Quarterly reports on quality issues and service improvements 
arising from complaints are discussed at the Corporate Management Team and Directorate 
Management Teams. Twice each year, information is submitted to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee and the Standards Committee. 
 

 
7.4 Publicity. 
 
 The Complaints Team ensures that publicity is widely distributed to ensure effective access 

across the community. This includes linking with advocacy agencies and support groups to 
promote access. In addition the team measure knowledge within the local community of how 
to access the procedures to ensure the effectiveness of publicity.  

 
The complaints procedures for Adults’ and Children’s Social Care place an increased 
emphasis on publicity in order to ensure that service users have a voice. The Complaints 
Team have a role in informing people of their right to complain and in empowering them to 
use the complaints procedure effectively. To this end the team is engaging with community 
groups to promote access. 

 
7.5 Effective Learning Outcomes from Complaints. 
 

Effective complaints procedures can help the whole authority improve the delivery of services 
by highlighting where change is needed.  
 
Lessons learnt from complaints are considered by the Corporate Management Teams in 
quarterly monitoring reports.  
 
The Complaints Team ensures that lessons learned from complaints are highlighted and fed 
back to improve service delivery. For example complaints investigations have highlighted the 
need to review policy guidance. Lessons learned from complaints investigations are also fed 
back to staff in supervision to enable discussion about improvements, any additional training 
required and learning points. 
 

7.6  Equalities Monitoring  
 

Issues and concerns on equalities issues are explored on an individual case basis, and 
considerable thought has been applied to the drafting of the revised procedure for Adults 
Social Care Complaints. Equalities Impact Assessments are scheduled to be reviewed during 
2010/11.  
 
 

Page 248



Annual Report 2009/10 35 of 36 June 2010  

8. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer 
 

8.1 The report provides a summary of the complaints received by the Council in the period 
1 April 2009 to 31 March 2010 through the Corporate Complaints Procedure and those 
received and determined by the Local Government Ombudsman. This report is also 
statutory requirement under the Children Act 1989. 

 
8.2 There are no significant financial implications arising from the recommendations in this 

report and Corporate Complaints procedures and quality checks are designed to 
minimise the cost of making good and compensation, but where this is necessary, 
payment is contained within the Directorate budget. 

 
9 Concurrent report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Legal) 
 

9.1 The Council operates executive arrangements under the Local Government Act 2000.  
Pursuant to those arrangements the Council is required to have an Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee with the functions of: scrutinising and reviewing the Council’s 
exercise of its executive and non-executive functions; and making reports and 
recommendations in relation to the same.  The Council’s Constitution makes provision 
consistent with the statutory requirements.  The consideration of a complaints report 
may be considered as falling within the committee’s review function. 

 
9.2 The Council has statutory duties in respect of the handling of social care complaints as 

set out in the report.  The proper handling of complaints and the consideration of 
information arising from a those complaints may also be consistent with good 
administration in the discharge of the Council’s functions.  It may contribute to 
improving the quality of services that the Council offers and hence to the Council’s duty 
as a best value authority under section 3 of the Local Government Act 1999 to “make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are 
exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness”.  
Proper complaints handling and review may also contribute to the avoidance of 
maladministration within the meaning of the Local Government Act 1974. 

 
10. One Tower Hamlets Considerations. 
 

10.1 The Annual Report provides a breakdown of the ethnicity of complainants and other 
aspects such as gender, age, faith, sexuality and disability are consider against each 
individual complaints and data collated.  Corporate Complaint Procedures have been 
subject to Equalities Impact Assessments and action to increase the collection of 
equalities monitoring data, for comparison against borough profiles, has been 
successful. The Social Care complaints procedure is an important mechanism to 
ensure that vulnerable members of the community being assisted by the Council are 
able to voice their concerns.  

Page 249



Annual Report 2009/10 36 of 36 June 2010  

 
10.2 There is a Social Care complaints leaflet available in five community languages and all 

complaints literature is widely distributed through out the borough and within the local 
voluntary sector agencies. There is also a leaflet for children and young people. This 
publicity ensures that all members of the community are made aware of the 
procedures. 

 
10.3 Children’s Services also ensure that complainants are offered the opportunity of an 

interpretation service to assist them in making their complaint. Young people are 
always offered the opportunity of an advocate in line with the Children Act 1989. 

  
10.4 The Social Care and Corporate complaints procedures provide an important 

mechanism for vulnerable service users to give feedback on services. Continuing 
publicity will ensure that all residents and service users will have better awareness of 
their right to voice any concerns. 

 
11 Sustainable action for a greener environment 
 

11.1 There are no specific implications. 
 
12 Risk management implications. 

 
12.1 The Complaints Team looks at means of redress where complaints are upheld. This 

successfully reduces the risk of Ombudsman Enquiries leading to findings of 
maladministration, and compensation claims.   

 
13. CRIME AND DISORDER REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS 

 
13.1 There are no specific implications. 
 

11. EFFICIENCY STATEMENT  
 

11.1 The purpose a good complaints system is to provide feedback to improve service delivery 
and the lessons learnt element of this report sets out how this has been done. 
 

 
_______________________________________________________ 

 
Local Government Act, 1972 Section 100D (As amended) 

List of “Background Papers” used in the preparation of this report 
  

Local Government Ombudsman 
Annual Review 2009 / 2010 

Ruth Dowden 
Anchorage House  X4162 

 
12. APPENDICES 

 
Appendix 1 – Local Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2009 / 2010 

 
 

Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



Page 257



Page 258



Page 259



Page 260



Page 261



Page 262



Page 263



Page 264



Page 265



Page 266


	Agenda
	2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3 UNRESTRICTED MINUTES
	6.1 Report Called In - Idea Store Strategy Action Plan Update -  Idea Store Watney Market and One Stop Shop
	100602 Idea Store Metro report Cabinet July 2010 v9DG250610 CAB
	Idea Store Strategy Appx 1 Site Plan CAB 070710
	Idea Store Strategy Appx 2 Action Plan CAB 070710
	Idea Store Strategy Appx 3 Concept txt CAB 070710

	9.1 Strategic Performance and Corporate Revenue Budget Monitoring 2009/2010 Year End Report
	Strategic Performance & CRBM Year End Report O&S APPENDICES

	9.2 Corporate Complaints and Social Care Complaints Annual Report 2009/2010
	Annual Complaints Review 2009 2010


